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Company Profile

Berger was established two centuries ago and now it has grown to become one of the
world’s largest paints manufacturers. The history of Berger Paints in Pakistan is as
old as the country itself. Berger started its operations in Pakistan in 1950 and was the
first organized Paint Company to offer premium products through imports from the
United Kingdom.

BERGER PAINTS PAKISTAN LTD. became a public limited company in 1974, when
49.38% of its shares were acquired by Pakistani investors, while the remaining
50.62% were held by U.K. parent company, Jenson & Nicholson Limited. Later
Slotrapid Limited registered in B.V.I. with diversified business interests, acquired
control of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited by gaining 52.0502% shares of the
company.

Berger established its first local manufacturing facility in Karachi in 1955. As the
country’s economic and industrial sector expanded the demand for quality paints also
grew and Berger continued to make extensions in its product range to meet these
requirements.

In 2006, Berger established state of the art manufacturing facility in Lahore. With its
head office now located in Lahore, Berger caters to the demands of its valued
customers on national basis.

Consistent quality has always been Berger’s trait. This has been the driving force in
making it the leading brand name backed by premium quality across Pakistan.

Berger has the most comprehensive product range for various paint market
segments at different price points. Berger has earned the admiration and trust of
customers by virtue of its superior technology, product quality and a very high level of
customized services.

Berger over years has entered into a number of technical collaboration
arrangements with leading international manufacturers. These include one of the
largest paint company from Japan, which enables Berger develop Automotive,
Vehicle Refinishes and Industrial Paints conforming to international standards; a
Japanese chemical company, for Bumper Paints; PCS Powders, UK for Powder
Coatings; DPI Sendirian Berhad, Malaysia for Road & Runway Markings; Cerachem
for Construction Chemicals and Asian Paints for Decorative Paints. In 2011, Berger
acquired the distribution rights of DuPont Performance Coatings, now Axalta Coating
Systems - Cromax, for Pakistan. In 2017, Berger also acquired distribution rights of
another brand from Axalta Coatings by the name of Duxone for Pakistan.

Berger also operates a Resin manufacturing facility at its Lahore factory. The resin
plant has high production capacity and has enabled Berger to meet its entire resin
needs for manufacturing of a wide range of quality paints. Berger is also the first paint
company in Pakistan to have set up its own resin production facility.

Berger has regional offices in Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad and Territorial Offices in
Gujranwala and Multan. A large team of sales personnel and a wide network of
dealers and distributors serve customers in all urban centers across the country.

Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
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Vision & Mission

Vision
We will become the leading paints and associated products manufacturing and
marketing company in Pakistan ensuring best returns to our investors &
highest customer satisfaction.

Mission
Innovation
We will lead by innovative ideas and technological development in the paints and
associated products in Pakistan ensuring efficient utilization of resources
yielding high returns.

Commitment
We will ensure highest level of commitment to achieve best quality products

and services.

Care
We will vigorously promote and safeguard the interest of employees,

shareholders,business associates & all other stakeholders.

Corporate Social Responsibility
We will act as a good corporate citizen ensuring service towards community and

shall focus on environment, health and safety.

06
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Berger has been the most trusted name in quality paints, specialized coatings and
allied products for household, commercial and industrial sectors. The company
has built this proud reputation by not compromising on quality standards.

As an ISO-9001-2015 certified company, Berger continues to upgrade and improve
its range by introducing innovative products in line with consumer needs.

All products are tested at the company’s own facilities before leaving the factory so
that the highest quality control standards are maintained at all times. The company
also follows a continuous process of investment in new equipment, such as
computerized color matching technology, to ensure fast and accurate testing
results at all times.

An on-going training system is also in place so that the most rigorous testing
methods and procedures can be applied at the finished product stage.

A Commitment to Excellence

07
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Berger is not just a Paint company; it offers one window solution across different
paint product categories and Business Lines, in order to meet the demands of its
valued customers.

Berger Color Advisory Service is a free color consultancy that can be accessed on
UAN: 111-237-437 and Berger Helpline Number: 08000-2000. The service is very
popular among customers of decorative paints. It offers professional advice on
selection of appropriate color schemes and types of paints that should be used on
different surfaces and in different environments.

Berger Helpline is a one window solution as it provides a platform to the customers
to register their complaints & queries related to all Business Lines. The company
ensures prompt action of the concerned staff on these complaints and queries,
hence increasing customer satisfaction.

Berger offers professional services to its industrial customers through highly
qualified and experienced Technical Services team. The team consists of highly
trained technical staff.

The Technical Sales Officers make personal visits to address problems that the
customers may be facing and have the relevant paint coating modified or adjusted
according to the specific requirement.

Customer Service
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At Berger, we consider PEOPLE as our most precious resource. This belief is
gaining importance, leading to a more structured and focused approach in
developing Human Resource as a competitive strength.

Our journey for excellence is amply supported by developing a learning
organization with continuous capability building and skills enhancement. This is
supplemented by wide range of employee engagement activities and programs
which are in-place for morale boosting, motivation enhancement and inspiring
commitment. Specific skills are being developed through training and coaching in
required areas.

Across all layers in the organization, Berger is promoting a culture of
acknowledging talent, nurturing potential and encouraging initiatives. We are
maintaining an enabling environment with fairness and equal opportunity and
freedom to perform and excel.

Our ambition for sustainable growth is to be materialized with right kind of people
possessing best skills and unmatched competencies coupled with unflinching
commitment.

People
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Special focus is placed at Berger on protection of the environment as well as health
and safety of employees, customers and communities where it operates.

The company utilizes all available resources to pursue its EHS objectives by
striving to attain economic prosperity and ecological balance.

Berger manufacturing facility conforms to the international and national
environmental standards where company is manufacturing environmental
friendly products to minimize the potential effect on the people and the
environment.

A clean and pollution-free environment is ensured at the company’s
manufacturing facilities through a Solvent Recovery Plant that recycles used
solvent, a Dust/Vapor extraction system and a Xylene recovery system.

Safety training programs are organized on a regular basis for all personnel, factory
workers and vendors to ensure safety of the work environment. Strict safety
regulations for PPE’s (Personal Protection Equipment) and work procedures are
enforced at every step.

In addition, safety officers conduct regular Safety Audits that identify and rectify
any non-compliance and enforce proper maintenance of safety procedures with
active cooperation of all employees.

By the Grace of Almighty Allah and continued efforts of employees, we have
reached a milestone of achieving 3 MILLION SAFE MAN HOURS, without any LTI
which has now become a stepping stone to grow even stronger and safer. If God
wills, with top management commitment and with continued efforts of all the
employees, within no time we would be able to double and triple the safe man
hours and it’s possible only.

Health, Safety & Environment
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“When ordinary people rise
above the expectations and
seize the opportunity those
milestones truly are
reached.”



• Decorative Business

• Automotive Business

• General Industrial Finishes

• Powder Coatings

• Protective Coatings

• Vehicle Refinishes Business

• Road Safety

• Government & Marine

• Construction Chemicals

• Adhesives

BERGER BUSINESS LINES
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As an innovative and progressive paint company, Berger
Paints Pakistan Limited offers a wide range of paints for
diverse applications and uses. Berger’s proven product
quality and relentless focus on meeting customer needs in
various specialized categories of paints and allied products
continues to drive its success.

QUALITY IN DIVERSITY
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Berger Decorative Paints caters to interior, exterior wall surfaces & wood surfaces
of residential, offices, factories and commercial buildings with diverse range of
colors in all product categories.

Continuous endeavor is made to achieve and maintain the high product standards
that Berger is renowned for. At the same time, innovative products that meet the
needs of a demanding market are also launched on regular basis. Berger’s
decorative product portfolio consists of flagship products like, Silk Emulsion,
Elegance Matt Emulsion, VIP Matt Emulsion MaxPro, All Rounder Matt Enamel,
Weathercoat, WeatherPro, SPD Smooth Emulsion and Economy Emulsion.

Berger’s Decorative business has achieved remarkable results in all product
segments as it strives to keep in touch with new trends and aligns its product range
accordingly. This is complemented by pioneering new marketing initiatives and
strong focus on customer care.

Berger’s decorative business also offers wide range of colors through its tinting
machines. These machines have been set up in different metro cities by name of
Color Bank.

Decorative Paints
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UET, Kalashahkako Campus
Garisson School & Colleges
New Airport ISB
Dean Heights ISB
Quaid-e-Azam University
Nust University ISB
Serena Hotel ISB
Centaurus ISB
World Trade Centre ISB
The City Schools
Allama Iqbal International Airport, LHR
DHA Complex, LHR

Decorative Projects
ChandBagh School
BMCH Medical Hospital Bahawalpur
Indian Embassy ISB
Shaukat Khanaum Memorial Hosp.Peshawar
Grand Hayat Hotel Peshawar
Defence Valley ISB
Center Point KHI
Vincey Shopping Mall KHI
Royal Palm Country Club
Sports complex Narowal
Nurpur Plant Bhalwal
Nishat Emporium Lahore
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The Automotive Paints business is a quintessential division of the organization. It
offers a wide variety of products to cater the complete needs of the Automotive
Industrial Sector ranging from pre-treatment products, electro deposition to top-
coat stoving and flamboyant finishes to stoving lacquers & varnishes.

In order to serve the Japanese car manufacturing segment Berger has had a long
standing Technical collaboration with the prestigious paint company of Japan
whereby Berger uses Japanese technology to manufacture special Auto paints to
supply to customers like Toyota. Besides the car segment Berger also has a
considerable share in Tractor & Truck manufacturing segment – to name a few
HINO Pak, Al-Hajj FAW Motors (FAW Trucks), Master Motors are some of the main
customers.

The Auto business enjoys a significant market share in the two & three wheeler
industry as well by supplying paint to leading Japanese and Chinese Motorcycle &
Rickshaw manufacturers along with the local bicycle industry.

The Automotive Paints Business over the years has grown and flourished and
Berger is recognized as one of the major players in this segment for its high quality
standards & efficient technical services.

Berger is proud to be associated with the Automotive Industry of Pakistan and is
committed to provide the same high level of services in the years to come.

Automotive Paints
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Powder Coating is a unique segment of the paint
business catering to the industrial manufacturing
sector of the country. It is an advanced and
revolutionary method of applying a decorative or
protective coating that can be used by both
Industrial and Retail Consumers. The powder used
for the process is a mixture of finely ground
particles of pigment and resin, which is sprayed on a
surface to be coated. The charged powder particles
adhere to the electrically grounded surface which
are then heated and fused onto a smooth surface.
The coated surface is then reheated in a curing oven
and the result is a uniform, high-quality, attractive
smooth finish.

Powder Coating is mainly used for application on
the metal parts of domestic appliances like
airconditioners, refrigerators, microwave ovens,
water geysers, furniture, etc. and automotive parts
like radiators, hubcaps, filters, door handles,
engine parts etc and also on aluminum profiles e.g.
doors, windows, light poles, guard rails, light
fixtures, antennas etc.

Powder Coatings
Berger manufactures and sells two brands of
Powder Coating in Pakistan.

Bercoat – Berger’s in-house brand launched in
early 2000’s. Bercoat has been successfully
performing since then in the local market.

Oxyplast – an international brand of Powder
Coatings from Belgium whose sole franchise rights
are with Berger in Pakistan. This franchise was
acquired in 2009. Berger offers a wide variety of
shades in Bercoat & Oxyplast. These shades are
available in both Pure Polyester and Epoxy
Polyester based systems. Customers can also get
customized shades developed if need be. These
finishes vary from glossy to matt, texture, antique
and are all available to our customers as per their
requirement.

Powder Coating is an economical and environment
friendly form of durable coating gaining recognition
rapidly in the industrial manufacturing segment.
Manufacturers who are conscious about cost and
quality prefer to use Powder Coatings & Finishes for
their products and Berger is their foremost choice.
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The General Industry Paints Business caters mainly to the industrial manufacturing
sector of the nation. Berger supplies industrial finishes to leading makers of
domestic electric & non-electric appliances, auto spare-parts vendors, steel &
metal product manufacturers, heavy industrial machine & transformer
manufacturers, metal furniture etc.

Boasting a wide range of industrial finishes Berger enjoys a significant market
share in this segment of the paint industry. Berger has a complete industrial paint
system developed for its extensive customer network spread all over the country.
Finishes ranging from undercoats/primers to air drying enamels & varnishes, high
quality heat resistant stoving finishes & varnishes, roller coating paints & lacquers
and epoxy based finishes are all available. Each system has its unique
characteristics designed to protect & safeguard products from all types of internal
& external environmental conditions.

Conforming to International ISO Quality standards Berger over years has
established itself as a major manufacturer of Industrial Finishes and is proud to be
associated with names like Pak Fans, GFC Fans, SSGC and Atlas Engineering.

Committed to excellence Berger always has and will continue to provide its
customers with industrial finishes that are considered value for money and reliable.

General Industrial Finishes
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The PROTECTON Division of Berger makes heavy duty Protective Coatings and Anti-
Corrosive Paints for specialized structures such as barrages, dams, industrial
structures, pipelines, boilers, which are exposed to hostile environmental
elements.

Protective Coatings serve a dual purpose of protecting surfaces from chemical
reactions as well as improving visual appeal. These protective paints conform to
international standards of quality and are designed to resist the severity of extreme
environmental as well as corrosive effects of atmosphere, and other decaying
agents.

They have excellent resisting properties against chemicals, marine environment, oil
spillage and fresh and salt water. These coatings can be applied to concrete, cement
render, asbestos sheeting, steel/concrete pipelines, harbors, oil refineries, dams,
barrages, chemical plants, battery rooms etc. and shore installations with good
durability.

Protective Coatings



Vehicle Refinishes
The challenge of Berger’s technical expertise in the
Vehicle Refinish business is to offer touch-up paints
that precisely match the original color of vehicles.
This is achieved through different refinish systems
designed to enable application for high gloss,
durable, quick drying and accurate color matching
finishes without giving heat treatment.

VITON car paint is the most popular market brand
that was primarily introduced by Berger with
Nitrocellulose base. Itis based on international
trends and offers a complete painting solution
comprising putty, primer/surfacer, lacquer and
thinners. It has complete shade range for the
existing car manufacturers with the combination of
fast drying and polishing properties.

In 2003, alkyd based quick drying enamel range by
the name of ‘DURA’ was successfully launched for
economy tier market segment with complete shade
and ancillary product range.

In 2011, Berger acquired the distribution rights of
DuPont Performance Coatings, now Axalta Coating
Systems, for Pakistan.

DuPont, now Cromax is the leading market brand of
premium market segment with complete range of
2-K Finishes such as binders, tinters, primers, top
coats, clear coats and hardeners along with all type
of thinners. The product range is made available at
all leading 3S dealerships, workshops and retail
market.

In 2017, Berger also acquired distribution rights of
another brand from Axalta Coatings by the name of
Duxone for Pakistan. Duxone is the quality brand for
the economical tier of the Pakistani Market. Duxone
is a well reputed brand with complete range of
tinters, binders, primers, top coats, clear coats,
hardeners and thinners. Duxone is made available
in the retail market and workshops as well.

Refinish Training Center
Berger has established Refinish Training Center in
the vicinity of its plant with state of the art
technology. Refinish Training Center is being used
to give training to the 3S dealers and painters for the
application of 2K paint on cars.

Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
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The motto of Berger Road Safety business is” Leading the Way to a Safe Journey’.
Berger Pioneered the concept of single source manufacturing and application of
road marking products in Pakistan. The advance Cataphos hot-melt Thermoplastic
(TP) paint is manufactured in Pakistan as per BS 3262 specifications. A full range of
other road marking products, including Chlorinated Rubber (CR) paint and Water
Based (WB) paint, are also manufactured to match various application standards.

In addition to road marking paints, Berger Road Safety offers a complete range of
other road safety products such as traffic signs, cat eyes/studs, guardrails,
delineators and barriers etc. that meet high quality standards.

All Application services are provided through our trained application teams that are
supervised by qualified staff.

Road Safety
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Berger Road Safety
Major Road Safety Application Projects
Motorway M-2 Project
Motorway M-3 Project
Motorway M-4 Project
Peshawar-Torkham Road
Quetta-Chaman Road
Makran Coastal Highway
Panu Aaqil Bridge
Taftaan Highway
Hyderabad-Mirpurkhas Road
Sakrand Bypass
RYK-tmp Project (N-5 Section)
Pak Iran Border
Adb Flood Relief Projects
Lhr-skp-fsd Bot Project
Lahore Ring Road
Lahore-kasur Road
Gujranwala-sialkot Road
Narowal-zafarwal Road
Metro Bus Service Project Lahore
Bahria Town (Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad)
Fwo Batgram Project
CDA Islamabad Roads
DHA (Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad)
Allama Iqbal International Airport Lahore
Multan International Airport
Sialkot International Airport
Walton Airport Lahore
Benazir Bhutto International Airport
Mehran Air Base Karachi
Mehran Highway
Khadim-e- Punjab Rural Roads Program
Jalkhad-chilas Road Project
Jacobabad Project
Quetta City Roads
Gwadar City Project
Kararo-Wadh Project
Larkana City Roads
Lyari Expressway
Thar Coal Project
Sujawal Project
Naulachi Bridge Muzzafarabad
Chaklala Cantonment Board Rawalpindi
Kohat Garrison
Mangla Garrison
Cantonment Board Walton Roads
Cantonment Board Lahore Roads
Cantonment Board Multan Roads
Cantonment Board Clifton Roads
FRRP Project Faislabad
LRRP Project Phase I & II
LahoreAzadi Chowk Interchange
Qanchi-chungi Interchange Lahore

City Roads Faislabad
LDA Avenue 1
Kalma Chowk Flyover Lahore
Kalma-chowk New Campus Road Lahore
Widening Of Canal Road Lahore
Southern Bypass Roas Lahore
Mall Road Lahore
Shalimar Link Road Lahore
Quaid E Azam Solar Park Bahawalpur
Maulana Shoukat Ali Road Lahore
Canal Expressway Faisalabad
Khunjraj And Raikot Bridge Gantry Project
Hasil Pur Road Bahwalpur
Canal Bank Road Lahore
Aziz Cross Fly Over Gujranwala
Gurumanget Underpass Lahore
Langarwal Pattan Bridge Chota Sahiwal Sargodha
Motorway Samundri Abdul Hakeem Section (Pkm)
Bhikkhi Power Plant
Head Balloki Power Plant
Lodhran Khanewal Road
Bhalwal Industrial Estate
Metro Islamabad
MPCHS B-17 Cooperative Housing Society
GT Road Rawalpindi
ISI Head Quarters
Naval Head Quarters
Rangers Head Quarters
Heavy Industries Taxila (Hit)
Muzaffarabad City
Peer Chanasi Ajk
South Wazeristan
North Wazeristan
Swat Motorway
Bahria Town Nawabshah
Pakka Chung-Nawabshah Road
Green Line Project
Jhampier Power Project
Tipu Sultan Road
Mithi Airport
Shahrah-e-Faisal
Khalid Bin Waleed Road
Deep Water Container Terminal
Waghan Road Larkana
Golf City Gawadar
Muzzafargarh to DG Khan Road Project
Shorkot Motorway M4
Air Field Marking DG Khan Cements
Four Seasons Housing Society
Park View Lahore
Lake City Lahore
Abdul Hakeem to Khanewal Motorway M4
Multan – Sukkar Motorway M5
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Berger stands tall amongst esteemed suppliers to Government and its subordinate
bodies, Armed Forces, Aviation sector, Utility corporations, Ports and Shipping,
Research and Development Organizations, Educational Institutions and Health
sector. It provides a vast variety of products and services ranging from the
Architectural coatings to highly specialized products.

As Pakistan is endowed with a long coastal belt, it needs reliable protection for its
sea-bound crafts as well as off-shore and on-shore installations. Berger‘s
Government & Marine business meets this need with a wide range of products
comprising of specialized coatings for ships, air craft’s, fuel storage stands,
warehouses, arms and ammunition depots, etc.

Govt. & Marine



Berger is active in most facets of the construction industry and operates sales,
warehousing and manufacturing facilities all over the country, providing local
markets with a prompt and informed customer service.

BERGER has established a nationwide reputation for innovative construction
technology based on extensive research and development together with
experienced practical advice. We offer a broad range of high-quality, intelligent and
tailor-made products and system to meet customer’s needs, improving the quality,
safety, efficiency, economy, design and durability of construction. The product
range of BERGER comprises of products for almost every conceivable high
performance chemical requirement of the building.

The company has earned wide acclaim for its high performance Epoxy Floorings and
Chemical Waterproofing products. BERGER products are manufactured under
stringent quality control using ingredients sourced indigenously as well as
imported.

The staggering array of products includes Concrete Admixtures, Waterproofing
treatments, Epoxy Flooring, Sealants and Grouts.

Construction Chemicals

Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
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The flagship brand at Berger’s Adhesives business is Berlith and NUlith. It is white
glue based on a plastic resin that combines high concentration, high bonding
strength and excellent application qualities. Both, in the wood furniture and sports
goods industries, the high adhesion strength of Berlith and NUlith, makes it ideal for
gluing hardboard, chipboard, softwood, ply, Formica, etc.

Because of its plastic resin, Berlith and NUlith are the best choice for use in kitchen
cabinets and counters. They also serve as suitable pasting material for labels on
plastic, glass, cartons, etc.

They are especially designed for wood furniture industry, where its high adhesive
strength makes it ideal for gluing.

Adhesives
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Marketing Activities

Berger Paints carried out a major TVC and outdoor campaign in the month of November and December for
the year 2018-19 which included:

Berger Ad Campaign

New TVC Campaign: Berger Paints made a new TVC starring famous film and TV actress Mehwish Hayat.
Berger Paints advertised its new product based TVCs of Silk Emulsion, Elegance Matt Emulsion and
Weathercoat Exterior Emulsion. Ad concept, direction and production was done by Pakistan’s top agency and
international production house.

Berger TVCs are also being advertised on satellite channels (News, Drama, Movie and Music channels) and
regional news channels. The ads are being aired during evening prime time and morning shows.
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TVC Airing:
TVCs were aired in the following channels:

ARY Digital
PTV Sports
HUM TV
Dunya News
City 42
SAMAA
AVT Khyber

ARY News
Dawn News
Geo News
8XM
HBO
KTN

Bus Shelters: Ads were placed on bus shelters in Islamabad and Lahore.

Social Media: Weekly sponsored TVCs, GIFS, Posts and cover photos of Product based ads were posted on
Facebook official page, Instagram, Pinterest, Youtube, Daily Motion and company website.

Magazines:
Ads were placed in consumers and architect magazines which included:

Consumer Magazines:
Hello
Aurora
Newsline
Page 3
Herald
Visage
Libaas
Brides & You
Niche
Me & My Wedding

Architect Magazines:
Archi Times
ADA Magazine
A+I
Design & Style
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SMS Marketing

Berger Paints did SMS campaign through Ufone and Mobilink, in order to create awareness about Color
advisory service and toll free number.

I am Karachi
Berger has been on the fore front to beautify the cities of Pakistan for the past 2 years in which we have
beautified the walls and bridges of different cities in collaboration with the local government authorities. This
time we have made a big leap forward and collaborated with I AM KARACHI (NGO) to beautify and restore the
image of Karachi and to bring back the life in society. We always feel proud in engaging in CSR activities and
give back to society.

Concerned citizens and civil society organizations of Karachi have come together to initiate a city-wide
movement by the name of I AM KARACHI. I AM KARACHI aims to collectively rebuild the diverse social and
cultural fabric of the city by providing a platform for like-minded organizations and individuals committed to
promoting socio-cultural activities and campaigns as vehicles for peace building through Arts, Culture,
Sports and Dialogue.

IAK started International Public Art Festival (IPAF) on 2nd December, 2018 in Karachi. The festival went on till
19th April, 2019 in which artists from different countries like Italy & France show cased their artistic marvels
along with the local famous artists. The unveiling ceremony was organized on 19th December, 2018 and was
attended by top dignitaries & artists namely (Ms. Anna Rafael – Consulate General – Italy, Mr. Amin Hashwani
– President IAK, Mr. Amin Gul Jee) and commissioner & deputy mayor of Karachi.

International Public Art Festival (IPAF) presented the biggest public art mural of Pakistan by Italian muralist
Giuseppe Percivati. He is a professional street artist whose work is recognized all across the world, also
known for his larger than life murals.
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GSA building restoration project in Keamari was initiated by IAK on which Italian artist made a mural and the
theme was a fusion of Pakistani and Italian culture. The facade of GSA building is around 2300 sq. ft. which
was completed in a span of 2 weeks. The project is a collaboration of the Consulate General of Italy, Karachi
Port Trust, I AM KARACHI, GSA House and Berger Paints Pakistan. Giuseppe Percivati, cleaned the whole
building all by himself to prepare it for final mural. He single handedly white washed the building and created
the marvelous mural on GSA building in just 9 Days. GSA building which was neglected before is now a piece of
art created by the Italian artist and Berger is proud to be part of such a huge project which is acknowledged
both nationally and internationally.

Berger is the main partner in providing the paint for all those buildings and walls to be painted.

Moreover walls of Lalazar, DMC East and Alliance Francaise were also beautified in collaboration with I AM
KARACHI.

Links of the interviews and press releases given below:

https://youtu.be/69iBiYTuXEk
https://www.facebook.com/ARTTVPAKISTAN/videos/1993427014284431/
https://www.dawn.com/news/1452650/mural-by-italian-artist-spruces-up-keamari-building
https://youtu.be/3pxbP6tMn6Y
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Gymkhana Golf Course Branding

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited always uses innovative and unique ways of promoting its brand. Berger this
time went an extra mile to promote its brand name successfully at one of the most prestigious and oldest
clubs of Pakistan, The Lahore Gymkhana. Berger installed and provided branded tee markers, yardage signs,
a gazebo, pole flags, golf hole signage and caddy uniforms for The Lahore Gymkhana Golf Club. This activity
created a very healthy and positive perception amongst our potential users and projected Berger as a keen
supporter of sports.

Direction Boards

Direction Signs at Mansehra to Naran: Traffic awareness and direction signboards installed from Mansehra
to Naran in collaboration with Mansehra Traffic Police.

Direction Boards at Chakdara to Timargara: Traffic awareness and Direction signboards installed from
Chakdara till Timargara ,Timargara to Chitral road (Khaal) and in city branding, collaboration with Traffic
Police Dir Lower.

Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate Branding: Berger Paints renewed direction and safety sign boards of Quaid-
e-Azam Industrial Estate Kot Lakhpat, Lahore.

Shahrah-e-Faisal Branding: Safety signs were installed on both bike and car lanes to help create the
awareness of traffic rules and to ensure the safety of the public. Berger banners are installed on pedestrian
bridges of Shahrah-e-Faisal to welcome 9th International Defense Exhibition and Seminar (IDEAS) 2018.

Society Branding

Faisal Town Society: Faisal Town Society, located in Islamabad (Sector F-18), was branded with new sign
boards and direction boards.

Naval Anchorage: Naval Anchorage Society located on main Islamabad expressway between Bahria town
and DHA, Society entrance and street direction boards have been installed.

NFC Society: NFC Housing Society, located in Lahore, has been branded by Berger Paints. Society entrance
and street direction boards have been installed.

Al-Khair Housing Scheme: Al-Khair Housing Scheme, which is located in Quetta, has been branded by
Berger Paints. Marketing department. Society entrance sign board was installed.

Sangeen Housing Scheme: Sangeen Housing Scheme, located in Quetta, has undergone Berger’s branding
with the installation of main entrance board of the society.
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Wall Painting by Berger Paints

Berger Paints continues to recognize art and culture through beautification of walls. Last year this activity
was limited to Lahore which had now spread to Karachi and Islamabad in the fiscal year 2018-19. This year
following walls were beautified:

Islamabad Model College for Girls I-8/4
Islamabad Model College for Boys H-9
Islamabad Model College for Girls I-8/3
Mayo Hospital Lahore
Government College Township, Lahore
IWMI Walls Thokar Niaz Baig, Lahore
Sun Academy, Karachi
Wall Beautification in DMC East, Karachi with I AM KARACHI
LALAZAR Walls Painting in collaboration with I AM KARACHI
Wall Beautification at Alliance Francaise in collaboration with
I AM KARACHI
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Karachi and Lahore Zoological Garden

Berger Paints again instigated the movement and joined hands with KMC to effectuate the beautification of
Karachi city. Karachi zoological garden’s boundary wall which is approximately 27,000 sq.ft in area was
brought to life by painting wildlife murals. To make this project a success.

Berger Paints with the collaboration of Lahore Zoo Management Committee, conducted wall painting activity
on walls of Leopard House in Lahore Zoo, in order to increase the aesthetic appeal of the Zoo.

The work done at Karachi and Lahore zoological Garden was also appreciated by the residents of the city at
different social media platforms, several media channels and newspapers. Below are the links shared for
news broadcast on different channels:

https://we.tl/b-xCH68bsiDG
https://we.tl/b-zx8ZqMfqgc
https://youtu.be/EDD71AZELEE
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Shop Fascia: Berger Paints is installing shop boards on ongoing basis throughout the country.

Airport Trolley Branding: Berger Paints has branded airport trolleys in Lahore and Karachi airports.

Islamabad Traffic Police Head Office Branding: Berger sponsored Islamabad Traffic Police Head Office by
placing banners along with safety messages on entrance gate, waiting hall and license office.

ITP-Branding: Traffic direction charts installed at Islamabad traffic police Office Faizabad entrance gate in
collaboration with Islamabad transport Authority.

Mirpur City-Branding: Traffic awareness signboards installed from Mirpur city till Mangla Dam,
collaboration with Mirpur Traffic Police. Govt. College’s signboard also installed.

Outdoor Branding

Bus Shelters (Lahore & Islamabad): Berger Paints brands bus shelters throughout the year in Lahore and
Islamabad.

There are a total number of 5 bus shelters in Lahore and 4 in Islamabad at various prominent locations.

Social Media

Berger actively advertises and posted different posts regarding Berger’s products and social events on
Berger’s official Facebook, Youtube, Instagram, Daily Motion, Pinterest pages during the whole fiscal year
2018-19 to create the 360 degree effect which resulted in an Integrated Marketing Communication message
for the consumers.

Magazine Advertisement

Berger Paints has been actively engaged in advertising in various consumer and architect magazines
throughout the fiscal year 2018-19.



Truck Art Child Finder

Every year, over 3,000 children go missing in Pakistan. There’s a huge issue when it comes to reporting and
investigating a missing child complaint. Unfortunately, there are very few resources allocated to investigate
and locate these missing children in Pakistan. Moreover, finding lost children in Pakistan becomes even
harder because the children are dispersed throughout the country as quickly as they disappear.

Noting this huge problem in the country, Berger Paints decided to join hands with Roshni Helpline and Samar
Minallah Khan to create a unique campaign called “Truck Art Child Finder” to help find these children.

The company is using the form of truck art to locate these children. Truck art is celebrated in Pakistan and
nearly every truck has some sort of art on it. Most trucks display poems, phrases, and pictures of prominent
personalities.

Berger decided to replace the portrait of famous personalities on the back of trucks with portraits of missing
children, turning these trucks into moving billboards that travel across the country. In its 1st phase Berger
provided paint for 20 trucks to be painted and used for this noble activity.

With this campaign, Berger paints is spreading the news of missing children far and wide in Pakistan. By the
Grace of Almighty, Roshni Helpline received 313 calls in just one week and 4 children have been reunited with
their families. We as part of this noble cause feel very proud and appreciate the efforts of all the partners who
helped us in this cause.

For the sake of confidentiality we cannot share pictures of the Children found but some details are as under:

Name

Age

Missing Since

Missing Location

Recovery Location

Bilal Nawab

12 Years

22-Jul-18

Karachi

Bahawalpur

Baid Ullah

12 Years

17-Oct-18

Karachi

Lahore

Taimur Khan

13 Years

19-Nov-17

Rawalpindi

Peshawar

Hasnain

8 Years

12-Sep-15

Karachi

Karachi
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https://www.facebook.com/berger.pak/videos/2029981993765401/
https://twitter.com/BergerPakistan/status/1095648078416228352
https://www.instagram.com/p/Bt0egcxH4AW/
https://youtu.be/AJgt0tjII_4
https://goo.gl/NRRbSE
https://goo.gl/cYyg3F
https://adobomagazine.com/tags/truck-art-child-finder
https://arabianmarketer.ae/berger-paints-bbdo-use-truck-art-to-locate-missing-children/
https://brandinginasia.com/truck-art-pakistan/

Moreover video links and social media links are shared below:
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Berger Contractor Conventions

Berger Paints organized Contractors Conventions in the main cities of Pakistan namely: Karachi, Lahore,
Islamabad, Multan and D.I. Khan. These conventions provided a huge platform for Berger’s staff to interact
with the painters and contractors and provided them with information about the company and its products.
Moreover, gifts were distributed through lucky draw followed by dinner. These events were a huge success as
a large number of painters and contractors participated in them and truly enjoyed the events.
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Corporate Activities

Berger participated in different corporate cricket
league matches this year also to relive and cherish
sportsmanship spirit and to promote healthy
competition among their employees. This time
Berger actively participated in the “Pepsi Lahore
Corporate and Corporate Cricket Gala 2019” and
reached to the Semifinals with Meezan Bank.
Tremendous match was seen between both teams.

Berger team players once again gave their best shot
to achieve the highest level of performance and won
many medals by attaining man of the match
position. Leading man of the match of the
tournament was Mr. Khurram Ijaz, who valiantly
took 6 wickets in 4 overs for 26 runs against Finca
Bank which was rewarded as shining performance
of the tournament.

BERGER Corporate Cricket Team

HR Department organizes birthday celebrations for
its Employees every month at Berger’s Head office,
Plant & Regional offices. Birthday Cards are
distributed among the employees born in that
particular month. Cake cutting ceremony and a
group photograph at the end are major highlights of
this event. Senior Management graces the event
with their presence.

Birthday Celebrations

We witnessed an overwhelming display of
patriotism and team work as Berger Family
celebrated Independence Day of Pakistan at Head
office, Factory and all regional offices.

The day was celebrated in all offices of the company
across Pakistan. Display of National Flag across all
offices invokes patriotism among employees.

Independence Day Celebrations
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Berger Human Resource department
part ic ipates in job fairs of renowned
universities. It’s a good platform to attract
potential candidates. At Berger we feel that it is
our responsibility to provide a platform to fresh
graduates to prove themselves and get
groomed for their professional career.

Berger participated at various Job Fairs
organized by renowned Universities.

Job Fairs

Performance of Hajj (pilgrimage) is a compulsion on all Muslims, at least once in a life time, if the
circumstances permit. Company gives opportunity to one of its Muslim employees to perform hajj every year.
All expenses for the lucky winner are borne by the company.

HAJJ Draw

Human Resource department is paying keen interest in training & development of its team members.
Through proper training we can increase job satisfaction and morale among employees, increase employee
motivation and hence increase efficiencies in processes and reduce employee turnover. Keeping in view the
importance of learning & development, Berger has conducted various training programs throughout the year.
There are periodic internal as well as external trainings imparted by renowned trainers from all over
Pakistan. This time of the year Berger emphasized customized internal product knowledge trainings to
ensure employees are well aware and equipped with sound knowledge of the extensive product range offered
to customers.

Training & Development
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Berger understands that CSR activities strengthen the bond between Company and Society which has
enabled us to contribute positively towards the betterment of society and environment .Employees at Berger
are committed to improve local communities and feel a stronger connection with this cause of the Company
by focusing on the elements of humanity.

Following CSR Projects were taken up by Berger:

Berger adopted Government Primary School in the vicinity of our factory area. The School caters to the
children of employees and local community and has over 200 Students. We have constructed new class rooms
provided with furniture, toilets and clean drinking water. A full-time teacher has been hired by Berger to fulfill
the needs.

Approximately Rs. 1 million was spent.

Berger takes pride in helping create better atmosphere by not wasting left over paint which is transformed
into usable form and that paint is donated to underprivileged Schools and Mosques.

Berger is continuously contributing towards knowledge sharing program, National Outreach Program free
seminars and workshops for students and business community at large by inviting eminent speakers on
different topics.

We believe in making continuous efforts and make our society a better place for living!

BERGER Corporate Social Responsibility
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Financial Highlights

NET ASSETS

Fixed Assets

Assets under Finance Lease

Goodwill

Long Term Investments

Long Term Loans & Deposits

Deferred Taxation

Net Current Assets

Total

FINANCED BY

Share Capital

Reserves

Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

Long Term and Deferred Liabilities

Total

TURNOVER AND PROFITS

Turnover

Gross Profit

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Taxation

Profit/(Loss) after tax

EARNING AND DIVIDENDS

Earning/(Loss) per share

Interim Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee)

Final Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee)

Year Ended June 30,

Rupees in thousand

587,703

4,809

36,750

12,810

39,927

156,457

119,694

958,150

181,864

385,317

184,878

752,059

206,091

958,150

4,509,031

1,097,260

24.33%

148,962

51,454

97,508

5.36

1.00

1,049,567

3,473

36,750

12,528

50,397

36,745

116,097

1,305,557

181,864

444,701

559,773

1,186,338

119,219

1,305,557

4,301,830

1,155,332

26.86%

166,588

57,435

109,153

6.00

1.50

1.00

1,046,039

-

36,750

52,557

64,017

-

273,435

1,472,798

181,864

638,038

542,313

1,362,215

110,583

1,472,798

5,081,749

1,528,317

30.07%

322,395

137,618

184,777

10.16

4.50

1,146,921

-

36,750

74,568

111,703

1,859

314,084

1,685,885

181,864

724,418

521,363

1,427,645

258,240

1,685,885

5,122,570

1,489,961

29.09%

265,931

63,820

202,111

11.11

4.50

1,231,583

-

32,263

67,287

120,244

-

289,841

1,741,218

181,864

828,666

509,131

1,519,661

221,557

1,741,218

5,453,221

1,190,648

21.83%

147,212

45,106

102,106

4.99

1.25

2016 2015 2014201720182019

1,179,841

-

24,000

54,504

65,833

43,878

455,897

1,823,953

204,597

903,660

472,012

1,580,269

243,684

1,823,953

5,120,444

1,116,423

21.80%

112,998

12,173

100,825

1.00

4.93
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Investor Relations

REGISTERED OFFICE

36 Industrial Estate, Kot
Lakhpat, Lahore.
Tel: 92 42 111 237 437
Fax: 92 42 35151549

SHARE REGISTRAR

M/s Corplink Private Limited,
Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial
Block K Model Town, Lahore,
Punjab 54000
T: +92 42 35916714-19
F: +92 42 35869037

LISTING ON STOCK
EXCHANGES

Ordinary shares of Berger
Paints Pakistan Limited are
listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

STOCK CODE / SYMBOL

The stock code / symbol for
trading in ordinary shares of
Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
at Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited is BERG.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the year, the Company
has complied with all applicable
provisions, filed all
returns/forms and furnished all
the relevant particulars as
required under the Companies
Act, 2017 and allied rules, the
Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan
Regulations and the listing
requirements.

CASH DIVIDEND

Cash Dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2019 at Rs.1.00
per share i.e., 10%. This is in
addition to interim dividends
already paid at Rs. 0 per shares
i.e. 0%.

BOOK CLOSURE DATES

Share Transfer Books will
remain closed from October 08,
2019 to October 14, 2019, both
days inclusive.

DIVIDEND REMITTANCE

Ordinary dividend declared and
approved at the Annual General
Meeting will be paid within the
statutory time limit of 45 days.

(i) For shares held in physical
form: to shareholders
whose names appear in the
Register of Members of the
Company after entertaining
all requests for transfer of
shares lodged with the
Company on or before the
book closure date.

(ii) For shares held in electronic
from: to shareholders
whose names appear in the
statement of beneficial
ownership furnished by CDC
as at end of business on
book closure date.

Fundamental knowledge and understanding
of financial market is crucial for the general
public and lack of financial literacy or
capability makes them vulnerable to frauds.
SECP recognizes the importance of investor
education and therefore initiated this
investor education program, called
'JamaPunji', an investor training program,
to promote financial literacy in Pakistan.



All ordinary shares issued by
the Company carry equal voting
rights, Generally, matters at the
general meetings are decided by
a show of hands in the first
instance. Voting by show of
hands operates on the principle
of “One Member-One Vote”. If
majority of shareholders raise
their hands in favor of a
particular resolution, it is taken
as passed, unless a poll is
demanded.

Since the fundamental voting
principle in the Company is
“One Share-One Vote”, voting
takes place by a poll, if
demanded. On a poll being
taken, the decision arrived by
poll is final, overruling any
decision taken on a show of
hands.

INVESTOR’S GRIEVANCES

To date none of the investors or
shareholders has filed any
significant complaint against
any service provided by the
Company to its shareholders.

PROXIES

Pursuant to Section 137 of The
Companies Act, 2017 and
according to the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of
the Company, every shareholder
of the Company who is entitled
to attend and vote at a general
meeting of the Company can
appoint another member as
his/her proxy to attend and vote
instead of him/her. Every notice
calling a general meeting of the
Company contains a statement
that a shareholder entitled to
appoint a proxy.

WITHHOLDING OF TAX &
ZAKAT ON ORDINARY
DIVIDEND

As per the provisions of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
income tax is deductible at
source by the Company at
prescribed rates wherever
applicable.

Zakat is also deductible at
source from the ordinary
dividend at the rate of 2.5% of
the face value of the share,
other than corporate holders or
individuals who have provided
an undertaking for non-
deduction.

GENERAL MEETINGS &
VOTING RIGHTS

Pursuant to section 132 of The
Companies Act 2017, BPPL
holds a General Meeting of
shareholders at least once a
year. Every shareholder has a
right to attend the General
Meeting. The notice of such
meeting is sent to all the
shareholders at least 21 days
before the meeting and also
advertised in at least one
English and one Urdu
newspaper having circulation in
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad.

Shareholders having holding of
at least 10% of voting rights may
also apply to the Board of
Directors to call for meeting of
shareholders, and if the Board
does not take action on  such
application within 21 days, the
shareholders may themselves
call the meeting.

The instrument appointing a
proxy (duly signed by the
shareholder appointing that
proxy) should be deposited at
the office of the Company not
less than forty-eight hours
before the meeting.

WEB PRESENCE

Updated information regarding
the Company can be accessed at
its website, www.berger.com.pk.
The website contains the latest
financial results of the Company
together with the Company’s
profile.
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I am pleased to present annual accounts of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited for the year ended on June 30,
2019. The Company witnessed another challenging year marked by massive devaluation of Rupee against US
Dollar, hike in inflation, interest rate, oil prices and a depressed projects and construction industry. Due to the
challenging economic environment the sales of the Company decreased by 6%, however the Company
managed to maintain its net profitability.

The composition of the Board of Directors reflects mix of varied backgrounds and rich experience in the fields
of business, finance, banking and regulations. The Board has eight (8) Directors including three (3) non-
executive, four (4) independent director and one (1) Executive Director. The Board provides strategic direction
to the management and is available for guidance. The Board approves the budget and ensures that a
competent and energetic team is in position to achieve the goals set. The Board safeguards that all regulatory
requirements are implemented by the Management.

During the year, the Board approved a risk management framework after identification of risks and
mitigating measures specific to the Company. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the
Board evaluates its own performance through a mechanism developed by it, along with its Related Party
Transaction Policy, as was required. The Board thanked Management for its inputs, its implementation and
its advice, on all the above matters.

The Board is ably assisted by its Committees. The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements and
ensures that the accounts fairly represent the financial position of the Company. It also ensures effectiveness
of internal controls. The HR Committee overviews HR policy framework and recommends selection and
compensation of senior management team. An important role of the Committee is succession planning.

During the year four (4) board meetings were held in which the Board fulfilled all of their responsibilities
including:

• The Board members are familiar with the current vision, mission and values and support them. The
Board revisits the vision and mission statements from time to time.

• Reviewed the operating results and approving the quarterly and annual financial statements of the
Company.

• Approved related party transactions.

• Approved budgets including the capital expenditure.

• Reviewed and so approving bank borrowings.

• The Board devised policies and procedures for ensuring business continuity and recovery from
disasters and risks, as is required.

• The Board, being cognizant of the importance of human development, looked into human resource
policies and training and development needs of employees, based on its vast experience in that field.

• The Board recommends the appointment of the Company's External Auditors

• The Board included a visit to the Factory and Head Office of the Company

• The Board also evaluated its own performance and that of all its committees.

The Board ensured that all the legal and regulatory requirements have been complied with, as advised by the
Company's Management.

It is important that like all tax compliant corporations we would welcome any move made by this government
to bring the gray economy into the tax net as this would enable us to finally have an a level playing field. This
would help the government raise far more revenue than at present. This incentive to the tax compliant
cooperate world will go a long way to the recovery of those Industry's that pay sales tax , custom Duty and
income tax and so help the countries economic revival.

Chairman’s Review on Board Performance
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Lahore
Date: 19 September 2019

Chairman

Mr. Maqbool H.H. Rahimtoola

On behalf of the Board, I wish to acknowledge the contributions of all our employees in the success of the
Company, and also thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers for their support to the company.
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 June 2019

30 June

2019

30 June

2018Rupees in thousand

Operating Profit

Other operating income

Finance cost

Other charges

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

The directors of your Company are pleased to present their review along with the audited financial statements
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

ECONOMY OF PAKISTAN

During the year under review, macro-economic challenges continued to dominate the country's economy.
GDP growth stood at 3.3% for the year 2019 against a target of 6.2%, the lowest in the last nine years.

Inflation increased to 7.3% in FY 2019, primarily due to the depreciation of rupee and increase in fuel prices.
Despite adoption of two supplementary budgets, the overall fiscal deficit is estimated to be over 7% of GDP.
This is partially as a result of significant shortfall in collection of revenue.

The Current Account Deficit (CAD) has on the other hand started to show signs of improvement as it closed at
USD 13.6 billion down by 32%. Multiple rounds of PKR devaluation and imposition of additional duties helped
in restricting the import bill to USD 54.80 billion, reflecting a decline of 9.9%. However, exports remained
stagnant at USD 22.9 billion. Home remittances remained strong with growth of 9.7% and stood at USD 21.8
billion during FY 19.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) gradually raised its policy rate to 13.25% reflecting a cumulative increase of
750 basis points. In this scenario, PSX 100 index continued its losing streak and closed at 33,901 points at the
end of June 2019. The subdued Large Scale Manufacturing sector performance can largely be attributed to a
deceleration in construction, its allied industry and consumer durables, as monetary and fiscal measures
have severely affected the domestic demand.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Due to challenging economic environment, frequent price adjustments in response to PKR depreciation and
rising oil prices in addition to the continued surge in raw material prices, sales of the Company were closed at
Rs. 5,120 million which is 6% lower as compared to Rs. 5,453 million in the corresponding period last year.

Selling Marketing and Administrative expenses amounted to Rs. 850 million compared with Rs. 976 million of
the previous year, resulting in reduction in costs by 13%.

During FY 19, the SBP policy rate was raised to 13.25% from 5.75% resulting in a sharp increase in the
financial cost to Rs. 165 million as compared to Rs. 88 million in the corresponding period of last year.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial position is summarized as follows:

214,251

36,923

251,174

88,142

15,820

103,962

147,212

45,106

102,106

266,362

31,681

298,043

165,067

19,978

185,045

112,998

12,173

100,825
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Gradual recovery in the country's economic activity is expected to take place depending upon the resolution of
taxation negotiated between Traders and Federal Board of Revenue. However, Sustainable economic growth
shall also depend on the progress of creating additional revenue through increase in number of new tax
payers and their potential to pay their share of taxes.

Again, the deteriorating state of foreign currency reserves for various reasons is likely to pose challenge to
business conditions and any further devaluation in Pak Rupee against USD would continue to adversely affect
the profitability of the company.

HEALTH & SAFTY & ENVIORNMENT (HSE)

The health and safety of all employees is of great importance. The company is responsible for providing a
healthy and injury free environment. The Company has successfully completed three million mark of Safe
Man Hours. This signifies that there has been no Lost Time Injury since December 19, 2016 till to date. The
Company take pleasure to state that the Effluent Treatment Plant has commissioned at our factory premises
and help provide safe water for plantation purpose.

NEW EHS INITIATIVE:

1. ETP plant is fully operational, all the parameters of process water after treatment are within
NEQS values.

2. Islamabad warehouse expansion (Extension of additional fire alarm and smoke detectors)

3. EHS checklist for the vendors' evaluation before starting a project was developed and
implemented.

4. EHS observers have been selected, from different departments of the plant reporting unsafe
acts, conditions and employees behavior on regular basis.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT -ERM

The Company is exposed to operational, financial and compliance risk which are mitigated through effective
risk management framework, coupled with internal controls.

The Board of Directors has approved a Comprehensive Risk Management Policy and Framework. The
objectives of the policy include assurance that the business activities are undertaken within approved risk
appetite and tolerance levels.

Formally established, ERM program within the Company was overseen by the Board. The ERM framework
serves as a base of ERM program ensuring comprehensive, consistent and efficient management of all
material risks and opportunities. The key objective of the risk management system is to support business
success and protect the Company through an opportunity-focused but risk-aware decision-making process.

The risk management system is intended to systematically and continually identify, assess, control, monitor
and report risks and opportunities; sets risk tolerance based on our overall corporate targets, in order
support the achievement of strategic objectives and to enhance risk awareness throughout the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attendance was as follows:

Mr. Maqbool H. H. Rahimtoola 4
Dr. Mahmood Ahmad 3
Mr. Muhammad Naseem 4

Trusted Worldwide
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Mr. Shahzad M. Hussain 3
Mr. Zafar A. Osmani 4
Mr. Mohammad Saeed 4
Mr. Sohail Osman Ali 3
Mr. Zafar Qidwai (alternate to Mr. Ilyas Sharif) 4

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who were unable to attend meetings.

All relevant other information has already been disclosed in Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and note 39 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The internal control framework has been effectively implemented through an Internal Audit function
established by the Board which is independent of the External Auditors of the Company. The Company's
system of internal control is sound in design and has been continuously evaluated for effectiveness and
adequacy.

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

During the year two meetings of Human Resource committee were held.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated financial statements of the Company includes Accounts of its subsidiaries, Berger DPI (Private)
Limited, Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited.

HOLDING COMPANY

The holding company of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited is Messrs. Slotrapid Limited which is incorporated in
the B.V.I.

PROFIT PER SHARE

The Earnings per share for the year is Rs. 4.93 (2018: Rs.4.99).

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has announced 10% final cash dividend i.e Re. 1 per share for the year
ended 30 June 2019 subject to approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion of the
upcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Audit
Committee of the Company has suggested and the Board has approved & recommended their re-
appointment to the shareholders as auditors of the Company for the year ended 2019-20.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties are reviewed and approved by the Board. The Board approved pricing
policy for related party transactions.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The requirement of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan Stock Exchange in their listing
regulations relevant for the year ended 30 June 2019 were duly complied with. A statement to this effect is
attached with the report.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2019 and its disclosure, as required by the Code of Corporate
Governance appears on Page 55.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as required by the
listing regulations.

Accordingly, the Directors are pleased to confirm the following:

i. The financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up to conformity with
the Companies Act, 2017. These statements present fairly the Company's state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

ii. The principal business activity of the Company is manufacturing, marketing and distribution of
decorative and industrial paints and other related products.

iii. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

iv. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements which conform to the International Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan.

v. The accounting estimates, wherever required are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

vi. International financial reporting standard, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.

vii. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented.

viii. There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

ix. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed
in the Listing Regulations.

x. The key operating and financial data of the last six years is annexed.

xi. The value of investments of provident, gratuity and pension funds are at June 30, 2019:

Rupees in Thousand

Berger Paints Executive Staff Pension Fund 51,467
Berger Paints Gratuity Fund 40
Berger Paints Provident Fund 238,630

xii. The directors, CEO, Executives and their Spouses and minor children did not carry out any trading
in the shares of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) - ACTIVITIES

Berger believes and fully understand its Social Responsibilities which strengthened the bond between
Company and society.

Following CSR Projects were taken up by Berger:

• erger adopted a Government Primary School in the vicinity of the factory. The School caters to theB
children of employees and local community and presently over 200 Students are enrolled. New class
rooms, new furniture, toilets and clean drinking water. A full-time teacher was hired to support the
academics needs. The project has so far cost Rs. one million.
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ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lahore
Date: 19 September 2019

Dr. Mahmood Ahmad
Chief Executive

Mr. Maqbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Director

• Berger pleased to share environment friendly initiative of using left over paint waste and to convert into
usable form of Paint which is donated to schools in underprivileged areas and Mosques.

• Berger is continuously contributing towards knowledge sharing programs. National Outreach Program
is conducting free seminars and workshops for students and business community at large by inviting
eminent speakers on different topics.

• Berger started a campaign under “Truck Art -Child Finder” and decided to join hands with Roshni
Helpline to help find missing children. In its first phase, Berger provided paint for 20 trucks. Roshni
Helpline received 313 calls in just one week and 4 children were reunited with their families. We, as part
of this noble cause, feel proud of the contribution and appreciate the efforts of the partners who
contributed towards mission.

The Directors take this opportunity to thank our shareholders and valued customers for their continued trust
as indeed the Company appreciates the dedication demonstrated by all tiers of the Company employees.
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------Shareholdings------

No. of Shareholders Total Shares Held

393

374

210

272

44

19

7

9

4

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

101

501

1,001

10,001

15,001

20,001

25,001

30,001

35,001

40,001

50,001

70,001

90,001

100,001

110,001

125,001

135,001

205,001

360,001

380,001

385,001

390,001

400,001

425,001

525,001

535,001

1,000,001

2,040,001

10,645,001

5,001

From To

100

500

1,000

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

55,000

75,000

95,000

105,000

115,000

130,000

140,000

210,000

365,000

385,000

390,000

395,000

405,000

430,000

530,000

540,000

1,005,000

2,045,000

10,650,000

11,250

94,566

148,683

573,444

313,994

224,279

124,612

200,196

111,721

30,937

37,045

42,750

52,762

72,509

91,125

102,575

112,500

127,050

137,457

207,556

363,854

382,812

385,875

394,260

403,107

426,701

1,055,919

537,183

1,002,331

2,041,312

10,649,314

1,355 20,459,679

as on June 2019

Pattern of Shareholding



56

Pattern of Shareholding
as on June 2019

Particulars

Directors, CEO and their spouses and minor childern
NIT & ICP
Banks, DFI & NBFI
Investment Companies
Modarabas
General Public (Local)
General Public (Foreign)
Others
Foreign Companies

Company Total

Shares held Percentage

29,860 0.146%
365,529 1.787%
785,500 3.839%
382,812 1.871%

5,625 0.027%
5,696,126 27.841%

91,625 0.448%
282,601 1.381%

12,820,001 62.660%

20,459,679 100.0000%

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS OF 30-06-2019

Categories of Shareholders Required Under the Code of
Corporate Governance as at June 30, 2019

Dr. Mahmood Ahmed
Mr. Muhammad Ilyas
Mr. Muhammad Naseem
Mr. Zafar Aziz Osmani
Mr. Sohail Osman Ali

Directors, CEO and their spouses and minor Holding Percentage

2 0.000%
1 0.000%
1 0.000%
1 0.000%

29,855 0.146%

29,860 0.1459%

Associated Companies

Slotrapid Limited 10,649,314 52.050%

NIT & ICP

Investment Corporation of Pakistan 663 0.003%
National Bank of Pakistan Turstee Department 1,012 0.005%
Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 363,854 1.778%

365,529 1.787%

Banks, DFI & NBFI 785,500 3.839%
General Public (Local) 5,696,126 27.841%
General Public (Foreign) 91,625 0.448%
Others 2,841,725 13.889%

9,414,976 46.017%

20,459,679 100.000%
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the Sixty Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be
held on Thursday, October 24, 2019 at 10:00 am at Berger Factory 28 KM Multan Road, Lahore to transact the
following business:

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm Minutes of Annual General Meeting held on October 23, 2018.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company along with Consolidated accounts
for the year ended June 30, 2019 together with the Chairman's Review Report and Reports of the
Directors' and Auditors' thereon.

3. To approve a final cash dividend of 10% (i.e. Rs.1 per share) for the year 2019 as recommended by the
Board of Directors.

4. To appoint Auditors for the year 2019-20 and to fix their remuneration. The present auditors - Messrs.
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution pursuant to Section
199 of the Companies Act 2017, with or without any modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s) in respect of
Company's issuing loan to Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited:

RESOLVED by way of Special Resolution pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017 and subject
to requisite regulatory permission and consent, approval of the members of Berger Paints Pakistan
Limited (the "Company" or "BPPL") be and is hereby accorded to further renew loan of PKR 40,000,000/-
(Rupees forty million) to its associated company Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited for a period of three
years to finance working capital of associated company on same terms which are already approved.

Lahore: October 01, 2019 Abdul Wahid Qureshi
Company Secretary

By Order of the Board

NOTES:

i. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 08, 2019 to October 14, 2019
(both days inclusive) and the final dividend will be paid to the Members whose names will appear in the
Register of Members on October 07, 2019. Members (Non-CDC) are requested to promptly notify the
Company's Registrar of any change in their addresses and submit, if applicable to them, the Non-
deduction of Zakat Form CZ-50 with the Registrar of the Company M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings
Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K, Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000.

All the Members holding the shares through the CDC are requested to please update their addresses and
Zakat status with their Participants.

ii. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his / her proxy to
attend and vote for him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. A proxy must be a member of
the Company.

CDC Accounts Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1, dated the
January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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A. For Attending the Meeting

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate their
identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or original passport at
the time of attending the meeting.

ii. In case of corporate entity, Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the CDC Regulations shall submit the
proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

iii. Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

iv. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v. In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy form to
Company.

The Notice of Annual General Meeting has been placed on the Company's website www.berger.com.pk in
addition to its dispatch to the shareholders.

Submission of copies of CNIC and NTN Certificate (Mandatory)

Pursuant to the directives of the SECP, the dividend of shareholders whose CNIC / SNIC or NTN (in case of
corporate entities), are not available with the Share Registrar shall be withheld. Shareholders are therefore,
requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC/SNIC (if not already provided) to the Company's Share
Registrar, M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore,
Punjab 54000.

Withholding Tax on Dividend

Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2019 has made certain amendments in Section 150 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the
amount of dividend paid by the companies. These tax rates are as under:

(a) For filers of income tax returns: 15%

(b) For non filers of income tax returns: 30%

Shareholders, who are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest Active
Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they shall be
treated as non-filers and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

Withholding Tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding ratio of
the Joint Account Holder(s) (where shareholding has not been determined by the Principal Shareholder) for
deduction of withholding tax on dividends of the Company, shareholders are requested to furnish the
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shareholding ratio details of themselves as Principal shareholder and their Joint Holders, to the Company's
Share Registrar, in writing as per format given below enabling the Company to compute withholding tax of
each shareholder accordingly.

The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise it will be
assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

Payment of Cash Dividend through Electronic Mode (Mandatory)

The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 (”ACT”) provides that any dividend declared by a
listed company shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the
entitled shareholders.

SECP has advised in their Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017 to all listed companies to ensure that
with effect from November 01, 2017 as also provided in the Companies (Distribution of Dividends)
Regulations, 2017 (as amended from time to time) cash dividends shall be paid through electronic mode only.
Therefore, shareholders are requested to provide the details of their bank mandate specifying: (a) title of
account, (b) account number (c) IBAN (d) bank name and (e) branch name, code and address to the Company
or Share Registrar. Those shareholders who hold shares with participants / Central Depository Company of
Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the same to their concerned participant / CDC.

Please note that as per Section 243(3) of the Act, listed companies are entitled to withhold payment of
dividend, if necessary information is not provided by shareholders.

For the convenience of shareholders e-Dividend Mandate Form is available on Company's website.

E-Voting

Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143-145 of the
Act and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

Video Conference

Pursuant to SECP Circular No.10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014, if the Company receives consent from members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a geographical location to participate in the
meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting, the Company
will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this
facility please provide the following information to the Share Registrar, M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings
Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000.

I/We, of being a member of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio
No. ___________ hereby opt for video conference facility at (Please insert name of the City).

Distribution of Annual Report through Email

We are pleased to inform shareholders that the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has under
and pursuant to SRO No. 787(1)/2014 dated 8 September 2014, permitted companies to circulate their annual
balance sheet and profit and loss accounts, auditors' report and directors' report etc. (“Annual Report”) along
with the notice of annual general meeting (“Notice”), to its shareholders by email. Shareholders of the
Company who wish to receive the Company's Annual Report and notice of annual general meeting by email
are requested to provide the completed Electronic Communication Consent Form already dispatched, to the
Company's Share Registrar, M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model
Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000.

Company
Name

Folio/CDS
Account No.

Total
Shares

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder(s)

Name &
CNIC No.

Shareholding
proportion

(No . of Shares)

Name &
CNIC No.

Shareholding
proportion

(No. of Shares)
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Financial Statements and reports of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019 can be downloaded from
the Company's website.

Unclaimed Dividend

As per the provisions of Section 244 of the Act, any shares issued or dividend declared by the Company which
have remained unclaimed/unpaid for a period of three years from the date on which it was due and payable,
are required to be deposited with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the credit of Federal
Government after issuance of notices to the Shareholders to file their claim. The details of the shares issued
and dividend declared by the Company which have remained due for more than three years are available on
the Company's website http://www.berger.com.pk. Shareholders are requested to ensure that their claims
for unclaimed dividend and shares are lodged promptly. In case, no claim is lodged, the Company shall
proceed to deposit the unclaimed/ unpaid amount and shares with the Federal Government pursuant to the
provision of Section 244(2) of the Act.

Annexure A

In compliance with section 134 (3)of companies Act 2017.

BERGER ROAD SAFETY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

EXTRACTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
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12,954
192,819

1,086
199,386

5,301

356,019
(8,995)
2,333

(6,663)
Tax

NET ASSETS

Profit/(Loss) After Tax

All amount in thousands

Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Profit/(Loss) Before tax
Revenue



 

 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017  

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business to be transacted at the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 24, 2019. To renew loan of Rs. 40,000,000/- 

(Rupees Forty Million) to Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited.  

All material terms of the transaction is attached with this notice. 

 

Information Required under Clause (b) of sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 3 of the 

Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 

2012 

 

S. No. 

 

Description Information Required 

1 Name of the associated 

company or associated 

undertaking along with 

criteria basis on which the 

associated relationship is 

established; 

 

Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited 

 

Berger Paints Holds 51% shares in Berger DPI (Pvt.) 

Limited which holds 100% shares in Berger Road 

Safety (Private) Limited. 

2 Amount of loans; Rs.40,000,000 

3 Purpose of loans and benefits 

likely to accrue to the 

investing company and its 

members from such loans or 

advances;  

 

 

BRS has shown significant growth in Sales in last 

three years. To maintain this growth pattern, 

company needs additional funds to invest in working 

capital. 

4 In case any loan has already 

been granted to the said 

associated company or 

associated undertaking, the 

complete details thereof; 

No loan has been given to Berger Road Safety 

(Private) Limited before.  

5 Financial position, including 

main items of balance sheet 

and profit and loss account of 

the associated company or   

undertaking on the basis of its 

latest financial statements;  

Attached as Annex A 



 

6 Average borrowing cost of 

the investing company or in 

case of absence of borrowing 

the Karachi Inter Bank 

Offered Rate for the relevant 

period; 

 

15% 

7 Rate of interest, mark up, 

profit, fees or commission 

etc. to be charged; 

 

Company borrowing cost plus 2% 

8 Sources of funds from where 

loans will be given; 

 

Internal cash generation of the Company 

9 Where loans or advances are 

being granted using borrowed 

funds:  

 

a) justification for granting 

loan or advance out of 

borrowed funds; 

b) detail of guarantees / 

assets pledged for       

obtaining such funds, if 

any; and  

 

c) repayment schedules of 

borrowing of the 

investing company; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Not applicable 

10 Particulars of collateral 

security to be obtained 

against loan to the borrowing 

company or undertaking, if 

any; 

 

Against Stocks  and receivables 

11 If the loans or advances carry 

conversion feature i.e. it is 

convertible into securities, 

this fact along with complete 

detail including conversion 

formula, circumstances in 

which the conversion may 

take place and the time when 

Not applicable 



the conversion may be 

exercisable;  

 

12 Repayment schedule and 

terms of loans or advances to 

be given to the investee 

company; 

 

To be repaid at the end of 3rd year 

13 Salient feature of all 

agreements entered or to be 

entered with its associated 

company or associated 

undertaking with regards to 

proposed investment; 

 

Except mentioned in this document, there is no other 

agreement entered with associated company.  

 

14 Direct or indirect interest of 

directors, sponsors, majority 

shareholders and their 

relatives, if any, in the 

associated company or 

associated undertaking or the 

transaction under 

consideration; 

 

Dr. Mahmood Ahmed (CEO of BPPL) is also a 

director of Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited 

 

15 Any other important details 

necessary for the members to 

understand the transaction; 

and  

 

Not Any. 

16 In case of investment in a 

project of an associated 

company or associated 

undertaking that has not 

commenced operations, in 

addition to the information 

referred to above, the 

following further information 

is required:  

 

a) a description of the 

project and its history 

since 

conceptualization; 

 

Not Applicable 



b) starting date and 

expected date of 

completion;  

 

c) time by which such 

project shall become 

commercially 

operational; 

 

d) expected return on 

total capital employed 

in the project; and 

 

e) funds invested or to 

be invested by the 

promoters 

distinguishing 

between cash and 

non-cash amounts; 

 

 

Inspection:  

All the documents related to the special business are being kept at the register office of the Company for 

inspection during usual business hours till the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
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With Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Compliance

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a) Male: Seven
b) Female: None

Latest elections of the Board were held in October 2017 before these Regulations came into force.
The Company shall comply with the requirement of at least one female director on its Board upon
expiry of the term in 2020 as per clause 7 of the Regulations.

2. The composition of the board is as follows:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with dates on
which they are approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Requirement of the Regulations on Director's Training Program has been complied with.

10. No new appointment of the CFO and Company Secretary was made during the year. However, the
Board has approved appointment of Mr. Umair Liaqat as Head of Internal Audit including his
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of
the Regulations.

Category

Independent Directors

Name

Mr. Sohail Osman Ali
Mr. Zafar Aziz Osmani
Mr. Muhammad Naseem
Mr. Muhammad Saeed

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Maqbool H. H. Rahimtoola
Mr. Shehzad M. Hussain
Mr. Ilyas Sharif

Executive Director Dr. Mahmood Ahmad
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11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The Board has formed following committees:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Muhammad Naseem

Mr. Sohail Osman Ali

Mr. Maqbool H. H. Rahimtoola

Chairman

Member

Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zafar A. Osmani

Dr. Mahmood Ahmed

Mr. Shehzad M. Hussain

Chairman

Member

Member

13. The terms of the reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of the meetings of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee – Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended 30 June 2019.

b) HR and Remuneration Committee – Two meetings during the financial year ended 30 June 2019.

15. The board has outsourced the internal audit function to Ernst & Young (EY) Ford Rhodes who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies
and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirmed that the all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lahore
Date: 19 September 2019

Dr. Mahmood Ahmad
Chief Executive

Mr. Maqbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Director
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KK
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
351 Shadman-1,
Jail Road, Lahore, Pakistan.

Telephone
Fax
Internet

+92 (42) 111 576 484
+92 (42) 37429907
www.kpmg.com.pk

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Berger Paints
Pakistan Limited for the year ended 30 June 2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
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transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have
not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related
parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Lahore
Date: 02 October 2019

Independent Auditor's Review Report

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

To the members of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017
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• comparing, on a sample basis, specic sales 
transactions recorded before and after the 
nancial year end to determine whether the sale 
had been recognized in the appropriate nancial 
period; and

• scanning for any manual journal entries relating 
to sale recorded during the year which were 
considered to be material or met other specic 
risk based criteria for inspecting underlying 
documentation.

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Revenue recognition

Refer to note 3.1, 3.17 and 29 to the nancial 
statements.

The Company recognized net revenue of Rs. 
5.12 billion from the sale of goods to 
domestic as well as export customers during 
the year ended 30 June 2019. 

We identied recognition of revenue as a key 
audit matter because revenue is one of the 
key performance indicator of the Company 
and gives rise to a risk that revenue is 
recognized without transferring the control.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of 
revenue, amongst others, included the following:

• Obtaining an understanding of the process 
relating to recording of sales and testing the 
des ign,  implementat ion and operat ing 
effectiveness of relevant key internal controls;

• assessing the appropriateness of the Company's 
accounting policies for recording of sales and 
compliance of those policies with applicable 
accounting standards;

• comparing a sample of sale transactions 
recorded during the year with sales invoices, 
delivery challans, bill of ladings and other 
relevant underlying documents;

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

KKK KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
351 Shadman-1,
Jail Road, Lahore, Pakistan.
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Fax
Internet

+92 (42) 111 576 484
+92 (42) 37429907
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

2. Valuation of Trade Debts

Refer to notes 3.1, 3.7 and 14 to the nancial 
statements.

As at 30 June 2019, the Company's gross 
trade debts amount to Rs. 1,669.80 million. 
Pursuant to adoption of IFRS 9 'Financial 
Instruments' and using the modied 
retrospective approach, the Company has 
recognized expected credit loss (“ECL”) of 
Rs. 5.90 million in opening retained earnings 
as at 01 July 2018 and Rs. 24.29  million for 
the year ended 30 June 2019. 

IFRS 9 requires the Company to make 
provision for nancial assets (trade debts) 
using ECL approach as against the Incurred 
Loss Model previously applied by the 
Company.

Determination of ECL provision for trade 
debts requires signicant judgment and 
assumptions including consideration of 
factors such as historical credit loss 
experience and forward-looking macro-
economic information.

We have considered this as a key audit 
matter due to signicance of the change in 
accounting methodology and involvement 
of estimates and judgments in this regard.

Our audit procedures to assess valuation of trade 
debts, amongst others, included the following:

• Review the methodology developed and applied 
by the management to estimate the ECL in 
relation to trade debts, evaluating the key 
assumptions used (historical and forward 
looking), the policies applied to assess ECL in 
respect of trade debts and test ing the 
mathematical accuracy of the ECL model by re-
performing calculations on test basis;

• involving our specialists to assess the ECL model 
and signicant estimates, assumptions and 
judgments applied in developing ECL; 

• assessing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the 
data used for ECL computation; and

• assessing the adequacy of disclosure made in 
the nancial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of the applicable accounting and 
reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the nancial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the nancial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard
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Opinion

We have audited the annexed nancial statements of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the statement of nancial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of prot or loss, the statement of comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash ows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
nancial statements, including a summary of signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we 
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of nancial 
position, statement of prot or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash ows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 and 
of the prot, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash ows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (“the Code”) and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in our audit of the 
nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the nancial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters.
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transactions recorded before and after the 
nancial year end to determine whether the sale 
had been recognized in the appropriate nancial 
period; and
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
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using ECL approach as against the Incurred 
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factors such as historical credit loss 
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We have considered this as a key audit 
matter due to signicance of the change in 
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of estimates and judgments in this regard.
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so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the nancial statements or our knowledge 
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We have audited the annexed nancial statements of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the statement of nancial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of prot or loss, the statement of comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash ows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
nancial statements, including a summary of signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we 
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of nancial 
position, statement of prot or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash ows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 and 
of the prot, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash ows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (“the Code”) and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in our audit of the 
nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the nancial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters.



Lahore 
Date: 02 October 2019

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

         

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the nancial statements in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of nancial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's nancial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the nancial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
inuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
signicant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the nancial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the nancial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and signicant audit ndings, including any signicant deciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most signicance 
in the audit of the nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benets of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of nancial position, the statement of prot or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash ows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up 
in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and 
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Kamran I. Yousa.
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audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
signicant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2019

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 6 1,177,145

Intangibles 7 26,696

Investments in related parties 8 54,504

Loan to related party - secured 9 -

Long term loans - secured 10 44,628

Deferred taxation 12 43,878

Long term deposits - unsecured 11 21,205

1,368,056

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 16,906

Stock-in-trade 13 917,368

Trade debts - unsecured 14 1,461,014

Loans and advances 15 98,786

Loan to related party - secured 9 40,000

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 16 41,206

Other receivables 17 13,891

Tax refund due from Government - net 280,934

Short term investment 18 32,195

Cash and bank balances 19 76,625

2,978,925

4,346,981

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Authorised share capital 20 250,000

                     

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 20 204,597

Reserves 21 903,660

22 472,012

1,580,269

Non-current liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 23 89,635

Staff retirement and other long term benets 24 154,049

Deferred taxation 12 -

243,684

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 1,192,513

Unclaimed dividend 5,980

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 26 39,432

Current maturity of long term nancing 23 80,356

Short term borrowings - secured 27 1,204,747

2,523,028

2,766,712

Contingencies and commitments 28

4,346,981

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and

machinery - net of tax

  Rupees in thousand

1,223,549

40,297

67,287

40,000

54,360

-

25,884

1,451,377

15,772

1,015,911

1,164,907

199,686

-

51,360

16,388

291,573

42,275

21,420

2,819,292

4,270,669

250,000

181,864

828,666

509,131

1,519,661

69,965

142,592

9,000

221,557

1,301,943

4,756

16,465

68,298

1,137,989

2,529,451

2,751,008

4,270,669

      

     

      

        

        

        

         

           

         

          

          

        

         

          
          

         

                               

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross prot

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Prot from operations

Other income

Other expenses

Finance cost

Prot before taxation

Taxation

Prot after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand

29 5,120,444 5,453,221

30 (4,004,021) (4,262,573)

1,116,423 1,190,648

31 (665,377)

        

(785,010)

32 (184,684) (191,387)

(850,061)

        

(976,397)

266,362

          

214,251

33 31,681             36,923

298,043           251,174

34 (19,978)

          

(15,820)

35 (165,067)

        

(88,142)

(185,045) (103,962)

112,998 147,212

36 (12,173)

          

(45,106)

100,825 102,106

Rupees Rupees
(Restated)

37 4.93 4.99

     
2019 2018Note
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2019

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 6 1,177,145

Intangibles 7 26,696

Investments in related parties 8 54,504

Loan to related party - secured 9 -

Long term loans - secured 10 44,628

Deferred taxation 12 43,878

Long term deposits - unsecured 11 21,205

1,368,056

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 16,906

Stock-in-trade 13 917,368

Trade debts - unsecured 14 1,461,014

Loans and advances 15 98,786

Loan to related party - secured 9 40,000

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 16 41,206

Other receivables 17 13,891

Tax refund due from Government - net 280,934

Short term investment 18 32,195

Cash and bank balances 19 76,625

2,978,925

4,346,981

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Authorised share capital 20 250,000

                     

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 20 204,597

Reserves 21 903,660

22 472,012

1,580,269

Non-current liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 23 89,635

Staff retirement and other long term benets 24 154,049

Deferred taxation 12 -

243,684

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 25 1,192,513

Unclaimed dividend 5,980

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 26 39,432

Current maturity of long term nancing 23 80,356

Short term borrowings - secured 27 1,204,747

2,523,028

2,766,712

Contingencies and commitments 28

4,346,981

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and

machinery - net of tax

  Rupees in thousand

1,223,549

40,297

67,287

40,000

54,360

-

25,884

1,451,377

15,772

1,015,911

1,164,907

199,686

-

51,360

16,388

291,573

42,275

21,420

2,819,292

4,270,669

250,000

181,864

828,666

509,131

1,519,661

69,965

142,592

9,000

221,557

1,301,943

4,756

16,465

68,298

1,137,989

2,529,451

2,751,008

4,270,669

      

     

      

        

        

        

         

           

         

          

          

        

         

          
          

         

                               

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross prot

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Prot from operations

Other income

Other expenses

Finance cost

Prot before taxation

Taxation

Prot after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand

29 5,120,444 5,453,221

30 (4,004,021) (4,262,573)

1,116,423 1,190,648

31 (665,377)

        

(785,010)

32 (184,684) (191,387)

(850,061)

        

(976,397)

266,362

          

214,251

33 31,681             36,923

298,043           251,174

34 (19,978)

          

(15,820)

35 (165,067)

        

(88,142)

(185,045) (103,962)

112,998 147,212

36 (12,173)

          

(45,106)

100,825 102,106

Rupees Rupees
(Restated)

37 4.93 4.99

     
2019 2018Note
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

       

          

          

         

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

Cash ow from operating activities

Prot before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization on computer software

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision charged / (reversed) against slow moving stock - net

Insurance claim

Provision reversed for impairment in capital work in progress

Provision for doubtful debts

Bad debts written off

Provision for staff retirement and other long term benets

Finance cost

Provision (reversed) / charged for doubtful loans

Impairment charged on Goodwill

Mark-up on term deposit receipts

Operating prot before working capital changes

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other receivables

Decrease in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations 

Finance cost paid

Taxes paid

Staff retirement and other long term benets paid

Long term loans - due from employees

Long term deposits - net

Net cash (used in ) / generated from operating activities

Cash ow from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Mark-up received on term deposit and long term loan

Short term investments

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash ow from nancing activities

Long term nancing - net

Dividend paid

Short term borrowings - net

Net cash used in nancing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

112,998 147,211

6.7 77,792 79,778

7.1.1 5,338 4,660

33 (17,024) (9,363)

4,952 (2,902)

33 - (2,581)

34 - (8,059)

31 24,293 990

14.3 2,529 25,954

24.6 & 24.16 32,193 28,321

35 165,067 88,142

15 (201) 1,765

7.2.1 8,263 4,487

33 (12,150) (6,638)

291,052 204,554

404,050 351,765

(1,134) 1,152

93,591 5,227

(328,826) 57,604

100,337 (90,083)

10,154 (20,973)

2,871 (111)

(123,007) (47,184)

(109,430)          (142,243)

171,613 162,338

(142,100) (85,071)

(56,608) (23,373)

24 (17,345) (11,672)

10,496 (12,275)

4,679 (5,110)

(200,878) (137,501)

(29,265) 24,837

(92,907) (166,390)

6.2 78,542 14,712

11,778 6,699

10,080 -

7,493 (144,979)

31,728 (68,088)

(21,509) (23,960)

(300,000) -

(289,781) (92,048)

(311,553) (212,190)

(716,569) (504,379)

38 (1,028,122) (716,569)
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Prot after taxation

Other comprehensive loss

Items that may be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as available for sale

Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

100,825 102,106

- (7,281)

8.2.1 (12,783) -

24.5 3,391 (5,966)

91,433 88,859



Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

       

          

          

         

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

Cash ow from operating activities

Prot before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization on computer software

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision charged / (reversed) against slow moving stock - net

Insurance claim

Provision reversed for impairment in capital work in progress

Provision for doubtful debts

Bad debts written off

Provision for staff retirement and other long term benets

Finance cost

Provision (reversed) / charged for doubtful loans

Impairment charged on Goodwill

Mark-up on term deposit receipts

Operating prot before working capital changes

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other receivables

Decrease in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations 

Finance cost paid

Taxes paid

Staff retirement and other long term benets paid

Long term loans - due from employees

Long term deposits - net

Net cash (used in ) / generated from operating activities

Cash ow from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Mark-up received on term deposit and long term loan

Short term investments

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash ow from nancing activities

Long term nancing - net

Dividend paid

Short term borrowings - net

Net cash used in nancing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

112,998 147,211

6.7 77,792 79,778

7.1.1 5,338 4,660

33 (17,024) (9,363)

4,952 (2,902)

33 - (2,581)

34 - (8,059)

31 24,293 990

14.3 2,529 25,954

24.6 & 24.16 32,193 28,321

35 165,067 88,142

15 (201) 1,765

7.2.1 8,263 4,487

33 (12,150) (6,638)

291,052 204,554

404,050 351,765

(1,134) 1,152

93,591 5,227

(328,826) 57,604

100,337 (90,083)

10,154 (20,973)

2,871 (111)

(123,007) (47,184)

(109,430)          (142,243)

171,613 162,338

(142,100) (85,071)

(56,608) (23,373)

24 (17,345) (11,672)

10,496 (12,275)

4,679 (5,110)

(200,878) (137,501)

(29,265) 24,837

(92,907) (166,390)

6.2 78,542 14,712

11,778 6,699

10,080 -

7,493 (144,979)

31,728 (68,088)

(21,509) (23,960)

(300,000) -

(289,781) (92,048)

(311,553) (212,190)

(716,569) (504,379)

38 (1,028,122) (716,569)
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Prot after taxation

Other comprehensive loss

Items that may be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as available for sale

Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

100,825 102,106

- (7,281)

8.2.1 (12,783) -

24.5 3,391 (5,966)

91,433 88,859



1 Reporting entity information

 1.1 Berger Paints Pakistan Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 25 March 1950 as a Private 
Limited Company under the Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was subsequently 
converted into a Public Limited Company. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange ("PSX"). 
The principle business activity of the Company is manufacturing and trading of paints, varnishes and other 
related items. Slotrapid Limited, based in British Virgin Island is the Holding Company. The aggregate 
percentage of holding is 52.05%. The registered ofce of the Company is situated at 36-Industrial Estate Kot-
Lakhpat, Lahore and its only manufacturing facility is located at 28 Km Multan Road, Lahore.

2 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

 2.1 Separate nancial statements

  These nancial statements are the separate  nancial statements of the Company in which investments in 
subsidiary and associates are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of 
reported results and  net assets of the investees. Consolidated nancial statements of the Company are 
prepared separately.

  The Company has following investments:

Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

             

              

           

     

     

     

               

 

 

          

          

      

Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2019

                        Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

Balance as at 01 July 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2018

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on 

property, plant and machinery - net of tax

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2018

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (net of tax)

Adjusted balance as at 01 July 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2019

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on property

plant and machinery - net of tax

Transfer of revaluation surplus due to

disposal of revalued assets

Transactions with the owners of the Company

Final cash dividend at the rate of 12.5% 

(i.e. Rs. 1.25 per share ) for the year  

ended 30 June 2018

Issue of Bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares held)  

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2019

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Reserves

 Revenue Capital

Rupees in thousand 

1,427,645

102,106

(7,281)

(5,966)

88,859

-

3,158

3,158

1,519,662

(4,187)

1,515,475

100,825

(12,783)

3,391

91,433

-

-

(22,733)

-

(3,906)

(26,639)

1,580,269

 Total  

1,245,781

102,106

(7,281)

(5,966)

88,859

-

-

-

1,334,640

(4,187)

1,330,453

100,825

(12,783)

3,391

91,433

-

-

(22,733)

-

-

(22,733)

1,399,153

 Total 

reserves 

 Accumulated 

Prots 

353,611

102,106

-

(5,966)

96,140

15,390

-

15,390

465,141

(4,187)

460,954

100,825

-

3,391

104,216

17,632

15,581

(22,733)

-

-

10,480

575,650

 General 

reserve  

285,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

285,000

-

285,000

 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

285,000

Fair value 

reserve

28,988

-

(7,281)

-

 

(7,281)

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

21,707

-
 

21,707

 
-

 

(12,783)

 

-

 

(12,783)

 

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,924

Surplus on 

revaluation 

on property, 

plant and 

machinery

521,363

-

-

-

 

-

 

(15,390)

 

3,158

 

(12,232)

 

509,131

-
 

509,131

 
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

(17,632)

(15,581)

-

-

(3,906)

(37,119)

472,012

Share 

premium

56,819

-

-

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

56,819

-
 

56,819

 
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

-

-

(22,733)

-

(22,733)

34,086

181,864

-

-

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

181,864

-
               

181,864

       
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

-

-

22,733

-

22,733

204,597

Issued, 

subscribed 

and paid-up 

capital

Company name Country of
incorporation

Percentages of
shareholding

Nature of business

Subsidiaries

Berger DPI (Private) Limited Pakistan 51.00% Execut ion  o f  cont rac ts 
relating to application of road 
m a r k i n g  p a i n t s  a n d 
installation of road safety 
equipment

Pakistan 51.96% M e r c h a n d i s i n g  a n d 
application of construction 
chemicals

Berdex Construction Chemicals
(Private) Limited

Associate

3S Pharmaceuticals (Private)
Limited

Pakistan 49.00% Manufacturing of medicines

 2.2 Statement of compliance

  These nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan.  The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

  - International Financial Reporting Standards "(IFRS)" issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as notied under the Companies Act 2017;

  - Islamic Financial Accounting Standards "(IFAS)" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan as notied under the Companies Act, 2017; and

  - Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

  Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions 
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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1 Reporting entity information

 1.1 Berger Paints Pakistan Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 25 March 1950 as a Private 
Limited Company under the Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was subsequently 
converted into a Public Limited Company. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange ("PSX"). 
The principle business activity of the Company is manufacturing and trading of paints, varnishes and other 
related items. Slotrapid Limited, based in British Virgin Island is the Holding Company. The aggregate 
percentage of holding is 52.05%. The registered ofce of the Company is situated at 36-Industrial Estate Kot-
Lakhpat, Lahore and its only manufacturing facility is located at 28 Km Multan Road, Lahore.

2 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

 2.1 Separate nancial statements

  These nancial statements are the separate  nancial statements of the Company in which investments in 
subsidiary and associates are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of 
reported results and  net assets of the investees. Consolidated nancial statements of the Company are 
prepared separately.

  The Company has following investments:

Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

             

              

           

     

     

     

               

 

 

          

          

      

Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2019

                        Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

Balance as at 01 July 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2018

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on 

property, plant and machinery - net of tax

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2018

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (net of tax)

Adjusted balance as at 01 July 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2019

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on property

plant and machinery - net of tax

Transfer of revaluation surplus due to

disposal of revalued assets

Transactions with the owners of the Company

Final cash dividend at the rate of 12.5% 

(i.e. Rs. 1.25 per share ) for the year  

ended 30 June 2018

Issue of Bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares held)  

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2019

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Reserves

 Revenue Capital

Rupees in thousand 

1,427,645

102,106

(7,281)

(5,966)

88,859

-

3,158

3,158

1,519,662

(4,187)

1,515,475

100,825

(12,783)

3,391

91,433

-

-

(22,733)

-

(3,906)

(26,639)

1,580,269

 Total  

1,245,781

102,106

(7,281)

(5,966)

88,859

-

-

-

1,334,640

(4,187)

1,330,453

100,825

(12,783)

3,391

91,433

-

-

(22,733)

-

-

(22,733)

1,399,153

 Total 

reserves 

 Accumulated 

Prots 

353,611

102,106

-

(5,966)

96,140

15,390

-

15,390

465,141

(4,187)

460,954

100,825

-

3,391

104,216

17,632

15,581

(22,733)

-

-

10,480

575,650

 General 

reserve  

285,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

285,000

-

285,000

 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

285,000

Fair value 

reserve

28,988

-

(7,281)

-

 

(7,281)

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

21,707

-
 

21,707

 
-

 

(12,783)

 

-

 

(12,783)

 

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,924

Surplus on 

revaluation 

on property, 

plant and 

machinery

521,363

-

-

-

 

-

 

(15,390)

 

3,158

 

(12,232)

 

509,131

-
 

509,131

 
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

(17,632)

(15,581)

-

-

(3,906)

(37,119)

472,012

Share 

premium

56,819

-

-

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

56,819

-
 

56,819

 
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

-

-

(22,733)

-

(22,733)

34,086

181,864

-

-

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

181,864

-
               

181,864

       
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

-

-

22,733

-

22,733

204,597

Issued, 

subscribed 

and paid-up 

capital

Company name Country of
incorporation

Percentages of
shareholding

Nature of business

Subsidiaries

Berger DPI (Private) Limited Pakistan 51.00% Execut ion  o f  cont rac ts 
relating to application of road 
m a r k i n g  p a i n t s  a n d 
installation of road safety 
equipment

Pakistan 51.96% M e r c h a n d i s i n g  a n d 
application of construction 
chemicals

Berdex Construction Chemicals
(Private) Limited

Associate

3S Pharmaceuticals (Private)
Limited

Pakistan 49.00% Manufacturing of medicines

 2.2 Statement of compliance

  These nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan.  The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

  - International Financial Reporting Standards "(IFRS)" issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as notied under the Companies Act 2017;

  - Islamic Financial Accounting Standards "(IFAS)" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan as notied under the Companies Act, 2017; and

  - Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

  Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions 
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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 2.3 Basis of measurement

  These nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for revaluation of 
certain nancial instruments at fair value as referred to in note 3.4, the measurement of certain items of 
property, plant and equipment as referred to in note 22 at revalued amounts and recognition of certain staff 
retirement and other long term benets as referred to in note 3.11 at present value and fair value respectively.

  In these  nancial statements, except for the amounts reected in the cash ow statement, all transaction 
have been accounted for on accrual basis.

 2.4 Functional and presentation currency

  These nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees ("Rs."), which is the Company's functional and 
presentation currency. All nancial information has been rounded to the nearest thousand rupees, except 
when otherwise indicated.

3 Signicant accounting policies

 The signicant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
nancial statements, except as disclosed in note 3.1.

 3.1 Changes in signicant accounting policy

 3.1.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

  IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is 
recognized. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. Under 
IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of the goods or services. Determining the 
timing of the transfer of control – at a point in time or over time requires judgment. The Company is engaged 
in the sale of paints, varnishes and other related items. The contracts with customers for the sale of goods 
generally includes single performance obligation. Management has concluded that revenue from sale of 
goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer. The above 
is generally consistent with the timing and amounts of revenue the Company recognised in accordance with 
the previous standard, IAS 18. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 which has replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 
11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations at 01 July 2018, did not have a material impact on the 
amounts of revenue recognized in these nancial statements except for reclassication of freight and 
handling cost from selling and distribution to cost of sales. Accordingly, selling and distribution costs of  Rs. 
128.56 million (2018: Rs. 113.86 million) have been reclassied to cost of sales. This reclassication has no 
impact on the reported Earning per Share (“EPS”) of the corresponding year. Similarly, the amounts received 
for future sale of goods were reclassied to 'contract liabilities' which were previously classied as "advances 
from customers". Company's accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is explained in note 3.17 of 
these nancial statements.

 3.1.2 Impact of nancial statements

  As at 01 July 2018, contract liabilities were increased by Rs. 71.95 million and advance from customers 
decreased by the same amount.

 3.1.3 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

  IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' that relates 
to the recognition, classication and measurement of nancial assets and nancial liabilities, derecognition 
of nancial instruments, impairment of nancial assets and hedge accounting. The details of new signicant 
accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set 
out below:

 3.1.4 Classication and measurement of nancial instruments

  IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classication and measurement of nancial 
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for nancial assets of held to maturity, loans 
and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company classies its 
nancial assets in the following measurement categories:

  - those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCl), 
or through prot or loss (FVTPL); and

  - those to be measured at amortised cost

  The classication depends on the Company's business model for managing the nancial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash ows.

  A nancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through prot or loss:

  - it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; and

  - Its contractual terms give rise, on specied dates, to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on principal amount outstanding.

  Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. 
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in prot or loss. Any 
gain on derecognition is recognised in prot or loss.

  Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Dividend 
income is recognised in prot or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and are not reclassied to prot or loss.

 3.1.5 Impact of change in classication and measurement of nancial assets due to adoption of IFRS 9

  The following table explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement 
categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company's nancial assets at 01 July 2018:
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 2.3 Basis of measurement

  These nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for revaluation of 
certain nancial instruments at fair value as referred to in note 3.4, the measurement of certain items of 
property, plant and equipment as referred to in note 22 at revalued amounts and recognition of certain staff 
retirement and other long term benets as referred to in note 3.11 at present value and fair value respectively.

  In these  nancial statements, except for the amounts reected in the cash ow statement, all transaction 
have been accounted for on accrual basis.

 2.4 Functional and presentation currency

  These nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees ("Rs."), which is the Company's functional and 
presentation currency. All nancial information has been rounded to the nearest thousand rupees, except 
when otherwise indicated.

3 Signicant accounting policies

 The signicant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
nancial statements, except as disclosed in note 3.1.

 3.1 Changes in signicant accounting policy

 3.1.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

  IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is 
recognized. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. Under 
IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of the goods or services. Determining the 
timing of the transfer of control – at a point in time or over time requires judgment. The Company is engaged 
in the sale of paints, varnishes and other related items. The contracts with customers for the sale of goods 
generally includes single performance obligation. Management has concluded that revenue from sale of 
goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer. The above 
is generally consistent with the timing and amounts of revenue the Company recognised in accordance with 
the previous standard, IAS 18. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 which has replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 
11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations at 01 July 2018, did not have a material impact on the 
amounts of revenue recognized in these nancial statements except for reclassication of freight and 
handling cost from selling and distribution to cost of sales. Accordingly, selling and distribution costs of  Rs. 
128.56 million (2018: Rs. 113.86 million) have been reclassied to cost of sales. This reclassication has no 
impact on the reported Earning per Share (“EPS”) of the corresponding year. Similarly, the amounts received 
for future sale of goods were reclassied to 'contract liabilities' which were previously classied as "advances 
from customers". Company's accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is explained in note 3.17 of 
these nancial statements.

 3.1.2 Impact of nancial statements

  As at 01 July 2018, contract liabilities were increased by Rs. 71.95 million and advance from customers 
decreased by the same amount.

 3.1.3 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

  IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' that relates 
to the recognition, classication and measurement of nancial assets and nancial liabilities, derecognition 
of nancial instruments, impairment of nancial assets and hedge accounting. The details of new signicant 
accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set 
out below:

 3.1.4 Classication and measurement of nancial instruments

  IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classication and measurement of nancial 
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for nancial assets of held to maturity, loans 
and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company classies its 
nancial assets in the following measurement categories:

  - those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCl), 
or through prot or loss (FVTPL); and

  - those to be measured at amortised cost

  The classication depends on the Company's business model for managing the nancial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash ows.

  A nancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through prot or loss:

  - it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; and

  - Its contractual terms give rise, on specied dates, to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on principal amount outstanding.

  Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. 
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in prot or loss. Any 
gain on derecognition is recognised in prot or loss.

  Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Dividend 
income is recognised in prot or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and are not reclassied to prot or loss.

 3.1.5 Impact of change in classication and measurement of nancial assets due to adoption of IFRS 9

  The following table explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement 
categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company's nancial assets at 01 July 2018:
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  Impairment of nancial assets

  The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Company's impairment model by replacing the IAS 39 ‘incurred loss 
model’ with a forward looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model when assessing the impairment of nancial 
assets in the scope of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires the Company to recognize ECLs for trade debts earlier than 
IAS 39. Cash and bank balances, deposits and other receivables are also subject to ECL but there is no or 
immaterial impairment for the current year.

  Under IFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: 
these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and 
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
nancial instrument

  The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplied approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a 
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables are written 
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

  Loss allowance on bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since they are short 
term in nature and there is no adverse change in credit rating of the banks where the balances are 
maintained, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.

  Impact of ECL

  The Company has applied IFRS 9 using the modied retrospective approach. Under this approach, 
comparative information is not restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 9 is recognised in 
retained earnings at the date of initial application. Considering the quantitative and qualitative information 
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including 
forward-looking information, The Company has recognised loss allowance amounting to Rs. 5.89 million 
against trade debts upon transition to IFRS 9 as of 01 July 2018 with a corresponding effect in opening 
retained earning and deferred taxation amounting to Rs. 4.19 million and Rs. 1.70 million. 

 3.2 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identied 
impairment loss, except for freehold and leasehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery, which 
are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

  Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the 
revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account except for a reversal of decit already charged 
to prot or loss. A revaluation decit is recognized in prot or loss, except for a decit directly offsetting a 
previous surplus, in which case the decit is taken to revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery 
account. The revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery to the extent of the annual incremental 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets is transferred annually directly to retained 
earnings net of related deferred tax. Any accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated 
against the gross carrying amount of the assets and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the 
assets. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to 
retained earnings. All transfers to / from revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account are net 
of applicable deferred income tax. Further, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery shall be 
utilized in accordance with IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment.

  Depreciation on all property plant and equipment except freehold land is charged to prot and loss account 
using the straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an asset is written off over its estimated 
useful life at the annual rates as disclosed in note 6.1. Residual values are reviewed at each statement of 
nancial position date and adjusted if the impact on depreciation is signicant.

  Useful lives are regularly reviewed by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected 
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the 
assets and other similar factors.

  Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset is 
put to use or capitalized while depreciation on assets disposed off is charged up to the month preceding the 
disposal.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benets are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
are represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognized as an income or expense in prot and loss account.

  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to prot and loss account as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized.

  Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identied impairment in value, if any. It consists of all 
expenditure and advances connected with specic assets incurred and made during installation and 
construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment category as and when 
assets are available for intended use.

 3.2.1 Non nancial assets impairment

  The Company assesses at each statement of nancial position date whether there is any indication that the 
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
determine whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed 
the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is charged to prot and loss account currently except for impairment loss on revalued 
assets, which is recognized directly against any revaluation surplus for the related asset to the extent that the 
impairment loss does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus for the same asset.

 3.3 Intangibles

  Intangibles are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible comprise of its purchase price including non-
refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly 
attributable to acquisition. Cost incurred after the asset is in the condition necessary for it to operate in the 
manner intended by management are recognised in prot and loss account.

 3.3.1 Computer software

  Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization and any identied impairment loss.

  Amortization on assets with nite useful life is charged to prot and loss account on straight line basis so  as 
to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on addition is charged form the 
month in which the asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which 
the asset is disposed off. Amortization is being charged at annual rates as specied in note 7.

 3.3.2 Goodwill acquired in business combinations

  The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of businesses by the Company. 
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and 
liabilities incurred or assumed, if any, at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities, if any, assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of 
acquisition over the fair value of the identiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 3.3.3 Impairment

  The Company assesses at each statement of nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
intangible assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying 
amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts 
and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in prot and loss account. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
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  Impairment of nancial assets

  The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Company's impairment model by replacing the IAS 39 ‘incurred loss 
model’ with a forward looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model when assessing the impairment of nancial 
assets in the scope of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires the Company to recognize ECLs for trade debts earlier than 
IAS 39. Cash and bank balances, deposits and other receivables are also subject to ECL but there is no or 
immaterial impairment for the current year.

  Under IFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: 
these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and 
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
nancial instrument

  The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplied approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a 
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables are written 
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

  Loss allowance on bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since they are short 
term in nature and there is no adverse change in credit rating of the banks where the balances are 
maintained, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.

  Impact of ECL

  The Company has applied IFRS 9 using the modied retrospective approach. Under this approach, 
comparative information is not restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 9 is recognised in 
retained earnings at the date of initial application. Considering the quantitative and qualitative information 
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including 
forward-looking information, The Company has recognised loss allowance amounting to Rs. 5.89 million 
against trade debts upon transition to IFRS 9 as of 01 July 2018 with a corresponding effect in opening 
retained earning and deferred taxation amounting to Rs. 4.19 million and Rs. 1.70 million. 

 3.2 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identied 
impairment loss, except for freehold and leasehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery, which 
are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

  Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the 
revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account except for a reversal of decit already charged 
to prot or loss. A revaluation decit is recognized in prot or loss, except for a decit directly offsetting a 
previous surplus, in which case the decit is taken to revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery 
account. The revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery to the extent of the annual incremental 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets is transferred annually directly to retained 
earnings net of related deferred tax. Any accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated 
against the gross carrying amount of the assets and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the 
assets. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to 
retained earnings. All transfers to / from revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account are net 
of applicable deferred income tax. Further, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery shall be 
utilized in accordance with IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment.

  Depreciation on all property plant and equipment except freehold land is charged to prot and loss account 
using the straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an asset is written off over its estimated 
useful life at the annual rates as disclosed in note 6.1. Residual values are reviewed at each statement of 
nancial position date and adjusted if the impact on depreciation is signicant.

  Useful lives are regularly reviewed by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected 
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the 
assets and other similar factors.

  Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset is 
put to use or capitalized while depreciation on assets disposed off is charged up to the month preceding the 
disposal.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benets are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
are represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognized as an income or expense in prot and loss account.

  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to prot and loss account as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized.

  Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identied impairment in value, if any. It consists of all 
expenditure and advances connected with specic assets incurred and made during installation and 
construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment category as and when 
assets are available for intended use.

 3.2.1 Non nancial assets impairment

  The Company assesses at each statement of nancial position date whether there is any indication that the 
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to 
determine whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carrying values exceed 
the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting 
impairment loss is charged to prot and loss account currently except for impairment loss on revalued 
assets, which is recognized directly against any revaluation surplus for the related asset to the extent that the 
impairment loss does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus for the same asset.

 3.3 Intangibles

  Intangibles are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible comprise of its purchase price including non-
refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly 
attributable to acquisition. Cost incurred after the asset is in the condition necessary for it to operate in the 
manner intended by management are recognised in prot and loss account.

 3.3.1 Computer software

  Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization and any identied impairment loss.

  Amortization on assets with nite useful life is charged to prot and loss account on straight line basis so  as 
to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on addition is charged form the 
month in which the asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for the month in which 
the asset is disposed off. Amortization is being charged at annual rates as specied in note 7.

 3.3.2 Goodwill acquired in business combinations

  The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of businesses by the Company. 
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and 
liabilities incurred or assumed, if any, at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities, if any, assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of 
acquisition over the fair value of the identiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 3.3.3 Impairment

  The Company assesses at each statement of nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
intangible assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying 
amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts 
and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in prot and loss account. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
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 3.4 Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

  Investments in subsidiaries and associates where the Company has signicant inuence are measured at 
cost less impairment, if any, in the Company’s separate  nancial statements. 

  The Company is required to issue consolidated  nancial statements along with its separate nancial 
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS-27 'Consolidated and separate  nancial 
statements'. Investments in associates, in the consolidated nancial statements, are accounted for using 
equity method in accordance with IAS-28 'Investment in Associates'.

 3.5 Stores and spare parts

  These are valued at moving weighted average cost less any identied impairment except for items in transit, 
which are valued at invoice price and related expenses incurred. Items considered obsolete are carried at nil 
value. General stores and spare parts are charged to prot and loss currently. The Company reviews the 
carrying amount of stores on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in 
usage pattern and physical form of related stores.

 3.6 Stocks-in-trade

  Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of weighted average cost and estimated Net Realizable Value ("NRV").

  Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

  Raw materials, packing materials and Semi-processed goods  Moving weighted average cost

  Finished goods       M o v i n g  w e i g h t e d  a v e r a g e 
manufacturing cost

  Finished goods purchased for resale    Moving weighted average cost

  Stock in transit       Invoice value plus other charges 
paid thereon up to the reporting date

  NRV signies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.

  Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade is made on management estimate, whenever 
necessary.

 3.7 Trade debts and other receivables

  These are classied at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

 3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise of running nance, cash balances, call deposits and investments with 
maturities of less than three months or less from acquisition date that are subject to insignicant risk of 
changes in fair value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Company's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 
statement of cashows . 

 3.9 Taxation

  Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in prot and loss account except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in statement of comprehensive income, in which case it is 
recognised in equity.

  Current  tax

  Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax 
rates expected to apply to the prot for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates and 
exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to 
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years. 
Under / over paid amount of current tax is recorded as tax refundable / payable due from / to the Government.

  The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. 
Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in 
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences at the 
balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for nancial 
reporting purposes.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets are 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax losses and tax credits, 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable prot will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses can be utilized.

  The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of nancial position date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufcient taxable prots will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the statement of nancial position date. In this regard, the effects on deferred 
taxation of the proportion of income that is subject to nal tax regime is also considered in accordance with 
the treatment prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 3.10 Leases

  Operating lease

  Leases including Ijarah nancing where a signicant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are 
retained by the lessor are classied as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to prot and loss account on a straight-line basis over the 
lease / Ijarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the Company’s 
benet.

 3.11 Employees benets

 3.11.1 Short term employee benet

  Short-term employee benets are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the 
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as 
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 3.11.2 Dened benet plan

  The Company operates the following dened benet schemes:

  a)     An approved and funded pension scheme for all executives; and

  b)     An approved and funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. 
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 3.4 Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

  Investments in subsidiaries and associates where the Company has signicant inuence are measured at 
cost less impairment, if any, in the Company’s separate  nancial statements. 

  The Company is required to issue consolidated  nancial statements along with its separate nancial 
statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS-27 'Consolidated and separate  nancial 
statements'. Investments in associates, in the consolidated nancial statements, are accounted for using 
equity method in accordance with IAS-28 'Investment in Associates'.

 3.5 Stores and spare parts

  These are valued at moving weighted average cost less any identied impairment except for items in transit, 
which are valued at invoice price and related expenses incurred. Items considered obsolete are carried at nil 
value. General stores and spare parts are charged to prot and loss currently. The Company reviews the 
carrying amount of stores on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in 
usage pattern and physical form of related stores.

 3.6 Stocks-in-trade

  Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of weighted average cost and estimated Net Realizable Value ("NRV").

  Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

  Raw materials, packing materials and Semi-processed goods  Moving weighted average cost

  Finished goods       M o v i n g  w e i g h t e d  a v e r a g e 
manufacturing cost

  Finished goods purchased for resale    Moving weighted average cost

  Stock in transit       Invoice value plus other charges 
paid thereon up to the reporting date

  NRV signies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.

  Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade is made on management estimate, whenever 
necessary.

 3.7 Trade debts and other receivables

  These are classied at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

 3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise of running nance, cash balances, call deposits and investments with 
maturities of less than three months or less from acquisition date that are subject to insignicant risk of 
changes in fair value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Company's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 
statement of cashows . 

 3.9 Taxation

  Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in prot and loss account except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in statement of comprehensive income, in which case it is 
recognised in equity.

  Current  tax

  Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax 
rates expected to apply to the prot for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates and 
exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to 
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years. 
Under / over paid amount of current tax is recorded as tax refundable / payable due from / to the Government.

  The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. 
Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in 
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences at the 
balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for nancial 
reporting purposes.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets are 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax losses and tax credits, 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable prot will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses can be utilized.

  The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of nancial position date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufcient taxable prots will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the statement of nancial position date. In this regard, the effects on deferred 
taxation of the proportion of income that is subject to nal tax regime is also considered in accordance with 
the treatment prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 3.10 Leases

  Operating lease

  Leases including Ijarah nancing where a signicant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are 
retained by the lessor are classied as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to prot and loss account on a straight-line basis over the 
lease / Ijarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the Company’s 
benet.

 3.11 Employees benets

 3.11.1 Short term employee benet

  Short-term employee benets are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the 
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as 
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 3.11.2 Dened benet plan

  The Company operates the following dened benet schemes:

  a)     An approved and funded pension scheme for all executives; and

  b)     An approved and funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. 
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  Pension scheme

  The Company offers Pension benets to its executive staff. Monthly pension is calculated as one percent of 
the average basic salary of the last year multiplied with pensionable service.

  Gratuity scheme

  The Company offers Gratuity benets to its all of its permanent employees, and is payable to employees 
having service in the Company for minimum ve years. The Gratuity benets provided by the Company is 
calculated by multiplying last drawn basic salary with number of years of service and gratuity factor.

  Actuarial valuation are carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Contributions to the schemes are 
based on these valuations. Remeasurements of the dened benet liability, which comprise actuarial gains 
and losses, is recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the 
interest expense on the dened benet liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the dened benet obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then dened benet liability, taking 
into account any changes in the net dened benet liability during the period as a result of benet payments. 
Interest expense and other expenses related to dened benet plan are recognized in prot and loss 
account. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a dened benet plan when the 
settlement occurs. The main features of dened benet schemes are mentioned in note 24.

 3.11.3 Dened contribution plan

  Provident fund

  The Company also operates a recognized provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10 percent of 
basic salary for executive and non-executive staff.

 3.11.4 Other long term benets - Accumulated compensated absences

  The Company also provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the 
rules of the Company. The Company accounts for these benets in the period in which the absences are 
earned. Employees are entitled to earned leaves of 21 days per annum. The unutilized leaves are 
accumulated subject to a maximum of 42 days. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be encashed at the 
time the employee leaves Company service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of 42 days of an 
employee is ignored while determining benet obligations.

  The Company uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for valuation of 
its accumulated compensating absences. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for 
accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation and are charged to prot and loss. The 
amount recognised in the statement of nancial position represents the present value of the dened benet 
obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the  prot and loss immediately in the year when these 
occur. The following signicant assumptions have been used:

  Discount rate      12.5% per annum

  Expected rate of salary increase in future years  11.5% per annum

 3.12 Contract liabilities

  A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a 
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract 
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract 
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. It also includes refund 
liabilities arising out of customers‘ right to claim amounts from the Company on account of contractual 
delays in delivery of performance obligations and incentive on target achievements.

 3.13 Provisions

  Provisions are recognized when, the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required to 
settle the obligations and reliable estimates of the obligations can be made. Provisions are reviewed 
periodically and adjusted to reect the current best estimates.

 3.14 Contingent assets

  Contingent assets are possible assets those arise from past events and whose existence will be conrmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Company and are disclosed when inow of economic benets is probable. Contingent assets 
are not recognized until their realization become virtually certain.

 3.15 Contingent liabilities

  A contingent liability is disclosed when: 

  -  there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be conrmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or

  -  there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outow of resources 
embodying economic benets will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufcient reliability.

 3.16 Foreign currency transactions and translation

  Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the 
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the 
exchange rate at the statement of nancial position date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end, exchange rates of monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to income currently. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using 
the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at 
the date when the fair value was determined.

 3.17 Revenue recognition 

  Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for sale of products, net of sales 
returns and discounts. The Company's customer arrangements contain a single performance obligation to 
transfer manufactured or purchased paints, varnishes and other related items.

 3.18 Financial instruments

 3.18.1 Recognition and initial measurement

  All nancial assets or nancial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

  A nancial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a signicant nancing component) or nancial liability 
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue. A receivable without a signicant nancing component is initially measured at the 
transaction price.
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  Pension scheme

  The Company offers Pension benets to its executive staff. Monthly pension is calculated as one percent of 
the average basic salary of the last year multiplied with pensionable service.

  Gratuity scheme

  The Company offers Gratuity benets to its all of its permanent employees, and is payable to employees 
having service in the Company for minimum ve years. The Gratuity benets provided by the Company is 
calculated by multiplying last drawn basic salary with number of years of service and gratuity factor.

  Actuarial valuation are carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Contributions to the schemes are 
based on these valuations. Remeasurements of the dened benet liability, which comprise actuarial gains 
and losses, is recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the 
interest expense on the dened benet liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the dened benet obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then dened benet liability, taking 
into account any changes in the net dened benet liability during the period as a result of benet payments. 
Interest expense and other expenses related to dened benet plan are recognized in prot and loss 
account. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a dened benet plan when the 
settlement occurs. The main features of dened benet schemes are mentioned in note 24.

 3.11.3 Dened contribution plan

  Provident fund

  The Company also operates a recognized provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10 percent of 
basic salary for executive and non-executive staff.

 3.11.4 Other long term benets - Accumulated compensated absences

  The Company also provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the 
rules of the Company. The Company accounts for these benets in the period in which the absences are 
earned. Employees are entitled to earned leaves of 21 days per annum. The unutilized leaves are 
accumulated subject to a maximum of 42 days. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be encashed at the 
time the employee leaves Company service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of 42 days of an 
employee is ignored while determining benet obligations.

  The Company uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for valuation of 
its accumulated compensating absences. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for 
accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation and are charged to prot and loss. The 
amount recognised in the statement of nancial position represents the present value of the dened benet 
obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the  prot and loss immediately in the year when these 
occur. The following signicant assumptions have been used:

  Discount rate      12.5% per annum

  Expected rate of salary increase in future years  11.5% per annum

 3.12 Contract liabilities

  A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a 
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract 
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract 
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. It also includes refund 
liabilities arising out of customers‘ right to claim amounts from the Company on account of contractual 
delays in delivery of performance obligations and incentive on target achievements.

 3.13 Provisions

  Provisions are recognized when, the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required to 
settle the obligations and reliable estimates of the obligations can be made. Provisions are reviewed 
periodically and adjusted to reect the current best estimates.

 3.14 Contingent assets

  Contingent assets are possible assets those arise from past events and whose existence will be conrmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Company and are disclosed when inow of economic benets is probable. Contingent assets 
are not recognized until their realization become virtually certain.

 3.15 Contingent liabilities

  A contingent liability is disclosed when: 

  -  there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be conrmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or

  -  there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outow of resources 
embodying economic benets will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufcient reliability.

 3.16 Foreign currency transactions and translation

  Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the 
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the 
exchange rate at the statement of nancial position date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end, exchange rates of monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to income currently. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using 
the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at 
the date when the fair value was determined.

 3.17 Revenue recognition 

  Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for sale of products, net of sales 
returns and discounts. The Company's customer arrangements contain a single performance obligation to 
transfer manufactured or purchased paints, varnishes and other related items.

 3.18 Financial instruments

 3.18.1 Recognition and initial measurement

  All nancial assets or nancial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

  A nancial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a signicant nancing component) or nancial liability 
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue. A receivable without a signicant nancing component is initially measured at the 
transaction price.
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 3.18.2 Classication and subsequent measurement

  Financial assets

  On initial recognition, a nancial asset is classied as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL).

  Financial assets are not reclassied subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its 
business model for managing nancial assets, in which case all affected nancial assets are reclassied on 
the rst day of the rst reporting period following the change in the business model.

  Amortized cost

  A nancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The 
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in prot or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in prot or loss.

  Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade debts 
and other receivables.

  Debt Instrument - FVOCI

  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as 
at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash ows 
and selling nancial assets; and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest 
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in prot or loss. Other net gains 
and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassied to 
prot or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the balance sheet date.

  Equity Instrument - FVOCI

  On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect 
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in prot or loss 
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and 
losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassied to prot or loss.

  Fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL)

  All nancial assets not classied as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured 
at FVTPL. 

  On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a nancial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or signicantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognized in prot or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the 
statement of nancial position date.

  Financial assets – Business model assessment:

  For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is dened as the fair value of the nancial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is dened as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a prot margin.

  In assessing whether the contractual cash ows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the nancial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash ows such that it 
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

  - contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash ows;

  - terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including;

  - prepayment and extension features; and

  - terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash ows from specied assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

  Financial liabilities

  Financial liabilities are classied as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A nancial liability is classied as 
at FVTPL if it is classied as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest 
expense, are recognized in prot or loss. Other nancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are 
recognized in prot or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in prot or loss.

  Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long term and short term nancing, liabilities against 
assets subject to nance lease and dividend payable.

 3.18.3 Derecognition

  Financial assets

  The Company derecognizes a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the nancial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash ows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the nancial asset are transferred or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not 
retain control of the nancial asset.

  The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of 
nancial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In 
these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

  Financial liabilities

  The Company derecognizes a nancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expire. The Company also derecognizes a nancial liability when its terms are modied and the cash ows 
of the modied liability are substantially different, in which case a new nancial liability based on the modied 
terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a nancial liability, the difference between the carrying 
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed) is recognized in prot or loss.
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 3.18.2 Classication and subsequent measurement

  Financial assets

  On initial recognition, a nancial asset is classied as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL).

  Financial assets are not reclassied subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its 
business model for managing nancial assets, in which case all affected nancial assets are reclassied on 
the rst day of the rst reporting period following the change in the business model.

  Amortized cost

  A nancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The 
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in prot or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in prot or loss.

  Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade debts 
and other receivables.

  Debt Instrument - FVOCI

  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as 
at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash ows 
and selling nancial assets; and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest 
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in prot or loss. Other net gains 
and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassied to 
prot or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the balance sheet date.

  Equity Instrument - FVOCI

  On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect 
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in prot or loss 
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and 
losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassied to prot or loss.

  Fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL)

  All nancial assets not classied as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured 
at FVTPL. 

  On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a nancial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or signicantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognized in prot or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the 
statement of nancial position date.

  Financial assets – Business model assessment:

  For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is dened as the fair value of the nancial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is dened as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a prot margin.

  In assessing whether the contractual cash ows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the nancial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash ows such that it 
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

  - contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash ows;

  - terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including;

  - prepayment and extension features; and

  - terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash ows from specied assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

  Financial liabilities

  Financial liabilities are classied as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A nancial liability is classied as 
at FVTPL if it is classied as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest 
expense, are recognized in prot or loss. Other nancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are 
recognized in prot or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in prot or loss.

  Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long term and short term nancing, liabilities against 
assets subject to nance lease and dividend payable.

 3.18.3 Derecognition

  Financial assets

  The Company derecognizes a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the nancial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash ows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the nancial asset are transferred or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not 
retain control of the nancial asset.

  The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of 
nancial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In 
these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

  Financial liabilities

  The Company derecognizes a nancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expire. The Company also derecognizes a nancial liability when its terms are modied and the cash ows 
of the modied liability are substantially different, in which case a new nancial liability based on the modied 
terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a nancial liability, the difference between the carrying 
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed) is recognized in prot or loss.
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 3.19 Dividends and appropriations to general reserve

  Dividends and appropriations to general reserves are recognized in the nancial statements in the period in 
which these are approved.

 3.20 Related party transactions

  The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis except in circumstances 
where, subject to approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.

 3.21 Earnings per share ("EPS")

  Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the prot or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

  Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that 
would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax 
effect of changes in prot or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from 
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

 3.22 Prot from operations

  Prot from operations is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing activities of the 
Company. Prot from operations excludes other income, other expenses, nance costs and income taxes.

4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective

 The following International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as notied under the Companies Act, 2017 and 
the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 
2019:

 - IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019) claries the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments 
under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reected in the measurement 
of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s 
nancial statements.

 - IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing 
leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a 
Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model 
for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a 
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for 
short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard 
i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as nance or operating leases. The application of interpretation is not 
likely to have an impact on Company's nancial statements

 - Amendment to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for 
measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash ows to meet the SPPI 
criterion – i.e. the cash ows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’. Some prepayment options could 
result in the party that triggers the early termination receiving compensation from the other party (negative 
compensation). The amendment allows that nancial assets containing prepayment features with negative 
compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. The application of amendment is not likely to 
have an impact on Company’s nancial statements.

 - Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and 
Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect 
companies that nance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not 
expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and 
accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual 
sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s nancial statements.

 - Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benets’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, 
curtailment or settlement of a dened benet plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to 
determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is 
disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in 
other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on Company’s 
nancial statements.

 - Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ – Denition of a Business (effective for business 
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 
1 January 2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difculties that arise when an entity 
determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets.  The amendments clarify that to be 
considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a 
substantive process that together signicantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments 
include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and 
therefore would not have an impact on past nancial statements.

 - Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The 
amendments are intended to make the denition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not 
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also 
issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose nancial 
statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

 - On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised 
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will 
set a new direction for IFRS in the future.. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB 
to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not 
override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be 
subject to the usual due process – this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time 
to crystallise. The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in 
the absence of specic IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and 
apply the new guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new guidance contains specic 
scope outs.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following 
approved accounting standards:

 - IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the 
accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the denition of a 
business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of 
the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains 
joint control of the business.

 - IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment claries that all income tax consequences of dividends (including 
payments on nancial instruments classied as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that 
generates the distributable prots.

 - IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment claries that a company treats as part of general borrowings any 
borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

Trusted Worldwide
BERGER PAINTS

88 89

Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited



                        

 3.19 Dividends and appropriations to general reserve

  Dividends and appropriations to general reserves are recognized in the nancial statements in the period in 
which these are approved.

 3.20 Related party transactions
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expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and 
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subject to the usual due process – this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time 
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the absence of specic IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and 
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 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are not likely to 
have an impact on Company’s nancial statements.

5 Use of judgments and estimates

 The preparation of these nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and judgments 
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period, or in the period of 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various 
assumptions and estimates are signicant to Company's nancial statements or where judgments were exercised in 
application of accounting policies are:

      

           

      

Note

- Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of 3.2

property, plant and equipment 

- Recoverable amount of assets / cash generating units and impairment 3.2

- Stock-in-trade 3.6

- Stores and spare parts 3.5

- Trade and other receivables 3.7

- Taxation 3.9

- Deferred taxation 3.9

- Staff retirement benets and other long term benets 3.11

- Provisions 3.13

- Lease classication 3.10

6 Property, plant and equipment

Operating xed assets
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Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note
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 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are not likely to 
have an impact on Company’s nancial statements.

5 Use of judgments and estimates

 The preparation of these nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and judgments 
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period, or in the period of 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various 
assumptions and estimates are signicant to Company's nancial statements or where judgments were exercised in 
application of accounting policies are:

      

           

      

Note

- Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of 3.2

property, plant and equipment 

- Recoverable amount of assets / cash generating units and impairment 3.2

- Stock-in-trade 3.6

- Stores and spare parts 3.5

- Trade and other receivables 3.7

- Taxation 3.9

- Deferred taxation 3.9

- Staff retirement benets and other long term benets 3.11

- Provisions 3.13

- Lease classication 3.10

6 Property, plant and equipment

Operating xed assets

Capital work in progress

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

6.1 1,153,113 1,219,396

6.6 24,032 4,153

1,177,145 1,223,549
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2019 2018Note

6.6 Capital work in progress

Owned

Civil works

Plant and machinery

Advances to suppliers

Others

6.6.1 This mainly relates to the installation of solar panels at factory premises.

Rupees in thousand

                   -                   586 

                206 1,078

23,826 2,478

                   -   11

6.6.1            24,032              4,153 

Particulars Revaluation Report Dates

Freehold land 11 June 2015

Leasehold land 11 August 2015

Buildings on freehold land 11 June 2015

Buildings on leasehold land 11 August 2015

Plant and machinery 13 August 2015

Forced Sales 

Value

(Rupees in 

thousand)

277,984

61,812

160,103

19,651

140,537

2019 2018

Freehold land

Leasehold land

Buildings on freehold land 

Buildings on leasehold land 

Plant and machinery

Rupees in thousand

170,578 199,269

1,068 1,070

155,391 153,991

70,073 66,488

142,463 149,806

539,573 570,624

 6.3 Had freehold land and leasehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery 
not been revalued, the carrying amount of these assets would have been as follows:

 6.4 The forced sale value of revalued property plant and machinery as per latest available revaluation reports are 
as follows;

 6.5 Immovable Fixed Assets

  Freehold lands of the Company are located at 28-Km, Multan Road, Lahore, measuring 92.80 Kanals and 
36.10 kanals and Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore, measuring 4.04 Kanals.

  Leasehold land of the Company is located at Sector I-10/3, Industrial Area, Islamabad, measuring 5.56 
Kanals.

  The buildings on freehold land, leasehold land and other immovable assets of the Company are constructed 
/ located at above mentioned freehold lands and the land disclosed in note 42.

6.7 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

30.1 53,506 57,762

31 15,030 13,093

32 9,256 8,923

77,792 79,778

7

7.1 2,696              8,034 

Intangibles

Computer software

Goodwill 7.2            24,000            32,263 

           26,696            40,297 

7.1.1

7.1.1

30.1

31

32

7.2

7.2.1

Cost

Cost as at 01 July

Additions during the year

Cost as at 30 June

Accumulated amortization

Accumulated amortization as at 01 July

Amortization during the year

Accumulated amortization as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

Rate of amortization

The amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Goodwill

Packaging Ink Business

Powder Coating Business 7.2.2

32,845 28,168

- 4,677

32,845 32,845

24,811

         

20,151

5,338

           

4,660

30,149

         
24,811

2,696 8,034

33.33% 33.33%

352 566

314

              

325

4,672

           

3,769

5,338 4,660

- 8,263

24,000 24,000

24,000 32,263

 7.1 Computer software

  This represents expenditure incurred on acquiring and implementing Enterprise Resource Planning 
software.

Note 2019 2018         Rupees in thousand

Note 2019 2018         Rupees in thousand
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6.7 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

30.1 53,506 57,762

31 15,030 13,093

32 9,256 8,923

77,792 79,778

7

7.1 2,696              8,034 

Intangibles

Computer software

Goodwill 7.2            24,000            32,263 

           26,696            40,297 

7.1.1

7.1.1

30.1

31

32

7.2

7.2.1

Cost

Cost as at 01 July

Additions during the year

Cost as at 30 June

Accumulated amortization

Accumulated amortization as at 01 July

Amortization during the year

Accumulated amortization as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

Rate of amortization

The amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Goodwill

Packaging Ink Business

Powder Coating Business 7.2.2

32,845 28,168

- 4,677

32,845 32,845

24,811

         

20,151

5,338

           

4,660

30,149

         
24,811

2,696 8,034

33.33% 33.33%

352 566

314

              

325

4,672

           

3,769

5,338 4,660

- 8,263

24,000 24,000

24,000 32,263

 7.1 Computer software

  This represents expenditure incurred on acquiring and implementing Enterprise Resource Planning 
software.

Note 2019 2018         Rupees in thousand

Note 2019 2018         Rupees in thousand
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2019 2018

8.2

19.95%

Note

             3,830              3,830 

8.2.1 8,924 21,707

12,754 25,537

8.2.1

21,707 28,988

(12,783) (7,281)

8,924 21,707

Rupees in thousand

PercentageInvestment classied as FVOCI

Buxly Paints Limited - listed

Cost

Fair value adjustment

Fair value adjustment

As at 01 July

Fair value loss

As at 30 June

273,600 (2018: 273,600) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rs. 10 each

Market value - Rs. 46.62 per share (2018: Rs.

93.34 per share)

8.1 In equity instruments - at cost

2019 2018

(i) 

51.00%              2,550              2,550 

51.96%              5,510              5,510 

           (5,510)             (5,510)

                   -                      -   

The face value of these shares is Rs. 10 each. 2,550

           

2,550

(ii) 

           41,750            41,750 

The face value of these shares is Rs. 100 each.

Berdex Construction 

Chemicals (Private) Limited

Less: Provision for impairment

No. of shares - ordinary

Subsidiary companies  - unlisted

2019 2018

 765,000 

 676,020               676,020 

              765,000 

Percentage

Rupees in thousand

Name of the Company

Associated Company  - unlisted

   98,000                 98,000 3S Pharmaceutical (Private) 

Limited 

49.00%            39,200            39,200 

Berger DPI (Private) Limited
 

 

Cost

Cost as at 30 June

Accumulated impairment

Accumulated impairment as at 01 July

Impairment charged during the year

Accumulated Impairment as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

               

         

         

2019 2018

16,750 16,750

8,487 4,000

8,263 4,487

16,750 8,487

- 8,263

Rupees in thousand

                        

 7.2.1 During the year, the management of the Company charged impairment on Ink Business goodwill due to 
signicant declined sales and shift in the Company's focus towards other business lines.

 7.2.2 This goodwill represents excess of purchase consideration paid by the Company for acquisition of the 
Powder Coating business over the fair value of identiable net assets of the seller at the time of acquisition, 
net of impairment losses recognized in prior years. The recoverable amount of goodwill was tested for 
impairment as at 30 June 2019, by allocating the amount of goodwill to respective assets on which it arose, 
based on value in use in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets". The recoverable amount has been 
determined based on value in use calculations by discounting the ve year cash ow projections prepared 
by management based on nancial budgets and historical trends at 19.98% pre tax rate and using terminal 
growth of 2.00%. The calculation of value in use is sensitive to discount rate and local ination rates.

8 Investments in related parties

In equity instruments - at cost

Investment classied as FVOCI

Investment classied as available for sale

2019 2018Note

8.1 41,750 41,750

8.2 - 25,537

8.2 12,754 -

8.3            54,504            67,287 

Rupees in thousand
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Investment classied as available for sale
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8.3            54,504            67,287 

Rupees in thousand

Trusted Worldwide
BERGER PAINTS

96 97

Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited



          (9,000)

          12,464 

            4,867 

                  -   

          42,000 

            1,411 

          (5,667)

          55,075 

          (3,906)

            1,709 

          (2,197)

          43,878 

12 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary

differences arising in respect of :

- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Surplus on revaluation of xed assets

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary

differences arising in respect of:

- Provision for doubtful debts, other receivables and deposits

- Turnover tax credit

- Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

- Provision for slow moving stock

          

         

2019 2018

(45,612) (38,551)

(29,100) (29,589)

67,770 54,227

42,000 -

1,710 -

7,110 4,913

118,590 59,140

43,878 (9,000)

Rupees in thousand

11

 

Long term deposits - unsecured

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful deposits

21,205

         

25,884

4,588

          

4,588

25,793 30,472

(4,588) (4,588)

11.1 21,205 25,884

10 Long term loans - secured

Due from employees - considered good

Less: current portion shown under current assets

10.1 60,900 71,396

15 (16,272) (17,036)

44,628 54,360

 

                        

9 Loan to related party - secured

Long term loan - Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited

Less: current portion presented under current assets

Current portion of loan to related party - secured

9.1 40,000 40,000

(40,000) -

- 40,000

40,000 -

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 9.1 This represents loan given to Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited, a related party, for purposes of its working 
capital needs. Mark-up is charged at the average borrowing rate of the Company plus 2.00% per annum 
(2018: Average borrowing rate of the Company plus 2.00% per annum). The loan is secured against stocks 
and receivables of the receiving entity and is repayable after 3 years i.e. 24 October 2019. 

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 10.1 These represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Company in accordance with the terms 
of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor vehicles. These loans are secured by 
keeping title of the underlying assets in the name of the Company till nal settlement. The loan is recoverable 
over a period of three to ten years.

 10.2 Directors of the Company were not given any loan during the year.

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 11.1 These include deposits given to utility companies, deposits against lease and tender deposits.

2019 2018Note

            1,859 

            4,566 

          (5,697)

          (1,941)

                  -   

             (670)

        (10,275)

        (14,017)

            3,158 

                  -   

            3,158 

          (9,000)

Rupees in thousand

12.1

- Provision for impairment in capital work in progress

Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

As at 01 June

- Accelerated tax depreciation including 

surplus on revaluation of xed assets

- Provision for doubtful debts, other 

receivables and deposits

- Turnover tax credit

- Provision for slow moving stock

- Impact of rate change

- Impact of rate change

- Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

Recognized to revaluation surplus on property 

plant and machinery:

Recognized in prot and loss:
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            3,158 

                  -   

            3,158 

          (9,000)

Rupees in thousand

12.1

- Provision for impairment in capital work in progress
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plant and machinery:
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2019 2018

14.2 Aging of related party balances

Note

Considered good

Past due 0 - 30 days 35,382

         

61,854

Past due 31 - 60 days 48,211

         

39,098

Past due 61 - 90 days 31,811

         

37,818

Past due 91 - 120 days 33,388

         

42,385

Past due 121 - 180 days 57,065

         

8,755

Past due 181 - 364 days 17,921 9,452

223,778 199,362

14.3 Movement in provision for doubtful debts

Balance as at 01 July 200,022 224,986

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 5,897 -

Provision for the year 31 24,293 19,827

Bad debts written off (2,529) (25,954)

Bad debts recovered (18,900) (18,837)

Balance as at 30 June 208,783 200,022

Rupees in thousand

13 Stock-in-trade

Raw and packing materials

 - in hand

 - in transit

Semi processed goods

Finished goods

 - Manufactured

 - Trading

Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks

 - Raw material

 - Semi processed goods

 - Finished goods

467,584

       
611,846

144,028

       

57,184

611,612

       

669,030

76,751

        

80,123

13.1 271,041

       

280,121

67,194

        

90,915

338,235

       

371,036

1,026,598 1,120,189

(58,730)         (54,736)

(4,271)           (3,183)

(46,229)         (46,359)

(109,230) (104,278)

917,368 1,015,911

                        

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 13.1 Aggregate stocks with a cost of Rs. 42.86 million (2018: Rs. 31.50 million) are being valued at net realizable 
value of Rs. 37.30 million (2018: Rs. 26.81 million).

 13.2 Details of stock-in-trade subject to charge as security are referred to in note 45 to the nancial statements.

14

    

Trade debts - unsecured

Considered good

Related parties

Others 

Considered doubtful

Others 

Provision for doubtful debts

14.1 Trade debts include the following amounts due 

 from the following related parties:

2019 2018Note

14.1 & 14.2 223,778 199,362

1,237,236 965,545

1,461,014 1,164,907

208,783 200,022

1,669,797 1,364,929

14.3 (208,783)

      

(200,022)

1,461,014

    

1,164,907

              

       

        

Rupees in thousand

Dadex Eternit Limited - related party

Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party

Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited - subsidiary

of Berger DPI (Private) Limited 

14.1.1 - 222

14.1.2 125,016 103,669

98,762 95,471

14.1.4 223,778

       

199,362

14.1.3

 14.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 0.27 
million.

 14.1.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
121.84 million.

 14.1.3 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
110.71 million.

 14.1.4 The company has recognized ECL on these balances amounting to Rs. 5.9 million as at 30 June 2019.

15

10

           

Loans and advances 

Current portion of long term loans:

Due from employees -  secured, considered good

Due from employees - considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful loans

Advances - unsecured, considered good:

Employees

Suppliers

14,708

1,564

16,272

(1,564)

1,571

82,507

84,078

98,786

        15,271

1,765

17,036

(1,765)

1,589

182,826

184,415

199,686
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10
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26,814 38,124

9,221 9,221

36,035 47,345

(9,221)

         

(9,221)

26,814

         

38,124

14,392 13,236

41,206

         
51,360

17.1 438

             
8,702

17,959

         

15,860

(11,824)

        

(10,000)

6,135

          

5,860

731

             

357

975 575

4,700

          

894

16 Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Trade deposits - considered good

Trade deposits - considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful deposits

Short term prepayments

17 Other receivables

Receivable from related parties

Export rebate

Provision for export rebate

Accrued interest

Others

Insurance claim receivable

Property, plant and equipment 

Others 912

             

-

13,891 16,388

17.1 Other receivables include the following amounts 

 due from the following related parties:

Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party - 8,702

subsidiary of Berger DPI (Private) Limited 438 -

438 8,702

17.1.1

Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited - 

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 17.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 0.44 
million.

 17.1.2 This represents receivables related to sharing of common expenses under normal trade as per terms 
mutually agreed. This amount is not yet due.

18 Short term investment

 This represents term deposit receipts which are mark-up based investments with conventional bank. The balance is 
under lien with commercial bank against letter of guarantee, maturing up to one year and carrying mark-up at rates 
ranging from 5.25% to 12.00% per annum (2018: 4.24% to 5.25%  per annum).

19 Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank:

- current accounts

Mark-up based deposits with conventional banks:

- deposit accounts

Cash in hand

20 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

    

75,505 15,674

- 4,800

75,505 20,474

1,120 946

76,625 21,420            

2019 2018

25,000,000 25,000,000 250,000 250,000

12,135,798

 

12,135,798

    

121,358

         

121,358

8,323,912

 

6,050,611

      

83,239

          

60,506

20,459,710

Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

   

up in cash

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as

     

 bonus shares

18,186,409 204,597 181,864

20182019

(Rupees in thousand)  (Number of shares)

2019 2018

20.2 Movement in number of shares

Opening number of shares

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares)

Closing number of shares

Rupees in thousand

18,186,409 18,186,409

2,273,301 -

20,459,710 18,186,409

2019 2018Rupees in thousand
                      

 20.1 As at 30 June 2019, Slotrapid Limited B.V.I., the Holding Company, and their nominees hold 10,649,314 
(2018: 9,466,057) voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10.00 each representing 52.05 % (2018: 52.05 %) of the 
ordinary paid up capital of the Company.
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Others

Insurance claim receivable

Property, plant and equipment 

Others 912

             

-

13,891 16,388

17.1 Other receivables include the following amounts 

 due from the following related parties:

Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party - 8,702

subsidiary of Berger DPI (Private) Limited 438 -

438 8,702

17.1.1

Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited - 

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 17.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 0.44 
million.

 17.1.2 This represents receivables related to sharing of common expenses under normal trade as per terms 
mutually agreed. This amount is not yet due.

18 Short term investment

 This represents term deposit receipts which are mark-up based investments with conventional bank. The balance is 
under lien with commercial bank against letter of guarantee, maturing up to one year and carrying mark-up at rates 
ranging from 5.25% to 12.00% per annum (2018: 4.24% to 5.25%  per annum).

19 Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank:

- current accounts

Mark-up based deposits with conventional banks:

- deposit accounts

Cash in hand

20 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

    

75,505 15,674

- 4,800

75,505 20,474

1,120 946

76,625 21,420            

2019 2018

25,000,000 25,000,000 250,000 250,000

12,135,798

 

12,135,798

    

121,358

         

121,358

8,323,912

 

6,050,611

      

83,239

          

60,506

20,459,710

Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

   

up in cash

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as

     

 bonus shares

18,186,409 204,597 181,864

20182019

(Rupees in thousand)  (Number of shares)

2019 2018

20.2 Movement in number of shares

Opening number of shares

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares)

Closing number of shares

Rupees in thousand

18,186,409 18,186,409

2,273,301 -

20,459,710 18,186,409

2019 2018Rupees in thousand
                      

 20.1 As at 30 June 2019, Slotrapid Limited B.V.I., the Holding Company, and their nominees hold 10,649,314 
(2018: 9,466,057) voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10.00 each representing 52.05 % (2018: 52.05 %) of the 
ordinary paid up capital of the Company.
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2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

                        

           

             

    21 Reserves

Capital reserve:

 Share premium reserve

 Fair value reserve

Revenue reserve:

 General reserve

 Accumulated prots

 
     

    

21.1 34,086 56,819

21.2 8,924 21,707

43,010 78,526

285,000 285,000

575,650 465,140

860,650 750,140

903,660 828,666

 21.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Company for the purpose specied in section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 
2017. Furthermore, movement in this reserve represents issue of bonus shares during the year.

 21.2 This represents surplus on revaluation of investment classied as FVOCI nancial asset.

22 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery - net of tax

As at beginning of the year 

Transfer to unappropriated prot as a result of incremental 

depreciation charged during the current year - net of deferred tax

Other adjustments

As at end of the year 

2019 2018

509,131 521,363

          (33,213) (15,390)

            (3,906) 3,158

                    -   -

472,012

        

509,131

Rupees in thousand

23 Long term nancing - secured

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

 - JS Bank Limited

Islamic mode of nancing:

 - First Habib Modarba

 - First Habib Modarba

 - Bank Islami

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

Islamic mode of nancing:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

23.1 (a)             66,667 133,333

23.2 (a)                     -   750

23.2 (b)               3,324 4,180

23.2 (c)           100,000 -

169,991 138,263

          (66,667) (66,667)

          (13,689) (1,631)

(80,356) (68,298)

89,635 69,965

 Latest revaluation was carried out by Harvester Enterprises and Co., on 30 June 2015 of freehold land and building 
on freehold land, leasehold land and building on leasehold land and plant and machinery. The revaluation resulted 
in a surplus of Rs. 295.38 million on freehold land and building on freehold land, Rs. 40.83 million on leasehold land 
and building on leasehold land and Rs. 105.72 million on plant and machinery over the respective net book values. 
The valuation was determined by reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most 
signicant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present 
operational condition and age of plant and machinery respectively.

 23.1 (a) This represents a long term loan of Rs. 200 million obtained in 2017, for restructuring of statement of 
nancial position. Principle terms of loan are as follows:

   Principle repayment

   The outstanding balance is repayable in quarterly installments of Rs. 16.67 million each ending in April 
2020.

   Rate of return

   Mark-up is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum (2018: 
three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum).

   Security 

   The loan is secured against an equitable mortgage and rst charge amounting to Rs. 371.00 million on 
land and building of Lahore factory.

 23.2 (a) The loan has been repaid in full during the year.

 23.2 (b) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 5.28 million obtained in 2017, from First Habib 
Modarba for purchase of vehicle.

   Principle repayment

   The outstanding principal is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2022.

   Rate of return

   Prot is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum (2018: six 
month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum).
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2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

                        

           

             

    21 Reserves

Capital reserve:

 Share premium reserve

 Fair value reserve

Revenue reserve:

 General reserve

 Accumulated prots

 
     

    

21.1 34,086 56,819

21.2 8,924 21,707

43,010 78,526

285,000 285,000

575,650 465,140

860,650 750,140

903,660 828,666

 21.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Company for the purpose specied in section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 
2017. Furthermore, movement in this reserve represents issue of bonus shares during the year.

 21.2 This represents surplus on revaluation of investment classied as FVOCI nancial asset.

22 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery - net of tax

As at beginning of the year 

Transfer to unappropriated prot as a result of incremental 

depreciation charged during the current year - net of deferred tax

Other adjustments

As at end of the year 

2019 2018

509,131 521,363

          (33,213) (15,390)

            (3,906) 3,158

                    -   -

472,012

        

509,131

Rupees in thousand

23 Long term nancing - secured

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

 - JS Bank Limited

Islamic mode of nancing:

 - First Habib Modarba

 - First Habib Modarba

 - Bank Islami

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

Islamic mode of nancing:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

23.1 (a)             66,667 133,333

23.2 (a)                     -   750

23.2 (b)               3,324 4,180

23.2 (c)           100,000 -

169,991 138,263

          (66,667) (66,667)

          (13,689) (1,631)

(80,356) (68,298)

89,635 69,965

 Latest revaluation was carried out by Harvester Enterprises and Co., on 30 June 2015 of freehold land and building 
on freehold land, leasehold land and building on leasehold land and plant and machinery. The revaluation resulted 
in a surplus of Rs. 295.38 million on freehold land and building on freehold land, Rs. 40.83 million on leasehold land 
and building on leasehold land and Rs. 105.72 million on plant and machinery over the respective net book values. 
The valuation was determined by reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most 
signicant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present 
operational condition and age of plant and machinery respectively.

 23.1 (a) This represents a long term loan of Rs. 200 million obtained in 2017, for restructuring of statement of 
nancial position. Principle terms of loan are as follows:

   Principle repayment

   The outstanding balance is repayable in quarterly installments of Rs. 16.67 million each ending in April 
2020.

   Rate of return

   Mark-up is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum (2018: 
three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum).

   Security 

   The loan is secured against an equitable mortgage and rst charge amounting to Rs. 371.00 million on 
land and building of Lahore factory.

 23.2 (a) The loan has been repaid in full during the year.

 23.2 (b) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 5.28 million obtained in 2017, from First Habib 
Modarba for purchase of vehicle.

   Principle repayment

   The outstanding principal is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2022.

   Rate of return

   Prot is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum (2018: six 
month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum).
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24.1 Statement of nancial position reconciliation

Present value of dened benet obligation

Fair value of plan assets

          
             

24.2 Movement in the fair value of plan 

assets is as follows:

Fair value as at 01 July           Expected return on plan assets

Remeasurement (loss) / gain 

Company’s contribution 

Benets paid

Fair value as at 30 June

          

24.3 Movement in dened benet 

obligation is as follows:

Obligation as at 01 July

Employees' contribution not paid to

the fund by the Company

            

Service cost

            

Interest cost

Benets paid

Remeasurement (gain) / loss

Obligation as at 30 June

24.4 Charge for the year - net

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Actual return on plan assets

            88,089 

          (51,468)

36,621

50,514               4,446 

            (1,254)

                   -   

            (2,238)

51,468

 
92,218

1,475

 

3,494

 

8,199

(2,238)

(15,059)

88,089

3,494

8,199

(4,446)

7,247

3,192

            90,412 

                 (39)

90,373

          

95                                    25 

               (238)

            11,211 

          (11,054)

39

                 
74,330

-

                

10,768

          

6,192

(11,054)

10,176

90,412

10,768

6,192

(25)

16,935

(213)

            92,218 

           (50,514)

41,704

             50,956 

              4,561 

             (4,451)

              2,000 

             (2,552)

 

50,514

81,835

 

1,515

 

4,874

7,250

(2,552)

(704)

92,218

4,874

7,250

(4,561)

7,563

110

            74,330 

                  (95)

74,235

                 480 

                   18 

                 159 

              8,441 

             (9,003)

           

95

65,724

             

-

             

9,721

5,510

(9,003)

2,378

74,330

9,721

5,510

(18)

15,213

177

2019

Valuation discount rate 12.5%

Expected rate of increase in salary level 11.5%

Rate of return on plan assets 12.5%

Retirement age 60 years

Withdrawal Rates Age-Based 

(per appendix)

Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-05)

2018

9%

8%

9%

60 years

Age-Based 

(per appendix)

SLIC (2001-05)
               

   Security

   The facility is secured against charge over present and future current and xed assets of the Company. The 
Company holds asset with joint ownership with the Modarba.

 23.2 (c) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 100 million obtained in November 2018 for a period of 
5 years, from Bank Islami to pay off conventional liabilities.

   Principle repayment

   The outstanding principal is repayable in monthly installments of Rs. 2.08 million each ending in November 
2023 with a grace period of 1 year.

   Rate of return

   Mark-up is payable monthly and charged at the rate of six month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2018: Nil) 
with oor of 10.00% and ceiling of 20.00%

   Security

   The loan is secured against exclusive charge over plant and machinery and a ranking charge over present 
and future assets of the company amounting to Rs. 133 million.

24 Staff retirement and other long term benets

Dened benet plan

Staff pension fund

Staff gratuity fund

Other long term employee benets

Accumulating compensated absences

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

24.1             36,620             41,704 

24.1             90,372             74,235 

          126,992           115,939 

24.13             27,057             26,653 

          154,049           142,592 

 Dened benet plan

 As mentioned in note 3.11 the Company operates an approved funded gratuity and pension schemes for all its 
permanent employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuation 
was carried out at 30 June 2019. Projected Unit Credit method based on the following assumptions was used for 
these valuations:

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

Rupees in thousand

20182019
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24.1 Statement of nancial position reconciliation

Present value of dened benet obligation

Fair value of plan assets

          
             

24.2 Movement in the fair value of plan 

assets is as follows:

Fair value as at 01 July           Expected return on plan assets

Remeasurement (loss) / gain 

Company’s contribution 

Benets paid

Fair value as at 30 June

          

24.3 Movement in dened benet 

obligation is as follows:

Obligation as at 01 July

Employees' contribution not paid to

the fund by the Company

            

Service cost

            

Interest cost

Benets paid

Remeasurement (gain) / loss

Obligation as at 30 June

24.4 Charge for the year - net

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Actual return on plan assets

            88,089 

          (51,468)

36,621

50,514               4,446 

            (1,254)

                   -   

            (2,238)

51,468

 
92,218

1,475

 

3,494

 

8,199

(2,238)

(15,059)

88,089

3,494

8,199

(4,446)

7,247

3,192

            90,412 

                 (39)

90,373

          

95                                    25 

               (238)

            11,211 

          (11,054)

39

                 
74,330

-

                

10,768

          

6,192

(11,054)

10,176

90,412

10,768

6,192

(25)

16,935

(213)

            92,218 

           (50,514)

41,704

             50,956 

              4,561 

             (4,451)

              2,000 

             (2,552)

 

50,514

81,835

 

1,515

 

4,874

7,250

(2,552)

(704)

92,218

4,874

7,250

(4,561)

7,563

110

            74,330 

                  (95)

74,235

                 480 

                   18 

                 159 

              8,441 

             (9,003)

           

95

65,724

             

-

             

9,721

5,510

(9,003)

2,378

74,330

9,721

5,510

(18)

15,213

177

2019

Valuation discount rate 12.5%

Expected rate of increase in salary level 11.5%

Rate of return on plan assets 12.5%

Retirement age 60 years

Withdrawal Rates Age-Based 

(per appendix)

Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-05)

2018

9%

8%

9%

60 years

Age-Based 

(per appendix)

SLIC (2001-05)
               

   Security

   The facility is secured against charge over present and future current and xed assets of the Company. The 
Company holds asset with joint ownership with the Modarba.

 23.2 (c) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 100 million obtained in November 2018 for a period of 
5 years, from Bank Islami to pay off conventional liabilities.

   Principle repayment

   The outstanding principal is repayable in monthly installments of Rs. 2.08 million each ending in November 
2023 with a grace period of 1 year.

   Rate of return

   Mark-up is payable monthly and charged at the rate of six month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2018: Nil) 
with oor of 10.00% and ceiling of 20.00%

   Security

   The loan is secured against exclusive charge over plant and machinery and a ranking charge over present 
and future assets of the company amounting to Rs. 133 million.

24 Staff retirement and other long term benets

Dened benet plan

Staff pension fund

Staff gratuity fund

Other long term employee benets

Accumulating compensated absences

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

24.1             36,620             41,704 

24.1             90,372             74,235 

          126,992           115,939 

24.13             27,057             26,653 

          154,049           142,592 

 Dened benet plan

 As mentioned in note 3.11 the Company operates an approved funded gratuity and pension schemes for all its 
permanent employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuation 
was carried out at 30 June 2019. Projected Unit Credit method based on the following assumptions was used for 
these valuations:

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

Rupees in thousand

20182019
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24.5

24.6

                           

24.7

                              

41,704

7,247

(13,805)

-

1,475

36,621

3,624

2,971

 

652

7,247

13,250

 

4,198

 

18,471

15,548

51,467

74,235

16,935

10,414

(11,211)

-

90,373

8,468

6,943

            

1,524

            

16,935          

-

                

39

-

-

39

30,879

7,563

3,747

(2,000)

1,515

41,704

3,782

 

3,101 
680

 7,563

 

11,500

6,522

17,492

15,000

50,514

65,244

15,213

2,219

(8,441)

-

74,235

7,607

             

6,237                
1,369

             15,213

           

-

             

95

-

-

95

Movement in net liability in the balance 

sheet is as follows:

Net liability as at 01 July

Charge for the year 

during the year

Company’s contribution 

Employees' contribution deducted 

   but not paid to the fund

Net liability as at 30 June

The charge for the year has been 

allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

            

Selling and distribution costs

            

Administrative and general expenses

               

            

Plan assets comprise the following:

Defence Saving Certicates

          

Cash at bank/pay order in hand 

JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds Mustahkem

NBP Fullerton Asset Management Ltd.

Charge to other comprehensive income

                                 
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

2019

Rupees in thousand

2018

 24.8 Amounts for the current year and previous four years of the fair value of plan assets, present value of 
dened benet obligation and decit thereon is as follows:

                                       

                                        

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

As at 30 June

Present value of dened 

benet obligation 178,501 166,548 130,969 106,517 87,436

Fair value of plan assets (51,507) (50,609) (46,385) (43,310) (42,152)

Decit  126,994 115,939 84,584 63,207 45,284

Experience adjustment: 

(Gain) / loss on obligations (4,883) 1,674 2,444               3,187 (8,305)

Loss / (gain) on plan assets 4,471 4,720 368              (1,906) (694)

Rupees in thousand

Discount rate

Future salary

24.13 Other long term employee benets

Movement in accumulated compensated absences

Balance as at 01 July

Provision during the year

Payments made during the year

Balance as at 30 June

26,653

          

23,854

4,457

            

5,545

(4,053)

           
(2,746)

27,057 26,653

Change  Increase to  Decrease to  Increase to  Decrease to 

1.00%             76,250           102,789             82,181           100,740 

1.00%             95,489             81,620           100,740             82,038 

Gratuity

Rupees in thousand

Pension

  The sensitivity analysis of the dened benet obligation to the signicant actuarial assumptions has been 
performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of dened benet obligation 
reported in the statement of nancial position. 

 24.12 Weighted average duration of the dened benet obligation is 24 years and 09 years for pension and 
gratuity plans, respectively.

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 

  The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the 
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on xed interest investments are based 
on gross redemption yields as at the statement of nancial position date.

 24.9  Expected expense for next year

   The expected expense to the pension and gratuity schemes for the year ending 30 June 2020 works out to 
Rs. 8.28 million and Rs. 23.05 million respectively.

 24.10 The plans expose the Company to the actuarial risks such as:

  Salary risks

  The risk that the nal salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the 
benet is calculated on the nal salary (which will closely reect ination and other macroeconomic 
factors), the benet amount increases as salary increases.

  Mortality / withdrawal risks

  The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon 
beneciaries' service / age distribution and the entitled benets of the beneciary.

 24.11 Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

  If the signicant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the dened benet obligation at the reporting date, 
had uctuated by 1.00% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of the 
dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019 would have been as follows:

  Impact on present value of dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019
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24.5

24.6

                           

24.7

                              

41,704

7,247

(13,805)

-

1,475

36,621

3,624

2,971

 

652

7,247

13,250

 

4,198

 

18,471

15,548

51,467

74,235

16,935

10,414

(11,211)

-

90,373

8,468

6,943

            

1,524

            

16,935          

-

                

39

-

-

39

30,879

7,563

3,747

(2,000)

1,515

41,704

3,782

 

3,101 
680

 7,563

 

11,500

6,522

17,492

15,000

50,514

65,244

15,213

2,219

(8,441)

-

74,235

7,607

             

6,237                
1,369

             15,213

           

-

             

95

-

-

95

Movement in net liability in the balance 

sheet is as follows:

Net liability as at 01 July

Charge for the year 

during the year

Company’s contribution 

Employees' contribution deducted 

   but not paid to the fund

Net liability as at 30 June

The charge for the year has been 

allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

            

Selling and distribution costs

            

Administrative and general expenses

               

            

Plan assets comprise the following:

Defence Saving Certicates

          

Cash at bank/pay order in hand 

JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds Mustahkem

NBP Fullerton Asset Management Ltd.

Charge to other comprehensive income

                                 
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

2019

Rupees in thousand

2018

 24.8 Amounts for the current year and previous four years of the fair value of plan assets, present value of 
dened benet obligation and decit thereon is as follows:

                                       

                                        

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

As at 30 June

Present value of dened 

benet obligation 178,501 166,548 130,969 106,517 87,436

Fair value of plan assets (51,507) (50,609) (46,385) (43,310) (42,152)

Decit  126,994 115,939 84,584 63,207 45,284

Experience adjustment: 

(Gain) / loss on obligations (4,883) 1,674 2,444               3,187 (8,305)

Loss / (gain) on plan assets 4,471 4,720 368              (1,906) (694)

Rupees in thousand

Discount rate

Future salary

24.13 Other long term employee benets

Movement in accumulated compensated absences

Balance as at 01 July

Provision during the year

Payments made during the year

Balance as at 30 June

26,653

          

23,854

4,457

            

5,545

(4,053)

           
(2,746)

27,057 26,653

Change  Increase to  Decrease to  Increase to  Decrease to 

1.00%             76,250           102,789             82,181           100,740 

1.00%             95,489             81,620           100,740             82,038 

Gratuity

Rupees in thousand

Pension

  The sensitivity analysis of the dened benet obligation to the signicant actuarial assumptions has been 
performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of dened benet obligation 
reported in the statement of nancial position. 

 24.12 Weighted average duration of the dened benet obligation is 24 years and 09 years for pension and 
gratuity plans, respectively.

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 

  The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the 
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on xed interest investments are based 
on gross redemption yields as at the statement of nancial position date.

 24.9  Expected expense for next year

   The expected expense to the pension and gratuity schemes for the year ending 30 June 2020 works out to 
Rs. 8.28 million and Rs. 23.05 million respectively.

 24.10 The plans expose the Company to the actuarial risks such as:

  Salary risks

  The risk that the nal salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the 
benet is calculated on the nal salary (which will closely reect ination and other macroeconomic 
factors), the benet amount increases as salary increases.

  Mortality / withdrawal risks

  The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon 
beneciaries' service / age distribution and the entitled benets of the beneciary.

 24.11 Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

  If the signicant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the dened benet obligation at the reporting date, 
had uctuated by 1.00% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of the 
dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019 would have been as follows:

  Impact on present value of dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019
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24.14

24.15

24.16

Reconciliation of present value of liability

Present value of liability as at 01 July

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Benets paid

Remeasurement gain

Charge for the year

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Remeasurement gain

The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

            26,653             23,854 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (4,053)              (2,746)

            (1,655)                 (560)

            27,057             26,653 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (1,655)                 (560)

              4,457               5,545 

2,229 2,773

1,827 2,273

401 499

4,457 5,545

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 

 24.17 The investments out of provident fund and pension fund as at 31 December 2018 have been made in 
accordance with the requirements of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017.

25.1 Provision for infrastructure cess

Balance as at 01 July

Provision for the year

Balance as at 30 June

25.2 This includes amount due to the following related parties:

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I. - the Holding Company

Buxly Paints Limited - related party

25.3 Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Balance as at 01 July

Allocation for the year

Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business

Payments during the year

Balance as at 30 June

25 Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors

Import bills payable

Advances from customer

Contract liabilities

Accrued expenses

Provision for infrastructure cess

Royalty payable to related parties - unsecured

Technical fee payable

Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund

Income tax deducted at source and EOBI payable

Insurance claim payable

Others

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61,079
          

51,265

7,530               9,814 

68,609

          

61,079

38,823

          

38,516

296

               

(35)

39,119

          

38,481

12,753 18,689

34 6,568 8,152

35 838 875

20,159 27,716

(9,027) (14,963)

11,132 12,753

572,177 600,793

324,476 378,241

- 71,945

56,420 -

30,366 44,901

25.1 68,609 61,079

25.2 39,119

Rupees in thousand
  

2019 2018 Note 
                              

38,481

32,729

          

26,390

25.3 11,132

          

12,753

25.4 36,236

          

32,712

16,239

          

11,505

661

               

25

4,349

            

23,118

1,192,513

     
1,301,943

  Interest on outstanding liability towards Workers' Prot Participation Fund is charged at bank rate plus 
2.50% per annum as required under the Companies Prots (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968.

 25.4 Workers' Welfare Fund

  It majorly represents balance payable after the Honorable Sindh High Court order dated March 01, 2013 
declared the amendments made in the The Workers’ Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (“WWF”) through 
Finance Act, 2008. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016, 
held that the amendments made in the law introduced by the Federal Government for the levy of WWF were 
not lawful. The Federal Board of Revenue has led review petitions against this order, which are currently 
pending.
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24.14

24.15

24.16

Reconciliation of present value of liability

Present value of liability as at 01 July

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Benets paid

Remeasurement gain

Charge for the year

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Remeasurement gain

The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

            26,653             23,854 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (4,053)              (2,746)

            (1,655)                 (560)

            27,057             26,653 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (1,655)                 (560)

              4,457               5,545 

2,229 2,773

1,827 2,273

401 499

4,457 5,545

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 

 24.17 The investments out of provident fund and pension fund as at 31 December 2018 have been made in 
accordance with the requirements of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017.

25.1 Provision for infrastructure cess

Balance as at 01 July

Provision for the year

Balance as at 30 June

25.2 This includes amount due to the following related parties:

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I. - the Holding Company

Buxly Paints Limited - related party

25.3 Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Balance as at 01 July

Allocation for the year

Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business

Payments during the year

Balance as at 30 June

25 Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors

Import bills payable

Advances from customer

Contract liabilities

Accrued expenses

Provision for infrastructure cess

Royalty payable to related parties - unsecured

Technical fee payable

Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund

Income tax deducted at source and EOBI payable

Insurance claim payable

Others

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61,079
          

51,265

7,530               9,814 

68,609

          

61,079

38,823

          

38,516

296

               

(35)

39,119

          

38,481

12,753 18,689

34 6,568 8,152

35 838 875

20,159 27,716

(9,027) (14,963)

11,132 12,753

572,177 600,793

324,476 378,241

- 71,945

56,420 -

30,366 44,901

25.1 68,609 61,079

25.2 39,119

Rupees in thousand
  

2019 2018 Note 
                              

38,481

32,729

          

26,390

25.3 11,132

          

12,753

25.4 36,236

          

32,712

16,239

          

11,505

661

               

25

4,349

            

23,118

1,192,513

     
1,301,943

  Interest on outstanding liability towards Workers' Prot Participation Fund is charged at bank rate plus 
2.50% per annum as required under the Companies Prots (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968.

 25.4 Workers' Welfare Fund

  It majorly represents balance payable after the Honorable Sindh High Court order dated March 01, 2013 
declared the amendments made in the The Workers’ Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (“WWF”) through 
Finance Act, 2008. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016, 
held that the amendments made in the law introduced by the Federal Government for the levy of WWF were 
not lawful. The Federal Board of Revenue has led review petitions against this order, which are currently 
pending.
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  The management of the Company is of the view that consequent to ling of these review petitions the 
judgment may not currently be treated as conclusive, therefore as a matter of prudence and abundant 
caution, the management has decided to continue to provide for WWF in these nancial statements. 
without prejudice and without admitting liability. The Company shall revisit the position on the nal 
outcome of the review petition.

26 Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

Long term nancing - secured

Short term nancing - secured

Short term running nances - secured

27

27.1           100,000           400,000 

Short term borrowings - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

   Short term nancing - secured

   Short term running nance - secured 27.2        1,104,747           737,989 

       1,204,747        1,137,989 

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

              2,077               2,378 

              1,553               1,553 

            35,802             12,534 

            39,432             16,465 

28 Contingencies and commitments

 28.1 Contingencies

  - In 1987, the Company led a suit against an ex-distributor ("the distributor") in the High Court of Sindh 
("the court") for recovery of Rs. 8.89 million and damages amounting to Rs. 5.00 million on account of 
unpaid credit invoices for the products supplied by it to the distributor. However, the distributor in 
return also led a counter claim of Rs. 78.15 million against the Company in the court on account of 
damages and compensation. Consequently on the basis of legal advice the management believes 
that it has a strong case and no nancial obligation is expected to arise.

  - The Sindh Revenue Board ("SRB") through assessment order 490/2014 dated 18 September 2014 
raised sales tax demand of Rs. 39.34 million along-with penalty but excluding default surcharge on the 
grounds that the Company has received franchise services through its registered ofce in Karachi but 
had not paid sales tax on these services for the tax periods July, 2011 to June, 2013. Department 
(SRB) had inadvertently added all royalty gures appearing in accounts including royalty receivable, 
royalty payable, royalty expense and related party transfers for the calculation of tax on royalties.  The 
Company, through its legal counsel, led an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB on the 
grounds that amount of sales tax is not correctly calculated and the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on 
Services Act, 2011 are not applicable for the reason that the Company is managing its affairs from the 
province of Punjab as the head ofce and the manufacturing facility is located there. The 
Commissioner (Appeals) had reduced the demand to Rs. 8.18 million, against which the Company 
had led an appeal before Appellate Tribunal SRB which is pending adjudication. The management 
on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has 
been recorded in these nancial statements..

  - The Sindh High Court ("the Court") in the case of 'Kasim Textile' in its order of 7 May, 2013 has held that 
benet of carry forward of minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is only 
available if tax payable in a tax year is less than minimum tax paid. If in a tax year, a Company has 
assessed losses on which no tax is payable, the Company forgoes the right to carry forward minimum 
tax paid in that year. In the light of this order, the Company may not be entitled to carry forward 
minimum tax paid in the tax year 2014 of Rs 39.12 million as a result of assessed tax losses in these 
years and adjust it against normal tax liability. Also in the case of refunds claimed in any year, those 
may also be adjusted accordingly. However, the management is of the view that the verdict has been 
challenged in the Supreme Court and that they are waiting for the nal outcome and accordingly 
minimum tax is adjusted against tax liability for the current year.

  - During 2018, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued show cause notices for collection of 
income tax under section 236G / 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. In this regard, the taxation 
ofcer raised demands of Rs. 19.90 million, Rs. 9.937 million, Rs. 19.10 million and Rs. 10 million for 
Tax years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 vide assessment orders dated 28 March 2017, 02 February 
2017, 12 June 2017 and 18 April 2018 respectively. The Company through its legal counsel led 
appeals to Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals ("CIR - A") against the said orders which are still 
pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable 
outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these  nancial statements.

   The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ("ACIR") and Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue 
("DCIR"), while proceeding U/S 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 created income tax demands 
of Rs. 484.38 million and 213.12 million for the Tax Years 2014 and 2016 respectively vide two separate 
orders. The Company has led an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals which is 
pending adjudication. The management believes that it has a strong arguable case and matter will be 
decided in favor of the Company. Hence no provision has been recorded in these  nancial 
statements.

  - For tax year 2016, the Commissioner Appeals - I, Lahore, vide its order number 25 dated 20 July 2018, 
deleted certains additions and remanded the case on certain issues and upheld the case on issue of 
contractor services which invloves revenue of Rs. 10,671,768. Appeal against this order was led on 
17 August 2018 which has not been heard. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor 
is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these  nancial 
statements.

 27.1 Short term nancing 

  This represents utilized amount of short term nancing facilites under mark-up arrangements available 
from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 100 million (2018: Rs. 500 million) which is a sublimit of running 
nance facilities as described in note 27.2 to the nancial statements. These facilities are secured against 
joint pari passu charge on all present and future current assets, registered charge (mortagage and 
hypothecation) over the current assets of the Company and carry mark-up at rates ranging between 7.72% 
and 12.09% (2018: 7.25% and 8.03%) per annum, payable quarterly. Refer to note 45 for details of charge 
registered.

 27.2 Short term running nances

  This represents utilized amount of short term running nance facilities under mark-up arrangements 
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,400 million (2018: Rs. 1,150 million). These facilities 
are secured against registered charge over the current assets of the Company and carry mark-up at rates 
ranging between 8.60% and 12.09% (2017: 7.14% and 8.17%) per annum, payable quarterly.

 27.3 Unavailed credit facilities

  The available facilities for opening of letters of credit and guarantees as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 
2,684.07 million (2018: Rs. 1,450 million) out of which Rs. 2,224.55 million remained unavailed as at the 
reporting date (2018: Rs. 850.74 million).
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  The management of the Company is of the view that consequent to ling of these review petitions the 
judgment may not currently be treated as conclusive, therefore as a matter of prudence and abundant 
caution, the management has decided to continue to provide for WWF in these nancial statements. 
without prejudice and without admitting liability. The Company shall revisit the position on the nal 
outcome of the review petition.

26 Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

Long term nancing - secured

Short term nancing - secured

Short term running nances - secured

27

27.1           100,000           400,000 

Short term borrowings - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

   Short term nancing - secured

   Short term running nance - secured 27.2        1,104,747           737,989 

       1,204,747        1,137,989 

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

              2,077               2,378 

              1,553               1,553 

            35,802             12,534 

            39,432             16,465 

28 Contingencies and commitments

 28.1 Contingencies

  - In 1987, the Company led a suit against an ex-distributor ("the distributor") in the High Court of Sindh 
("the court") for recovery of Rs. 8.89 million and damages amounting to Rs. 5.00 million on account of 
unpaid credit invoices for the products supplied by it to the distributor. However, the distributor in 
return also led a counter claim of Rs. 78.15 million against the Company in the court on account of 
damages and compensation. Consequently on the basis of legal advice the management believes 
that it has a strong case and no nancial obligation is expected to arise.

  - The Sindh Revenue Board ("SRB") through assessment order 490/2014 dated 18 September 2014 
raised sales tax demand of Rs. 39.34 million along-with penalty but excluding default surcharge on the 
grounds that the Company has received franchise services through its registered ofce in Karachi but 
had not paid sales tax on these services for the tax periods July, 2011 to June, 2013. Department 
(SRB) had inadvertently added all royalty gures appearing in accounts including royalty receivable, 
royalty payable, royalty expense and related party transfers for the calculation of tax on royalties.  The 
Company, through its legal counsel, led an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB on the 
grounds that amount of sales tax is not correctly calculated and the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on 
Services Act, 2011 are not applicable for the reason that the Company is managing its affairs from the 
province of Punjab as the head ofce and the manufacturing facility is located there. The 
Commissioner (Appeals) had reduced the demand to Rs. 8.18 million, against which the Company 
had led an appeal before Appellate Tribunal SRB which is pending adjudication. The management 
on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has 
been recorded in these nancial statements..

  - The Sindh High Court ("the Court") in the case of 'Kasim Textile' in its order of 7 May, 2013 has held that 
benet of carry forward of minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is only 
available if tax payable in a tax year is less than minimum tax paid. If in a tax year, a Company has 
assessed losses on which no tax is payable, the Company forgoes the right to carry forward minimum 
tax paid in that year. In the light of this order, the Company may not be entitled to carry forward 
minimum tax paid in the tax year 2014 of Rs 39.12 million as a result of assessed tax losses in these 
years and adjust it against normal tax liability. Also in the case of refunds claimed in any year, those 
may also be adjusted accordingly. However, the management is of the view that the verdict has been 
challenged in the Supreme Court and that they are waiting for the nal outcome and accordingly 
minimum tax is adjusted against tax liability for the current year.

  - During 2018, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued show cause notices for collection of 
income tax under section 236G / 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. In this regard, the taxation 
ofcer raised demands of Rs. 19.90 million, Rs. 9.937 million, Rs. 19.10 million and Rs. 10 million for 
Tax years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 vide assessment orders dated 28 March 2017, 02 February 
2017, 12 June 2017 and 18 April 2018 respectively. The Company through its legal counsel led 
appeals to Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals ("CIR - A") against the said orders which are still 
pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable 
outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these  nancial statements.

   The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ("ACIR") and Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue 
("DCIR"), while proceeding U/S 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 created income tax demands 
of Rs. 484.38 million and 213.12 million for the Tax Years 2014 and 2016 respectively vide two separate 
orders. The Company has led an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals which is 
pending adjudication. The management believes that it has a strong arguable case and matter will be 
decided in favor of the Company. Hence no provision has been recorded in these  nancial 
statements.

  - For tax year 2016, the Commissioner Appeals - I, Lahore, vide its order number 25 dated 20 July 2018, 
deleted certains additions and remanded the case on certain issues and upheld the case on issue of 
contractor services which invloves revenue of Rs. 10,671,768. Appeal against this order was led on 
17 August 2018 which has not been heard. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor 
is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these  nancial 
statements.

 27.1 Short term nancing 

  This represents utilized amount of short term nancing facilites under mark-up arrangements available 
from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 100 million (2018: Rs. 500 million) which is a sublimit of running 
nance facilities as described in note 27.2 to the nancial statements. These facilities are secured against 
joint pari passu charge on all present and future current assets, registered charge (mortagage and 
hypothecation) over the current assets of the Company and carry mark-up at rates ranging between 7.72% 
and 12.09% (2018: 7.25% and 8.03%) per annum, payable quarterly. Refer to note 45 for details of charge 
registered.

 27.2 Short term running nances

  This represents utilized amount of short term running nance facilities under mark-up arrangements 
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,400 million (2018: Rs. 1,150 million). These facilities 
are secured against registered charge over the current assets of the Company and carry mark-up at rates 
ranging between 8.60% and 12.09% (2017: 7.14% and 8.17%) per annum, payable quarterly.

 27.3 Unavailed credit facilities

  The available facilities for opening of letters of credit and guarantees as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 
2,684.07 million (2018: Rs. 1,450 million) out of which Rs. 2,224.55 million remained unavailed as at the 
reporting date (2018: Rs. 850.74 million).
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  - During the year, a notice from PRA having number PRA/Royalty/2016/12 dated 22 June 2016 involving 
an amount of Rs. 11,446,800 as royalty fee and technical services for the period October 2012 to 
March 2015 was issued which is under investigation / adjudication proceedings. The management on 
the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been 
recorded in these  nancial statements. 

  - The Additional Commissioner Enforcement Punjab Revenue Authority issued a show cause notice 
PRA/ENF-IV/WHT/BERGER/1161 dated 17 January 2019 and assesment order  ENF-IV/29/05/2019 
dated 25 April 2019 creating demand of Rs. 132 million u/s 52 read with 14 & 19 of Punjab Sales Tax on 
Services Act 2012. However, the Company through its legal counsel led appeal before 
Commissioner Appeals PRA against the order of Additional Commissioner for which hearing is 
pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, 
hence no provision has been recorded in these nancial statements.

  - Various cases on account of income tax and sales tax matters involving an amount Rs. 24.83 million 
are also pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable 
outcome in all these cases, hence no provision has been recorded in these nancial statements.

 28.2 Commitments

  - Outstanding letters of credit as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 346.84 million (2018: Rs. 533.72 
million) for purchase of raw and packing materials.

  - Outstanding letters of guarantee as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 112.68 million (2018: Rs. 65.71 
million).

  - The amount of future rentals for Ijarah nancing and the period in which these payments will become 
due are as follows:

       

          

       

      

      

           

             

Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than ve years 

29 Sales - net

Local

Export

Less:    Discounts

Sales tax

2019 2018

            12,429             15,371 

            19,218             40,937 

            31,647             56,308 

       6,819,543 7,773,887

          135,220 162,584

6,954,763

     

7,936,471

        (904,927) (1,460,095)

        (929,392) (1,023,155)

(1,834,319) (2,483,250)

5,120,444 5,453,221

Rupees in thousand

2019 2018Note

30 Cost of sales

Finished goods as at 01 July 280,121

Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 3,917,058

Provision against slowing moving nished goods (130)

Less: Finished goods as at 30 June 13 (271,041)

Consumption of nished goods purchased for resale 30.2 78,013

           

Cost of sales 4,004,021

      

30.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials consumed        3,309,860 

Freight and handling           128,556 

Provision charged / (reversed) against raw 

and packing material               3,994 

Stores and spare parts consumed 2,523

Salaries, wages and other benets 30.1.1           241,026 

Travelling and conveyance               3,946 

Fuel, water and power           102,326 

Legal and professional               2,062 

Rent, rates and taxes -

Insurance 9,026

Repairs and maintenance 32,868

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.7 53,506

Amortization 7.1.1                  352 

Ijarah lease rentals               3,314 

Printing and stationery 2,077

Communication 1,516

Others 15,646

3,912,598

Opening stock of semi-processed goods 13 80,123

Closing stock of semi-processed goods 13 (76,751)

Provision charged during the year 1,088

Cost of goods manufactured 3,917,058

Rupees in thousand

326,810

4,109,987

2,885

(280,121)

103,012

4,262,573

3,534,028

113,856

(3,503)            
4,215

251,380

5,511

91,313

979

                

126

            

8,611

          

33,925

          

57,762

566

3,710

            

2,379

1,318

15,687

4,121,863

70,531

(80,123)

(2,284)

4,109,987

 30.1.1 Salaries, wages and benets include Rs. 8.47 million (2018: Rs. 7.60 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 3.62 
million (2018: Rs. 3.78 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 2.23 million (2018: Rs. 2.77 million) in 
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 4.09 million (2018: Rs. 3.94 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution.
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  - During the year, a notice from PRA having number PRA/Royalty/2016/12 dated 22 June 2016 involving 
an amount of Rs. 11,446,800 as royalty fee and technical services for the period October 2012 to 
March 2015 was issued which is under investigation / adjudication proceedings. The management on 
the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been 
recorded in these  nancial statements. 

  - The Additional Commissioner Enforcement Punjab Revenue Authority issued a show cause notice 
PRA/ENF-IV/WHT/BERGER/1161 dated 17 January 2019 and assesment order  ENF-IV/29/05/2019 
dated 25 April 2019 creating demand of Rs. 132 million u/s 52 read with 14 & 19 of Punjab Sales Tax on 
Services Act 2012. However, the Company through its legal counsel led appeal before 
Commissioner Appeals PRA against the order of Additional Commissioner for which hearing is 
pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, 
hence no provision has been recorded in these nancial statements.

  - Various cases on account of income tax and sales tax matters involving an amount Rs. 24.83 million 
are also pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable 
outcome in all these cases, hence no provision has been recorded in these nancial statements.

 28.2 Commitments

  - Outstanding letters of credit as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 346.84 million (2018: Rs. 533.72 
million) for purchase of raw and packing materials.

  - Outstanding letters of guarantee as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 112.68 million (2018: Rs. 65.71 
million).

  - The amount of future rentals for Ijarah nancing and the period in which these payments will become 
due are as follows:

       

          

       

      

      

           

             

Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than ve years 

29 Sales - net

Local

Export

Less:    Discounts

Sales tax

2019 2018

            12,429             15,371 

            19,218             40,937 

            31,647             56,308 

       6,819,543 7,773,887

          135,220 162,584

6,954,763

     

7,936,471

        (904,927) (1,460,095)

        (929,392) (1,023,155)

(1,834,319) (2,483,250)

5,120,444 5,453,221

Rupees in thousand

2019 2018Note

30 Cost of sales

Finished goods as at 01 July 280,121

Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 3,917,058

Provision against slowing moving nished goods (130)

Less: Finished goods as at 30 June 13 (271,041)

Consumption of nished goods purchased for resale 30.2 78,013

           

Cost of sales 4,004,021

      

30.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials consumed        3,309,860 

Freight and handling           128,556 

Provision charged / (reversed) against raw 

and packing material               3,994 

Stores and spare parts consumed 2,523

Salaries, wages and other benets 30.1.1           241,026 

Travelling and conveyance               3,946 

Fuel, water and power           102,326 

Legal and professional               2,062 

Rent, rates and taxes -

Insurance 9,026

Repairs and maintenance 32,868

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.7 53,506

Amortization 7.1.1                  352 

Ijarah lease rentals               3,314 

Printing and stationery 2,077

Communication 1,516

Others 15,646

3,912,598

Opening stock of semi-processed goods 13 80,123

Closing stock of semi-processed goods 13 (76,751)

Provision charged during the year 1,088

Cost of goods manufactured 3,917,058

Rupees in thousand

326,810

4,109,987

2,885

(280,121)

103,012

4,262,573

3,534,028

113,856

(3,503)            
4,215

251,380

5,511

91,313

979

                

126

            

8,611

          

33,925

          

57,762

566

3,710

            

2,379

1,318

15,687

4,121,863

70,531

(80,123)

(2,284)

4,109,987

 30.1.1 Salaries, wages and benets include Rs. 8.47 million (2018: Rs. 7.60 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 3.62 
million (2018: Rs. 3.78 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 2.23 million (2018: Rs. 2.77 million) in 
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 4.09 million (2018: Rs. 3.94 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution.
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Relationship with 

Company
2019 2018

Nippon Paint Company Limited Licensor 4,252

            

              5,770 

Slotrapid Limited
Licensor (the 

Holding Company)
38,823

          

            31,896 

Buxly Paints Limited 
Licensor (Common 

Group)
1,556               2,034 

Nippon Bee Chemical Company Limited Licensor 694                  331 

Oxyplast Belgium N.V. Licensor 4,348               1,878 

49,673 41,909

(2-1-2 Oyodo – Kita, Kita-Ku, Osaka – 531-

8511 Japan.)

Name / address of the party

(14-1, 2-Chome, Shodai-Ohtani, Hirakata

City, Osaka 573, Japan.)

(Hulsdonk 35-B 9042/Gent – Mendonk, Belgium.)

Rupees in thousand

Suit# 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street,

Wickham Cay 1, Road Town, Tortola, British

Virgin Island.

(X-3, Mangopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi.)

30.2 The movement of nished goods purchased for resale is as follows:

Finished goods as at 01 July

Add: Finished goods purchased for resale during the year

Less: Consumption of nished goods during the year

Finished goods as at 30 June

31 Selling and distribution costs

Salaries and other benets

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Fuel, water and power

Advertising and sales promotion

Technical services and royalty fee

 

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

 

Amortization

Ijarah lease rentals

Provision for doubtful debts - net of recoveries

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others

2019 2018Note

            90,915             99,700 

            54,292             94,227 

          (78,013)         (103,012)

            67,194             90,915 

31.1 364,897

         

          392,424 

5,075

            

            28,834 

3,937

            

              7,102 

9,504               9,441 

6,181               6,010 

174,116           247,224 

31.2 49,673

          

            41,909 

2,939

            

            11,380 

6.7 15,030

          

            13,093 

7.1.1 314

               

                 325 

6,881

            

              4,832 

14.3 5,393

            

                 990 

2,642

            

              2,331 

2,907

            

              2,178 

7,130

            

              7,602 

8,758

            
              9,335 

665,377
         

785,010

Rupees in thousand

 31.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 6.94 million (2018: Rs. 6.23 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 2.97 
million (2018: Rs. 3.10 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 1.83 million (2018: Rs. 2.27 million) in 
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 9.91 million (2018: Rs. 10.14 million) in respect of provident 
fund contribution.

 31.2 This represents royalty and technical fee paid to following companies;
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Relationship with 

Company
2019 2018

Nippon Paint Company Limited Licensor 4,252

            

              5,770 

Slotrapid Limited
Licensor (the 

Holding Company)
38,823

          

            31,896 

Buxly Paints Limited 
Licensor (Common 

Group)
1,556               2,034 

Nippon Bee Chemical Company Limited Licensor 694                  331 

Oxyplast Belgium N.V. Licensor 4,348               1,878 

49,673 41,909

(2-1-2 Oyodo – Kita, Kita-Ku, Osaka – 531-

8511 Japan.)

Name / address of the party

(14-1, 2-Chome, Shodai-Ohtani, Hirakata

City, Osaka 573, Japan.)

(Hulsdonk 35-B 9042/Gent – Mendonk, Belgium.)

Rupees in thousand

Suit# 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street,

Wickham Cay 1, Road Town, Tortola, British

Virgin Island.

(X-3, Mangopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi.)

30.2 The movement of nished goods purchased for resale is as follows:

Finished goods as at 01 July

Add: Finished goods purchased for resale during the year

Less: Consumption of nished goods during the year

Finished goods as at 30 June

31 Selling and distribution costs

Salaries and other benets

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Fuel, water and power

Advertising and sales promotion

Technical services and royalty fee

 

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

 

Amortization

Ijarah lease rentals

Provision for doubtful debts - net of recoveries

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others

2019 2018Note

            90,915             99,700 

            54,292             94,227 

          (78,013)         (103,012)

            67,194             90,915 

31.1 364,897

         

          392,424 

5,075

            

            28,834 

3,937

            

              7,102 

9,504               9,441 

6,181               6,010 

174,116           247,224 

31.2 49,673

          

            41,909 

2,939

            

            11,380 

6.7 15,030

          

            13,093 

7.1.1 314

               

                 325 

6,881

            

              4,832 

14.3 5,393

            

                 990 

2,642

            

              2,331 

2,907

            

              2,178 

7,130

            

              7,602 

8,758

            
              9,335 

665,377
         

785,010

Rupees in thousand

 31.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 6.94 million (2018: Rs. 6.23 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 2.97 
million (2018: Rs. 3.10 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 1.83 million (2018: Rs. 2.27 million) in 
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 9.91 million (2018: Rs. 10.14 million) in respect of provident 
fund contribution.

 31.2 This represents royalty and technical fee paid to following companies;
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34

25.3

35

25.3

Other expenses

Impairment on goodwill

Reversal / provision for doubtful loans

Workers' Welfare Fund

Workers' Prot Participation fund

Provision for export rebate

Finance cost

Islamic mode of nancing:

- Long term nancing (musharka) - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks:

- Long term nancing - secured

- Short term nancing - secured

- Short term running nances - secured

Interest on WPPF

Bank charges

4,487

              

1,765

1,416

8,152

-

 

15,820

329

11,252

28,677

43,144

83,073

875

3,865

8,263

(201)

              3,524 

6,568

1,824

19,978

                 369 

18,758

23,927

          105,658 

148,343

                 838 

            15,517 

165,067 88,142

32.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 1,490 1,290

Consolidation and half yearly review 518 440

Out of pocket expenses 241 187

2,249 1,917

                        

2019 2018Note

32.1 110,097 108,531

3,600 4,475

6,150 7,594

6,822

             

4,763

8,440

             

11,685

32.2 2,249

             

1,917

1,975

             

1,748

              2,501 2,880

6.7               9,256 8,923

7.1.1               4,672 3,769

              4,175 4,147

1,299

             
1,403

            13,973 17,288

              2,764 2,861

32 Administrative and general expenses

Salaries and other benets

Directors' meeting fee

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Auditors' remuneration

Fuel, water and power

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization of computer software

Ijarah lease rentals

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others 6,711 9,403

184,684 191,387

Rupees in thousand

 32.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 1.52 million (2018: Rs. 1.37 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 0.65 
million (2018: Rs. 0.68 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 0.40 million (2018: Rs. 0.49 million) in 
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 6.53 million (2018: Rs. 6.39 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution.

2019 2018
             
             

Rupees in thousand

33 Other income - net

Income from nancial assets

Mark-up on term deposit receipts and long term loan

Income from non nancial assets

Sale of scrap

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Rental income and other services charged to related parties

Export rebate

Insurance claim

 Property plant and equipment

Others

Provision charged for 

impairment loss on capital work in progress

Exchange loss

Others

Note

33.1

 

 

6.6.1

33.2

Rupees in thousand
             
2019 2018

12,150               6,638 

            15,296             17,449 

            12,324               9,363 

7,069               7,746 

2,653               2,280 

4,700

            

                   -   

2,676

            

              2,581 

-

                

8,059

(33,063)

 

          (18,271)

7,876

            

              1,078 

            19,531             30,285 

            31,681             36,923 

 33.1 This includes interest income of Rs. 8.64 million (2018: 4.55 million) on loan given to a related party.

 33.2 This mainly includes penalty charged to suppliers and customers of Rs. 0.52 million (2018: Rs. 0.39 
million).

NoteRupees in thousand
             
2019 2018
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34

25.3

35

25.3

Other expenses

Impairment on goodwill

Reversal / provision for doubtful loans

Workers' Welfare Fund

Workers' Prot Participation fund

Provision for export rebate

Finance cost

Islamic mode of nancing:

- Long term nancing (musharka) - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks:

- Long term nancing - secured

- Short term nancing - secured

- Short term running nances - secured

Interest on WPPF

Bank charges

4,487

              

1,765

1,416

8,152

-

 

15,820

329

11,252

28,677

43,144

83,073

875

3,865

8,263

(201)

              3,524 

6,568

1,824

19,978

                 369 

18,758

23,927

          105,658 

148,343

                 838 

            15,517 

165,067 88,142

32.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 1,490 1,290

Consolidation and half yearly review 518 440

Out of pocket expenses 241 187

2,249 1,917

                        

2019 2018Note

32.1 110,097 108,531

3,600 4,475

6,150 7,594

6,822

             

4,763

8,440

             

11,685

32.2 2,249

             

1,917

1,975

             

1,748

              2,501 2,880

6.7               9,256 8,923

7.1.1               4,672 3,769

              4,175 4,147

1,299

             
1,403

            13,973 17,288

              2,764 2,861

32 Administrative and general expenses

Salaries and other benets

Directors' meeting fee

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Auditors' remuneration

Fuel, water and power

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization of computer software

Ijarah lease rentals

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others 6,711 9,403

184,684 191,387

Rupees in thousand

 32.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 1.52 million (2018: Rs. 1.37 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 0.65 
million (2018: Rs. 0.68 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 0.40 million (2018: Rs. 0.49 million) in 
respect of compensated absences and Rs. 6.53 million (2018: Rs. 6.39 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution.

2019 2018
             
             

Rupees in thousand

33 Other income - net

Income from nancial assets

Mark-up on term deposit receipts and long term loan

Income from non nancial assets

Sale of scrap

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Rental income and other services charged to related parties

Export rebate

Insurance claim

 Property plant and equipment

Others

Provision charged for 

impairment loss on capital work in progress

Exchange loss

Others

Note

33.1

 

 

6.6.1

33.2

Rupees in thousand
             
2019 2018

12,150               6,638 

            15,296             17,449 

            12,324               9,363 

7,069               7,746 

2,653               2,280 

4,700

            

                   -   

2,676

            

              2,581 

-

                

8,059

(33,063)

 

          (18,271)

7,876

            

              1,078 

            19,531             30,285 

            31,681             36,923 

 33.1 This includes interest income of Rs. 8.64 million (2018: 4.55 million) on loan given to a related party.

 33.2 This mainly includes penalty charged to suppliers and customers of Rs. 0.52 million (2018: Rs. 0.39 
million).

NoteRupees in thousand
             
2019 2018
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38 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

Short term running nance - secured

Rupees in thousand

               

2019 2018Note

19           76,625           21,420 

27.2     (1,104,747)       (737,989)

    (1,028,122)       (716,569)

37 Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Prot after taxation

Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

up in cash

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as

 bonus shares

Effect of bonus issue

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year

Earnings per share

2019 2018
(Restated)

       

100,825 102,106

2019 2018
(Restated)

12,135,798

  

12,135,798

8,323,912 6,050,611

- 2,273,301

20,459,710 20,459,710

(Restated)

4.93 4.99

Rupees in thousand

(Rupees)

Number of shares

2019 2018

36 Taxation

Current

- for the year

- prior year

Deferred

- current year

36.1

Applicable tax rate

Tax effect of:

- income under Final Tax Regime

- minimum tax

- temporary difference due to turnover tax credit

- other temporary difference including rate adjustment

- prior year adjustment

- others

Average effective tax rate charged to prot and loss account

Rupees in thousand

The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

67,248 67,105

- (36,016)

67,248 31,089

(55,075) 14,017

12,173 45,106

2019 2018

29.00% 30.00%

14.62% -0.35%

16.25% 15.24%

-37.20% 0.00%

-11.58% 9.52%

0.00% -24.47%

-0.31% 0.69%

10.78% 30.64%

 36.2 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19 September 2019 have recommended nal cash 
dividend of Re. 1 per share for the year ended 30 June 2019 to comply with the requirements of section 5A 
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, no provision for tax in this respect has been made in these 
nancial statements.

 36.3 Super tax under section 4(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is not applicable to the Company as the 
imputable income does not meet the threshold of Rs. 500 million.

 36.4 The tax provision is charged by considering the provision of section 113 under the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. In addition to this, it also includes tax on exports and imports and income from other sources which is 
full and nal discharge of Company's tax liability in respect of income arising from such source.

 37.1 No gure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any 
instruments carrying options as at 30 June 2019, which would have an impact on earnings per share when 
exercised.
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 36.2 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19 September 2019 have recommended nal cash 
dividend of Re. 1 per share for the year ended 30 June 2019 to comply with the requirements of section 5A 
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, no provision for tax in this respect has been made in these 
nancial statements.

 36.3 Super tax under section 4(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is not applicable to the Company as the 
imputable income does not meet the threshold of Rs. 500 million.

 36.4 The tax provision is charged by considering the provision of section 113 under the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. In addition to this, it also includes tax on exports and imports and income from other sources which is 
full and nal discharge of Company's tax liability in respect of income arising from such source.

 37.1 No gure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any 
instruments carrying options as at 30 June 2019, which would have an impact on earnings per share when 
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39 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

            

10,910

           

54,728 -

7,455 28,592 -

                 

-

                 

2,063 -

- 4,903 -

1,090 2,537 -

19,455 92,823 -

Managerial remuneration 

(including bonus)

Retirement and other

    long term benets

House Rent Allowance

 

Utilities

Medical expenses

Number of persons 1 28 6

2019 2018

Rupees in thousand

Chief 

Executive Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

12,727 52,458

           

-

                12,909 36,152 -

- 22,166

           

-

                

- 4,926 -

1,273 1,959 -

26,909 117,661 -

1 24 7

Chief 

Executive Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

 39.1 Retirement and other long term benets include benets provided under provident fund, gratuity, pension 
and accumulated compensated absences.

 39.2 Non-executive directors were paid meeting fee aggregating Rs. 3.6 million (2018: Rs. 4.48 million).

 39.3 The Chief Executive and certain other executives of the Company are provided with free use of Company 
cars while the Chief Executive is provided boarding and lodging in the Company's guest house.

40 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash ows arising from nancing activities

41 Number of employees

The Company has employed following number of persons:

- As at 30 June

- Average number of employees

2019 2018

737 921

875 931

Number of persons

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid-up capital

As at 30 June 2018                181,864 

Changes from nancing cash ows

Dividend paid                          -   

Financial charges paid                          -   

Long term nancing                          -   

Total changes from nancing cash ows                         -   

Other changes

Change in borrowings                          -   

Dividend declared                          -   

Bonus issue                  22,733 

Interest expense                          -   

Total liability related other changes                  22,733 

As at 30 June 2019                204,597 

Unclaimed 

Dividend

                   4,756 

                (21,509)

                         -   

                         -   

               (21,509)

                         -   

                 22,733 

                         -   

                         -   

                 22,733 

                   5,980 

Long term 

nancing

               138,263 

                         -   

                         -   

                 31,728 

                 31,728 

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

               169,991 

 Short term 

borrowing 

            1,137,989 

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                 66,758 

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                 66,758 

            1,204,747 

Accrued
mark-up

                 16,465 

                         -   

              (142,100)

                         -   

             (142,100)

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

               165,067 

               165,067 

                 39,432 

Total

            1,479,337

               (21,509)

             (142,100)

                 31,728 

             (131,881)

                 66,758 

                 22,733 

                 22,733 

               165,067 

               277,291 

            1,624,747 

2019

Rupees in thousand

42 Transactions with related parties

 The Company is a subsidiary of Slotrapid Limited, therefore all the subsidiaries and associates of the Holding 
Company are related parties of the Company. In addition related parties includes entities under common 
directorship, post employment benet plans, directors and key management personnel. Amounts due from and 
due to related parties, remuneration of directors and key management personnel are disclosed in the relevant 
notes.

 Material transactions with related parties are given below:

Royalty expense 38,823 38,516

Payment / Adjustment 38,516 35,545

Dividend paid 11,519

     

-

171,576 182,249

14,509 10,600

       37,837        44,671 

       24,804        43,659 

438

          

            273 

-

           
            283 

Sales 179,539

   

244,162

22,356

     

28,679

Royalty expense 1,556

       

2,034

Rental expense 1,812 1,812

1,200 1,200

13,052 13,775

5,735 12,500

Common expenditures 

incurred

Common expenditures 

incurred

Receipts / Adjustments

Receipts / Adjustments

Receipts / Adjustments

Rental income and other 

services

Sales 

-

Holding Company

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I.

Subsidiary

Berger Road Safety (Private) 

Limited

Associated 

Related parties

Buxly Paints Limited ("BPL")

(Common Group)

3S Pharmaceutical (Private)

Limited

(Wholly owned subsidiary of 

Berger DPI (Private) Limited)

Rental income and other 

Common expenditures 

incurred

Toll manufacturing income

52.05%

49.00%

19.95%

Nature of transaction 2019 2018
   
     

Name of parties, nature and 

basis of relationship

Rupees in thousand

Holding 

Percentage  
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39 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

            

10,910

           

54,728 -

7,455 28,592 -

                 

-

                 

2,063 -

- 4,903 -

1,090 2,537 -

19,455 92,823 -

Managerial remuneration 

(including bonus)

Retirement and other

    long term benets

House Rent Allowance

 

Utilities

Medical expenses

Number of persons 1 28 6

2019 2018

Rupees in thousand

Chief 

Executive Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

12,727 52,458

           

-

                12,909 36,152 -

- 22,166

           

-

                

- 4,926 -

1,273 1,959 -

26,909 117,661 -

1 24 7

Chief 

Executive Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

 39.1 Retirement and other long term benets include benets provided under provident fund, gratuity, pension 
and accumulated compensated absences.

 39.2 Non-executive directors were paid meeting fee aggregating Rs. 3.6 million (2018: Rs. 4.48 million).

 39.3 The Chief Executive and certain other executives of the Company are provided with free use of Company 
cars while the Chief Executive is provided boarding and lodging in the Company's guest house.

40 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash ows arising from nancing activities

41 Number of employees

The Company has employed following number of persons:

- As at 30 June

- Average number of employees

2019 2018

737 921

875 931

Number of persons

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid-up capital

As at 30 June 2018                181,864 

Changes from nancing cash ows

Dividend paid                          -   

Financial charges paid                          -   

Long term nancing                          -   

Total changes from nancing cash ows                         -   

Other changes

Change in borrowings                          -   

Dividend declared                          -   

Bonus issue                  22,733 

Interest expense                          -   

Total liability related other changes                  22,733 

As at 30 June 2019                204,597 

Unclaimed 

Dividend

                   4,756 

                (21,509)

                         -   

                         -   

               (21,509)

                         -   

                 22,733 

                         -   

                         -   

                 22,733 

                   5,980 

Long term 

nancing

               138,263 

                         -   

                         -   

                 31,728 

                 31,728 

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

               169,991 

 Short term 

borrowing 

            1,137,989 

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                 66,758 

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

                 66,758 

            1,204,747 

Accrued
mark-up

                 16,465 

                         -   

              (142,100)

                         -   

             (142,100)

                         -   

                         -   

                         -   

               165,067 

               165,067 

                 39,432 

Total

            1,479,337

               (21,509)

             (142,100)

                 31,728 

             (131,881)

                 66,758 

                 22,733 

                 22,733 

               165,067 

               277,291 

            1,624,747 

2019

Rupees in thousand

42 Transactions with related parties

 The Company is a subsidiary of Slotrapid Limited, therefore all the subsidiaries and associates of the Holding 
Company are related parties of the Company. In addition related parties includes entities under common 
directorship, post employment benet plans, directors and key management personnel. Amounts due from and 
due to related parties, remuneration of directors and key management personnel are disclosed in the relevant 
notes.

 Material transactions with related parties are given below:

Royalty expense 38,823 38,516

Payment / Adjustment 38,516 35,545

Dividend paid 11,519

     

-

171,576 182,249

14,509 10,600

       37,837        44,671 

       24,804        43,659 

438

          

            273 

-

           
            283 

Sales 179,539

   

244,162

22,356

     

28,679

Royalty expense 1,556

       

2,034

Rental expense 1,812 1,812

1,200 1,200

13,052 13,775

5,735 12,500

Common expenditures 

incurred

Common expenditures 

incurred

Receipts / Adjustments

Receipts / Adjustments

Receipts / Adjustments

Rental income and other 

services

Sales 

-

Holding Company

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I.

Subsidiary

Berger Road Safety (Private) 

Limited

Associated 

Related parties

Buxly Paints Limited ("BPL")

(Common Group)

3S Pharmaceutical (Private)

Limited

(Wholly owned subsidiary of 

Berger DPI (Private) Limited)

Rental income and other 

Common expenditures 

incurred

Toll manufacturing income

52.05%

49.00%

19.95%

Nature of transaction 2019 2018
   
     

Name of parties, nature and 

basis of relationship

Rupees in thousand

Holding 

Percentage  
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Sales 257 1,254

Contribution to gratuity fund 11,211 8,441

Dadex Eternit Limited

Post employment benet plans

(Key Management Personnel) Contribution to pension fund - 2,000

Provident fund contribution 41,064 40,964

-

-

Nature of transaction 2019 2018
   
     

Name of parties, nature and 

basis of relationship

Rupees in thousand

Holding 

Percentage  

 In addition to these transactions, the Company has an agreement with BPL for construction and use of warehouse 
on BPL's land located at X-3 Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi for a term of ten years at a nominal monthly rent. After 
the aforementioned term of ten years, the company will handover the possession of the building to BPL free of cost. 

                        

43 Financial instruments

 43.1 Risk management framework

  The Company's activities expose it to a variety of nancial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price 
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program 
focuses on the unpredictability of nancial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the 
nancial performance.

  The Company's Board of Directors ("the Board") has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight 
of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company's risk management policies.

  The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reect changes in market conditions and 
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, 
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand 
their roles and obligations.

  The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's 
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal 
audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

  The Company's exposure to nancial risk, the way these risks affect the nancial position and performance 
and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

 43.1.1 Market risk

  Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Company's prot or loss or value of its holding of nancial instruments. The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing return.

  (i) Foreign exchange risk

   Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign 
currencies.

   The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 
respect to the Euro, United States Dollar ("USD") and Japanese Yen ("JPY"). Currently, the 
Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to foreign entities. 
The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk is as follows:

Statement of nancial position items

Trade and other payables - Euro

Net exposure - Euro

Trade and other payables - USD

Net exposure - USD

Trade and other payables - JPY

Net exposure - JPY

Off statement of nancial position items

Outstanding letters of credit as at the year end are as follows:

Euro

USD

JPY

The following signicant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Rupees per Euro

Average rate for the year

Reporting date rate -  selling

Rupees per USD

Average rate for the year

Reporting date rate -  selling

Rupees per JPY

Average rate for the year

Reporting date rate - selling

In thousands

Amount in thousand

2019 2018

156.65

186.99

          

137.44

164.50

1.24

1.53
          

134.38

144.70

112.94

124.40

1.01

1.11

(8,388)

                                       
In rupees

(7)                                              
(865)

                                          

2019 2018

(8) (27)

(8) (27)

(1,673)

           

(2,695)

(1,673)

           

(2,695)

(32,036)

         

(46,000)

(32,036) (46,000)
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Sales 257 1,254

Contribution to gratuity fund 11,211 8,441

Dadex Eternit Limited

Post employment benet plans

(Key Management Personnel) Contribution to pension fund - 2,000

Provident fund contribution 41,064 40,964

-

-

Nature of transaction 2019 2018
   
     

Name of parties, nature and 

basis of relationship

Rupees in thousand

Holding 

Percentage  

 In addition to these transactions, the Company has an agreement with BPL for construction and use of warehouse 
on BPL's land located at X-3 Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi for a term of ten years at a nominal monthly rent. After 
the aforementioned term of ten years, the company will handover the possession of the building to BPL free of cost. 

                        

43 Financial instruments

 43.1 Risk management framework

  The Company's activities expose it to a variety of nancial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price 
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program 
focuses on the unpredictability of nancial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the 
nancial performance.

  The Company's Board of Directors ("the Board") has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight 
of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company's risk management policies.

  The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reect changes in market conditions and 
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, 
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand 
their roles and obligations.

  The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's 
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal 
audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

  The Company's exposure to nancial risk, the way these risks affect the nancial position and performance 
and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

 43.1.1 Market risk

  Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Company's prot or loss or value of its holding of nancial instruments. The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing return.

  (i) Foreign exchange risk

   Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign 
currencies.

   The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 
respect to the Euro, United States Dollar ("USD") and Japanese Yen ("JPY"). Currently, the 
Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to foreign entities. 
The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk is as follows:

Statement of nancial position items

Trade and other payables - Euro

Net exposure - Euro

Trade and other payables - USD

Net exposure - USD

Trade and other payables - JPY

Net exposure - JPY

Off statement of nancial position items

Outstanding letters of credit as at the year end are as follows:

Euro

USD

JPY

The following signicant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Rupees per Euro

Average rate for the year

Reporting date rate -  selling

Rupees per USD

Average rate for the year

Reporting date rate -  selling

Rupees per JPY

Average rate for the year

Reporting date rate - selling

In thousands

Amount in thousand

2019 2018

156.65

186.99

          

137.44

164.50

1.24

1.53
          

134.38

144.70

112.94

124.40

1.01

1.11

(8,388)

                                       
In rupees

(7)                                              
(865)

                                          

2019 2018

(8) (27)

(8) (27)

(1,673)

           

(2,695)

(1,673)

           

(2,695)

(32,036)

         

(46,000)

(32,036) (46,000)
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2019 2018

Increase of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments 13,747 12,592

Decrease of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments (13,747) (12,592)

Prot

Rupees in thousand

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

- - 17,080 -

- 1,204,747 - 1,137,989

Non-derivative nancial

Rupees in thousand

instruments

Short term investment

Short term borrowings - secured

Long term nancing - secured - 169,991 - 138,263

- 1,374,738 17,080 1,276,252

20182019

                        

   Sensitivity analysis

   If the functional currency, at reporting date, had uctuated by 5.00% against the Euro, USD and JPY 
with all other variables held constant, the impact on prot before taxation for the year would have 
been Rs. 16.28 million (2018: Rs. 19.51 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange gains / 
losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated nancial instruments. Foreign exchange risk 
sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis.

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the 
year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

  (ii) Price risk

   Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specic to the individual nancial 
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar nancial instruments traded in the market. The 
Company is not exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse portfolio of commodity 
suppliers.

   Sensitivity analysis

   The Company's investments in equity instrument of other entities are publicly traded on the PSX. The 
summary below explains the impact of increase on the Company's surplus of investment classied 
as FVOCI to change in market price. The analysis is based on the assumption that the market price 
had increased by 10.00% with all other variables held constant:

Buxly Paints Limited

2019

              1,275 

2018

               2,554 

Impact on equity

Rupees in thousands

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the 
year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

  (iii) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 
because of changes in interest rates.  Signicant interest rate risk exposures are primarily managed 
by a mix of borrowings at variable interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch 
of nancial assets and nancial liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.

   Fixed rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Company's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

Amount in thousand

Non-derivative nancial 

instruments

Short term investment

        

Bank balances - deposit accounts

             

        
32,195 -

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities                

25,195

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities            

-

-

 

-

               

4,800

            

-

32,195

 

-

               

29,995

          

-

20182019

   Fair value sensitivity analysis for xed rate instruments

   The Company does not account for any xed rate nancial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
prot and loss. Therefore, a change in prot / mark-up / interest rates at the reporting date would not 
affect prot and loss account.

   Variable rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Company's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

   Cash ow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

   A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have 
(decreased) / increased prot before taxation by amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that 
all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant.
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2019 2018

Increase of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments 13,747 12,592

Decrease of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments (13,747) (12,592)

Prot

Rupees in thousand

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

- - 17,080 -

- 1,204,747 - 1,137,989

Non-derivative nancial

Rupees in thousand

instruments

Short term investment

Short term borrowings - secured

Long term nancing - secured - 169,991 - 138,263

- 1,374,738 17,080 1,276,252

20182019

                        

   Sensitivity analysis

   If the functional currency, at reporting date, had uctuated by 5.00% against the Euro, USD and JPY 
with all other variables held constant, the impact on prot before taxation for the year would have 
been Rs. 16.28 million (2018: Rs. 19.51 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange gains / 
losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated nancial instruments. Foreign exchange risk 
sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis.

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the 
year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

  (ii) Price risk

   Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specic to the individual nancial 
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar nancial instruments traded in the market. The 
Company is not exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse portfolio of commodity 
suppliers.

   Sensitivity analysis

   The Company's investments in equity instrument of other entities are publicly traded on the PSX. The 
summary below explains the impact of increase on the Company's surplus of investment classied 
as FVOCI to change in market price. The analysis is based on the assumption that the market price 
had increased by 10.00% with all other variables held constant:

Buxly Paints Limited

2019

              1,275 

2018

               2,554 

Impact on equity

Rupees in thousands

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the 
year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

  (iii) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 
because of changes in interest rates.  Signicant interest rate risk exposures are primarily managed 
by a mix of borrowings at variable interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch 
of nancial assets and nancial liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.

   Fixed rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Company's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

Amount in thousand

Non-derivative nancial 

instruments

Short term investment

        

Bank balances - deposit accounts

             

        
32,195 -

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities                

25,195

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities            

-

-

 

-

               

4,800

            

-

32,195

 

-

               

29,995

          

-

20182019

   Fair value sensitivity analysis for xed rate instruments

   The Company does not account for any xed rate nancial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
prot and loss. Therefore, a change in prot / mark-up / interest rates at the reporting date would not 
affect prot and loss account.

   Variable rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Company's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

   Cash ow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

   A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have 
(decreased) / increased prot before taxation by amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that 
all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant.
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2019 2018Note

9 40,000 40,000

10 44,628

          
 

54,360

11 21,205

          

 

25,884

15 14,708

           

15,271

14 1,461,014

      

1,164,907

16 26,814

           

38,124

17 2,618

            
1,826

18 32,195
           

42,275

Loans and receivables

Loan to related party - secured

Long term loans - secured

Long term deposits

Loans and advances

Trade debts - unsecured

Trade deposits

Other receivables

Short term investment - secured

Bank balances 19 75,505            20,474

1,718,687 1,403,121

1,461,014 1,164,907

107,700 62,749

Customers

Banking companies and nancial institutions

Others 149,973 175,465

1,718,687 1,403,121

Rupees in thousand

  Concentration of credit risk

  The Company identies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum 
exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

  Credit quality of nancial assets

  The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty.

  (i) Long term loans

   Long term loans represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Company in 
accordance with the terms of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor vehicles 
and motor cycles. These loans are secured by keeping title of the underlying assets in the name of 
the Company till nal settlement. Hence, the management believes that no impairment allowance is 
necessary in respect of these long term loans.

  (ii) Long term deposits

   Long term deposits represent mainly deposits with Government institutions, hence the management 
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these long term deposits.

  (iii) Trade debts

   The trade debts as at the statement of nancial position date are classied in Pak Rupees. The 
Compay recognises loss allowances based on ECL model as fully explained in note 3.1.5.

  (iv) Bank balances

   The Company's exposure to credit risk against balances with various commercial banks is as follows:

  The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the year and 
assets / liabilities of the Company.

 43.1.2 Credit risk

  Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-parties 
failed completely to perform as contracted.  To manage credit risk, the Company maintains procedures 
covering the application of credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of 
exposures against these limits. The management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into 
account their nancial position, past experience and other factors. Individual credit limits are set based on 
the credit control procedures implemented by the management.

  Exposure to credit risk

  The carrying amount of nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure 
to credit risk at the statement of nancial position date was as follows:

2019 2018

In current accounts 75,505 15,674

In deposit accounts - 4,800

Short term investment 32,195 42,275

          107,700              62,749 

           

Cash and bank balances

Rupees in thousand

   The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit 
rating agencies as follows:

Rating

2019 2018Banks Short term Long term Agency

Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 27,478 18,915

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 17,798 16,686

United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS - 82

Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS 4,350

            

3,241

JS Bank Limited A1+ AA-  PACRA 27,000

          

23,000

Al-Barka Bank Limited A1 A PACRA 711

               

11

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 100

               

100

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA  PACRA 18,085

          

714

Summit Bank Limited A3 BBB-  JCR-VIS 604

               
-

Bank Islami A1 A+  PACRA 11,574           -

107,700         62,749

Rating

Rupees in thousand

   Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after 
giving due consideration to their strong nancial standing, management does not expect non 
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit 
risk is minimal.

   Counterparties without external credit ratings

   These include customers which are counter parties to trade debts. The Company recognises ECL for 
trade debts using the simplied approach as explained in note 3.13. The analysis of ages of trade 
debts and loss allowance using the aforementioned approach  as at 30 June 2019 (on adoption of 
IFRS 9) was determined as follows:

   The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:
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2019 2018Note

9 40,000 40,000

10 44,628

          
 

54,360

11 21,205

          

 

25,884

15 14,708

           

15,271

14 1,461,014

      

1,164,907

16 26,814

           

38,124

17 2,618

            
1,826

18 32,195
           

42,275

Loans and receivables

Loan to related party - secured

Long term loans - secured

Long term deposits

Loans and advances

Trade debts - unsecured

Trade deposits

Other receivables

Short term investment - secured

Bank balances 19 75,505            20,474

1,718,687 1,403,121

1,461,014 1,164,907

107,700 62,749

Customers

Banking companies and nancial institutions

Others 149,973 175,465

1,718,687 1,403,121

Rupees in thousand

  Concentration of credit risk

  The Company identies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum 
exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

  Credit quality of nancial assets

  The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty.

  (i) Long term loans

   Long term loans represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Company in 
accordance with the terms of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor vehicles 
and motor cycles. These loans are secured by keeping title of the underlying assets in the name of 
the Company till nal settlement. Hence, the management believes that no impairment allowance is 
necessary in respect of these long term loans.

  (ii) Long term deposits

   Long term deposits represent mainly deposits with Government institutions, hence the management 
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these long term deposits.

  (iii) Trade debts

   The trade debts as at the statement of nancial position date are classied in Pak Rupees. The 
Compay recognises loss allowances based on ECL model as fully explained in note 3.1.5.

  (iv) Bank balances

   The Company's exposure to credit risk against balances with various commercial banks is as follows:

  The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the year and 
assets / liabilities of the Company.

 43.1.2 Credit risk

  Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-parties 
failed completely to perform as contracted.  To manage credit risk, the Company maintains procedures 
covering the application of credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of 
exposures against these limits. The management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into 
account their nancial position, past experience and other factors. Individual credit limits are set based on 
the credit control procedures implemented by the management.

  Exposure to credit risk

  The carrying amount of nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure 
to credit risk at the statement of nancial position date was as follows:

2019 2018

In current accounts 75,505 15,674

In deposit accounts - 4,800

Short term investment 32,195 42,275

          107,700              62,749 

           

Cash and bank balances

Rupees in thousand

   The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit 
rating agencies as follows:

Rating

2019 2018Banks Short term Long term Agency

Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 27,478 18,915

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 17,798 16,686

United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS - 82

Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS 4,350

            

3,241

JS Bank Limited A1+ AA-  PACRA 27,000

          

23,000

Al-Barka Bank Limited A1 A PACRA 711

               

11

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 100

               

100

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA  PACRA 18,085

          

714

Summit Bank Limited A3 BBB-  JCR-VIS 604

               
-

Bank Islami A1 A+  PACRA 11,574           -

107,700         62,749

Rating

Rupees in thousand

   Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after 
giving due consideration to their strong nancial standing, management does not expect non 
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit 
risk is minimal.

   Counterparties without external credit ratings

   These include customers which are counter parties to trade debts. The Company recognises ECL for 
trade debts using the simplied approach as explained in note 3.13. The analysis of ages of trade 
debts and loss allowance using the aforementioned approach  as at 30 June 2019 (on adoption of 
IFRS 9) was determined as follows:

   The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:
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Past due 0 - 30 days

Past due 31 - 60 days

Past due 61 - 90 days

Past due 91 - 120 days

Past due 121 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 364 days

Past due over one year

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

512,313 16,576 439,512 6,240

337,171 7,151 384,139 7,879

240,226 8,691 211,612 7,312

141,732 5,952 181,771 9,059

268,337 17,132 216,301 16,193

112,700 12,829 134,693 18,785

140,452 140,452 171,575 140,452

1,752,931 208,783 1,739,603 205,920

2019 2018

Rupees in thousand

 43.1.3 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difculty in meeting obligations associated with 
nancial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other nancial asset, or that such obligation will 
have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to Company. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is 
to ensure, as far as possible that it will always have sufcient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under 
both normal and stressed conditions. The Company nances its operations through equity, borrowings 
and working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of nance to 
minimize risk. The management aims to maintain exibility in funding by keeping regular committed credit 
limits.

  The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2019:

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 169,991 169,991

            

80,356 89,635 -

                        

Trade and other payables 1,003,216 1,003,216

          

1,003,216 - -

                        

39,432 39,432

              

39,432 - -

                        

Short term borrowings - secured 1,204,747 1,287,804 1,287,804 - -

2,417,386 2,500,443 2,410,808 89,635 -

The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2018:

Rupees in thousand

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

             

          

               

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 138,263 144,101 74,439 69,662 -

Trade and other payables 1,111,924 1,111,924 1,111,924 - -

16,465 16,465 16,465 - -

Short term borrowings - secured 1,137,989 1,221,046 1,221,046 - -

2,404,641 2,493,536 2,423,874 69,662 -

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Rupees in thousand

  It is not expected that the cash ows on the maturity analysis could occur signicantly earlier, or at 
signicant different amount.

 43.2  Fair value measurement of nancial instruments

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

  Underlying the denition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern and there is 
no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on 
adverse terms.

  A nancial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted price is readily and regularly 
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and that 
price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

  IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair 
value hierarchy that reects the signicance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value 
hierarchy has the following levels:

  -  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access at 
measurement date (Level 1)

  -  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2)

  -  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable) inputs 
(Level 3)

  Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during 
which the changes have occurred.

  The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of nancial assets and nancial liabilities, 
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy;
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Past due 0 - 30 days

Past due 31 - 60 days

Past due 61 - 90 days

Past due 91 - 120 days

Past due 121 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 364 days

Past due over one year

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

512,313 16,576 439,512 6,240

337,171 7,151 384,139 7,879

240,226 8,691 211,612 7,312

141,732 5,952 181,771 9,059

268,337 17,132 216,301 16,193

112,700 12,829 134,693 18,785

140,452 140,452 171,575 140,452

1,752,931 208,783 1,739,603 205,920

2019 2018

Rupees in thousand

 43.1.3 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difculty in meeting obligations associated with 
nancial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other nancial asset, or that such obligation will 
have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to Company. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is 
to ensure, as far as possible that it will always have sufcient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under 
both normal and stressed conditions. The Company nances its operations through equity, borrowings 
and working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of nance to 
minimize risk. The management aims to maintain exibility in funding by keeping regular committed credit 
limits.

  The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2019:

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 169,991 169,991

            

80,356 89,635 -

                        

Trade and other payables 1,003,216 1,003,216

          

1,003,216 - -

                        

39,432 39,432

              

39,432 - -

                        

Short term borrowings - secured 1,204,747 1,287,804 1,287,804 - -

2,417,386 2,500,443 2,410,808 89,635 -

The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2018:

Rupees in thousand

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

             

          

               

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 138,263 144,101 74,439 69,662 -

Trade and other payables 1,111,924 1,111,924 1,111,924 - -

16,465 16,465 16,465 - -

Short term borrowings - secured 1,137,989 1,221,046 1,221,046 - -

2,404,641 2,493,536 2,423,874 69,662 -

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Rupees in thousand

  It is not expected that the cash ows on the maturity analysis could occur signicantly earlier, or at 
signicant different amount.

 43.2  Fair value measurement of nancial instruments

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

  Underlying the denition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern and there is 
no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on 
adverse terms.

  A nancial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted price is readily and regularly 
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and that 
price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

  IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair 
value hierarchy that reects the signicance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value 
hierarchy has the following levels:

  -  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access at 
measurement date (Level 1)

  -  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2)

  -  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable) inputs 
(Level 3)

  Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during 
which the changes have occurred.

  The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of nancial assets and nancial liabilities, 
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy;
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The debt-to-equity ratios as at 30 June were as follows:

Total debt 

Total 

Debt-to-equity ratio 

2019 2018

       1,414,170        1,292,717 

       2,994,439        2,812,378 

47% 46%

45 Restriction on title and assets pledged as security

Mortgages and charges

First

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

Mortgage over land and building

Ranking

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

2019 2018

       2,004,000        1,537,000 

          506,000           506,000 

       1,001,334        1,135,000 

Rupees in thousand

46 Production capacity

Actual production 37,349             41,594 

2019 2018Liters in thousand

 Neither there were any changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

 43.3  Fair value versus carrying amounts

  The Company has not disclosed the fair values of nancial assets and liabilities which are for short term or 
repriced over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

 43.4 Freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and 
machinery have been carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3 
measurement) based on their assessment of the values as disclosed. The valuations are conducted by an 
independent valuation expert appointed by the Company. The valuation expert used a market based 
approach to arrive at the fair value of the Company's land and building. The valuation was determined by 
reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most signicant input into this 
valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present operational 
condition and age of plant and machinery respectively. The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs 
used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a qualitative disclosure of 
sensitivity has not been presented in these  nancial statements.

44 Capital risk management

 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide return for shareholders and benets for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company manages the capital structure in the context of 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

 The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - calculated as a ratio of total debt to equity.

 The capacity of the plant is indeterminable because it is a multi product plant involving varying processes of 
manufacturing. Actual production includes resin production of 15.11 million liters (2018: 15.33 million liters) which is 
used in the manufacture of the nal product. The reason for shortfall during the year was due to decreased demand 
of the products.

47 Operating segments

 47.1 These  nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

 47.2 Revenue from sale of paints and allied represents 99.51% (2018: 99.37%) of the total revenue of the 
Company.

 47.3 98.06% (2018: 97.95%) sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.

 47.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2019 are located in Pakistan.

48 Date of authorization for issue

 These  nancial statements were authorized for issue on 19 September 2019 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

49 Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

 The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 19 September 2019 has proposed a nal cash 
dividend of Re.1 per share, for the year ended 30 June 2019, for approval of the members in the Annual General 
Meeting to be held on 24 October 2019.

50 General

 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupee unless otherwise stated.

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

Trusted Worldwide
BERGER PAINTS Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

134 135



 

         

 

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

Rupees

The debt-to-equity ratios as at 30 June were as follows:

Total debt 

Total 

Debt-to-equity ratio 

2019 2018

       1,414,170        1,292,717 

       2,994,439        2,812,378 

47% 46%

45 Restriction on title and assets pledged as security

Mortgages and charges

First

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

Mortgage over land and building

Ranking

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

2019 2018

       2,004,000        1,537,000 

          506,000           506,000 

       1,001,334        1,135,000 

Rupees in thousand

46 Production capacity

Actual production 37,349             41,594 

2019 2018Liters in thousand

 Neither there were any changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

 43.3  Fair value versus carrying amounts

  The Company has not disclosed the fair values of nancial assets and liabilities which are for short term or 
repriced over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

 43.4 Freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and 
machinery have been carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3 
measurement) based on their assessment of the values as disclosed. The valuations are conducted by an 
independent valuation expert appointed by the Company. The valuation expert used a market based 
approach to arrive at the fair value of the Company's land and building. The valuation was determined by 
reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most signicant input into this 
valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present operational 
condition and age of plant and machinery respectively. The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs 
used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a qualitative disclosure of 
sensitivity has not been presented in these  nancial statements.

44 Capital risk management

 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide return for shareholders and benets for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company manages the capital structure in the context of 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

 The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - calculated as a ratio of total debt to equity.

 The capacity of the plant is indeterminable because it is a multi product plant involving varying processes of 
manufacturing. Actual production includes resin production of 15.11 million liters (2018: 15.33 million liters) which is 
used in the manufacture of the nal product. The reason for shortfall during the year was due to decreased demand 
of the products.

47 Operating segments

 47.1 These  nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

 47.2 Revenue from sale of paints and allied represents 99.51% (2018: 99.37%) of the total revenue of the 
Company.

 47.3 98.06% (2018: 97.95%) sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.

 47.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2019 are located in Pakistan.

48 Date of authorization for issue

 These  nancial statements were authorized for issue on 19 September 2019 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

49 Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

 The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 19 September 2019 has proposed a nal cash 
dividend of Re.1 per share, for the year ended 30 June 2019, for approval of the members in the Annual General 
Meeting to be held on 24 October 2019.

50 General

 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupee unless otherwise stated.

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director
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Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019



Consolidated Financial Highlights
                           

                                                                      

                                                

                                                    

               

      

       

      

      

      

      

    

      

      

        

            

            

Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 
Prot before taxation 

Taxation  
Prot after taxation  
Minority interest 
Net prot for the year attributable to the Holding Company

Rupees in Thousand

The Directors of the Holding Company present their report together with the audited consolidated nancial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year Group faced continuous challenges from non organized sector along with successive bouts of Rupee 
devaluation, rising oil prices in addition to the continued surge in raw material prices. Despite these challenges, the 
Group posted a prot of Rs. 96.793 million.

In future, we are optimistic all group companies will continue to grow by focusing on new product innovation and 
providing quality products to our customers. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited accounts of the Holding Company for the year ended 30 June 2019 are annexed.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Holding Company of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited is M/s. Slotrapid Limited which is incorporated in the B.V.I.

PROFIT PER SHARE

The prot per share for the year is Rs. 4.89  [2018: Rs.5.13].

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, shall stand retired and being eligible, have 
offered themselves for re-appointment.

CORORATE GOVERNANCE

A statement of corporate nancial reporting framework appears in the Directors' Report of the Holding Company is 
annexed.

OTHER INFORMATION

All relevant other information has already been disclosed in Directors' Repot of the Holding Company.

Lahore
Date: 19 September 2019

    

  

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Mahmood Ahmad
Chief Executive

Mr. Maqbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Director

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

NET ASSETS

Fixed Assets 1,183,189

  

1,237,149

    

1,154,469

   

1,055,803

   

1,051,367

   

589,572

      

Assets under Finance Lease -

             

-

               

-

              

-

              

10,285

        

7,927

          

Goodwill 24,000

       

32,263

         

36,750

        

36,750

        

36,750

        

36,750

        

Long Term Investments 51,199

       

63,532

         

70,143

        

49,117

        

9,978

          

10,260

        

Long Term Loans & Deposits 66,818

       

81,229

         

74,407

        

66,721

        

52,876

        

41,552

        

Deferred Taxation 52,847

       

-

               

1,710

          

-

              

36,525

        

156,199

      

Net Current Assets 477,662

     

362,868

       

382,320

      

303,262

      

145,257

      

149,318

      

Total 1,855,715

  

1,777,041

    

1,719,799

   

1,511,653

   

1,343,038

   

991,578

      

FINANCED BY

Share Capital 204,597
     

181,864
 

181,864
 

181,864
 

181,864
 

181,864
 

Reserves 934,336     864,227 754,600  671,151  476,850  416,342  
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 472,012 509,131 521,363 542,313 559,773 184,878

1,610,945

  

1,555,222

    

1,457,827

   

1,395,328

   

1,218,487

   

783,084

      Long Term and Deferred Liabilities 244,770

     

221,819

       

261,972

      

116,325

      

124,551

      

208,494

      
Total 1,855,715 1,777,041 1,719,799 1,511,653 1,343,038 991,578

TURNOVER AND PROFITS

Turnover 5,304,887

  

5,701,402

    

5,318,753

   

5,262,149

   

4,420,826

   

4,562,664

   

Gross Prot 1,163,698

  

1,260,136

    

1,540,336

   

1,587,913

   

1,199,008

   

1,115,705

   

21.94% 22.10% 28.96% 30.18% 27.12% 24.45%

Prot/(Loss) before tax 106,632

     

155,984

       

267,022

      

327,615

      

169,820

      

145,728

      

Taxation 9,839

         

48,500

         

67,842

        

141,874

      

59,502

        

51,230

        

Prot/(Loss) after tax 96,793

       

107,484

       

199,180

      

185,741

      

110,318

      

94,498

        

EARNING AND DIVIDENDS

Earning/(Loss) per share 4.89

           

5.13

             

11.03

          

10.13

          

6.03

            

5.20

            

Interim Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee) 4.50

            

1.50

            

Final Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee) 1.00

           

1.25

             

4.50

            

1.00

            

1.00

            

Year Ended June 30,

Rupees in thousand

106,632

(9,839)

96,793

3,264

100,057
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Consolidated Financial Highlights
                           

                                                                      

                                                

                                                    

               

      

       

      

      

      

      

    

      

      

        

            

            

Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 
Prot before taxation 

Taxation  
Prot after taxation  
Minority interest 
Net prot for the year attributable to the Holding Company

Rupees in Thousand

The Directors of the Holding Company present their report together with the audited consolidated nancial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year Group faced continuous challenges from non organized sector along with successive bouts of Rupee 
devaluation, rising oil prices in addition to the continued surge in raw material prices. Despite these challenges, the 
Group posted a prot of Rs. 96.793 million.

In future, we are optimistic all group companies will continue to grow by focusing on new product innovation and 
providing quality products to our customers. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited accounts of the Holding Company for the year ended 30 June 2019 are annexed.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Holding Company of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited is M/s. Slotrapid Limited which is incorporated in the B.V.I.

PROFIT PER SHARE

The prot per share for the year is Rs. 4.89  [2018: Rs.5.13].

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, shall stand retired and being eligible, have 
offered themselves for re-appointment.

CORORATE GOVERNANCE

A statement of corporate nancial reporting framework appears in the Directors' Report of the Holding Company is 
annexed.

OTHER INFORMATION

All relevant other information has already been disclosed in Directors' Repot of the Holding Company.

Lahore
Date: 19 September 2019

    

  

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Mahmood Ahmad
Chief Executive

Mr. Maqbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Director

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

NET ASSETS

Fixed Assets 1,183,189

  

1,237,149

    

1,154,469

   

1,055,803

   

1,051,367

   

589,572

      

Assets under Finance Lease -

             

-

               

-

              

-

              

10,285

        

7,927

          

Goodwill 24,000

       

32,263

         

36,750

        

36,750

        

36,750

        

36,750

        

Long Term Investments 51,199

       

63,532

         

70,143

        

49,117

        

9,978

          

10,260

        

Long Term Loans & Deposits 66,818

       

81,229

         

74,407

        

66,721

        

52,876

        

41,552

        

Deferred Taxation 52,847

       

-

               

1,710

          

-

              

36,525

        

156,199

      

Net Current Assets 477,662

     

362,868

       

382,320

      

303,262

      

145,257

      

149,318

      

Total 1,855,715

  

1,777,041

    

1,719,799

   

1,511,653

   

1,343,038

   

991,578

      

FINANCED BY

Share Capital 204,597
     

181,864
 

181,864
 

181,864
 

181,864
 

181,864
 

Reserves 934,336     864,227 754,600  671,151  476,850  416,342  
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 472,012 509,131 521,363 542,313 559,773 184,878

1,610,945

  

1,555,222

    

1,457,827

   

1,395,328

   

1,218,487

   

783,084

      Long Term and Deferred Liabilities 244,770

     

221,819

       

261,972

      

116,325

      

124,551

      

208,494

      
Total 1,855,715 1,777,041 1,719,799 1,511,653 1,343,038 991,578

TURNOVER AND PROFITS

Turnover 5,304,887

  

5,701,402

    

5,318,753

   

5,262,149

   

4,420,826

   

4,562,664

   

Gross Prot 1,163,698

  

1,260,136

    

1,540,336

   

1,587,913

   

1,199,008

   

1,115,705

   

21.94% 22.10% 28.96% 30.18% 27.12% 24.45%

Prot/(Loss) before tax 106,632

     

155,984

       

267,022

      

327,615

      

169,820

      

145,728

      

Taxation 9,839

         

48,500

         

67,842

        

141,874

      

59,502

        

51,230

        

Prot/(Loss) after tax 96,793

       

107,484

       

199,180

      

185,741

      

110,318

      

94,498

        

EARNING AND DIVIDENDS

Earning/(Loss) per share 4.89

           

5.13

             

11.03

          

10.13

          

6.03

            

5.20

            

Interim Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee) 4.50

            

1.50

            

Final Dividend per share-Cash (Rupee) 1.00

           

1.25

             

4.50

            

1.00

            

1.00

            

Year Ended June 30,

Rupees in thousand

106,632

(9,839)

96,793

3,264

100,057
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(9,839)

96,793

3,264
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• comparing, on a sample basis, specic sales 
transactions recorded before and after the 
nancial year end to determine whether the sale 
had been recognized in the appropriate nancial 
period; and

• scanning for any manual journal entries relating 
to sale recorded during the year which were 
considered to be material or met other specic 
risk based criteria for inspecting underlying 
documentation.

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Revenue recognition

Refer to note 3.1, 3.16 and 29 to the 
consolidated nancial statements.

The Group recognized net revenue of Rs. 5.30 
billion from the sale of goods to domestic as 
well as export customers during the year 
ended 30 June 2019. 

We identied recognition of revenue as a key 
audit matter because revenue is one of the key 
performance indicator of the Group and gives 
rise to a risk that revenue is recognized without 
transferring the control.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of 
revenue, amongst others, included the following:

• Obtaining an understanding of the process 
relating to recording of sales and testing the 
des ign,  implementat ion and operat ing 
effectiveness of relevant key internal controls;

• assessing the appropriateness of the Group's 
accounting policies for recording of sales and 
compliance of those policies with applicable 
accounting standards;

• comparing a sample of sale transactions 
recorded during the year with sales invoices, 
delivery challans, bill of ladings and other 
relevant underlying documents;

Independent Auditor's Report

KKK KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
351 Shadman-1,
Jail Road, Lahore, Pakistan.

Telephone
Fax
Internet

+92 (42) 111 576 484
+92 (42) 37429907
www.kpmg.com.pk

To the members of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

2. Valuation of Trade Debts

Refer to notes 3.1, 3.6 and 13 to the 
consolidated nancial statements.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's gross trade 
debts amount to Rs. 1,720.29 million. Pursuant 
to adoption of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' 
and using the modied retrospect ive 
approach, the Group has recognized expected 
credit loss (“ECL”) of Rs. 7.10 million in opening 
retained earnings as at 01 July 2018 and Rs. 
48.13  million for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

IFRS 9 requires the Group to make provision 
for nancial assets (trade debts) using ECL 
approach as against the Incurred Loss Model 
previously applied by the Group.

Determination of ECL provision for trade debts 
r e q u i r e s  s i g n i  c a n t  j u d g m e n t  a n d 
assumptions including consideration of factors 
such as historical credit loss experience and 
forward-looking macro-economic information.

We have considered this as a key audit matter 
due to signicance of the change in accounting 
methodology and involvement of estimates 
and judgments in this regard. 

Our audit procedures to assess valuation of trade 
debts, amongst others, included the following:

• Review the methodology developed and applied 
by the management to estimate the ECL in 
relation to trade debts, evaluating the key 
assumptions used (historical and forward 
looking), the policies applied to assess ECL in 
respect of trade debts and test ing the 
mathematical accuracy of the ECL model by re-
performing calculations on test basis;

• involving our specialists to assess the ECL model 
and signicant estimates, assumptions and 
judgments applied in developing ECL;

• assessing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the 
data used for ECL computation; and

• assessing the adequacy of disclosure made in 
the consolidated nancial statements in 
accordance with the requirements of the 
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Information Other than the consolidated nancial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the consolidated nancial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated nancial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated nancial statements of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited and its subsidiaries 
(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of nancial position as at 30 June 2019, and the consolidated 
statement of prot or loss, the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash ows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
nancial statements, including a summary of signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, consolidated nancial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated nancial position of the 
Group as at 30 June 2019  and (of) its consolidated nancial performance and its consolidated cash ows for the year 
then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (“the Code”) and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in our audit of the 
consolidated nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated nancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters.



• comparing, on a sample basis, specic sales 
transactions recorded before and after the 
nancial year end to determine whether the sale 
had been recognized in the appropriate nancial 
period; and

• scanning for any manual journal entries relating 
to sale recorded during the year which were 
considered to be material or met other specic 
risk based criteria for inspecting underlying 
documentation.

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Revenue recognition

Refer to note 3.1, 3.16 and 29 to the 
consolidated nancial statements.

The Group recognized net revenue of Rs. 5.30 
billion from the sale of goods to domestic as 
well as export customers during the year 
ended 30 June 2019. 

We identied recognition of revenue as a key 
audit matter because revenue is one of the key 
performance indicator of the Group and gives 
rise to a risk that revenue is recognized without 
transferring the control.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of 
revenue, amongst others, included the following:

• Obtaining an understanding of the process 
relating to recording of sales and testing the 
des ign,  implementat ion and operat ing 
effectiveness of relevant key internal controls;

• assessing the appropriateness of the Group's 
accounting policies for recording of sales and 
compliance of those policies with applicable 
accounting standards;

• comparing a sample of sale transactions 
recorded during the year with sales invoices, 
delivery challans, bill of ladings and other 
relevant underlying documents;

Independent Auditor's Report
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351 Shadman-1,
Jail Road, Lahore, Pakistan.
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To the members of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Sr. No. Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

2. Valuation of Trade Debts

Refer to notes 3.1, 3.6 and 13 to the 
consolidated nancial statements.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's gross trade 
debts amount to Rs. 1,720.29 million. Pursuant 
to adoption of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' 
and using the modied retrospect ive 
approach, the Group has recognized expected 
credit loss (“ECL”) of Rs. 7.10 million in opening 
retained earnings as at 01 July 2018 and Rs. 
48.13  million for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

IFRS 9 requires the Group to make provision 
for nancial assets (trade debts) using ECL 
approach as against the Incurred Loss Model 
previously applied by the Group.

Determination of ECL provision for trade debts 
r e q u i r e s  s i g n i  c a n t  j u d g m e n t  a n d 
assumptions including consideration of factors 
such as historical credit loss experience and 
forward-looking macro-economic information.

We have considered this as a key audit matter 
due to signicance of the change in accounting 
methodology and involvement of estimates 
and judgments in this regard. 

Our audit procedures to assess valuation of trade 
debts, amongst others, included the following:

• Review the methodology developed and applied 
by the management to estimate the ECL in 
relation to trade debts, evaluating the key 
assumptions used (historical and forward 
looking), the policies applied to assess ECL in 
respect of trade debts and test ing the 
mathematical accuracy of the ECL model by re-
performing calculations on test basis;

• involving our specialists to assess the ECL model 
and signicant estimates, assumptions and 
judgments applied in developing ECL;

• assessing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the 
data used for ECL computation; and

• assessing the adequacy of disclosure made in 
the consolidated nancial statements in 
accordance with the requirements of the 
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Information Other than the consolidated nancial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the consolidated nancial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated nancial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

 

        

 

  

Trusted Worldwide
BERGER PAINTS Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

142 143

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated nancial statements of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited and its subsidiaries 
(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of nancial position as at 30 June 2019, and the consolidated 
statement of prot or loss, the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash ows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
nancial statements, including a summary of signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, consolidated nancial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated nancial position of the 
Group as at 30 June 2019  and (of) its consolidated nancial performance and its consolidated cash ows for the year 
then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (“the Code”) and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in our audit of the 
consolidated nancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated nancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters.



Lahore 
Date: 02 October 2019

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most signicance 
in the audit of the consolidated nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benets of such 
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Kamran I. Yousa.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated nancial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of consolidated nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's nancial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated nancial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
inuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's 
internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
signicant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated nancial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated nancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the nancial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated nancial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and signicant audit ndings, including any signicant deciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most signicance 
in the audit of the consolidated nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benets of such 
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Kamran I. Yousa.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated nancial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of consolidated nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's nancial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated nancial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
inuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's 
internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
signicant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated nancial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated nancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the nancial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated nancial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and signicant audit ndings, including any signicant deciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2019

  

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangibles

Investments in related parties

Long term loans - secured

Deferred taxation

Long term deposits - unsecured

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other receivables

Tax refund due from Government - net

Short term investment

Cash and bank balances

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Authorised share capital

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity 

Non-current liabilities

Long term nancing - secured

Staff retirement and other long term benets

Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease - secured

Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Current maturity of long term nancing

Current maturity of liabilities against assets subject to nance lease

Short term borrowings - secured

Contingencies and commitments 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and

machinery - net of tax

  Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

6 1,180,493 1,229,115

7 26,696 40,297

8 51,199 63,532

9 44,628 54,360

11 52,847 -

10 22,190 26,869

1,378,053 1,414,173

16,906 15,772

12 932,717 1,024,042

13 1,479,490 1,237,001

14 105,794 200,825

15 41,206 51,757

16 13,891 16,388

332,900 319,994

17 32,195 42,275

18 79,253 26,569

3,034,352 2,934,623

4,412,405 4,348,796

19 250,000 250,000

19 204,597 181,864

20 917,001 843,628

21 472,012 509,131

1,593,610 1,534,623

17,335 20,599

1,610,945 1,555,222

22 89,635 69,965

23 154,049 142,592

24 1,086 2,099

11 - 7,163

244,770 221,819

25 1,225,162 1,342,753

5,980 4,756

26 39,432 16,465

22 80,356 68,298

24 1,013 1,494

27 1,204,747 1,137,989

2,556,690 2,571,755

2,801,460 2,793,574

28

4,412,405 4,348,796

      

     

      

        

        

     

         

           

         

          

          

        

 
                

         

          

         

                   

                         

                     

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross prot

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Prot from operations

Other income

Other expenses

Finance cost

Share of prot

of equity-accounted investee - net of tax

Prot before taxation

Taxation

Prot after taxation

            

Attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand

       

     
       

2019 2018Note

29 5,304,887 5,701,402

30 (4,141,189) (4,441,266)

1,163,698 1,260,136

31 (701,811)

        

(821,585)

32 (195,435)

        

(206,715)

(897,246)

        

(1,028,300)

266,452

          

231,836

33 25,191 27,802

291,643

          

259,638

34 (19,978)  (15,820)

35 (165,483)  (88,504)

(185,461)

        
(104,324)

450

                

670

106,632

          

155,984

36 (9,839) (48,500)

96,793 107,484

100,057 105,043

(3,264) 2,441

96,793 107,484

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2019

  

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangibles

Investments in related parties

Long term loans - secured

Deferred taxation

Long term deposits - unsecured

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other receivables

Tax refund due from Government - net

Short term investment

Cash and bank balances

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Authorised share capital

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity 

Non-current liabilities

Long term nancing - secured

Staff retirement and other long term benets

Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease - secured

Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Current maturity of long term nancing

Current maturity of liabilities against assets subject to nance lease

Short term borrowings - secured

Contingencies and commitments 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and

machinery - net of tax

  Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

6 1,180,493 1,229,115

7 26,696 40,297

8 51,199 63,532

9 44,628 54,360

11 52,847 -

10 22,190 26,869

1,378,053 1,414,173

16,906 15,772

12 932,717 1,024,042

13 1,479,490 1,237,001

14 105,794 200,825

15 41,206 51,757

16 13,891 16,388

332,900 319,994

17 32,195 42,275

18 79,253 26,569

3,034,352 2,934,623

4,412,405 4,348,796

19 250,000 250,000

19 204,597 181,864

20 917,001 843,628

21 472,012 509,131

1,593,610 1,534,623

17,335 20,599

1,610,945 1,555,222

22 89,635 69,965

23 154,049 142,592

24 1,086 2,099

11 - 7,163

244,770 221,819

25 1,225,162 1,342,753

5,980 4,756

26 39,432 16,465

22 80,356 68,298

24 1,013 1,494

27 1,204,747 1,137,989

2,556,690 2,571,755

2,801,460 2,793,574

28

4,412,405 4,348,796

      

     

      

        

        

     

         

           

         

          

          

        

 
                

         

          

         

                   

                         

                     

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross prot

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Prot from operations

Other income

Other expenses

Finance cost

Share of prot

of equity-accounted investee - net of tax

Prot before taxation

Taxation

Prot after taxation

            

Attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand

       

     
       

2019 2018Note

29 5,304,887 5,701,402

30 (4,141,189) (4,441,266)

1,163,698 1,260,136

31 (701,811)

        

(821,585)

32 (195,435)

        

(206,715)

(897,246)

        

(1,028,300)

266,452

          

231,836

33 25,191 27,802

291,643

          

259,638

34 (19,978)  (15,820)

35 (165,483)  (88,504)

(185,461)

        
(104,324)

450

                

670

106,632

          

155,984

36 (9,839) (48,500)

96,793 107,484

100,057 105,043

(3,264) 2,441

96,793 107,484

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 96,793 107,484

- (7,281)

8.2.1 (12,783) -

23.5 3,391 (5,966)

               

                     

                  

Prot after taxation

Other comprehensive loss

Items that may be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as available for sale

Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income of the Parent Company for the year 87,401 94,237

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 
      

          

              

          

                 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note
        

Cash ow from operating activities

Prot before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization on computer software

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision charged / (reversed) against slow moving stock - net

Insurance claim

Provision reversed for impairment in capital work in progress

Provision for doubtful debts

Bad debts written off

Provision for staff retirement and other long term benets

Share of prot of equity-accounted investee - net of tax

Finance cost

Provision (reversed) / charged for doubtful loans

Impairment charged on Goodwill

Mark-up on term deposit receipts

Operating prot before working capital changes

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other receivables

Decrease in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations 

Finance cost paid

Taxes paid

Staff retirement and other long term benets paid

Long term loans - due from employees

Long term deposits - net

Net cash (used in ) / generated from operating activities

Cash ow from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Mark-up received on term deposit and long term loan

Short term investments

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash ow from nancing activities

Long term nancing - net

Dividend paid

Lease rentals paid

Short term borrowings - net

Net cash used in nancing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

 

 

 

 

 

106,632 155,984

6.7 80,010 82,126

7.1.1 5,338 4,660

33 (17,024) (9,363)

4,952 (2,902)

33 (2,676) (2,731)

34 - (8,059)

13.3 48,127 990

13.3 2,806 25,954

23.6 & 23.16 32,192 28,321

8.1 (450) (670)

35 165,483 88,504

14 (201) 1,765

7.2.1 8,263 4,487

33 (12,150) (6,729)

314,670 206,353

421,302 362,337

(1,134) 1,152

86,374 1,669

(303,360) 27,994

94,468 (83,441)

10,551 (21,370)

5,547 2,141

(107,554) (71,855)

(114,752)           (124,168)

198,996 166,314

(142,140) (85,140)

(84,603) (26,770)

23 (17,345) (11,672)

10,496 (12,275)

4,679 (3,391)

(228,913) (139,248)

(29,917) 27,066

(92,906) (166,755)

6.2 78,542 14,712

11,776 6,790

10,080 -

7,492 (145,253)

31,728 (68,088)

(21,509) (23,960)

(1,869) (2,205)

(300,000) -

(291,650) (94,253)

(314,075) (212,440)

(711,420) (498,980)

37 (1,025,495) (711,420)

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 96,793 107,484

- (7,281)

8.2.1 (12,783) -

23.5 3,391 (5,966)

               

                     

                  

Prot after taxation

Other comprehensive loss

Items that may be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as available for sale

Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss

Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income of the Parent Company for the year 87,401 94,237

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 
      

          

              

          

                 

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note
        

Cash ow from operating activities

Prot before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization on computer software

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision charged / (reversed) against slow moving stock - net

Insurance claim

Provision reversed for impairment in capital work in progress

Provision for doubtful debts

Bad debts written off

Provision for staff retirement and other long term benets

Share of prot of equity-accounted investee - net of tax

Finance cost

Provision (reversed) / charged for doubtful loans

Impairment charged on Goodwill

Mark-up on term deposit receipts

Operating prot before working capital changes

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other receivables

Decrease in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations 

Finance cost paid

Taxes paid

Staff retirement and other long term benets paid

Long term loans - due from employees

Long term deposits - net

Net cash (used in ) / generated from operating activities

Cash ow from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Mark-up received on term deposit and long term loan

Short term investments

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash ow from nancing activities

Long term nancing - net

Dividend paid

Lease rentals paid

Short term borrowings - net

Net cash used in nancing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

 

 

 

 

 

106,632 155,984

6.7 80,010 82,126

7.1.1 5,338 4,660

33 (17,024) (9,363)

4,952 (2,902)

33 (2,676) (2,731)

34 - (8,059)

13.3 48,127 990

13.3 2,806 25,954

23.6 & 23.16 32,192 28,321

8.1 (450) (670)

35 165,483 88,504

14 (201) 1,765

7.2.1 8,263 4,487

33 (12,150) (6,729)

314,670 206,353

421,302 362,337

(1,134) 1,152

86,374 1,669

(303,360) 27,994

94,468 (83,441)

10,551 (21,370)

5,547 2,141

(107,554) (71,855)

(114,752)           (124,168)

198,996 166,314

(142,140) (85,140)

(84,603) (26,770)

23 (17,345) (11,672)

10,496 (12,275)

4,679 (3,391)

(228,913) (139,248)

(29,917) 27,066

(92,906) (166,755)

6.2 78,542 14,712

11,776 6,790

10,080 -

7,492 (145,253)

31,728 (68,088)

(21,509) (23,960)

(1,869) (2,205)

(300,000) -

(291,650) (94,253)

(314,075) (212,440)

(711,420) (498,980)

37 (1,025,495) (711,420)

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand
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1 Reporting entity

 The Group comprises of the following companies:

 Parent company

 - Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

 Subsidiary companies

 - Berdex Construction Chemicals (Private) Limited
 - Berger DPI (Private) Limited
 - Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited - subsidiary of Berger DPI (Private) Limited

 Associated company

 - 3S Pharmaceuticals (Private) Limited

 1.1 Berger Paints Pakistan Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 25 March 1950 as a 
Private Limited Company under the Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was 
subsequently converted into a Public Limited Company. The Parent Company is listed on the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange ("PSX"). The principle business activity of the Parent Company is manufacturing and 
trading of paints, varnishes and other related items. Slotrapid Limited, based in British Virgin Island is the 
Holding Company. The aggregate percentage of holding is 52.05%. The registered ofce of the Parent 
Company is situated at 36-Industrial Estate Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore and its only manufacturing facility is 
located at 28 Km Multan Road, Lahore.

  The Parent Company owns 51.00 percent of the share capital of Berger DPI (Private) Limited who in turn 
holds 99.00 percent share capital of the Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited. Further the Parent 
Company owns 51.96 percent of the share capital of Berdex Construction Chemicals (Private) Limited. 
The Group is a subsidiary of Slotrapid Limited British Virgin Islands ("The Holding Company").

  Berdex Construction Chemicals (Private) Limited is under the process of members' voluntary winding up 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. Therefore, its nancial statements have not been 
prepared on a going concern basis and the historical cost convention has been adjusted for realization of 
assets and liquidation of liabilities that might be necessary. The carrying value of its assets and liabilities 
as at 30 June 2019 approximates their realizable value.

  Following is the pertinent information related to the Holding Company;

            

 

 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2019

  Auditor's opinion on latest nancial statements of the Holding Company is not available as the country of 
incorporation does not have any such statutory requirement.

          Particulars Related Information

Registered Address Suit # 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street, Wickham Cay 
1, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Island.

Principle Ofcer - President / Director Vernon Emmanuel Salazar Zurita

Aggregate Percentage of Holding

Operational Status

52.05%

Active

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 
 

Balance as at 01 July 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2018

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as available for sale

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on 

property, plant and machinery - net of tax

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2018

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (net of tax)

Adjusted balance as at 01 July 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2019

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on property

plant and machinery - net of tax

Transfer of revaluation surplus due to

disposal of revalued assets

Transactions with the owners of the Company

Final cash dividend at the rate of 12.5% 

(i.e. Rs. 1.25 per share ) for the year  

ended 30 June 2018

Issue of Bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares held)  

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2019

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand 

Share 

premium

Surplus on 

revaluation 

on property, 

plant and 

machinery

Fair value 

reserve

 General 

reserve  

 Accumulated 

prot 

 Total equity 

attributable to 

owners of the 

Parent 

Company 

 Non 

controlling

Interests 

181,864 56,819 521,363 28,988 285,000 365,635 1,439,669 18,158 1,457,827

- - - - - 105,043 105,043 2,441 107,484

- - - (7,281) - - (7,281) - (7,281)

- - - - - (5,966) (5,966) (5,966)

- - - (7,281) - 99,077 91,796 2,441 94,237

-

 

-

 

(15,390)

 

-

 

- 15,390 - - -

-

 

-

 

3,158

 

-

 

- 3,158 - 3,158

-

 

-

 

(12,232)

 

-

 

- 15,390 3,158 - 3,158

181,864

 

56,819

 

509,131

 

21,707

 

285,000

 

480,102 1,534,623 20,599 1,555,222

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

- (5,039) (5,039) - (5,039)

181,864

 

56,819

 

509,131

 

21,707

 

285,000

 

475,063 1,529,584 20,599 1,550,183

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- 100,057 100,057 (3,264) 96,793

-

 

-

 

-

 

(12,783)

 

- (12,783) - (12,783)

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- 3,391 3,391 - 3,391

-

 

-

 

-

 

(12,783)

 

- 103,448 90,665 (3,264) 87,401

- - (17,632) - - 17,632 - - -

- - (15,581) - - 15,581 - - -

- - - - - (22,733) (22,733) - (22,733)

22,733 (22,733) - - - - - -

- - (3,906) - - (3,906) - (3,906)

22,733 (22,733) (37,119) - - 10,480 (26,639) - (26,639)

204,597 34,086 472,012 8,924 285,000 588,991 1,593,610 17,335 1,610,945

 Total  

Issued, 

subscribed 

and paid-up 

capital

Reserves

 Revenue Capital

                                                                

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director
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1 Reporting entity

 The Group comprises of the following companies:

 Parent company

 - Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

 Subsidiary companies

 - Berdex Construction Chemicals (Private) Limited
 - Berger DPI (Private) Limited
 - Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited - subsidiary of Berger DPI (Private) Limited

 Associated company

 - 3S Pharmaceuticals (Private) Limited

 1.1 Berger Paints Pakistan Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 25 March 1950 as a 
Private Limited Company under the Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was 
subsequently converted into a Public Limited Company. The Parent Company is listed on the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange ("PSX"). The principle business activity of the Parent Company is manufacturing and 
trading of paints, varnishes and other related items. Slotrapid Limited, based in British Virgin Island is the 
Holding Company. The aggregate percentage of holding is 52.05%. The registered ofce of the Parent 
Company is situated at 36-Industrial Estate Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore and its only manufacturing facility is 
located at 28 Km Multan Road, Lahore.

  The Parent Company owns 51.00 percent of the share capital of Berger DPI (Private) Limited who in turn 
holds 99.00 percent share capital of the Berger Road Safety (Private) Limited. Further the Parent 
Company owns 51.96 percent of the share capital of Berdex Construction Chemicals (Private) Limited. 
The Group is a subsidiary of Slotrapid Limited British Virgin Islands ("The Holding Company").

  Berdex Construction Chemicals (Private) Limited is under the process of members' voluntary winding up 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. Therefore, its nancial statements have not been 
prepared on a going concern basis and the historical cost convention has been adjusted for realization of 
assets and liquidation of liabilities that might be necessary. The carrying value of its assets and liabilities 
as at 30 June 2019 approximates their realizable value.

  Following is the pertinent information related to the Holding Company;

            

 

 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2019

  Auditor's opinion on latest nancial statements of the Holding Company is not available as the country of 
incorporation does not have any such statutory requirement.

          Particulars Related Information

Registered Address Suit # 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street, Wickham Cay 
1, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Island.

Principle Ofcer - President / Director Vernon Emmanuel Salazar Zurita

Aggregate Percentage of Holding

Operational Status

52.05%

Active

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

 
 

Balance as at 01 July 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2018

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as available for sale

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on 

property, plant and machinery - net of tax

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2018

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (net of tax)

Adjusted balance as at 01 July 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year 

 ended 30 June 2019

Prot for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Fair value loss on Investment classied as FVOCI

- Remeasurement of dened benet obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of incremental depreciation

from revaluation surplus on property

plant and machinery - net of tax

Transfer of revaluation surplus due to

disposal of revalued assets

Transactions with the owners of the Company

Final cash dividend at the rate of 12.5% 

(i.e. Rs. 1.25 per share ) for the year  

ended 30 June 2018

Issue of Bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares held)  

Reversal of deferred tax due to change of rate

Balance as at 30 June 2019

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these nancial statements.

Rupees in thousand 

Share 

premium

Surplus on 

revaluation 

on property, 

plant and 

machinery

Fair value 

reserve

 General 

reserve  

 Accumulated 

prot 

 Total equity 

attributable to 

owners of the 

Parent 

Company 

 Non 

controlling

Interests 

181,864 56,819 521,363 28,988 285,000 365,635 1,439,669 18,158 1,457,827

- - - - - 105,043 105,043 2,441 107,484

- - - (7,281) - - (7,281) - (7,281)

- - - - - (5,966) (5,966) (5,966)

- - - (7,281) - 99,077 91,796 2,441 94,237

-

 

-

 

(15,390)

 

-

 

- 15,390 - - -

-

 

-

 

3,158

 

-

 

- 3,158 - 3,158

-

 

-

 

(12,232)

 

-

 

- 15,390 3,158 - 3,158

181,864

 

56,819

 

509,131

 

21,707

 

285,000

 

480,102 1,534,623 20,599 1,555,222

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

- (5,039) (5,039) - (5,039)

181,864

 

56,819

 

509,131

 

21,707

 

285,000

 

475,063 1,529,584 20,599 1,550,183

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- 100,057 100,057 (3,264) 96,793

-

 

-

 

-

 

(12,783)

 

- (12,783) - (12,783)

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- 3,391 3,391 - 3,391

-

 

-

 

-

 

(12,783)

 

- 103,448 90,665 (3,264) 87,401

- - (17,632) - - 17,632 - - -

- - (15,581) - - 15,581 - - -

- - - - - (22,733) (22,733) - (22,733)

22,733 (22,733) - - - - - -

- - (3,906) - - (3,906) - (3,906)

22,733 (22,733) (37,119) - - 10,480 (26,639) - (26,639)

204,597 34,086 472,012 8,924 285,000 588,991 1,593,610 17,335 1,610,945

 Total  

Issued, 

subscribed 

and paid-up 

capital

Reserves

 Revenue Capital

                                                                

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director
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2 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

 2.1 Consolidated nancial statements

  These consolidated nancial statements comprise the nancial statements of the Parent Company and 
its subsidiary companies as at 30 June 2019.

  (a) Subsidiaries

   The nancial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line 
basis and the carrying values of the investments held by the Parent Company have been 
eliminated against the shareholders' equity in the subsidiary companies.

   The nancial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the 
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies.

   All intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses and prots or losses resulting from 
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full.

   The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the 
group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

  (b) Non-controlling interest

   Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the 
subsidiaries which are not owned by the Parent Company. Non-controlling interest is presented 
as a separate item in the consolidated nancial statements. The Group applies a policy of treating 
transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. 
Disposals to non-controlling interests result in gains and losses for the Group and are recorded in 
the consolidated statement of prot or loss.

  (c) Associates

   Associates are all entities over which the Group has signicant inuence but not control. The 
Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition prot or loss is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of prot or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised 
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying 
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its 
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not 
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the 
associate.

   Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

 2.2 Statement of compliance

  These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.  The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of:

  - International Financial Reporting Standards "(IFRS)" issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notied under the Companies Act 2017;

  - Islamic Financial Accounting Standards "(IFAS)" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan as notied under the Companies Act, 2017; and

  - Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

  Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

 2.3 Basis of measurement

  These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
for revaluation of certain nancial instruments at fair value as referred to in note 3.17, the measurement of 
certain items of property, plant and equipment as referred to in note 21 at revalued amounts and 
recognition of certain staff retirement and other long term benets as referred to in note 3.10 at present 
value and fair value respectively.

  In these consolidated  nancial statements, except for the amounts reected in the cash ow statement, 
all transaction have been accounted for on accrual basis.

 2.4 Functional and presentation currency

  These consolidated nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees ("Rs."), which is the Group's 
functional and presentation currency. All nancial information has been rounded to the nearest thousand 
rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

3 Signicant accounting policies

 The signicant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
consolidated nancial statements, except as disclosed in note 3.1.

 3.1 Changes in signicant accounting policy

 3.1.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

  IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue 
is recognized. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. 
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of the goods or services. 
Determining the timing of the transfer of control – at a point in time or over time requires judgment. The 
Parent Company is engaged in the sale of paints, varnishes and other related items. The contracts with 
customers for the sale of goods generally includes single performance obligation. The Subsidiary 
Company is engaged in road marking paints and installation of various road safety equipments generally 
includes single performance obligation. Management has concluded that revenue from application of 
road marking paints and installation of road safety equipments be recognised over time at percentage of 
completionManagement has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in 
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer. The above is generally consistent with the 
timing and amounts of revenue the Group recognised in accordance with the previous standard, IAS 18. 
Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 which has replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts 
and related interpretations at 01 July 2018, did not have a material impact on the amounts of revenue 
recognized in these  consolidated nancial statements except for reclassication of freight and handling 
cost from selling and distribution to cost of sales. Accordingly, selling and distribution costs of  Rs. 134.51 
million (2018: Rs. 119.78 million) have been reclassied to cost of sales. Similarly, the amounts received 
for future sale of goods were reclassied to 'contract liabilities' which were previously classied as 
"advances from customers". Group's accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is explained in 
note 3.16 of these consolidated nancial statements.

 3.1.2 Impact of nancial statements

  As at 01 July 2018, contract liabilities were increased by Rs. 76.87 million and advance from customers 
decreased by the same amount.

 3.1.3 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

  IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' that 
relates to the recognition, classication and measurement of nancial assets and nancial liabilities, 
derecognition of nancial instruments, impairment of nancial assets and hedge accounting. The details 
of new signicant accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of the changes to previous 
accounting policies are set out below:
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2 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

 2.1 Consolidated nancial statements

  These consolidated nancial statements comprise the nancial statements of the Parent Company and 
its subsidiary companies as at 30 June 2019.

  (a) Subsidiaries

   The nancial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line 
basis and the carrying values of the investments held by the Parent Company have been 
eliminated against the shareholders' equity in the subsidiary companies.

   The nancial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the 
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies.

   All intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses and prots or losses resulting from 
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full.

   The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the 
group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

  (b) Non-controlling interest

   Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the 
subsidiaries which are not owned by the Parent Company. Non-controlling interest is presented 
as a separate item in the consolidated nancial statements. The Group applies a policy of treating 
transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. 
Disposals to non-controlling interests result in gains and losses for the Group and are recorded in 
the consolidated statement of prot or loss.

  (c) Associates

   Associates are all entities over which the Group has signicant inuence but not control. The 
Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition prot or loss is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of prot or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised 
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying 
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its 
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not 
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the 
associate.

   Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

 2.2 Statement of compliance

  These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.  The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of:

  - International Financial Reporting Standards "(IFRS)" issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notied under the Companies Act 2017;

  - Islamic Financial Accounting Standards "(IFAS)" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan as notied under the Companies Act, 2017; and

  - Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

  Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

 2.3 Basis of measurement

  These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
for revaluation of certain nancial instruments at fair value as referred to in note 3.17, the measurement of 
certain items of property, plant and equipment as referred to in note 21 at revalued amounts and 
recognition of certain staff retirement and other long term benets as referred to in note 3.10 at present 
value and fair value respectively.

  In these consolidated  nancial statements, except for the amounts reected in the cash ow statement, 
all transaction have been accounted for on accrual basis.

 2.4 Functional and presentation currency

  These consolidated nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees ("Rs."), which is the Group's 
functional and presentation currency. All nancial information has been rounded to the nearest thousand 
rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

3 Signicant accounting policies

 The signicant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
consolidated nancial statements, except as disclosed in note 3.1.

 3.1 Changes in signicant accounting policy

 3.1.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

  IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue 
is recognized. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. 
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of the goods or services. 
Determining the timing of the transfer of control – at a point in time or over time requires judgment. The 
Parent Company is engaged in the sale of paints, varnishes and other related items. The contracts with 
customers for the sale of goods generally includes single performance obligation. The Subsidiary 
Company is engaged in road marking paints and installation of various road safety equipments generally 
includes single performance obligation. Management has concluded that revenue from application of 
road marking paints and installation of road safety equipments be recognised over time at percentage of 
completionManagement has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in 
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer. The above is generally consistent with the 
timing and amounts of revenue the Group recognised in accordance with the previous standard, IAS 18. 
Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 which has replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts 
and related interpretations at 01 July 2018, did not have a material impact on the amounts of revenue 
recognized in these  consolidated nancial statements except for reclassication of freight and handling 
cost from selling and distribution to cost of sales. Accordingly, selling and distribution costs of  Rs. 134.51 
million (2018: Rs. 119.78 million) have been reclassied to cost of sales. Similarly, the amounts received 
for future sale of goods were reclassied to 'contract liabilities' which were previously classied as 
"advances from customers". Group's accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is explained in 
note 3.16 of these consolidated nancial statements.

 3.1.2 Impact of nancial statements

  As at 01 July 2018, contract liabilities were increased by Rs. 76.87 million and advance from customers 
decreased by the same amount.

 3.1.3 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

  IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' that 
relates to the recognition, classication and measurement of nancial assets and nancial liabilities, 
derecognition of nancial instruments, impairment of nancial assets and hedge accounting. The details 
of new signicant accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of the changes to previous 
accounting policies are set out below:

 

        

 

  

Trusted Worldwide
BERGER PAINTS Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

152 153



 3.1.4 Classication and measurement of nancial instruments

  IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classication and measurement of 
nancial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for nancial assets of held to 
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Group 
classies its nancial assets in the following measurement categories:

  - those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCl), or through prot or loss (FVTPL); and

  - those to be measured at amortised cost

  The classication depends on the Group's business model for managing the nancial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash ows.

  A nancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through prot or loss:

  - it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; 
and

  - Its contractual terms give rise, on specied dates, to cash ows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on principal amount outstanding.

  Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. 
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in prot or loss. Any 
gain on derecognition is recognised in prot or loss.

  Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. 
Dividend income is recognised in prot or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and are not reclassied to prot or loss.

 3.1.5 Impact of change in classication and measurement of nancial assets due to adoption of IFRS 9

  The following table explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new 
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group's nancial assets at 01 July 2018:

New 

classication

under 

IFRS 9

Original 

carrying 

amount under 

IAS 39

New carrying 

amount under 

IFRS 9

FVOCI 25,537

           

            25,537 

Amortized 

cost

25,613

           

            25,613 

Amortized 

cost

1,441,711

      

       1,441,711 

Amortized 

cost

26,869

           

            26,869 

Amortized 

cost

1,237,001        1,229,904 

Original classication 

under IAS 39

Available for sale

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivable

Cash and bank 

balances

Deposits and 

other receivables

Long term 

deposits

Trade debts - 

unsecured, 

considered good

Financial Assets

Listed equity 

security

  Impairment of nancial assets

  The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Group's impairment model by replacing the IAS 39 ‘incurred loss 
model’ with a forward looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model when assessing the impairment of 
nancial assets in the scope of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognize ECLs for trade debts earlier 
than IAS 39. Cash and bank balances, deposits and other receivables are also subject to ECL but there is 
no or immaterial impairment for the current year.

  Under IFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: 
these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; 
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
nancial instrument

  The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplied approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a 
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

  Loss allowance on bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since they are short 
term in nature and there is no adverse change in credit rating of the banks where the balances are 
maintained, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.

  Impact of ECL

  The Group has applied IFRS 9 using the modied retrospective approach. Under this approach, 
comparative information is not restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 9 is recognised 
in retained earnings at the date of initial application. Considering the quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment 
including forward-looking information, The Group has recognised loss allowance amounting to Rs. 7.10 
million against trade debts upon transition to IFRS 9 as of 01 July 2018 with a corresponding effect in 
opening retained earning and deferred taxation amounting to Rs. 5.04 million and Rs. 2.06 million. 

 3.2 Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identied 
impairment loss, except for freehold and leasehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery, 
which are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

  Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to 
the revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account except for a reversal of decit already 
charged to consolidated statement of prot or loss. A revaluation decit is recognized in consolidated 
statement of prot or loss, except for a decit directly offsetting a previous surplus, in which case the 
decit is taken to revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account. The revaluation surplus 
on property, plant and machinery to the extent of the annual incremental depreciation based on the 
revalued carrying amount of the assets is transferred annually directly to consolidated retained earnings 
net of related deferred tax. Any accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated against the 
gross carrying amount of the assets and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the assets. 
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to 
consolidated retained earnings. All transfers to / from revaluation surplus on property, plant and 
machinery account are net of applicable deferred income tax. Further, the revaluation surplus on 
property, plant and machinery shall be utilized in accordance with IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment.

  Depreciation on all property plant and equipment except freehold land is charged to consolidated prot 
and loss account using the straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an asset is written 
off over its estimated useful life at the annual rates as disclosed in note 6.1. Residual values are reviewed 
at each consolidated statement of nancial position date and adjusted if the impact on depreciation is 
signicant.
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 3.1.4 Classication and measurement of nancial instruments

  IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classication and measurement of 
nancial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for nancial assets of held to 
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Group 
classies its nancial assets in the following measurement categories:

  - those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCl), or through prot or loss (FVTPL); and

  - those to be measured at amortised cost

  The classication depends on the Group's business model for managing the nancial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash ows.

  A nancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at fair value through prot or loss:

  - it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; 
and

  - Its contractual terms give rise, on specied dates, to cash ows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on principal amount outstanding.

  Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. 
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in prot or loss. Any 
gain on derecognition is recognised in prot or loss.

  Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. 
Dividend income is recognised in prot or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and are not reclassied to prot or loss.

 3.1.5 Impact of change in classication and measurement of nancial assets due to adoption of IFRS 9

  The following table explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new 
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group's nancial assets at 01 July 2018:

New 

classication

under 

IFRS 9

Original 

carrying 

amount under 

IAS 39

New carrying 

amount under 

IFRS 9

FVOCI 25,537

           

            25,537 

Amortized 

cost

25,613

           

            25,613 

Amortized 

cost

1,441,711

      

       1,441,711 

Amortized 

cost

26,869
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Amortized 

cost

1,237,001        1,229,904 

Original classication 

under IAS 39

Available for sale

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivable

Cash and bank 

balances

Deposits and 

other receivables

Long term 

deposits

Trade debts - 

unsecured, 

considered good

Financial Assets

Listed equity 

security

  Impairment of nancial assets

  The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the Group's impairment model by replacing the IAS 39 ‘incurred loss 
model’ with a forward looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model when assessing the impairment of 
nancial assets in the scope of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognize ECLs for trade debts earlier 
than IAS 39. Cash and bank balances, deposits and other receivables are also subject to ECL but there is 
no or immaterial impairment for the current year.

  Under IFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: 
these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; 
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
nancial instrument

  The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplied approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a 
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables are 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

  Loss allowance on bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since they are short 
term in nature and there is no adverse change in credit rating of the banks where the balances are 
maintained, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.

  Impact of ECL

  The Group has applied IFRS 9 using the modied retrospective approach. Under this approach, 
comparative information is not restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 9 is recognised 
in retained earnings at the date of initial application. Considering the quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment 
including forward-looking information, The Group has recognised loss allowance amounting to Rs. 7.10 
million against trade debts upon transition to IFRS 9 as of 01 July 2018 with a corresponding effect in 
opening retained earning and deferred taxation amounting to Rs. 5.04 million and Rs. 2.06 million. 

 3.2 Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identied 
impairment loss, except for freehold and leasehold land, buildings thereon and plant and machinery, 
which are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

  Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to 
the revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account except for a reversal of decit already 
charged to consolidated statement of prot or loss. A revaluation decit is recognized in consolidated 
statement of prot or loss, except for a decit directly offsetting a previous surplus, in which case the 
decit is taken to revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery account. The revaluation surplus 
on property, plant and machinery to the extent of the annual incremental depreciation based on the 
revalued carrying amount of the assets is transferred annually directly to consolidated retained earnings 
net of related deferred tax. Any accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated against the 
gross carrying amount of the assets and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the assets. 
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to 
consolidated retained earnings. All transfers to / from revaluation surplus on property, plant and 
machinery account are net of applicable deferred income tax. Further, the revaluation surplus on 
property, plant and machinery shall be utilized in accordance with IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment.

  Depreciation on all property plant and equipment except freehold land is charged to consolidated prot 
and loss account using the straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an asset is written 
off over its estimated useful life at the annual rates as disclosed in note 6.1. Residual values are reviewed 
at each consolidated statement of nancial position date and adjusted if the impact on depreciation is 
signicant.
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  Useful lives are regularly reviewed by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected 
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the 
assets and other similar factors.

  Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset 
is put to use or capitalized while depreciation on assets disposed off is charged up to the month 
preceding the disposal.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benets are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment are represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset is recognized as an income or expense in consolidated statement of prot or loss.

  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to prot or loss account as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized.

  Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identied impairment in value, if any. It consists of all 
expenditure and advances connected with specic assets incurred and made during installation and 
construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment category as and 
when assets are available for intended use.

 3.2.1 Non nancial assets impairment

  The Group assesses at each consolidated statement of nancial position date whether there is any 
indication that the assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets 
are reviewed to determine whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where 
carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable 
amounts and the resulting impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of prot or loss 
currently except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is recognized directly against any 
revaluation surplus for the related asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the 
amount held in the revaluation surplus for the same asset.

 3.3 Intangibles

  Intangibles are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible comprise of its purchase price including 
non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs 
directly attributable to acquisition. Cost incurred after the asset is in the condition necessary for it to 
operate in the manner intended by Group's management are recognised in the consolidated statement of 
prot or loss.

 3.3.1 Computer software

  Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization and any identied impairment loss.

  Amortization on assets with nite useful life is charged to consolidated  prot or loss account on straight 
line basis so  as to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on addition is 
charged form the month in which the asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for 
the month in which the asset is disposed off. Amortization is being charged at annual rates as specied in 
note 7.

 3.3.2 Goodwill acquired in business combinations

  The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of businesses by the Group. 
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and 
liabilities incurred or assumed, if any, at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities, if any, assumed in a 
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the 
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 3.3.3 Impairment

  The Group assesses at each statement of nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
intangible assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying 
amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable 
amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

 3.4 Stores and spare parts

  These are valued at moving weighted average cost less any identied impairment except for items in 
transit, which are valued at invoice price and related expenses incurred up to the statement of nancial 
position date. Items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. General stores and spare parts are 
charged to consolidated statement of prot and loss currently. The Group reviews the carrying amount of 
stores on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern 
and physical form of related stores.

 3.5 Stocks-in-trade

  Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of weighted average cost and estimated Net Realizable Value ("NRV").

  Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

  Raw materials, packing materials and Semi-processed goods Moving weighted average cost

  Finished goods      M o v i n g  w e i g h t e d  a v e r a g e 
manufacturing cost

  Finished goods purchased for resale    Moving weighted average cost

  Stock in transit      Invoice value plus other charges 
paid thereon up to the reporting date

  NRV signies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.

  Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade is made on management estimate, whenever 
necessary.

 3.6 Trade debts and other receivables

  These are classied at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured 
at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of 
expected credit loss.

 3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise of running nance, cash balances, call deposits and investments 
with maturities of less than three months or less from acquisition date that are subject to insignicant risk 
of changes in fair value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 
statement of cashows . 
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  Useful lives are regularly reviewed by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected 
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the 
assets and other similar factors.

  Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asset 
is put to use or capitalized while depreciation on assets disposed off is charged up to the month 
preceding the disposal.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benets are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment are represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset is recognized as an income or expense in consolidated statement of prot or loss.

  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to prot or loss account as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized.

  Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identied impairment in value, if any. It consists of all 
expenditure and advances connected with specic assets incurred and made during installation and 
construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment category as and 
when assets are available for intended use.

 3.2.1 Non nancial assets impairment

  The Group assesses at each consolidated statement of nancial position date whether there is any 
indication that the assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets 
are reviewed to determine whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where 
carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable 
amounts and the resulting impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of prot or loss 
currently except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is recognized directly against any 
revaluation surplus for the related asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the 
amount held in the revaluation surplus for the same asset.

 3.3 Intangibles

  Intangibles are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible comprise of its purchase price including 
non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs 
directly attributable to acquisition. Cost incurred after the asset is in the condition necessary for it to 
operate in the manner intended by Group's management are recognised in the consolidated statement of 
prot or loss.

 3.3.1 Computer software

  Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost 
less accumulated amortization and any identied impairment loss.

  Amortization on assets with nite useful life is charged to consolidated  prot or loss account on straight 
line basis so  as to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Amortization on addition is 
charged form the month in which the asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged for 
the month in which the asset is disposed off. Amortization is being charged at annual rates as specied in 
note 7.

 3.3.2 Goodwill acquired in business combinations

  The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of businesses by the Group. 
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and 
liabilities incurred or assumed, if any, at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities, if any, assumed in a 
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the 
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 3.3.3 Impairment

  The Group assesses at each statement of nancial position date whether there is any indication that 
intangible assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying 
amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable 
amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

 3.4 Stores and spare parts

  These are valued at moving weighted average cost less any identied impairment except for items in 
transit, which are valued at invoice price and related expenses incurred up to the statement of nancial 
position date. Items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. General stores and spare parts are 
charged to consolidated statement of prot and loss currently. The Group reviews the carrying amount of 
stores on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern 
and physical form of related stores.

 3.5 Stocks-in-trade

  Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of weighted average cost and estimated Net Realizable Value ("NRV").

  Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

  Raw materials, packing materials and Semi-processed goods Moving weighted average cost

  Finished goods      M o v i n g  w e i g h t e d  a v e r a g e 
manufacturing cost

  Finished goods purchased for resale    Moving weighted average cost

  Stock in transit      Invoice value plus other charges 
paid thereon up to the reporting date

  NRV signies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses.

  Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock in trade is made on management estimate, whenever 
necessary.

 3.6 Trade debts and other receivables

  These are classied at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured 
at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of 
expected credit loss.

 3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise of running nance, cash balances, call deposits and investments 
with maturities of less than three months or less from acquisition date that are subject to insignicant risk 
of changes in fair value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 
statement of cashows . 
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 3.8 Taxation

  Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in consolidated prot or loss 
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in statement of comprehensive income, in 
which case it is recognised in equity.

  Current  tax

  Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or 
tax rates expected to apply to the prot for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates 
and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered 
necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year 
for such years. Under / over paid amount of current tax is recorded as tax refundable / payable due from / 
to the Government.

  The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. 
Instances where the Group's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in 
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences at 
the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
nancial reporting purposes.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets are 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax losses and tax 
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable prot will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses can be utilized.

  The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of nancial position date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufcient taxable prots will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of nancial position date. In this regard, the effects on 
deferred taxation of the proportion of income that is subject to nal tax regime is also considered in 
accordance with the treatment prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 3.9 Leases

  Operating lease

  Leases including Ijarah nancing where a signicant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are 
retained by the lessor are classied as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of 
any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of prot and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease / Ijarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of the time 
pattern of the Group’s benet.

 3.10 Employees benets

  Short term employee benet

  Short-term employee benets are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for 
the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 3.10.1 Dened benet plan

  The Group operates the following dened benet schemes:

  a) An approved and funded pension scheme for all executives; and

  b) An approved and funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. 

  Pension scheme

  The Group offers Pension benets to its executive staff. Monthly pension is calculated as one percent of 
the average basic salary of the last year multiplied with pensionable service.

  Gratuity scheme

  The Group offers Gratuity benets to its all of its permanent employees, and is payable to employees 
having service in the Group for minimum ve years. The Gratuity benets provided by the Group is 
calculated by multiplying last drawn basic salary with number of years of service and gratuity factor.

  Actuarial valuation are carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Contributions to the schemes 
are based on these valuations. Remeasurements of the dened benet liability, which comprise actuarial 
gains and losses, is recognised immediately in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. 
The Group determines the interest expense on the dened benet liability for the period by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the dened benet obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the 
then dened benet liability, taking into account any changes in the net dened benet liability during the 
period as a result of benet payments. Interest expense and other expenses related to dened benet 
plan are recognized in the consolidated statement of prot and loss. The Group recognises gains and 
losses on the settlement of a dened benet plan when the settlement occurs. The main features of 
dened benet schemes are mentioned in note 23.

 3.10.2 Dened contribution plan

  Provident fund

  The Group also operates a recognized provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made, both by the Group and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10 percent of 
basic salary for executive and non-executive staff.

 3.10.3 Other long term benets - Accumulated compensated absences

  The Group also provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the 
rules of the Group. The Group accounts for these benets in the period in which the absences are earned. 
Employees are entitled to earned leaves of 21 days per annum. The unutilized leaves are accumulated 
subject to a maximum of 42 days. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be encashed at the time the 
employee leaves Group service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of 42 days of an employee is 
ignored while determining benet obligations.

  The Group uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for valuation of 
its accumulated compensating absences. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for 
accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation and are charged to the consolidated 
statement of prot and loss. The amount recognised in the statement of nancial position represents the 
present value of the dened benet obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the 
consolidated statement of prot and loss immediately in the period when these occur. The following 
signicant assumptions have been used:

  Discount rate     12.5% per annum

  Expected rate of salary increase in future years  11.5% per annum
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 3.8 Taxation

  Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in consolidated prot or loss 
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in statement of comprehensive income, in 
which case it is recognised in equity.

  Current  tax

  Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or 
tax rates expected to apply to the prot for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates 
and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered 
necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year 
for such years. Under / over paid amount of current tax is recorded as tax refundable / payable due from / 
to the Government.

  The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. 
Instances where the Group's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in 
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences at 
the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
nancial reporting purposes.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets are 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax losses and tax 
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable prot will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and / or carry-forward of unused tax losses can be utilized.

  The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of nancial position date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufcient taxable prots will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of nancial position date. In this regard, the effects on 
deferred taxation of the proportion of income that is subject to nal tax regime is also considered in 
accordance with the treatment prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 3.9 Leases

  Operating lease

  Leases including Ijarah nancing where a signicant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are 
retained by the lessor are classied as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of 
any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of prot and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease / Ijarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of the time 
pattern of the Group’s benet.

 3.10 Employees benets

  Short term employee benet

  Short-term employee benets are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for 
the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 3.10.1 Dened benet plan

  The Group operates the following dened benet schemes:

  a) An approved and funded pension scheme for all executives; and

  b) An approved and funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. 

  Pension scheme

  The Group offers Pension benets to its executive staff. Monthly pension is calculated as one percent of 
the average basic salary of the last year multiplied with pensionable service.

  Gratuity scheme

  The Group offers Gratuity benets to its all of its permanent employees, and is payable to employees 
having service in the Group for minimum ve years. The Gratuity benets provided by the Group is 
calculated by multiplying last drawn basic salary with number of years of service and gratuity factor.

  Actuarial valuation are carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Contributions to the schemes 
are based on these valuations. Remeasurements of the dened benet liability, which comprise actuarial 
gains and losses, is recognised immediately in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. 
The Group determines the interest expense on the dened benet liability for the period by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the dened benet obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the 
then dened benet liability, taking into account any changes in the net dened benet liability during the 
period as a result of benet payments. Interest expense and other expenses related to dened benet 
plan are recognized in the consolidated statement of prot and loss. The Group recognises gains and 
losses on the settlement of a dened benet plan when the settlement occurs. The main features of 
dened benet schemes are mentioned in note 23.

 3.10.2 Dened contribution plan

  Provident fund

  The Group also operates a recognized provident fund scheme for its employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made, both by the Group and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10 percent of 
basic salary for executive and non-executive staff.

 3.10.3 Other long term benets - Accumulated compensated absences

  The Group also provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the 
rules of the Group. The Group accounts for these benets in the period in which the absences are earned. 
Employees are entitled to earned leaves of 21 days per annum. The unutilized leaves are accumulated 
subject to a maximum of 42 days. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be encashed at the time the 
employee leaves Group service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of 42 days of an employee is 
ignored while determining benet obligations.

  The Group uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for valuation of 
its accumulated compensating absences. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for 
accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation and are charged to the consolidated 
statement of prot and loss. The amount recognised in the statement of nancial position represents the 
present value of the dened benet obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the 
consolidated statement of prot and loss immediately in the period when these occur. The following 
signicant assumptions have been used:

  Discount rate     12.5% per annum

  Expected rate of salary increase in future years  11.5% per annum
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 3.11 Contract liabilities

  A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer 
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 
recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are 
recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities 
arising out of customers‘ right to claim amounts from the Group on account of contractual delays in 
delivery of performance obligations and incentive on target achievements.

 3.12 Provisions

  Provisions are recognized when, the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required to 
settle the obligations and reliable estimates of the obligations can be made. Provisions are reviewed 
periodically and adjusted to reect the current best estimates.

 3.13 Contingent assets

  Contingent assets are possible assets those arise from past events and whose existence will be 
conrmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Group and are disclosed when inow of economic benets is probable. 
Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization become virtually certain.

 3.14 Contingent liabilities

  A contingent liability is disclosed when: 

  - there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be conrmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Group; or

  - there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outow of resources 
embodying economic benets will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufcient reliability.

 3.15 Foreign currency transactions and translation

  Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Group’s functional and 
presentation currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the 
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using 
the exchange rate at the statement of nancial position date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to the consolidated statement of prot 
and loss currently. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are 
measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at 
fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

 3.16 Revenue recognition 

  Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for sale of products, net of 
sales returns and discounts. The Group's customer arrangements contain a single performance 
obligation to transfer manufactured or purchased paints, varnishes and other related items, application of 
road marking paints and installation of various road safety equipments.

 3.17 Financial instruments

 3.17.1 Recognition and initial measurement

  All nancial assets or nancial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

  A nancial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a signicant nancing component) or nancial 
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A receivable without a signicant nancing component is initially 
measured at the transaction price.

 3.17.2 Classication and subsequent measurement

  Financial assets

  On initial recognition, a nancial asset is classied as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL).

  Financial assets are not reclassied subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its 
business model for managing nancial assets, in which case all affected nancial assets are reclassied 
on the rst day of the rst reporting period following the change in the business model.

  Amortized cost

  A nancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; 
and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The 
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in consolidated statement of  prot or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition 
is recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss.

  Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade debts 
and other receivables.

  Debt Instrument - FVOCI

  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 
as at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
ows and selling nancial assets; and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective 
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in consolidated 
statement of prot or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassied to consolidated statement of prot or loss. However, the 
Group has no such instrument at the balance sheet date.

  Equity Instrument - FVOCI

  On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect 
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an 
investment-by-investment basis.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
consolidated statement of prot or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the 
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassied to 
consolidated statement of prot or loss.  
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  A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer 
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 
recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are 
recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities 
arising out of customers‘ right to claim amounts from the Group on account of contractual delays in 
delivery of performance obligations and incentive on target achievements.

 3.12 Provisions

  Provisions are recognized when, the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required to 
settle the obligations and reliable estimates of the obligations can be made. Provisions are reviewed 
periodically and adjusted to reect the current best estimates.

 3.13 Contingent assets

  Contingent assets are possible assets those arise from past events and whose existence will be 
conrmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Group and are disclosed when inow of economic benets is probable. 
Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization become virtually certain.

 3.14 Contingent liabilities

  A contingent liability is disclosed when: 

  - there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be conrmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Group; or

  - there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outow of resources 
embodying economic benets will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufcient reliability.

 3.15 Foreign currency transactions and translation

  Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Group’s functional and 
presentation currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the 
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using 
the exchange rate at the statement of nancial position date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to the consolidated statement of prot 
and loss currently. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are 
measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at 
fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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  Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for sale of products, net of 
sales returns and discounts. The Group's customer arrangements contain a single performance 
obligation to transfer manufactured or purchased paints, varnishes and other related items, application of 
road marking paints and installation of various road safety equipments.

 3.17 Financial instruments

 3.17.1 Recognition and initial measurement

  All nancial assets or nancial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

  A nancial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a signicant nancing component) or nancial 
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A receivable without a signicant nancing component is initially 
measured at the transaction price.

 3.17.2 Classication and subsequent measurement

  Financial assets

  On initial recognition, a nancial asset is classied as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL).

  Financial assets are not reclassied subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its 
business model for managing nancial assets, in which case all affected nancial assets are reclassied 
on the rst day of the rst reporting period following the change in the business model.

  Amortized cost

  A nancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash ows; 
and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The 
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in consolidated statement of  prot or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition 
is recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss.

  Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade debts 
and other receivables.

  Debt Instrument - FVOCI

  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 
as at FVTPL:

  - it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
ows and selling nancial assets; and

  - its contractual terms give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective 
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in consolidated 
statement of prot or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassied to consolidated statement of prot or loss. However, the 
Group has no such instrument at the balance sheet date.

  Equity Instrument - FVOCI

  On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect 
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an 
investment-by-investment basis.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
consolidated statement of prot or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the 
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassied to 
consolidated statement of prot or loss.  
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  Financial liabilities

  The Group derecognizes a nancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expire. The Group also derecognizes a nancial liability when its terms are modied and the cash ows 
of the modied liability are substantially different, in which case a new nancial liability based on the 
modied terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a nancial liability, the difference between 
the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred 
or liabilities assumed) is recognized consolidated statement of in prot or loss.

 3.18 Dividends and appropriations to general reserve

  Dividends and appropriations to general reserves are recognized in the consolidated nancial 
statements in the period in which these are approved.

 3.19 Related party transactions

  The Group enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis except in circumstances 
where, subject to approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Group to do so.

 3.20 Operating prot

  Consolidated operating prot is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing 
activities of the Group. Consolidated operating prot excludes other income, other expenses, nance 
costs, share of loss from associate and income taxes.

4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective

 The following International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as notied under the Companies Act, 2017 
and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 
July 2019:

 - IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019) claries the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax 
treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reected in the 
measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact 
on Group’s nancial statements.

 - IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces 
existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement 
contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of 
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease 
accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the 
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are 
recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains 
similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as nance or operating leases. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Group's nancial statements

 - Amendment to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for 
measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash ows to meet the SPPI 
criterion – i.e. the cash ows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’. Some prepayment options 
could result in the party that triggers the early termination receiving compensation from the other party 
(negative compensation). The amendment allows that nancial assets containing prepayment features 
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. The application of 
amendment is not likely to have an impact on Group’s nancial statements.

  Fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL)

  All nancial assets are not classied as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. 

  On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a nancial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 
signicantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. However, the Company has 
no such instrument at the statement of nancial position date.

  Financial assets – Business model assessment:

  For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is dened as the fair value of the nancial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is dened as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a prot margin.

  In assessing whether the contractual cash ows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the nancial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash ows such that it 
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

  - contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash ows;

  - terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including;

  - prepayment and extension features; and

  - terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash ows from specied assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

  Financial liabilities

  Financial liabilities are classied as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A nancial liability is classied 
as at FVTPL if it is classied as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including 
any interest expense, are recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. Other nancial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and 
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition is also recognized in consolidated statement of  prot or loss.

 3.17.3 Derecognition

  Financial assets

  The Group derecognizes a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the nancial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash ows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the nancial asset are transferred or in which the 
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not 
retain control of the nancial asset.

  The Group might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of 
nancial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred 
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
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  Financial liabilities

  The Group derecognizes a nancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expire. The Group also derecognizes a nancial liability when its terms are modied and the cash ows 
of the modied liability are substantially different, in which case a new nancial liability based on the 
modied terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a nancial liability, the difference between 
the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred 
or liabilities assumed) is recognized consolidated statement of in prot or loss.

 3.18 Dividends and appropriations to general reserve

  Dividends and appropriations to general reserves are recognized in the consolidated nancial 
statements in the period in which these are approved.

 3.19 Related party transactions

  The Group enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis except in circumstances 
where, subject to approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Group to do so.

 3.20 Operating prot

  Consolidated operating prot is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing 
activities of the Group. Consolidated operating prot excludes other income, other expenses, nance 
costs, share of loss from associate and income taxes.

4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet 
effective

 The following International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as notied under the Companies Act, 2017 
and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 
July 2019:

 - IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019) claries the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax 
treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reected in the 
measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact 
on Group’s nancial statements.

 - IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces 
existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement 
contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of 
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease 
accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the 
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are 
recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains 
similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as nance or operating leases. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Group's nancial statements

 - Amendment to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for 
measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash ows to meet the SPPI 
criterion – i.e. the cash ows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’. Some prepayment options 
could result in the party that triggers the early termination receiving compensation from the other party 
(negative compensation). The amendment allows that nancial assets containing prepayment features 
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. The application of 
amendment is not likely to have an impact on Group’s nancial statements.

  Fair value through prot or loss (FVTPL)

  All nancial assets are not classied as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. 

  On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a nancial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 
signicantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. However, the Company has 
no such instrument at the statement of nancial position date.

  Financial assets – Business model assessment:

  For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is dened as the fair value of the nancial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is dened as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a prot margin.

  In assessing whether the contractual cash ows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the nancial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash ows such that it 
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

  - contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash ows;

  - terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including;

  - prepayment and extension features; and

  - terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash ows from specied assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

  Financial liabilities

  Financial liabilities are classied as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A nancial liability is classied 
as at FVTPL if it is classied as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including 
any interest expense, are recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. Other nancial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and 
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in consolidated statement of prot or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition is also recognized in consolidated statement of  prot or loss.

 3.17.3 Derecognition

  Financial assets

  The Group derecognizes a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the nancial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash ows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the nancial asset are transferred or in which the 
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not 
retain control of the nancial asset.

  The Group might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of 
nancial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred 
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
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 - Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates 
and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will 
affect companies that nance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is 
not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and 
accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual 
sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Group’s nancial statements.

 - Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benets’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, 
curtailment or settlement of a dened benet plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions 
to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is 
disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in 
other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on Group’s 
nancial statements.

 - Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ – Denition of a Business (effective for business 
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or 
after 1 January 2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difculties that arise when 
an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets.  The amendments clarify 
that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an 
input and a substantive process that together signicantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The 
amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in 
the future and therefore would not have an impact on Group's past nancial statements.

 - Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The 
amendments are intended to make the denition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not 
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also 
issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose nancial 
statements in accordance with IFRS Standards. The application of amendments is not likely to have an 
impact on Group’s nancial statements.

 - On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised 
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that 
will set a new direction for IFRS in the future.. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the 
IASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does 
not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will 
be subject to the usual due process – this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take 
some time to crystallise. The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their 
accounting policies in the absence of specic IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should 
review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new 
guidance contains specic scope outs.  The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on 
Group’s nancial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to 
following approved accounting standards:

 - IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the 
accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the denition 
of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains 
control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation 
when it obtains joint control of the business.

 - IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment claries that all income tax consequences of dividends (including 
payments on nancial instruments classied as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction 
that generates the distributable prots.

 - IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment claries that a company treats as part of general borrowings 
any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are not likely 
to have an impact on consolidated nancial statements.

5 Use of judgments and estimates

 The preparation of these consolidated nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions 
and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period, or in the period 
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various 
assumptions and estimates are signicant to Group's nancial statements or where judgments were exercised in 
application of accounting policies are:

             

                        

      

- Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of 

property, plant and equipment 

- Recoverable amount of assets / cash generating units and impairment

- Stock-in-trade 

- Stores and spare parts

- Trade and other receivables

- Taxation

- Deferred taxation

- Lease classication

- Staff retirement benets and other long term benets

- Provisions

6 Property, plant and equipment

Operating xed assets

Capital work in progress

Note

3.2

3.2

3.5

3.4

3.6

3.8

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.12

2019 2018Note

6.1 1,156,461 1,224,962

6.6 24,032 4,153

1,180,493 1,229,115

Rupees in thousand
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 - Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates 
and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will 
affect companies that nance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is 
not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and 
accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual 
sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Group’s nancial statements.

 - Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benets’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, 
curtailment or settlement of a dened benet plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions 
to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is 
disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in 
other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on Group’s 
nancial statements.

 - Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ – Denition of a Business (effective for business 
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or 
after 1 January 2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difculties that arise when 
an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets.  The amendments clarify 
that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an 
input and a substantive process that together signicantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The 
amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in 
the future and therefore would not have an impact on Group's past nancial statements.

 - Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The 
amendments are intended to make the denition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not 
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also 
issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose nancial 
statements in accordance with IFRS Standards. The application of amendments is not likely to have an 
impact on Group’s nancial statements.

 - On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised 
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that 
will set a new direction for IFRS in the future.. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the 
IASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does 
not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will 
be subject to the usual due process – this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take 
some time to crystallise. The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their 
accounting policies in the absence of specic IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should 
review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new 
guidance contains specic scope outs.  The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on 
Group’s nancial statements.

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to 
following approved accounting standards:

 - IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the 
accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the denition 
of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains 
control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation 
when it obtains joint control of the business.

 - IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment claries that all income tax consequences of dividends (including 
payments on nancial instruments classied as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction 
that generates the distributable prots.

 - IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment claries that a company treats as part of general borrowings 
any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are not likely 
to have an impact on consolidated nancial statements.

5 Use of judgments and estimates

 The preparation of these consolidated nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions 
and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period, or in the period 
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various 
assumptions and estimates are signicant to Group's nancial statements or where judgments were exercised in 
application of accounting policies are:

             

                        

      

- Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values of 

property, plant and equipment 

- Recoverable amount of assets / cash generating units and impairment

- Stock-in-trade 

- Stores and spare parts

- Trade and other receivables

- Taxation

- Deferred taxation

- Lease classication

- Staff retirement benets and other long term benets

- Provisions
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6.6 Capital work in progress

Owned

Civil works

Plant and machinery

Advances to suppliers

Others

6.6.1 This mainly relates to the installation of solar panels at factory premises.

2019 2018Note

                   -                   586 

                206 1,078

23,826 2,478

                   -   11

6.6.1            24,032              4,153 

Rupees in thousand

Particulars Revaluation Report Dates

Freehold land 11 June 2015

Leasehold land 11 August 2015

Buildings on freehold land 11 June 2015

Buildings on leasehold land 11 August 2015

Plant and machinery 13 August 2015

Forced Sales Value

Rupees in thousand 

277,984

61,812

160,103

19,651

140,537

2019 2018

Freehold land 170,578 199,269

Leasehold land 1,068 1,070

Buildings on freehold land 155,391 164,103

Buildings on leasehold land 70,073 56,376

Plant and machinery 142,463 152,003

539,573 572,821

Rupees in thousand
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 6.4 The forced sale value of revalued property plant and machinery as per latest available revaluation reports 
are as follows;

 6.5 Immovable Fixed Assets

  Freehold lands of the Group are located at 28-Km, Multan Road, Lahore, measuring 92.80 Kanals and 
36.10 kanals and Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore, measuring 4.04 Kanals.

  Leasehold land of the Group is located at Sector I-10/3, Industrial Area, Islamabad, measuring 5.56 
Kanals.

  The buildings on freehold land, leasehold land and other immovable assets of the Group are constructed 
/ located at above mentioned freehold lands and the land disclosed in note 41.

 6.3 Had freehold land and leasehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery 
not been revalued, the carrying amount of these assets would have been as follows:
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6.6 Capital work in progress

Owned

Civil works

Plant and machinery

Advances to suppliers

Others

6.6.1 This mainly relates to the installation of solar panels at factory premises.

2019 2018Note

                   -                   586 

                206 1,078

23,826 2,478

                   -   11

6.6.1            24,032              4,153 

Rupees in thousand

Particulars Revaluation Report Dates

Freehold land 11 June 2015

Leasehold land 11 August 2015

Buildings on freehold land 11 June 2015

Buildings on leasehold land 11 August 2015

Plant and machinery 13 August 2015

Forced Sales Value

Rupees in thousand 

277,984

61,812

160,103

19,651

140,537

2019 2018

Freehold land 170,578 199,269

Leasehold land 1,068 1,070

Buildings on freehold land 155,391 164,103

Buildings on leasehold land 70,073 56,376

Plant and machinery 142,463 152,003

539,573 572,821

Rupees in thousand
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 6.4 The forced sale value of revalued property plant and machinery as per latest available revaluation reports 
are as follows;

 6.5 Immovable Fixed Assets

  Freehold lands of the Group are located at 28-Km, Multan Road, Lahore, measuring 92.80 Kanals and 
36.10 kanals and Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate, Kot-Lakhpat, Lahore, measuring 4.04 Kanals.

  Leasehold land of the Group is located at Sector I-10/3, Industrial Area, Islamabad, measuring 5.56 
Kanals.

  The buildings on freehold land, leasehold land and other immovable assets of the Group are constructed 
/ located at above mentioned freehold lands and the land disclosed in note 41.

 6.3 Had freehold land and leasehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery 
not been revalued, the carrying amount of these assets would have been as follows:
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2019 2018

Cost

Cost as at 30 June

Accumulated impairment

Accumulated impairment as at 01 July

Impairment charged during the year

Accumulated Impairment as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

Rupees in thousand

               

         

         

16,750 16,750

8,487 4,000

8,263 4,487

16,750 8,487

- 8,263

Cost

Cost as at 01 July

Additions during the year

Cost as at 30 June

Accumulated amortization

Accumulated amortization as at 01 July

Amortization during the year

Accumulated amortization as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

Rate of amortization

7.1.1 The amortization charge for the year has been
allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

7.2 Goodwill

Packaging Ink Business

Powder Coating Business

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

32,845 28,168

- 4,677

32,845

         

32,845

24,811

         

20,151

7.1.1 5,338

           
4,660

30,149
         

24,811

2,696
           

8,034

33.33% 33.33%

30.1 352

              

566

31 314

              

325

32 4,672 3,769

5,338 4,660

7.2.1 - 8,263

7.2.2 24,000 24,000

24,000 32,263

6.7 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

7 Intangibles

Computer software

Goodwill

Rupees in thousand

30.1 55,673 60,061

31 15,030 13,093

32 9,307 8,972

80,010 82,126

7.1 2,696              8,034 

7.2            24,000            32,263 

           26,696            40,297 

2019 2018Note

 7.1 Computer software

  This represents expenditure incurred on acquiring and implementing Enterprise Resource Planning 
software.

 7.2.1 During the year, the management of the Group charged impairment on Ink Business goodwill due to 
signicant declined sales and shift in the Group's focus towards other business lines.

 7.2.2 This goodwill represents excess of purchase consideration paid by the Parent Company for acquisition of 
the Powder Coating business over the fair value of identiable net assets of the seller at the time of 
acquisition, net of impairment losses recognized in prior years. The recoverable amount of goodwill was 
tested for impairment as at 30 June 2019, by allocating the amount of goodwill to respective assets on 
which it arose, based on value in use in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets". The recoverable 
amount has been determined based on value in use calculations by discounting the ve year cash ow 
projections prepared by management based on nancial budgets and historical trends at 19.98% pre tax 
rate and using terminal growth of 2.00%. The calculation of value in use is sensitive to discount rate and 
local ination rates.

8 Investments in related parties

Equity accounted investment -  unlisted

Investment classied as FVOCI

8.1 Equity accounted investment -  unlisted

Cost of investment

3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited

     98,000 (2016: 98,000) fully paid ordinary shares 

      of Rs. 100 each

Share of loss

As at 01 July

Share of prot / (loss) for the year

Share of other comprehensive income

As at 30 June

Net investment as at 30 June

Investment classied as available for sale

2019 2018Note

8.1 38,445 37,995

8.2 - 25,537

8.2 12,754 -

           51,199            63,532 

49.00% 39,200

         

           39,200 

(1,205)

          
(1,875)

450               670

              (755)             (1,205)

38,445 37,995

Rupees in thousand

Percentage 2019 2018Rupees in thousand
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2019 2018

Cost

Cost as at 30 June

Accumulated impairment

Accumulated impairment as at 01 July

Impairment charged during the year

Accumulated Impairment as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

Rupees in thousand

               

         

         

16,750 16,750

8,487 4,000

8,263 4,487

16,750 8,487

- 8,263

Cost

Cost as at 01 July

Additions during the year

Cost as at 30 June

Accumulated amortization

Accumulated amortization as at 01 July

Amortization during the year

Accumulated amortization as at 30 June

Balance as at 30 June

Rate of amortization

7.1.1 The amortization charge for the year has been
allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

7.2 Goodwill

Packaging Ink Business

Powder Coating Business

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

32,845 28,168

- 4,677

32,845

         

32,845

24,811

         

20,151

7.1.1 5,338

           
4,660

30,149
         

24,811

2,696
           

8,034

33.33% 33.33%

30.1 352

              

566

31 314

              

325

32 4,672 3,769

5,338 4,660

7.2.1 - 8,263

7.2.2 24,000 24,000

24,000 32,263

6.7 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

7 Intangibles

Computer software

Goodwill

Rupees in thousand

30.1 55,673 60,061

31 15,030 13,093

32 9,307 8,972

80,010 82,126

7.1 2,696              8,034 

7.2            24,000            32,263 

           26,696            40,297 

2019 2018Note

 7.1 Computer software

  This represents expenditure incurred on acquiring and implementing Enterprise Resource Planning 
software.

 7.2.1 During the year, the management of the Group charged impairment on Ink Business goodwill due to 
signicant declined sales and shift in the Group's focus towards other business lines.

 7.2.2 This goodwill represents excess of purchase consideration paid by the Parent Company for acquisition of 
the Powder Coating business over the fair value of identiable net assets of the seller at the time of 
acquisition, net of impairment losses recognized in prior years. The recoverable amount of goodwill was 
tested for impairment as at 30 June 2019, by allocating the amount of goodwill to respective assets on 
which it arose, based on value in use in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets". The recoverable 
amount has been determined based on value in use calculations by discounting the ve year cash ow 
projections prepared by management based on nancial budgets and historical trends at 19.98% pre tax 
rate and using terminal growth of 2.00%. The calculation of value in use is sensitive to discount rate and 
local ination rates.

8 Investments in related parties

Equity accounted investment -  unlisted

Investment classied as FVOCI

8.1 Equity accounted investment -  unlisted

Cost of investment

3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited

     98,000 (2016: 98,000) fully paid ordinary shares 

      of Rs. 100 each

Share of loss

As at 01 July

Share of prot / (loss) for the year

Share of other comprehensive income

As at 30 June

Net investment as at 30 June

Investment classied as available for sale

2019 2018Note

8.1 38,445 37,995

8.2 - 25,537

8.2 12,754 -

           51,199            63,532 

49.00% 39,200

         

           39,200 

(1,205)

          
(1,875)

450               670

              (755)             (1,205)

38,445 37,995

Rupees in thousand

Percentage 2019 2018Rupees in thousand
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Non current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non current liabilites

Net assets - 100%

Revenue

Prot / (loss) for the year

from operations

% of Non-Controlling 

interests (NCI)

Share of net assets of NCI

Other adjustments

Carrying amount of NCI

Cash ows from

- operating activity

- investing activity

- nancing activity

Net decrease in 

cash and cash equivalents

            

          

          

         

            

2019 2018 2019 2018

12,954

         

8,387

         

-

              

-

196,463

       

211,215

     

156

(175,265)

      

(137,773)

    

-

              

-

(1,086)

          

(42,099)

      

33,066

         

39,730

       

-

              

156

356,019

       

430,430

     

-

              

-

(6,663)

          

4,966

         

-

              

18

49% 49% 48% 48%

16,202 19,468 - 75

1,133 1,131 - -

17,335 20,599 - 75

(1,351) 1,651 - (318)

- (366) - -

(1,013) (1,494) - -

(2,364) (209) - (318)

Rupees in thousand

 Berger DPI (Private) 

Limited 

 Bredex Construction 

Chemicals (Private) 

8.2 Investment classied as FVOCI

Buxly Paints Limited - listed

Cost

Fair value adjustment

8.2.1 Fair value adjustment

As at 01 July

Fair value loss

As at 30 June

273,600 (2018: 273,600) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rs. 10 each

Market value - Rs. 46.62 per share (2018: Rs.

93.34 per share)

         

19.00%

             3,830              3,830 

8.2.1 8,924 21,707

12,754 25,537

21,707 28,988

(12,783) (7,281)

8,924 21,707

Percentage 2019 2018Rupees in thousand

Note 2019 2018Rupees in thousand

 8.2.2 Summarised nancial information in respect of associated company on the basis of nancial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 are set out below:

Non current assets

Current assets

Non current liabilites

Current liabilities

Net assets - 100%

Percentage ownership interest

Group's share of net assets

 

Goodwill

Carrying amount of interest in associated company

Revenue

 

Prot / (loss) for the year from operations

Group's share of loss - post acquisition

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018

67,267 69,514

48,788 25,305

(9,067) (9,694)

(48,652) (27,707)

58,337 57,418

49.00% 49.00%

28,585

        

28,135

9,860

          

9,860

9,860

          

9,860

38,445 37,995

44,336

        

31,263

918

             

1,367

(755) (1,205)

 

 

           

            

                 

 8.2.3 Summarised nancial information in respect of subsidiary companies on the basis of nancial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 are set out below:

9 Long term loans - secured

Due from employees - considered good

Less: current portion shown under current assets

2019 2018Note

9.1 60,900 71,396

14 (16,272) (17,036)

44,628 54,360

Rupees in thousand

 9.1 These represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Parent Company in accordance with 
the terms of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor vehicles. These loans are 
secured by keeping title of the underlying assets in the name of the Group till nal settlement. The loan is 
recoverable over a period of three to ten years.

 9.2 Directors of the Group were not given any loan during the year.
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Non current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non current liabilites

Net assets - 100%

Revenue

Prot / (loss) for the year

from operations

% of Non-Controlling 

interests (NCI)

Share of net assets of NCI

Other adjustments

Carrying amount of NCI

Cash ows from

- operating activity

- investing activity

- nancing activity

Net decrease in 

cash and cash equivalents

            

          

          

         

            

2019 2018 2019 2018

12,954

         

8,387

         

-

              

-

196,463

       

211,215

     

156

(175,265)

      

(137,773)

    

-

              

-

(1,086)

          

(42,099)

      

33,066

         

39,730

       

-

              

156

356,019

       

430,430

     

-

              

-

(6,663)

          

4,966

         

-

              

18

49% 49% 48% 48%

16,202 19,468 - 75

1,133 1,131 - -

17,335 20,599 - 75

(1,351) 1,651 - (318)

- (366) - -

(1,013) (1,494) - -

(2,364) (209) - (318)

Rupees in thousand

 Berger DPI (Private) 

Limited 

 Bredex Construction 

Chemicals (Private) 

8.2 Investment classied as FVOCI

Buxly Paints Limited - listed

Cost

Fair value adjustment

8.2.1 Fair value adjustment

As at 01 July

Fair value loss

As at 30 June

273,600 (2018: 273,600) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rs. 10 each

Market value - Rs. 46.62 per share (2018: Rs.

93.34 per share)

         

19.00%

             3,830              3,830 

8.2.1 8,924 21,707

12,754 25,537

21,707 28,988

(12,783) (7,281)

8,924 21,707

Percentage 2019 2018Rupees in thousand

Note 2019 2018Rupees in thousand

 8.2.2 Summarised nancial information in respect of associated company on the basis of nancial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 are set out below:

Non current assets

Current assets

Non current liabilites

Current liabilities

Net assets - 100%

Percentage ownership interest

Group's share of net assets

 

Goodwill

Carrying amount of interest in associated company

Revenue

 

Prot / (loss) for the year from operations

Group's share of loss - post acquisition

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018

67,267 69,514

48,788 25,305

(9,067) (9,694)

(48,652) (27,707)

58,337 57,418

49.00% 49.00%

28,585

        

28,135

9,860

          

9,860

9,860

          

9,860

38,445 37,995

44,336

        

31,263

918

             

1,367

(755) (1,205)

 

 

           

            

                 

 8.2.3 Summarised nancial information in respect of subsidiary companies on the basis of nancial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 are set out below:

9 Long term loans - secured

Due from employees - considered good

Less: current portion shown under current assets

2019 2018Note

9.1 60,900 71,396

14 (16,272) (17,036)

44,628 54,360

Rupees in thousand

 9.1 These represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Parent Company in accordance with 
the terms of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor vehicles. These loans are 
secured by keeping title of the underlying assets in the name of the Group till nal settlement. The loan is 
recoverable over a period of three to ten years.

 9.2 Directors of the Group were not given any loan during the year.
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10 Long term deposits - unsecured

Considered good

Considered doubtful

 

Less: provision for doubtful deposits

11 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary

differences arising in respect of :

- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Surplus on revaluation of xed assets

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary

differences arising in respect of:

- Provision for doubtful debts, other receivables and deposits

- Turnover tax credit

- Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

-Finance lease obligations

- Provision for slow moving stock

2019 2018Note

22,190

         

26,869

4,588

          
4,588

26,778 31,457

(4,588)

          
(4,588)

10.1 22,190 26,869

Rupees in thousand

(46,221) (39,749)

(29,100) (29,589)

76,706 57,262

42,000 -

2,058 -

294 -

7,110 4,913

128,168 62,175

52,847 (7,163)

 10.1 These include deposits given to utility companies, deposits against lease and tender deposits.

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

11.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

As at 01 June

- Accelerated tax depreciation including 

surplus on revaluation of xed assets

- Provision for doubtful debts, other 

receivables and deposits

- Provision for impairment in capital work in progress

- Turnover tax credit

-Finance lease obligations

- Provision for slow moving stock

- Impact of rate change

- Impact of rate change

- Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

12 Stock-in-trade

Raw and packing materials

 - in hand

 - in transit

Semi processed goods

Finished goods

 - Manufactured

 - Trading

Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks

 - Raw material

 - Semi processed goods

 - Finished goods

Recognized to revaluation surplus on property 

plant and machinery and accumulated prots:

Recognized in prot and loss:

2019 2018Note

          (7,163)             1,710 

          13,053             3,517 

          10,768           (2,662)

                  -             (1,941)

          42,000                   -   

               294                   -   

            1,411              (670)

          (5,667)         (10,275)

          61,859         (12,031)

          (3,906)             3,158 

            2,058                   -   

          (1,848)             3,158 

          52,848           (7,163)

Rupees in thousand

482,933

       

619,977

144,028

       

57,184

626,961

       

677,161

76,751

         

80,123

12.1 271,041

       

280,121

67,194 90,915

338,235 371,036

1,041,947 1,128,320

(58,730)         (54,736)

(4,271)           (3,183)

(46,229)         (46,359)

(109,230) (104,278)

932,717 1,024,042
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10 Long term deposits - unsecured

Considered good

Considered doubtful

 

Less: provision for doubtful deposits

11 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary

differences arising in respect of :

- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Surplus on revaluation of xed assets

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary

differences arising in respect of:

- Provision for doubtful debts, other receivables and deposits

- Turnover tax credit

- Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

-Finance lease obligations

- Provision for slow moving stock

2019 2018Note

22,190

         

26,869

4,588

          
4,588

26,778 31,457

(4,588)

          
(4,588)

10.1 22,190 26,869

Rupees in thousand

(46,221) (39,749)

(29,100) (29,589)

76,706 57,262

42,000 -

2,058 -

294 -

7,110 4,913

128,168 62,175

52,847 (7,163)

 10.1 These include deposits given to utility companies, deposits against lease and tender deposits.

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

11.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

As at 01 June

- Accelerated tax depreciation including 

surplus on revaluation of xed assets

- Provision for doubtful debts, other 

receivables and deposits

- Provision for impairment in capital work in progress

- Turnover tax credit

-Finance lease obligations

- Provision for slow moving stock

- Impact of rate change

- Impact of rate change

- Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

12 Stock-in-trade

Raw and packing materials

 - in hand

 - in transit

Semi processed goods

Finished goods

 - Manufactured

 - Trading

Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks

 - Raw material

 - Semi processed goods

 - Finished goods

Recognized to revaluation surplus on property 

plant and machinery and accumulated prots:

Recognized in prot and loss:

2019 2018Note

          (7,163)             1,710 

          13,053             3,517 

          10,768           (2,662)

                  -             (1,941)

          42,000                   -   

               294                   -   

            1,411              (670)

          (5,667)         (10,275)

          61,859         (12,031)

          (3,906)             3,158 

            2,058                   -   

          (1,848)             3,158 

          52,848           (7,163)

Rupees in thousand

482,933

       

619,977

144,028

       

57,184

626,961

       

677,161

76,751

         

80,123

12.1 271,041

       

280,121

67,194 90,915

338,235 371,036

1,041,947 1,128,320

(58,730)         (54,736)

(4,271)           (3,183)

(46,229)         (46,359)

(109,230) (104,278)

932,717 1,024,042
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2019 2018

13.2

22,193 30,561

32,518 37,323

14,445 19,275

15,700 7,280

32,583 9,452

7,577

           

125,016 103,891

Aging of related party balances

Considered good

Past due 0 - 30 days

Past due 31 - 60 days

Past due 61 - 90 days

Past due 91 - 120 days

Past due 121 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 364 days

Rupees in thousand

        

 12.1 Aggregate stocks with a cost of Rs. 42.86 million (2018: Rs. 31.50 million) are being valued at net 
realizable value of Rs. 37.30 million (2018: Rs. 26.81 million).

 12.2 Details of stock-in-trade subject to charge as security are referred to in note 44 to these consolidated 
nancial statements.

13 Trade debts - unsecured

Considered good

Related parties

Others 

Considered doubtful

Others 

    

Provision for doubtful debts

13.1 Trade debts include the following amounts due 

 from the following related parties:

Dadex Eternit Limited - related party

 

Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party

2019 2018Note

13.1 & 13.2 125,016 103,891

1,354,474 1,133,110

1,479,490 1,237,001

240,797 207,279

1,720,287 1,444,280

13.3 (240,797)

      

(207,279)

1,479,490

 

1,237,001

13.1.1 -

              

222

13.1.2 125,016 103,669

13.1.3 125,016

       

103,891

Rupees in thousand

 13.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
0.27 million.

 13.1.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
121.84 million.

 13.1.3 The Group has recognized ECL on these balances amounting to Rs. 3.07 million as at 30 June 2019.

         

         

         

13.3

207,279 233,480

7,097 -

31 48,127 19,827

(2,806) (25,954)

(18,900) (20,074)

Movement in provision for doubtful debts

Balance as at 01 July

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

Provision for the year 

Bad debts written off

Bad debts recovered 

Balance as at 30 June 240,797 207,279

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

14

15

16

Loans and advances 

Current portion of long term loans:

Due from employees -  secured, considered good

Due from employees - considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful loans

Advances - unsecured, considered good:

Insurance claim receivable

Project advances

Deposit against tender

Security Deposit Insurance

Advances to Staff

Suppliers

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Trade deposits - considered good

Trade deposits - considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful deposits

Short term prepayments

Other receivables

Receivable from related parties

Export rebate

Provision for export rebate

Accrued interest

Others

Insurance claim receivable

Property, plant and equipment 

Others

9

16.1

           

 

14,708 15,271

1,564 1,765

16,272 17,036

(1,564) (1,765)

4,000 -

1,571 -

628 -

796

             

-

50

               

2,072

84,041

         

183,482

91,086

        

185,554

105,794

       

200,825

26,814

         

38,521

9,221

          

9,221

36,035

        
47,742

(9,221)
         

(9,221)

26,814         38,521

14,392 13,236

41,206

        

51,757

438

             

8,702

17,959

         

15,860

(11,824)

        

(10,000)

6,135 5,860

731 357

975 575

4,700 894

912 -

13,891 16,388
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2019 2018

13.2

22,193 30,561

32,518 37,323

14,445 19,275

15,700 7,280

32,583 9,452

7,577

           

125,016 103,891

Aging of related party balances

Considered good

Past due 0 - 30 days

Past due 31 - 60 days

Past due 61 - 90 days

Past due 91 - 120 days

Past due 121 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 364 days

Rupees in thousand

        

 12.1 Aggregate stocks with a cost of Rs. 42.86 million (2018: Rs. 31.50 million) are being valued at net 
realizable value of Rs. 37.30 million (2018: Rs. 26.81 million).

 12.2 Details of stock-in-trade subject to charge as security are referred to in note 44 to these consolidated 
nancial statements.

13 Trade debts - unsecured

Considered good

Related parties

Others 

Considered doubtful

Others 

    

Provision for doubtful debts

13.1 Trade debts include the following amounts due 

 from the following related parties:

Dadex Eternit Limited - related party

 

Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party

2019 2018Note

13.1 & 13.2 125,016 103,891

1,354,474 1,133,110

1,479,490 1,237,001

240,797 207,279

1,720,287 1,444,280

13.3 (240,797)

      

(207,279)

1,479,490

 

1,237,001

13.1.1 -

              

222

13.1.2 125,016 103,669

13.1.3 125,016

       

103,891

Rupees in thousand

 13.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
0.27 million.

 13.1.2 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
121.84 million.

 13.1.3 The Group has recognized ECL on these balances amounting to Rs. 3.07 million as at 30 June 2019.

         

         

         

13.3

207,279 233,480

7,097 -

31 48,127 19,827

(2,806) (25,954)

(18,900) (20,074)

Movement in provision for doubtful debts

Balance as at 01 July

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9

Provision for the year 

Bad debts written off

Bad debts recovered 

Balance as at 30 June 240,797 207,279

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

14

15

16

Loans and advances 

Current portion of long term loans:

Due from employees -  secured, considered good

Due from employees - considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful loans

Advances - unsecured, considered good:

Insurance claim receivable

Project advances

Deposit against tender

Security Deposit Insurance

Advances to Staff

Suppliers

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Trade deposits - considered good

Trade deposits - considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful deposits

Short term prepayments

Other receivables

Receivable from related parties

Export rebate

Provision for export rebate

Accrued interest

Others

Insurance claim receivable

Property, plant and equipment 

Others

9

16.1

           

 

14,708 15,271

1,564 1,765

16,272 17,036

(1,564) (1,765)

4,000 -

1,571 -

628 -

796

             

-

50

               

2,072

84,041

         

183,482

91,086

        

185,554

105,794

       

200,825

26,814

         

38,521

9,221

          

9,221

36,035

        
47,742

(9,221)
         

(9,221)

26,814         38,521

14,392 13,236

41,206

        

51,757

438

             

8,702

17,959

         

15,860

(11,824)

        

(10,000)

6,135 5,860

731 357

975 575

4,700 894

912 -

13,891 16,388
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19.2 Movement in number of shares

Opening number of shares

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares)

Closing number of shares

20 Reserves

Capital reserve:

 Share premium reserve

 Fair value reserve

Revenue reserve:

 General reserve

 Accumulated prots

      

      

          

        

         

       

      

2019 2018Note

18,186,409 18,186,409

2,273,301

     

-

20,459,710

    

18,186,409

20.1 34,086 56,819

20.2 8,924 21,707

43,010 78,526

285,000 285,000

588,991 480,102

873,991 765,102

917,001 843,628

Rupees in thousand
              

              

             

16.1 Other receivables include the following amounts 

 due from the following related parties:

Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party
3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited - related 

party

             

             - 8,702

16.1.1 438 -

438 8,702

        

          

        

 

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 16.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
0.44 million.

 16.1.2 This represents receivables related to sharing of common expenses under normal trade as per terms 
mutually agreed.

17 Short term investment

 This represents term deposit receipts which are mark-up based investments with conventional bank. The balance 
is under lien with commercial bank against letter of guarantee, maturing up to one year and carrying mark-up at 
rates ranging from 5.25% to 12.00% per annum (2018: 4.24% to 5.25%  per annum).

18

          

19

    

Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank:

- current accounts

Mark-up based deposits with conventional banks:

- deposit accounts

Cash in hand

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2019 2018Rupees in thousand

78,123 19,249

- 6,364

78,123 25,613

1,130 956

79,253 26,569   

2019 2018

25,000,000 25,000,000 250,000 250,000

12,135,798

    

12,135,798

    

121,358

        

121,358

8,323,912

 

6,050,611

      

83,239

          

60,506

Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

up in cash

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as

 bonus shares

20,459,710

    

18,186,409 204,597 181,864

20182019

Rupees in thousand  Number of shares

 19.1 As at 30 June 2019, Slotrapid Limited B.V.I., the Holding Company, and their nominees hold 10,649,314 
(2018: 9,466,057) voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10.00 each representing 52.05 % (2018: 52.05 %) of the 
ordinary paid up capital of the Parent Company.

 20.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Parent Company for the purpose specied in section 81(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2017. Furthermore, movement in this reserve represents issue of bonus shares during 
the year.

 20.2 This represents surplus on revaluation of investment classied as FVOCI nancial asset.

21 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery - net of tax

As at beginning of the year 

Transfer to unappropriated prot as a result of incremental 

depreciation charged during the current year - net of deferred tax

Impact of change of rate

Other adjustments

As at end of the year 

2019 2018

509,131 521,363

          (33,213) (15,390)

            (3,906) 3,158

                    -   -

472,012

        

509,131

Rupees in thousand
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19.2 Movement in number of shares

Opening number of shares

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 12.5%

(i.e. 1.25 shares for every 10 shares)

Closing number of shares

20 Reserves

Capital reserve:

 Share premium reserve

 Fair value reserve

Revenue reserve:

 General reserve

 Accumulated prots

      

      

          

        

         

       

      

2019 2018Note

18,186,409 18,186,409

2,273,301

     

-

20,459,710

    

18,186,409

20.1 34,086 56,819

20.2 8,924 21,707

43,010 78,526

285,000 285,000

588,991 480,102

873,991 765,102

917,001 843,628

Rupees in thousand
              

              

             

16.1 Other receivables include the following amounts 

 due from the following related parties:

Buxly Paints Pakistan Limited - related party
3S Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited - related 

party

             

             - 8,702

16.1.1 438 -

438 8,702

        

          

        

 

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 16.1.1 Maximum aggregate balance due from the related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 
0.44 million.

 16.1.2 This represents receivables related to sharing of common expenses under normal trade as per terms 
mutually agreed.

17 Short term investment

 This represents term deposit receipts which are mark-up based investments with conventional bank. The balance 
is under lien with commercial bank against letter of guarantee, maturing up to one year and carrying mark-up at 
rates ranging from 5.25% to 12.00% per annum (2018: 4.24% to 5.25%  per annum).

18

          

19

    

Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank:

- current accounts

Mark-up based deposits with conventional banks:

- deposit accounts

Cash in hand

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2019 2018Rupees in thousand

78,123 19,249

- 6,364

78,123 25,613

1,130 956

79,253 26,569   

2019 2018

25,000,000 25,000,000 250,000 250,000

12,135,798

    

12,135,798

    

121,358

        

121,358

8,323,912

 

6,050,611

      

83,239

          

60,506

Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

up in cash

Voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as

 bonus shares

20,459,710

    

18,186,409 204,597 181,864

20182019

Rupees in thousand  Number of shares

 19.1 As at 30 June 2019, Slotrapid Limited B.V.I., the Holding Company, and their nominees hold 10,649,314 
(2018: 9,466,057) voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10.00 each representing 52.05 % (2018: 52.05 %) of the 
ordinary paid up capital of the Parent Company.

 20.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Parent Company for the purpose specied in section 81(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2017. Furthermore, movement in this reserve represents issue of bonus shares during 
the year.

 20.2 This represents surplus on revaluation of investment classied as FVOCI nancial asset.

21 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery - net of tax

As at beginning of the year 

Transfer to unappropriated prot as a result of incremental 

depreciation charged during the current year - net of deferred tax

Impact of change of rate

Other adjustments

As at end of the year 

2019 2018

509,131 521,363

          (33,213) (15,390)

            (3,906) 3,158

                    -   -

472,012

        

509,131

Rupees in thousand
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22 Long term nancing - secured

The Parent Company

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

 - JS Bank Limited

Islamic mode of nancing:

 - First Habib Modarba

 - First Habib Modarba

 - Bank Islami

         

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

Islamic mode of nancing:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

2019 2018Note

22.1 (a)             66,667 133,333

22.2 (a)                     -   750

22.2 (b)               3,324 4,180

22.2 (c)           100,000 -

169,991 138,263

          (66,667) (66,667)

          (13,689) (1,631)

(80,356) (68,298)

89,635 69,965

Rupees in thousand

 Latest revaluation was carried out by Harvester Enterprises and Co., on 30 June 2015 of freehold land and 
building on freehold land, leasehold land and building on leasehold land and plant and machinery. The 
revaluation resulted in a surplus of Rs. 295.38 million on freehold land and building on freehold land, Rs. 40.83 
million on leasehold land and building on leasehold land and Rs. 105.72 million on plant and machinery over the 
respective net book values. The valuation was determined by reference to current market value of the similar 
properties / assets. The most signicant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per 
square foot for buildings and present operational condition and age of plant and machinery respectively.

 22.1 (a) This represents a long term loan of Rs. 200 million obtained in 2017, for restructuring of statement of 
nancial position. Principle terms of loan are as follows:

  Principle repayment

  The outstanding balance is repayable in quarterly installments of Rs. 16.67 million each ending in April 
2020.

  Rate of return

  Mark-up is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum 
(2018: three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum).

  Security 

  The loan is secured against an equitable mortgage and rst charge amounting to Rs. 371.00 million on 
land and building of Lahore factory.

 22.2 (a) The loan has been repaid in full during the year.

 22.2 (b) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 5.28 million obtained in 2017, from First Habib 
Modarba for purchase of vehicle.

  Principle repayment

  The outstanding principal is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2022.

  Rate of return

  Prot is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum (2018: 
six month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum).

  Security

  The facility is secured against charge over present and future current and xed assets of the Parent 
Company. The Parent Company holds asset with joint ownership with the Modarba.

 22.2 (c) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 100 million obtained in November 2018 for a 
period of 5 years, from Bank Islami to pay off conventional liabilities.

  Principle repayment

  The outstanding principal is repayable in monthly installments of Rs. 2.08 million each ending in 
November 2023 with a grace period of 1 year.

  Rate of return

  Mark-up is payable monthly and charged at the rate of six month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2018: 
Nil) with oor of 10.00% and ceiling of 20.00%

  Security

  The loan is secured against exclusive charge over plant and machinery and a ranking charge over 
present and future assets of the Parent company amounting to Rs. 133 million.

23 Staff retirement and other long term benets

Dened benet plan

Staff pension fund

Staff gratuity fund

Other long term employee benets

Accumulating compensated absences

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

23.1             36,620             41,704 

23.1             90,372             74,235 

          126,992           115,939 

23.14             27,057             26,653 

          154,049           142,592 
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22 Long term nancing - secured

The Parent Company

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

 - JS Bank Limited

Islamic mode of nancing:

 - First Habib Modarba

 - First Habib Modarba

 - Bank Islami

         

Mark-up based nancing from conventional banks:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

Islamic mode of nancing:

Current maturity shown under current liabilities

2019 2018Note

22.1 (a)             66,667 133,333

22.2 (a)                     -   750

22.2 (b)               3,324 4,180

22.2 (c)           100,000 -

169,991 138,263

          (66,667) (66,667)

          (13,689) (1,631)

(80,356) (68,298)

89,635 69,965

Rupees in thousand

 Latest revaluation was carried out by Harvester Enterprises and Co., on 30 June 2015 of freehold land and 
building on freehold land, leasehold land and building on leasehold land and plant and machinery. The 
revaluation resulted in a surplus of Rs. 295.38 million on freehold land and building on freehold land, Rs. 40.83 
million on leasehold land and building on leasehold land and Rs. 105.72 million on plant and machinery over the 
respective net book values. The valuation was determined by reference to current market value of the similar 
properties / assets. The most signicant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per 
square foot for buildings and present operational condition and age of plant and machinery respectively.

 22.1 (a) This represents a long term loan of Rs. 200 million obtained in 2017, for restructuring of statement of 
nancial position. Principle terms of loan are as follows:

  Principle repayment

  The outstanding balance is repayable in quarterly installments of Rs. 16.67 million each ending in April 
2020.

  Rate of return

  Mark-up is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum 
(2018: three month KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum).

  Security 

  The loan is secured against an equitable mortgage and rst charge amounting to Rs. 371.00 million on 
land and building of Lahore factory.

 22.2 (a) The loan has been repaid in full during the year.

 22.2 (b) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 5.28 million obtained in 2017, from First Habib 
Modarba for purchase of vehicle.

  Principle repayment

  The outstanding principal is repayable in 20 quarterly installments ending in February 2022.

  Rate of return

  Prot is payable quarterly and charged at the rate of six month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum (2018: 
six month's KIBOR plus 1.00% per annum).

  Security

  The facility is secured against charge over present and future current and xed assets of the Parent 
Company. The Parent Company holds asset with joint ownership with the Modarba.

 22.2 (c) This represents diminishing musharika facility of Rs. 100 million obtained in November 2018 for a 
period of 5 years, from Bank Islami to pay off conventional liabilities.

  Principle repayment

  The outstanding principal is repayable in monthly installments of Rs. 2.08 million each ending in 
November 2023 with a grace period of 1 year.

  Rate of return

  Mark-up is payable monthly and charged at the rate of six month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2018: 
Nil) with oor of 10.00% and ceiling of 20.00%

  Security

  The loan is secured against exclusive charge over plant and machinery and a ranking charge over 
present and future assets of the Parent company amounting to Rs. 133 million.

23 Staff retirement and other long term benets

Dened benet plan

Staff pension fund

Staff gratuity fund

Other long term employee benets

Accumulating compensated absences

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

23.1             36,620             41,704 

23.1             90,372             74,235 

          126,992           115,939 

23.14             27,057             26,653 

          154,049           142,592 
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Valuation discount rate

Expected rate of increase in salary level

Rate of return on plan assets

Retirement age

Withdrawal Rates

Expected mortality rate

2019 2018

12.5% 9%

11.5% 8%

12.5% 9%

60 years 60 years

Age-Based Age-Based 

(per appendix) (per appendix)

SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)

 

 Dened benet plan

 As mentioned in note 3.1 the Parent Company operates an approved funded gratuity and pension schemes for all 
its permanent employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial 
valuation was carried out at 30 June 2019. Projected Unit Credit method based on the following assumptions was 
used for these valuations:

23.1 Statement of nancial position reconciliation

Present value of dened benet obligation

Fair value of plan assets

23.2 Movement in the fair value of plan 

assets is as follows:

Fair value as at 01 July

Expected return on plan assets

Remeasurement (loss) / gain 

Company’s contribution 

Benets paid

Fair value as at 30 June

23.3 Movement in dened benet 

obligation is as follows:

Obligation as at 01 July

Employees' contribution not paid to

the fund by the Company

Service cost

Interest cost

            

Benets paid

           

Remeasurement (gain) / loss

         

Obligation as at 30 June

          

          
Rupees in thousand

            88,089             90,411             92,218             74,330 

          (51,468)                 (39)           (50,514)                  (95)

36,621 90,372 41,704 74,235

50,514 95            50,956                  480 

              4,446                    25               4,561                    18 

            (1,254)               (238)             (4,451)                 159 

                   -               11,211               2,000               8,441 

            (2,238)          (11,054)             (2,552)             (9,003)

51,468 39 50,514 95

92,218 74,330 81,835 65,724

1,475 - 1,515 -

3,494 10,768

           

4,874

             

9,721

8,199

 

6,191

             

7,250

             

5,510

(2,238)

 

(11,054)

          

(2,552)

            

(9,003)

(15,059)

 

10,176

           

(704)

               

2,378

88,089

 

90,411

           

92,218

           

74,330

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
                              20182019

23.4 Charge for the year - net

Current service cost

            Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

           

            

Actual return on plan assets

            

23.5 Movement in net liability in the balance 

sheet is as follows:

Net liability as at 01 July

          

Charge for the year 

            

during the year

         

Company’s contribution 

                

Employees' contribution deducted 

   but not paid to the fund

            

Net liability as at 30 June

          

23.6 The charge for the year has been 

allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

23.7 Plan assets comprise the following:

Defence Saving Certicates

Cash at bank/pay order in hand

JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds Mustahkem

NBP Fullerton Asset Management Ltd.

Charge to other comprehensive income

          
          

Rupees in thousand

3,494

 
10,768

           
4,874

             
9,721

8,199 6,191 7,250 5,510

(4,446)

 

(25)

                 

(4,561)

            

(18)

7,247

 

16,934

           

7,563

             

15,213

3,192

 

(213)

               

110

                

177

41,704

 

74,235

           

30,879

           

65,244

7,247

 

16,934

           

7,563

             

15,213

(13,805) 10,414 3,747 2,219

-

 

(11,211)

          

(2,000)

            

(8,441)

1,475

 

-

                 

1,515

             

-

36,621 90,372 41,704 74,235

3,624 8,467 3,782 7,607

2,971 6,943 3,101 6,237

652 1,524 680 1,369

7,247 16,934 7,563 15,213

13,250 - 11,500 -

4,198 39 6,522 95

18,471 - 17,492 -

15,548 - 15,000 -

51,467 39 50,514 95

                   

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
                              20182019
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Valuation discount rate

Expected rate of increase in salary level

Rate of return on plan assets

Retirement age

Withdrawal Rates

Expected mortality rate

2019 2018

12.5% 9%

11.5% 8%

12.5% 9%

60 years 60 years

Age-Based Age-Based 

(per appendix) (per appendix)

SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)

 

 Dened benet plan

 As mentioned in note 3.1 the Parent Company operates an approved funded gratuity and pension schemes for all 
its permanent employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial 
valuation was carried out at 30 June 2019. Projected Unit Credit method based on the following assumptions was 
used for these valuations:

23.1 Statement of nancial position reconciliation

Present value of dened benet obligation

Fair value of plan assets

23.2 Movement in the fair value of plan 

assets is as follows:

Fair value as at 01 July

Expected return on plan assets

Remeasurement (loss) / gain 

Company’s contribution 

Benets paid

Fair value as at 30 June

23.3 Movement in dened benet 

obligation is as follows:

Obligation as at 01 July

Employees' contribution not paid to

the fund by the Company

Service cost

Interest cost

            

Benets paid

           

Remeasurement (gain) / loss

         

Obligation as at 30 June

          

          
Rupees in thousand

            88,089             90,411             92,218             74,330 

          (51,468)                 (39)           (50,514)                  (95)

36,621 90,372 41,704 74,235

50,514 95            50,956                  480 

              4,446                    25               4,561                    18 

            (1,254)               (238)             (4,451)                 159 

                   -               11,211               2,000               8,441 

            (2,238)          (11,054)             (2,552)             (9,003)

51,468 39 50,514 95

92,218 74,330 81,835 65,724

1,475 - 1,515 -

3,494 10,768

           

4,874

             

9,721

8,199

 

6,191

             

7,250

             

5,510

(2,238)

 

(11,054)

          

(2,552)

            

(9,003)

(15,059)

 

10,176

           

(704)

               

2,378

88,089

 

90,411

           

92,218

           

74,330

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
                              20182019

23.4 Charge for the year - net

Current service cost

            Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

           

            

Actual return on plan assets

            

23.5 Movement in net liability in the balance 

sheet is as follows:

Net liability as at 01 July

          

Charge for the year 

            

during the year

         

Company’s contribution 

                

Employees' contribution deducted 

   but not paid to the fund

            

Net liability as at 30 June

          

23.6 The charge for the year has been 

allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

23.7 Plan assets comprise the following:

Defence Saving Certicates

Cash at bank/pay order in hand

JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds Mustahkem

NBP Fullerton Asset Management Ltd.

Charge to other comprehensive income

          
          

Rupees in thousand

3,494

 
10,768

           
4,874

             
9,721

8,199 6,191 7,250 5,510

(4,446)

 

(25)

                 

(4,561)

            

(18)

7,247

 

16,934

           

7,563

             

15,213

3,192

 

(213)

               

110

                

177

41,704

 

74,235

           

30,879

           

65,244

7,247

 

16,934

           

7,563

             

15,213

(13,805) 10,414 3,747 2,219

-

 

(11,211)

          

(2,000)

            

(8,441)

1,475

 

-

                 

1,515

             

-

36,621 90,372 41,704 74,235

3,624 8,467 3,782 7,607

2,971 6,943 3,101 6,237

652 1,524 680 1,369

7,247 16,934 7,563 15,213

13,250 - 11,500 -

4,198 39 6,522 95

18,471 - 17,492 -

15,548 - 15,000 -

51,467 39 50,514 95

                   

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
                              20182019
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As at 30 June

Present value of dened 

benet obligation                    
Fair value of plan assets

                      Decit  

                      
Experience adjustment: 

(Gain) / loss on obligations

                                                    

Loss / (gain) on plan assets

2019

178,500        
(51,507)

         126,993

        
(4,883)

4,471

              

2018

166,548

(50,609)

115,939

1,674

4,720

             

2017

130,969        
(46,385)

         84,584

          
2,444

368

                

2016

106,517

(43,310)

63,207

              3,187 

             (1,906)

2015

 87,436

 
(42,152)

45,284

(8,305)

(694)

                

Rupees in thousand

 23.8 Amounts for the current year and previous four years of the fair value of plan assets, present value of 
dened benet obligation and decit thereon is as follows:

 23.9 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on 
the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on xed interest investments are 
based on gross redemption yields as at the statement of nancial position date.

 23.10 Expected expense for next year

  The expected expense to the pension and gratuity schemes for the year ending 30 June 2020 works out 
to Rs. 8.28 million and Rs. 23.05 million respectively.

 23.11 The plans expose the Parent Company to the actuarial risks such as:

  Salary risks

  The risk that the nal salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since 
the benet is calculated on the nal salary (which will closely reect ination and other macroeconomic 
factors), the benet amount increases as salary increases.

  Mortality / withdrawal risks

  The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon 
beneciaries' service / age distribution and the entitled benets of the beneciary.

 23.12 Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

  If the signicant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the dened benet obligation at the reporting 
date, had uctuated by 1.00% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of 
the dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019 would have been as follows:

  Impact on present value of dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019

Change  Increase to  Decrease to  Increase to  Decrease to 

Discount rate 1.00%             76,250           102,789             82,181           100,740 

Future salary 1.00%             95,489             81,620           100,740             82,038 

Gratuity

Rupees in thousand

Pension

  The sensitivity analysis of the dened benet obligation to the signicant actuarial assumptions has 
been performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of dened benet 
obligation reported in the statement of nancial position. 

 23.13 Weighted average duration of the dened benet obligation is 24 years and 09 years for pension and 
gratuity plans, respectively.

2019 2018 

23.14 Other long term employee benets

Movement in accumulated compensated absences

Balance as at 01 July

Provision during the year

Payments made during the year

Balance as at 30 June

23.15 Reconciliation of present value of liability

Present value of liability as at 01 July

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Benets paid

Remeasurement gain

23.16 Charge for the year

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Remeasurement gain

23.17 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Rupees in thousand

26,653 23,854

4,457 5,545

(4,053) (2,746)

27,057 26,653

            26,653             23,854 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (4,053)              (2,746)

            (1,655)                 (560)

            27,057             26,653 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (1,655)                 (560)

              4,457               5,545 

2,229

            

2,773

1,827 2,273

401 499

4,457 5,545

 23.18 The investments out of provident fund and pension fund as at 30 June 2019 have been made in 
accordance with the requirements of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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As at 30 June

Present value of dened 

benet obligation                    
Fair value of plan assets

                      Decit  

                      
Experience adjustment: 

(Gain) / loss on obligations

                                                    

Loss / (gain) on plan assets

2019

178,500        
(51,507)

         126,993

        
(4,883)

4,471

              

2018

166,548

(50,609)

115,939

1,674

4,720

             

2017

130,969        
(46,385)

         84,584

          
2,444

368

                

2016

106,517

(43,310)

63,207

              3,187 

             (1,906)

2015

 87,436

 
(42,152)

45,284

(8,305)

(694)

                

Rupees in thousand

 23.8 Amounts for the current year and previous four years of the fair value of plan assets, present value of 
dened benet obligation and decit thereon is as follows:

 23.9 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on 
the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on xed interest investments are 
based on gross redemption yields as at the statement of nancial position date.

 23.10 Expected expense for next year

  The expected expense to the pension and gratuity schemes for the year ending 30 June 2020 works out 
to Rs. 8.28 million and Rs. 23.05 million respectively.

 23.11 The plans expose the Parent Company to the actuarial risks such as:

  Salary risks

  The risk that the nal salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since 
the benet is calculated on the nal salary (which will closely reect ination and other macroeconomic 
factors), the benet amount increases as salary increases.

  Mortality / withdrawal risks

  The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon 
beneciaries' service / age distribution and the entitled benets of the beneciary.

 23.12 Actuarial assumptions sensitivity analysis

  If the signicant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the dened benet obligation at the reporting 
date, had uctuated by 1.00% with all other variables held constant, the impact on the present value of 
the dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019 would have been as follows:

  Impact on present value of dened benet obligation as at 30 June 2019

Change  Increase to  Decrease to  Increase to  Decrease to 

Discount rate 1.00%             76,250           102,789             82,181           100,740 

Future salary 1.00%             95,489             81,620           100,740             82,038 

Gratuity

Rupees in thousand

Pension

  The sensitivity analysis of the dened benet obligation to the signicant actuarial assumptions has 
been performed using the same calculation techniques as applied for calculation of dened benet 
obligation reported in the statement of nancial position. 

 23.13 Weighted average duration of the dened benet obligation is 24 years and 09 years for pension and 
gratuity plans, respectively.

2019 2018 

23.14 Other long term employee benets

Movement in accumulated compensated absences

Balance as at 01 July

Provision during the year

Payments made during the year

Balance as at 30 June

23.15 Reconciliation of present value of liability

Present value of liability as at 01 July

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Benets paid

Remeasurement gain

23.16 Charge for the year

Service cost

Interest on dened benet liability

Remeasurement gain

23.17 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and general expenses

Rupees in thousand

26,653 23,854

4,457 5,545

(4,053) (2,746)

27,057 26,653

            26,653             23,854 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (4,053)              (2,746)

            (1,655)                 (560)

            27,057             26,653 

              3,896               4,082 

              2,216               2,023 

            (1,655)                 (560)

              4,457               5,545 

2,229

            

2,773

1,827 2,273

401 499

4,457 5,545

 23.18 The investments out of provident fund and pension fund as at 30 June 2019 have been made in 
accordance with the requirements of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later 

than ve years

2018 

 Minimum 

lease 

payments 

 Future 

nance cost        

 Present 

value of  

lease liability          

 Present value 

of  lease 

liability          

Rupees in thousand

1,046 34 1,013 1,494

1,086 - 1,086 2,099

2,132 34 2,099 3,593

2019

24 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease

 The amount of future minimum lease payments along with their present value and the periods during which they 
will fall due are:

 24.1 Berger DPI (Private) Limited has entered into lease agreements with nancial institutions for vehicles. 
Lease rentals are payable on quarterly basis and include nance cost ranging from six months KIBOR 
plus 125 bps to 200 bps per annum (2018: six months KIBOR plus 125 bps to 200 bps per annum) 
which has been used as the discounting factor. It has the option to purchase the assets upon 
completion of lease period and has the intention to exercise such option.

25 Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors

Import bills payable

Contract liabilities

Accrued expenses

Provision for infrastructure cess

Royalty payable to related parties - unsecured

Technical fee payable

Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund

Income tax deducted at source and EOBI payable

Witholding tax payable

Insurance claim payable

Others

25.1 Provision for infrastructure cess

Balance as at 01 July

Provision for the year

Balance as at 30 June

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 Note 

588,750 620,815

324,476 378,241

70,112 76,867

32,710 60,748

25.1 68,609 61,079

25.2 39,119

          

38,481

32,729

          

26,390

25.3 11,132

          

12,753

25.4 36,236

          

32,712

16,262

          

11,505

17

                 

-

661

               

25

4,349

            

23,137

1,225,162

     
1,342,753

61,079
          

51,265

7,530               9,814 

68,609 61,079

25.2

25.3

This includes amount due to the following related parties:

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I. - the Holding Company

Buxly Paints Limited - related party

Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Balance as at 01 July

Allocation for the year

Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business

Payments during the year

Balance as at 30 June

          38,823

          

38,516

296

               

(35)

39,119

          

38,481

12,753 18,689

34 6,568 8,152

35 838 875

20,159 27,716

(9,027) (14,963)

11,132 12,753

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 Note 
          

  Interest on outstanding liability towards Workers' Prot Participation Fund is charged at bank rate plus 
2.50% per annum as required under the Companies Prots (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968.

 25.4 Workers' Welfare Fund

  It majorly represents balance payable after the Honorable Sindh High Court order dated March 01, 
2013 declared the amendments made in the The Workers’ Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (“WWF”) 
through Finance Act, 2008. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 
10, 2016, held that the amendments made in the law introduced by the Federal Government for the levy 
of WWF were not lawful. The Federal Board of Revenue has led review petitions against this order, 
which are currently pending.

  The management of the Group is of the view that consequent to ling of these review petitions the 
judgment may not currently be treated as conclusive, therefore as a matter of prudence and abundant 
caution, the Group management has decided to continue to provide for WWF in these consolidated 
nancial statements without prejudice and without admitting liability. The Group shall revisit the 
position on the nal outcome of the review petition.

26 Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

Long term nancing - secured

Short term nancing - secured

Short term running nances - secured

2019 2018

              2,077               2,378 

              1,553               1,553 

            35,802             12,534 

            39,432             16,465 

Rupees in thousand
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Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later 

than ve years

2018 

 Minimum 

lease 

payments 

 Future 

nance cost        

 Present 

value of  

lease liability          

 Present value 

of  lease 

liability          

Rupees in thousand

1,046 34 1,013 1,494

1,086 - 1,086 2,099

2,132 34 2,099 3,593

2019

24 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease

 The amount of future minimum lease payments along with their present value and the periods during which they 
will fall due are:

 24.1 Berger DPI (Private) Limited has entered into lease agreements with nancial institutions for vehicles. 
Lease rentals are payable on quarterly basis and include nance cost ranging from six months KIBOR 
plus 125 bps to 200 bps per annum (2018: six months KIBOR plus 125 bps to 200 bps per annum) 
which has been used as the discounting factor. It has the option to purchase the assets upon 
completion of lease period and has the intention to exercise such option.

25 Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors

Import bills payable

Contract liabilities

Accrued expenses

Provision for infrastructure cess

Royalty payable to related parties - unsecured

Technical fee payable

Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Workers' Welfare Fund

Income tax deducted at source and EOBI payable

Witholding tax payable

Insurance claim payable

Others

25.1 Provision for infrastructure cess

Balance as at 01 July

Provision for the year

Balance as at 30 June

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 Note 

588,750 620,815

324,476 378,241

70,112 76,867

32,710 60,748

25.1 68,609 61,079

25.2 39,119

          

38,481

32,729

          

26,390

25.3 11,132

          

12,753

25.4 36,236

          

32,712

16,262

          

11,505

17

                 

-

661

               

25

4,349

            

23,137

1,225,162

     
1,342,753

61,079
          

51,265

7,530               9,814 

68,609 61,079

25.2

25.3

This includes amount due to the following related parties:

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I. - the Holding Company

Buxly Paints Limited - related party

Workers' Prots Participation Fund

Balance as at 01 July

Allocation for the year

Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business

Payments during the year

Balance as at 30 June

          38,823

          

38,516

296

               

(35)

39,119

          

38,481

12,753 18,689

34 6,568 8,152

35 838 875

20,159 27,716

(9,027) (14,963)

11,132 12,753

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018 Note 
          

  Interest on outstanding liability towards Workers' Prot Participation Fund is charged at bank rate plus 
2.50% per annum as required under the Companies Prots (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968.

 25.4 Workers' Welfare Fund

  It majorly represents balance payable after the Honorable Sindh High Court order dated March 01, 
2013 declared the amendments made in the The Workers’ Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (“WWF”) 
through Finance Act, 2008. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 
10, 2016, held that the amendments made in the law introduced by the Federal Government for the levy 
of WWF were not lawful. The Federal Board of Revenue has led review petitions against this order, 
which are currently pending.

  The management of the Group is of the view that consequent to ling of these review petitions the 
judgment may not currently be treated as conclusive, therefore as a matter of prudence and abundant 
caution, the Group management has decided to continue to provide for WWF in these consolidated 
nancial statements without prejudice and without admitting liability. The Group shall revisit the 
position on the nal outcome of the review petition.

26 Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

Long term nancing - secured

Short term nancing - secured

Short term running nances - secured

2019 2018

              2,077               2,378 

              1,553               1,553 

            35,802             12,534 

            39,432             16,465 

Rupees in thousand
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27 Short term borrowings - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

   Short term nancing - secured

   Short term running nance - secured

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

27.1           100,000           400,000 

27.2        1,104,747           737,989 

       1,204,747        1,137,989 

 27.1 Short term nancing 

  This represents utilized amount of short term nancing facilites under mark-up arrangements available 
from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 100 million (2018: Rs. 500 million) which is a sublimit of 
running nance facilities as described in note 27.2 to the nancial statements. These facilities are 
secured against joint pari passu charge on all present and future current assets, registered charge 
(mortagage and hypothecation) over the current assets of the Parent Company and carry mark-up at 
rates ranging between 7.72% and 12.09% per annum (2018: 7.25% and 8.03%) per annum, payable 
quarterly. Refer to note 44 for details of charge registered.

 27.2 Short term running nances

  This represents utilized amount of short term running nance facilities under mark-up arrangements 
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,400 million (2018: Rs. 1,150 million). These 
facilities are secured against registered charge over the current assets of the Parent Company and 
carry mark-up at rates ranging between 8.60% and 12.09% (2017: 7.14% and 8.17%) per annum, 
payable quarterly.

 27.3 Unavailed credit facilities

  The available facilities for opening of letters of credit and guarantees as at 30 June 2019 amounted to 
Rs. 2,684.07 million (2018: Rs. 1,450 million) out of which Rs. 2,224.55 million remained unavailed as at 
the reporting date (2018: Rs. 850.74 million).

28 Contingencies and commitments

 28.1 Contingencies

  The Parent Company

  - In 1987, the Parent Company led a suit against an ex-distributor ("the distributor") in the High 
Court of Sindh ("the court") for recovery of Rs. 8.89 million and damages amounting to Rs. 5.00 
million on account of unpaid credit invoices for the products supplied by it to the distributor. 
However, the distributor in return also led a counter claim of Rs. 78.15 million against the 
Company in the court on account of damages and compensation. Consequently on the basis of 
legal advice the management believes that it has a strong case and no nancial obligation is 
expected to arise.

  - The Sindh Revenue Board ("SRB") through assessment order 490/2014 dated 18 September 
2014 raised sales tax demand of Rs. 39.34 million along-with penalty but excluding default 
surcharge on the grounds that the Company has received franchise services through its 
registered ofce in Karachi but had not paid sales tax on these services for the tax periods July, 
2011 to June, 2013. Department (SRB) had inadvertently added all royalty gures appearing in 
accounts including royalty receivable, royalty payable, royalty expense and related party 
transfers for the calculation of tax on royalties.

   The Company, through its legal counsel, led an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB 
on the grounds that amount of sales tax is not correctly calculated and the provisions of Sindh 
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 are not applicable for the reason that the Company is managing its 
affairs from the province of Punjab as the head ofce and the manufacturing facility is located 
there. The Commissioner (Appeals) had reduced the demand to Rs. 8.18 million, against which the 
Parent Company had led an appeal before Appellate Tribunal SRB which is pending adjudication. 
The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, 
hence no provision has been recorded in these nancial statements..

  - The Sindh High Court ("the Court") in the case of 'Kasim Textile' in its order of 7 May, 2013 has held 
that benet of carry forward of minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
is only available if tax payable in a tax year is less than minimum tax paid. If in a tax year, a Company 
has assessed losses on which no tax is payable, the Company forgoes the right to carry forward 
minimum tax paid in that year. In the light of this order, the Parent Company may not be entitled to 
carry forward minimum tax paid in the tax year 2014 of Rs 39.12 million as a result of assessed tax 
losses in these years and adjust it against normal tax liability. Also in the case of refunds claimed in 
any year, those may also be adjusted accordingly. However, the management is of the view that the 
verdict has been challenged in the Supreme Court and that they are waiting for the nal outcome 
and accordingly minimum tax is adjusted against tax liability for the current year.

  - During 2018, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued show cause notices for collection 
of income tax under section 236G / 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. In this regard, the 
taxation ofcer raised demands of Rs. 19.90 million, Rs. 9.937 million, Rs. 19.10 million and Rs. 10 
million for Tax years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 vide assessment orders dated 28 March 2017, 02 
February 2017, 12 June 2017 and 18 April 2018 respectively. The Parent Company through its legal 
counsel led appeals to Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals ("CIR - A") against the said orders 
which are still pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a 
favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated nancial 
statements.

   The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ("ACIR") and Deputy Commissioner Inland 
Revenue ("DCIR"), while proceeding U/S 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 created income 
tax demands of Rs. 484.38 million and 213.12 million for the Tax Years 2014 and 2016 respectively 
vide two separate orders. The Parent Company has led an appeal before Commissioner Inland 
Revenue Appeals which is pending adjudication. The management believes that it has a strong 
arguable case and matter will be decided in favor of the Parent Company. Hence no provision has 
been recorded in these consolidated nancial statements.

  - For tax year 2016, the Commissioner Appeals - I, Lahore, vide its order number 25 dated 20 July 
2018, deleted certains additions and remanded the case on certain issues and upheld the case on 
issue of contractor services which invloves revenue of Rs. 10,671,768. Appeal against this order 
was led on 17 August 2018 which has not been heard. The management on the basis of opinion of 
the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these  
consolidated nancial statements.

  - During the year, a notice from PRA having number PRA/Royalty/2016/12 dated 22 June 2016 
involving an amount of Rs. 11,446,800 as royalty fee and technical services for the period October 
2012 to March 2015 was issued which is under investigation / adjudication proceedings. The 
management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no 
provision has been recorded in these consolidated nancial statements. 

  - The Additional Commissioner Enforcement Punjab Revenue Authority issued a show cause notice 
PRA/ENF-IV/WHT/BERGER/1161 dated 17 January 2019 and assesment order  ENF-
IV/29/05/2019 dated 25 April 2019 creating demand of Rs. 132 million u/s 52 read with 14 & 19 of 
Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act 2012. However, the Parent Company through its legal counsel 
led appeal before Commissioner Appeals PRA against the order of Additional Commissioner for 
which hearing is pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of 
a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated nancial 
statements.
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27 Short term borrowings - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

   Short term nancing - secured

   Short term running nance - secured

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

27.1           100,000           400,000 

27.2        1,104,747           737,989 

       1,204,747        1,137,989 

 27.1 Short term nancing 

  This represents utilized amount of short term nancing facilites under mark-up arrangements available 
from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 100 million (2018: Rs. 500 million) which is a sublimit of 
running nance facilities as described in note 27.2 to the nancial statements. These facilities are 
secured against joint pari passu charge on all present and future current assets, registered charge 
(mortagage and hypothecation) over the current assets of the Parent Company and carry mark-up at 
rates ranging between 7.72% and 12.09% per annum (2018: 7.25% and 8.03%) per annum, payable 
quarterly. Refer to note 44 for details of charge registered.

 27.2 Short term running nances

  This represents utilized amount of short term running nance facilities under mark-up arrangements 
available from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,400 million (2018: Rs. 1,150 million). These 
facilities are secured against registered charge over the current assets of the Parent Company and 
carry mark-up at rates ranging between 8.60% and 12.09% (2017: 7.14% and 8.17%) per annum, 
payable quarterly.

 27.3 Unavailed credit facilities

  The available facilities for opening of letters of credit and guarantees as at 30 June 2019 amounted to 
Rs. 2,684.07 million (2018: Rs. 1,450 million) out of which Rs. 2,224.55 million remained unavailed as at 
the reporting date (2018: Rs. 850.74 million).

28 Contingencies and commitments

 28.1 Contingencies

  The Parent Company

  - In 1987, the Parent Company led a suit against an ex-distributor ("the distributor") in the High 
Court of Sindh ("the court") for recovery of Rs. 8.89 million and damages amounting to Rs. 5.00 
million on account of unpaid credit invoices for the products supplied by it to the distributor. 
However, the distributor in return also led a counter claim of Rs. 78.15 million against the 
Company in the court on account of damages and compensation. Consequently on the basis of 
legal advice the management believes that it has a strong case and no nancial obligation is 
expected to arise.

  - The Sindh Revenue Board ("SRB") through assessment order 490/2014 dated 18 September 
2014 raised sales tax demand of Rs. 39.34 million along-with penalty but excluding default 
surcharge on the grounds that the Company has received franchise services through its 
registered ofce in Karachi but had not paid sales tax on these services for the tax periods July, 
2011 to June, 2013. Department (SRB) had inadvertently added all royalty gures appearing in 
accounts including royalty receivable, royalty payable, royalty expense and related party 
transfers for the calculation of tax on royalties.

   The Company, through its legal counsel, led an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB 
on the grounds that amount of sales tax is not correctly calculated and the provisions of Sindh 
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 are not applicable for the reason that the Company is managing its 
affairs from the province of Punjab as the head ofce and the manufacturing facility is located 
there. The Commissioner (Appeals) had reduced the demand to Rs. 8.18 million, against which the 
Parent Company had led an appeal before Appellate Tribunal SRB which is pending adjudication. 
The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, 
hence no provision has been recorded in these nancial statements..

  - The Sindh High Court ("the Court") in the case of 'Kasim Textile' in its order of 7 May, 2013 has held 
that benet of carry forward of minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
is only available if tax payable in a tax year is less than minimum tax paid. If in a tax year, a Company 
has assessed losses on which no tax is payable, the Company forgoes the right to carry forward 
minimum tax paid in that year. In the light of this order, the Parent Company may not be entitled to 
carry forward minimum tax paid in the tax year 2014 of Rs 39.12 million as a result of assessed tax 
losses in these years and adjust it against normal tax liability. Also in the case of refunds claimed in 
any year, those may also be adjusted accordingly. However, the management is of the view that the 
verdict has been challenged in the Supreme Court and that they are waiting for the nal outcome 
and accordingly minimum tax is adjusted against tax liability for the current year.

  - During 2018, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued show cause notices for collection 
of income tax under section 236G / 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. In this regard, the 
taxation ofcer raised demands of Rs. 19.90 million, Rs. 9.937 million, Rs. 19.10 million and Rs. 10 
million for Tax years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 vide assessment orders dated 28 March 2017, 02 
February 2017, 12 June 2017 and 18 April 2018 respectively. The Parent Company through its legal 
counsel led appeals to Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals ("CIR - A") against the said orders 
which are still pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a 
favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated nancial 
statements.

   The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ("ACIR") and Deputy Commissioner Inland 
Revenue ("DCIR"), while proceeding U/S 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 created income 
tax demands of Rs. 484.38 million and 213.12 million for the Tax Years 2014 and 2016 respectively 
vide two separate orders. The Parent Company has led an appeal before Commissioner Inland 
Revenue Appeals which is pending adjudication. The management believes that it has a strong 
arguable case and matter will be decided in favor of the Parent Company. Hence no provision has 
been recorded in these consolidated nancial statements.

  - For tax year 2016, the Commissioner Appeals - I, Lahore, vide its order number 25 dated 20 July 
2018, deleted certains additions and remanded the case on certain issues and upheld the case on 
issue of contractor services which invloves revenue of Rs. 10,671,768. Appeal against this order 
was led on 17 August 2018 which has not been heard. The management on the basis of opinion of 
the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these  
consolidated nancial statements.

  - During the year, a notice from PRA having number PRA/Royalty/2016/12 dated 22 June 2016 
involving an amount of Rs. 11,446,800 as royalty fee and technical services for the period October 
2012 to March 2015 was issued which is under investigation / adjudication proceedings. The 
management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a favorable outcome, hence no 
provision has been recorded in these consolidated nancial statements. 

  - The Additional Commissioner Enforcement Punjab Revenue Authority issued a show cause notice 
PRA/ENF-IV/WHT/BERGER/1161 dated 17 January 2019 and assesment order  ENF-
IV/29/05/2019 dated 25 April 2019 creating demand of Rs. 132 million u/s 52 read with 14 & 19 of 
Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act 2012. However, the Parent Company through its legal counsel 
led appeal before Commissioner Appeals PRA against the order of Additional Commissioner for 
which hearing is pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of 
a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated nancial 
statements.
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Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than ve years 

29 Sales - net

Local

       

Export

          

 

       

Less:    Discounts       
Sales tax

      

     

      

      

       

2019 2018

            12,429             15,371 

            19,218             40,937 

            31,647             56,308 

       7,003,986 8,022,068

          135,220 162,584

7,139,206

     

8,184,652

        (904,927) (1,460,095)

        (929,392) (1,023,155)

(1,834,319) (2,483,250)

5,304,887 5,701,402

Rupees in thousand

  - Various cases on account of income tax and sales tax matters involving an amount Rs. 24.83 
million are also pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a 
favorable outcome in all these cases, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated 
nancial statements.

 28.2 Commitments

  - Outstanding letters of credit as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 346.84 million (2018: Rs. 533.72 
million) for purchase of raw and packing materials.

  - Outstanding letters of guarantee as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 112.68 million (2018: Rs. 
65.71 million).

  - The amount of future rentals for Ijarah nancing and the period in which these payments will 
become due are as follows:

30 Cost of sales

Finished goods as at 01 July

Cost of goods manufactured

Provision against slowing moving nished goods

Application cost

Less: Finished goods as at 30 June

Consumption of nished goods purchased for resale

Cost of sales

30.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials consumed

Freight and handling

Provision charged / (reversed) against raw 

and packing material

Stores and spare parts consumed

Salaries, wages and other benets

Travelling and conveyance

Fuel, water and power

Legal and professional

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization

Ijarah lease rentals

Printing and stationery

Communication

Others

Opening stock of semi-processed goods

Closing stock of semi-processed goods

Provision charged during the year

Cost of goods manufactured

280,121 326,810

30.1 4,051,307 4,274,584

(130) 2,885

2,919 14,096

12 (271,041) (280,121)

30.2 78,013

          

103,012

4,141,189

      

4,441,266

       3,397,589 3,757,187

          134,514 119,784

              3,994 (3,503)

4,797
            

6,585

30.1.1           259,935 138,001

              3,946 13,911

          113,143 99,458

              2,062 8,423

3,394

            

4,346

9,026

            

8,611

34,612

          

35,937

6.7 55,673

          

60,061

7.1.1                  352 566

              3,314 3,710

2,088 2,409

1,516 1,318

16,892 29,656

4,046,847 4,286,460

12 80,123 70,531

12 (76,751) (80,123)

1,088 (2,284)

4,051,307 4,274,584

2019 2018Note
        

Rupees in thousand

 30.1.1 Salaries, wages and benets include Rs. 8.47 million (2018: Rs. 7.60 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 
3.62 million (2018: Rs. 3.78 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 2.23 million (2018: Rs. 2.77 million) 
in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 4.09 million (2018: Rs. 3.94 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution.

 

        

 

  

Trusted Worldwide
BERGER PAINTS Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

190 191



Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than ve years 

29 Sales - net

Local

       

Export

          

 

       

Less:    Discounts       
Sales tax

      

     

      

      

       

2019 2018

            12,429             15,371 

            19,218             40,937 

            31,647             56,308 

       7,003,986 8,022,068

          135,220 162,584

7,139,206

     

8,184,652

        (904,927) (1,460,095)

        (929,392) (1,023,155)

(1,834,319) (2,483,250)

5,304,887 5,701,402

Rupees in thousand

  - Various cases on account of income tax and sales tax matters involving an amount Rs. 24.83 
million are also pending. The management on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of a 
favorable outcome in all these cases, hence no provision has been recorded in these consolidated 
nancial statements.

 28.2 Commitments

  - Outstanding letters of credit as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 346.84 million (2018: Rs. 533.72 
million) for purchase of raw and packing materials.

  - Outstanding letters of guarantee as at 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs. 112.68 million (2018: Rs. 
65.71 million).

  - The amount of future rentals for Ijarah nancing and the period in which these payments will 
become due are as follows:

30 Cost of sales

Finished goods as at 01 July

Cost of goods manufactured

Provision against slowing moving nished goods

Application cost

Less: Finished goods as at 30 June

Consumption of nished goods purchased for resale

Cost of sales

30.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials consumed

Freight and handling

Provision charged / (reversed) against raw 

and packing material

Stores and spare parts consumed

Salaries, wages and other benets

Travelling and conveyance

Fuel, water and power

Legal and professional

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization

Ijarah lease rentals

Printing and stationery

Communication

Others

Opening stock of semi-processed goods

Closing stock of semi-processed goods

Provision charged during the year

Cost of goods manufactured

280,121 326,810

30.1 4,051,307 4,274,584

(130) 2,885

2,919 14,096

12 (271,041) (280,121)

30.2 78,013

          

103,012

4,141,189

      

4,441,266

       3,397,589 3,757,187

          134,514 119,784

              3,994 (3,503)

4,797
            

6,585

30.1.1           259,935 138,001

              3,946 13,911

          113,143 99,458

              2,062 8,423

3,394

            

4,346

9,026

            

8,611

34,612

          

35,937

6.7 55,673

          

60,061

7.1.1                  352 566

              3,314 3,710

2,088 2,409

1,516 1,318

16,892 29,656

4,046,847 4,286,460

12 80,123 70,531

12 (76,751) (80,123)

1,088 (2,284)

4,051,307 4,274,584

2019 2018Note
        

Rupees in thousand

 30.1.1 Salaries, wages and benets include Rs. 8.47 million (2018: Rs. 7.60 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 
3.62 million (2018: Rs. 3.78 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 2.23 million (2018: Rs. 2.77 million) 
in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 4.09 million (2018: Rs. 3.94 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution.
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31.2 This represents royalty and technical fee paid to following companies;

Relationship with 

Parent Company
2019 2018

4,252

             

              5,770 

38,823

           

            31,896 

1,556              2,034 

694                 331 

4,348              1,878 

49,673 41,909

Name / address of the party

Rupees in thousand

 

             

           

      

           

          

             

Licensor

Licensor (the 

Holding Company)

Licensor (Common 

Group)

Licensor

Licensor

(Hulsdonk 35-B 9042/Gent – Mendonk, Belgium.)

Nippon Paint Company Limited 

Slotrapid Limited

Buxly Paints Limited 

Nippon Bee Chemical Company Limited

Oxyplast Belgium N.V.

(2-1-2 Oyodo – Kita, Kita-Ku, Osaka – 531-

8511 Japan.)

(14-1, 2-Chome, Shodai-Ohtani, Hirakata

City, Osaka 573, Japan.)

Suit# 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street,

Wickham Cay 1, Road Town, Tortola, British

Virgin Island.

(X-3, Mangopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi.)

                

                 

30.2 The movement of nished goods purchased for resale is as follows:

Finished goods as at 01 July

Add: Finished goods purchased for resale during the year

Less: Consumption of nished goods during the year

Finished goods as at 30 June

Note

31 Selling and distribution costs

Salaries and other benets 31.1

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Fuel, water and power

Advertising and sales promotion

Technical services and royalty fee 31.2

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.7

Amortization 7.1.1

Ijarah lease rentals

Provision for doubtful debts - net of recoveries 13.3

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others

                  

            
2019 2018

            90,915             99,700 

            54,292             94,227 

          (78,013)         (103,012)

            67,194             90,915 

2019 2018

375,801

        

          338,506 

5,075

            

            95,684 

3,937

            

              7,102 

10,613

          

            10,446 

6,181

            

              6,010 

176,900

        

          267,296 

49,673

          

            41,909 

2,939

            

            11,380 

15,030

          

            13,093 

314

               

                 325 

6,881

            

              4,832 

26,386

          

                 990 

2,652

            

              2,336 

2,907

            

              4,176 

7,297

            

              7,780 

9,225

            
              9,720 

701,811
        
821,585

Rupees in thousand

Rupees in thousand                        

        

     

      

         

           

             

         

          

 31.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 6.94 million (2018: Rs. 6.23 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 
2.97 million (2018: Rs. 3.10 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 1.83 million (2018: Rs. 2.27 million) 
in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 9.91 million (2018: Rs. 10.14 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution.
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31.2 This represents royalty and technical fee paid to following companies;

Relationship with 

Parent Company
2019 2018

4,252

             

              5,770 

38,823

           

            31,896 

1,556              2,034 

694                 331 

4,348              1,878 

49,673 41,909

Name / address of the party

Rupees in thousand

 

             

           

      

           

          

             

Licensor

Licensor (the 

Holding Company)

Licensor (Common 

Group)

Licensor

Licensor

(Hulsdonk 35-B 9042/Gent – Mendonk, Belgium.)

Nippon Paint Company Limited 

Slotrapid Limited

Buxly Paints Limited 

Nippon Bee Chemical Company Limited

Oxyplast Belgium N.V.

(2-1-2 Oyodo – Kita, Kita-Ku, Osaka – 531-

8511 Japan.)

(14-1, 2-Chome, Shodai-Ohtani, Hirakata

City, Osaka 573, Japan.)

Suit# 1 Akara Building, 24 De-Cantro Street,

Wickham Cay 1, Road Town, Tortola, British

Virgin Island.

(X-3, Mangopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi.)

                

                 

30.2 The movement of nished goods purchased for resale is as follows:

Finished goods as at 01 July

Add: Finished goods purchased for resale during the year

Less: Consumption of nished goods during the year

Finished goods as at 30 June

Note

31 Selling and distribution costs

Salaries and other benets 31.1

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Fuel, water and power

Advertising and sales promotion

Technical services and royalty fee 31.2

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.7

Amortization 7.1.1

Ijarah lease rentals

Provision for doubtful debts - net of recoveries 13.3

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others

                  

            
2019 2018

            90,915             99,700 

            54,292             94,227 

          (78,013)         (103,012)

            67,194             90,915 

2019 2018

375,801

        

          338,506 

5,075

            

            95,684 

3,937

            

              7,102 

10,613

          

            10,446 

6,181

            

              6,010 

176,900

        

          267,296 

49,673

          

            41,909 

2,939

            

            11,380 

15,030

          

            13,093 

314

               

                 325 

6,881

            

              4,832 

26,386

          

                 990 

2,652

            

              2,336 

2,907

            

              4,176 

7,297

            

              7,780 

9,225

            
              9,720 

701,811
        
821,585

Rupees in thousand

Rupees in thousand                        

        

     

      

         

           

             

         

          

 31.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 6.94 million (2018: Rs. 6.23 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 
2.97 million (2018: Rs. 3.10 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 1.83 million (2018: Rs. 2.27 million) 
in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 9.91 million (2018: Rs. 10.14 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution.
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2019 2018Note

34 Other expenses

Impairment on goodwill

Reversal / provision for doubtful loans

Workers' Welfare Fund

Workers' Prot Participation fund

Provision for export rebate

35 Finance cost

Islamic mode of nancing:

- Long term nancing (musharka) - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks:

- Long term nancing - secured

- Short term nancing - secured

- Short term running nances - secured

- Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease - 

Interest on WPPF

Bank charges

Rupees in thousand

8,263 4,487

(201)

              

1,765

3,524

            

1,416

25.3 6,568

            

8,152

1,824

            

-

19,978

          

15,820

                 369 329

18,758 11,252

23,927 28,677

          105,658 43,144

secured                  376 293

148,719 83,366

25.3                  838 875

            15,557 3,934

165,483 88,504

Audit fee

Consolidation and half yearly review

Out of pocket expenses

32.2.2

Audit fee

Rupees in thousand

Ahmad Usman Shabbir & Co. - Auditor of the Subsidiary Companies

2019 2018

1,490 1,290

518 440

241 187

2,249 1,917

177 120

2,426 2,037

32 Administrative and general expenses

Salaries and other benets

Directors' meeting fee

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Auditors' remuneration

Fuel, water and power

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization of computer software

Provision for doubtful advances and deposits

Ijarah lease rentals

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others

32.1 114,882 101,293

3,600 4,475

6,150 12,924

6,822 4,763

8,440 11,685

32.2 2,426 2,037

1,975

            

1,748

              2,501 2,880

6.7               9,307 8,972

7.1.1               4,672 3,769

                   -   5,321

              4,175 4,147

1,299

            

1,403

            15,039 18,587

              2,764 2,861

11,383

          
19,850

195,435 206,715

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 32.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 1.52 million (2018: Rs. 1.37 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 
0.65 million (2018: Rs. 0.68 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 0.40 million (2018: Rs. 0.49 million) 
in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 6.53 million (2018: Rs. 6.39 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution.

 32.2 Auditors' remuneration

 32.2.1 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. - Auditor  of the Parent Company

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018

33 Other income - net

Income from nancial assets

Mark-up on term deposit receipts and long term loan

Income from non nancial assets

Sale of scrap

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Rental income and other services charged to related parties

Export rebate

Insurance claim

 Property plant and equipment

Others

Provision charged for 

impairment loss on capital work in progress

Reversal of sale promotion provision

Return on bank deposits

Exchange loss

Others

 

 

2019 2018Note

12,150               6,729 

            15,296             17,449 

            12,324               9,363 

(7,440)             (2,854)

2,653               2,280 

4,700

            

                   -   

2,676

            

              2,731 

6.6.1 -

                

8,059

7,700

            

-

42

                 

-

(33,063)

          

          (18,271)

33.1 8,153

            

              2,316 

            13,041             21,073 

            25,191             27,802 

Rupees in thousand

 33.1 This mainly includes penalty charged to suppliers and customers of Rs. 0.52 million (2018: Rs. 0.39 
million).
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2019 2018Note

34 Other expenses

Impairment on goodwill

Reversal / provision for doubtful loans

Workers' Welfare Fund

Workers' Prot Participation fund

Provision for export rebate

35 Finance cost

Islamic mode of nancing:

- Long term nancing (musharka) - secured

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks:

- Long term nancing - secured

- Short term nancing - secured

- Short term running nances - secured

- Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease - 

Interest on WPPF

Bank charges

Rupees in thousand

8,263 4,487

(201)

              

1,765

3,524

            

1,416

25.3 6,568

            

8,152

1,824

            

-

19,978

          

15,820

                 369 329

18,758 11,252

23,927 28,677

          105,658 43,144

secured                  376 293

148,719 83,366

25.3                  838 875

            15,557 3,934

165,483 88,504

Audit fee

Consolidation and half yearly review

Out of pocket expenses

32.2.2

Audit fee

Rupees in thousand

Ahmad Usman Shabbir & Co. - Auditor of the Subsidiary Companies

2019 2018

1,490 1,290

518 440

241 187

2,249 1,917

177 120

2,426 2,037

32 Administrative and general expenses

Salaries and other benets

Directors' meeting fee

Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Auditors' remuneration

Fuel, water and power

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization of computer software

Provision for doubtful advances and deposits

Ijarah lease rentals

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional

Communication

Others

32.1 114,882 101,293

3,600 4,475

6,150 12,924

6,822 4,763

8,440 11,685

32.2 2,426 2,037

1,975

            

1,748

              2,501 2,880

6.7               9,307 8,972

7.1.1               4,672 3,769

                   -   5,321

              4,175 4,147

1,299

            

1,403

            15,039 18,587

              2,764 2,861

11,383

          
19,850

195,435 206,715

2019 2018NoteRupees in thousand

 32.1 Salaries and other benets include Rs. 1.52 million (2018: Rs. 1.37 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs. 
0.65 million (2018: Rs. 0.68 million) in respect of  pension fund, Rs. 0.40 million (2018: Rs. 0.49 million) 
in respect of compensated absences and Rs. 6.53 million (2018: Rs. 6.39 million) in respect of 
provident fund contribution.

 32.2 Auditors' remuneration

 32.2.1 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. - Auditor  of the Parent Company

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018

33 Other income - net

Income from nancial assets

Mark-up on term deposit receipts and long term loan

Income from non nancial assets

Sale of scrap

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Rental income and other services charged to related parties

Export rebate

Insurance claim

 Property plant and equipment

Others

Provision charged for 

impairment loss on capital work in progress

Reversal of sale promotion provision

Return on bank deposits

Exchange loss

Others

 

 

2019 2018Note

12,150               6,729 

            15,296             17,449 

            12,324               9,363 

(7,440)             (2,854)

2,653               2,280 

4,700

            

                   -   

2,676

            

              2,731 

6.6.1 -

                

8,059

7,700

            

-

42

                 

-

(33,063)

          

          (18,271)

33.1 8,153

            

              2,316 

            13,041             21,073 

            25,191             27,802 

Rupees in thousand

 33.1 This mainly includes penalty charged to suppliers and customers of Rs. 0.52 million (2018: Rs. 0.39 
million).
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37 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

Short term running nance - secured

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

18             79,253             26,569 

     (1,104,747)         (737,989)

     (1,025,494)         (711,420)

2019 2018

Applicable tax rate

Tax effect of:

- income under Final Tax Regime

- minimum tax

- temporary difference due to turnover tax credit

- other temporary difference including rate adjustment

- prior year adjustment

- others

Average effective tax rate charged to prot and loss account

29.00% 30.00%

14.62% -0.33%

16.25% 14.38%

-37.20% -

-11.58% 8.99%

0.00% -23.09%

-0.31% 1.14%

10.78% 31.09%

36 Taxation

Current

- for the year

- prior year

Deferred

- current year

2019 2018

             
Rupees in thousand

71,698 72,485

- (36,016)

71,698 36,469

(61,859) 12,031

9,839 48,500

 36.1 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

 36.2 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19 September 2019 have recommended nal cash 
dividend of Re. 1 per share for the year ended 30 June 2019 to comply with the requirements of section 
5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, no provision for tax in this respect has been made 
in these consolidated nancial statements.

 36.3 Super tax under section 4(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is not applicable to the Group as the 
imputable income does not meet the threshold of Rs. 500 million.

 36.4 The tax provision is charged by considering the provision of section 113 under the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. In addition to this, it also includes tax on exports and imports and income from other 
sources which is full and nal discharge of Group's tax liability in respect of income arising from such 
source.

38 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

                                           

12,727

           

52,458

           

-

                 

10,910

           

54,728 -

12,909 36,152 - 7,455 28,592 -

-

                 

22,166

           

-

                 

-

                 

2,063 -

- 4,926 - - 4,903 -

1,273 1,959 - 1,090 2,537 -

26,909 117,661 - 19,455 92,823 -

Managerial remuneration 

(including bonus)

Retirement and other

    long term benets

House Rent Allowance

Utilities

Medical expenses

Number of persons 1 24 7 1 28 6

2019 2018

Rupees in thousand

Chief 

Executive
Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

Chief 

Executive
Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

 38.1 Retirement and other long term benets include benets provided under provident fund, gratuity, 
pension and accumulated compensated absences.

 38.2 Non-executive directors were paid meeting fee aggregating Rs. 3.6 million (2018: Rs. 4.48 million).

 38.3 The Chief Executive and certain other executives of the Parent Company are provided with free use of 
Parent Company cars while the Chief Executive is provided boarding and lodging in the Parent 
Company's guest house.

39 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash ows arising from nancing activities

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid-up capital

Unclaimed 

Dividend

Long term 

nancing

 Short term 

borrowing 

 Liabilities 

against assets 

subject to 

nance lease 

Accrued
mark-up Total

               181,864                    4,756                138,263             1,137,989 3,593                 16,465             1,482,930 

                         -                   (21,509)                         -                            -                          -                            -                  (21,509)

                         -                            -                            -                            -                          -                 (142,140)             (142,140)

                         -                            -                    31,728                          -                          -                            -                    31,728 

                         -                            -                            -                   (1,869)                         -                    (1,869)

                         -                  (21,509)                 31,728                          -                   (1,869)             (142,140)             (133,790)

                         -                            -                            -                    66,758                        -                            -                    66,758 

                         -                    22,733                          -                            -                          -                            -                    22,733 

                 22,733                          -                            -                            -                          -                            -                    22,733 

                         -                            -                            -                            -                       376                165,107                165,483 

                 22,733                  22,733                          -                    66,758                     376                165,107                277,707 

As at 30 June 2018

Changes from nancing cash ows

Dividend paid

Financial charges paid

Long term nancing

Repayment of lease liability

Total changes from nancing cash ows

Other changes

Change in borrowings

Dividend declared

Bonus issue

Interest expense

Total liability related other changes 

As at 30 June 2019                204,597                    5,980                169,991             1,204,747                  2,099                  39,432             1,626,847 

2019

Rupees in thousand

27.2
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37 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

Short term running nance - secured

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018Note

18             79,253             26,569 

     (1,104,747)         (737,989)

     (1,025,494)         (711,420)

2019 2018

Applicable tax rate

Tax effect of:

- income under Final Tax Regime

- minimum tax

- temporary difference due to turnover tax credit

- other temporary difference including rate adjustment

- prior year adjustment

- others

Average effective tax rate charged to prot and loss account

29.00% 30.00%

14.62% -0.33%

16.25% 14.38%

-37.20% -

-11.58% 8.99%

0.00% -23.09%

-0.31% 1.14%

10.78% 31.09%

36 Taxation

Current

- for the year

- prior year

Deferred

- current year

2019 2018

             
Rupees in thousand

71,698 72,485

- (36,016)

71,698 36,469

(61,859) 12,031

9,839 48,500

 36.1 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

 36.2 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19 September 2019 have recommended nal cash 
dividend of Re. 1 per share for the year ended 30 June 2019 to comply with the requirements of section 
5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, no provision for tax in this respect has been made 
in these consolidated nancial statements.

 36.3 Super tax under section 4(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is not applicable to the Group as the 
imputable income does not meet the threshold of Rs. 500 million.

 36.4 The tax provision is charged by considering the provision of section 113 under the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. In addition to this, it also includes tax on exports and imports and income from other 
sources which is full and nal discharge of Group's tax liability in respect of income arising from such 
source.

38 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

                                           

12,727

           

52,458

           

-

                 

10,910

           

54,728 -

12,909 36,152 - 7,455 28,592 -

-

                 

22,166

           

-

                 

-

                 

2,063 -

- 4,926 - - 4,903 -

1,273 1,959 - 1,090 2,537 -

26,909 117,661 - 19,455 92,823 -

Managerial remuneration 

(including bonus)

Retirement and other

    long term benets

House Rent Allowance

Utilities

Medical expenses

Number of persons 1 24 7 1 28 6

2019 2018

Rupees in thousand

Chief 

Executive
Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

Chief 

Executive
Executives

Non-

Executive 

Directors

 38.1 Retirement and other long term benets include benets provided under provident fund, gratuity, 
pension and accumulated compensated absences.

 38.2 Non-executive directors were paid meeting fee aggregating Rs. 3.6 million (2018: Rs. 4.48 million).

 38.3 The Chief Executive and certain other executives of the Parent Company are provided with free use of 
Parent Company cars while the Chief Executive is provided boarding and lodging in the Parent 
Company's guest house.

39 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash ows arising from nancing activities

Issued, 

subscribed and 

paid-up capital

Unclaimed 

Dividend

Long term 

nancing

 Short term 

borrowing 

 Liabilities 

against assets 

subject to 

nance lease 

Accrued
mark-up Total

               181,864                    4,756                138,263             1,137,989 3,593                 16,465             1,482,930 

                         -                   (21,509)                         -                            -                          -                            -                  (21,509)

                         -                            -                            -                            -                          -                 (142,140)             (142,140)

                         -                            -                    31,728                          -                          -                            -                    31,728 

                         -                            -                            -                   (1,869)                         -                    (1,869)

                         -                  (21,509)                 31,728                          -                   (1,869)             (142,140)             (133,790)

                         -                            -                            -                    66,758                        -                            -                    66,758 

                         -                    22,733                          -                            -                          -                            -                    22,733 

                 22,733                          -                            -                            -                          -                            -                    22,733 

                         -                            -                            -                            -                       376                165,107                165,483 

                 22,733                  22,733                          -                    66,758                     376                165,107                277,707 

As at 30 June 2018

Changes from nancing cash ows

Dividend paid

Financial charges paid

Long term nancing

Repayment of lease liability

Total changes from nancing cash ows

Other changes

Change in borrowings

Dividend declared

Bonus issue

Interest expense

Total liability related other changes 

As at 30 June 2019                204,597                    5,980                169,991             1,204,747                  2,099                  39,432             1,626,847 

2019

Rupees in thousand

27.2
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40 Number of employees

The Group has employed following number of persons:

- As at 30 June

- Average number of employees

Number of persons 2019 2018

737 1000

875 966

41 Transactions with related parties

 The related parties of the Group comprises Holding Company and its all the subsidiaries and associates, 
associated undertakings, entities under common directorship, post employment benet plans, directors and key 
management personnel. Amounts due from and due to related parties, remuneration of directors and key 
management personnel are disclosed in the relevant notes.

 Material transactions with related parties are given below:

Nature of transaction 2019 2018

Holding Company

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I. Royalty expense 38,823 38,516

Payment / Adjustment 38,516

     

35,545

Dividend paid 11,519

     

-

Associated 

438

          

            273 

-

           

            283 

Related parties

Buxly Paints Limited ("BPL") Sales 179,539

    

244,162

(Common Group) 22,356

     

28,679

Royalty expense 1,556

       
2,034

Rental expense 1,812
       

1,812

1,200        1,200

13,052

     

13,775

5,735 12,500

Toll manufacturing income

Holding 

Percentage  

52.05%

49.00%

19.00%

Common expenditures 

incurred

Common expenditures 

incurred

Receipts / Adjustments

Receipts / Adjustments

3S Pharmaceutical (Private)

Name of parties, nature 

and basis of relationship

Rupees in thousand

Rental income and other 

services

Limited

Nature of transaction 2019 2018

Dadex Eternit Limited Sales 257 1,254

Post employment benet plans Contribution to gratuity fund 11,211 8,441

(Key Management Personnel) Contribution to pension fund - 2,000

Provident fund contribution 41,064 40,964

-

-

Rupees in thousand

Name of parties, nature 

and basis of relationship
Holding 

Percentage  

 In addition to these transactions, the Parent Company has an agreement with BPL for construction and use of 
warehouse on BPL's land located at X-3 Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi for a term of ten years at a nominal 
monthly rent. After the aforementioned term of ten years, the group will handover the possession of the building to 
BPL free of cost. 

42 Financial instruments

 42.1 Risk management framework

  The Group's activities expose it to a variety of nancial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other 
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management 
program focuses on the unpredictability of nancial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the nancial performance.

  The Group's Board of Directors ("the Board") has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight 
of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Group's risk management policies.

  The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reect changes in market conditions and 
Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims 
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their 
roles and obligations.

  The Parent Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the 
Group's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by 
internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

  The Group's exposure to nancial risk, the way these risks affect the nancial position and performance 
and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

 42.1.1 Market risk

  Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Group's income or value of its holding of nancial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing return.

  (i) Foreign exchange risk

   Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in 
foreign currencies.
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40 Number of employees

The Group has employed following number of persons:

- As at 30 June

- Average number of employees

Number of persons 2019 2018

737 1000

875 966

41 Transactions with related parties

 The related parties of the Group comprises Holding Company and its all the subsidiaries and associates, 
associated undertakings, entities under common directorship, post employment benet plans, directors and key 
management personnel. Amounts due from and due to related parties, remuneration of directors and key 
management personnel are disclosed in the relevant notes.

 Material transactions with related parties are given below:

Nature of transaction 2019 2018

Holding Company

Slotrapid Limited B.V.I. Royalty expense 38,823 38,516

Payment / Adjustment 38,516

     

35,545

Dividend paid 11,519

     

-

Associated 

438

          

            273 

-

           

            283 

Related parties

Buxly Paints Limited ("BPL") Sales 179,539

    

244,162

(Common Group) 22,356

     

28,679

Royalty expense 1,556

       
2,034

Rental expense 1,812
       

1,812

1,200        1,200

13,052

     

13,775

5,735 12,500

Toll manufacturing income

Holding 

Percentage  

52.05%

49.00%

19.00%

Common expenditures 

incurred

Common expenditures 

incurred

Receipts / Adjustments

Receipts / Adjustments

3S Pharmaceutical (Private)

Name of parties, nature 

and basis of relationship

Rupees in thousand

Rental income and other 

services

Limited

Nature of transaction 2019 2018

Dadex Eternit Limited Sales 257 1,254

Post employment benet plans Contribution to gratuity fund 11,211 8,441

(Key Management Personnel) Contribution to pension fund - 2,000

Provident fund contribution 41,064 40,964

-

-

Rupees in thousand

Name of parties, nature 

and basis of relationship
Holding 

Percentage  

 In addition to these transactions, the Parent Company has an agreement with BPL for construction and use of 
warehouse on BPL's land located at X-3 Manghopir Road, S.I.T.E., Karachi for a term of ten years at a nominal 
monthly rent. After the aforementioned term of ten years, the group will handover the possession of the building to 
BPL free of cost. 

42 Financial instruments

 42.1 Risk management framework

  The Group's activities expose it to a variety of nancial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other 
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management 
program focuses on the unpredictability of nancial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the nancial performance.

  The Group's Board of Directors ("the Board") has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight 
of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Group's risk management policies.

  The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reect changes in market conditions and 
Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims 
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their 
roles and obligations.

  The Parent Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the 
Group's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by 
internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

  The Group's exposure to nancial risk, the way these risks affect the nancial position and performance 
and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

 42.1.1 Market risk

  Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Group's income or value of its holding of nancial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing return.

  (i) Foreign exchange risk

   Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in 
foreign currencies.
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2019 2018

Statement of nancial position items

Trade and other payables - Euro

Net exposure - Euro

Trade and other payables - USD

                        

Net exposure - USD

           

             

Trade and other payables - JPY

          

Net exposure - JPY

          

Off statement of nancial position items

Outstanding letters of credit as at the year end are as follows:

Euro

USD

JPY

The following signicant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2019 2018

Rupees per Euro

Average rate for the year 156.65

           

134.38

           

Reporting date rate -  selling 186.99

           

144.70

           

Rupees per USD

Average rate for the year 137.44 112.94

Reporting date rate -  selling 164.50 124.40

Rupees per JPY

Average rate for the year 1.24 1.01

Reporting date rate - selling 1.53 1.11

(8,388)

                                       In rupees

In thousands

Amount in thousand

(7)                                              
(865)

                                          

(8) (27)

(8) (27)

(1,673) (2,695)

(1,673) (2,695)

(32,036)

          

(46,000)

(32,036) (46,000)

   The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 
respect to the Euro, United States Dollar (USD) and Japanese Yen (JPY). Currently, the Group's 
foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to foreign entities. The 
Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk is as follows:

   Sensitivity analysis

   If the functional currency, at reporting date, had uctuated by 5.00% against the Euro, USD and 
JPY with all other variables held constant, the impact on prot before taxation for the year would 
have been Rs. 16.28 million (2018: Rs. 19.51 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange 
gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated nancial instruments. Foreign 
exchange risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric 
basis.

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the 
year and assets / liabilities of the Group.

  (ii) Price risk

   Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial 
instrument will uctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from 
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specic to the 
individual nancial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar nancial instruments 
traded in the market. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse 
portfolio of commodity suppliers.

   Sensitivity analysis

   The Parent Company's investments in equity instrument of other entities are publicly traded on 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The summary below explains the impact of increase on the 
Parent Company's surplus of available for sale investment to change in market price. The 
analysis is based on the assumption that the market price had increased / decreased by 10% 
with all other variables held constant:

2019 2018

Buxly Paints Limited               1,275                2,554 

Impact on equity

Rupees in thousands

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for 
the year and assets / liabilities of the Parent Company.

  (iii) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in interest rates.  Signicant interest rate risk exposures are 
primarily managed by a mix of borrowings at variable interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate 
risk arises from mismatch of nancial assets and nancial liabilities that mature or re-price in a 
given period.

   Fixed rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Group's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

                        

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

Amount in thousand

Non-derivative nancial 

instruments

Short term investment 32,195 - 25,195 -

Bank balances - deposit accounts -

              

-

               

6,364

            

-

32,195 - 31,559 -

20182019
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2019 2018

Statement of nancial position items

Trade and other payables - Euro

Net exposure - Euro

Trade and other payables - USD

                        

Net exposure - USD

           

             

Trade and other payables - JPY

          

Net exposure - JPY

          

Off statement of nancial position items

Outstanding letters of credit as at the year end are as follows:

Euro

USD

JPY

The following signicant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2019 2018

Rupees per Euro

Average rate for the year 156.65

           

134.38

           

Reporting date rate -  selling 186.99

           

144.70

           

Rupees per USD

Average rate for the year 137.44 112.94

Reporting date rate -  selling 164.50 124.40

Rupees per JPY

Average rate for the year 1.24 1.01

Reporting date rate - selling 1.53 1.11

(8,388)

                                       In rupees

In thousands

Amount in thousand

(7)                                              
(865)

                                          

(8) (27)

(8) (27)

(1,673) (2,695)

(1,673) (2,695)

(32,036)

          

(46,000)

(32,036) (46,000)

   The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 
respect to the Euro, United States Dollar (USD) and Japanese Yen (JPY). Currently, the Group's 
foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to foreign entities. The 
Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk is as follows:

   Sensitivity analysis

   If the functional currency, at reporting date, had uctuated by 5.00% against the Euro, USD and 
JPY with all other variables held constant, the impact on prot before taxation for the year would 
have been Rs. 16.28 million (2018: Rs. 19.51 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange 
gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated nancial instruments. Foreign 
exchange risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric 
basis.

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for the 
year and assets / liabilities of the Group.

  (ii) Price risk

   Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial 
instrument will uctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from 
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specic to the 
individual nancial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar nancial instruments 
traded in the market. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk since it has a diverse 
portfolio of commodity suppliers.

   Sensitivity analysis

   The Parent Company's investments in equity instrument of other entities are publicly traded on 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The summary below explains the impact of increase on the 
Parent Company's surplus of available for sale investment to change in market price. The 
analysis is based on the assumption that the market price had increased / decreased by 10% 
with all other variables held constant:

2019 2018

Buxly Paints Limited               1,275                2,554 

Impact on equity

Rupees in thousands

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for 
the year and assets / liabilities of the Parent Company.

  (iii) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 
uctuate because of changes in interest rates.  Signicant interest rate risk exposures are 
primarily managed by a mix of borrowings at variable interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate 
risk arises from mismatch of nancial assets and nancial liabilities that mature or re-price in a 
given period.

   Fixed rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Group's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

                        

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

Amount in thousand

Non-derivative nancial 

instruments

Short term investment 32,195 - 25,195 -

Bank balances - deposit accounts -

              

-

               

6,364

            

-

32,195 - 31,559 -

20182019
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   Fair value sensitivity analysis for xed rate instruments

   The Group does not account for any xed rate nancial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through prot and loss. Therefore, a change in prot / mark-up / interest rates at the reporting 
date would not affect prot and loss account.

   Variable rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Group's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

                       

                     

                

         

                            

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

Non-derivative nancial

Rupees in thousand

instruments

Short term investment -

              
-

               
17,080

          
-

Short term borrowings - secured -

              

1,204,747 - 1,137,989

Long term nancing - secured - 169,991 - 138,263

- 1,374,738 17,080 1,276,252

2019 2018

   Cash ow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

   A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would 
have (decreased) / increased prot before taxation by amounts shown below. The analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant.

Increase of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments

            

Decrease of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments

           

2019 2018

13,747            12,592

(13,747) (12,592)

Rupees in thousand

Prot

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for 
the year and assets / liabilities of the Group.

 42.1.2 Credit risk

  Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-
parties failed completely to perform as contracted.  To manage credit risk, the Group maintains 
procedures covering the application of credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits 
and monitoring of exposures against these limits. The management assesses the credit quality of the 
customers, taking into account their nancial position, past experience and other factors. Individual 
credit limits are set based on the credit control procedures implemented by the management.

  Exposure to credit risk

  The carrying amount of nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the statement of nancial position date was as follows:

 

 
Customers

Banking companies and nancial institutions

Others

1,479,490 1,237,001

110,318 67,888

110,958 136,847

1,700,766 1,441,736

Loans and receivables

Long term loans - secured

          

Long term deposits

Loans and advances

Trade debts - unsecured

Trade deposits

Other receivables

Short term investment - secured

Bank balances

2019 2018Note

9 44,628 54,360

10 22,190

          

26,869

14 14,708

          

15,271

13 1,479,490

      

1,237,001

15 26,814

          

38,521

16 2,618

            

1,826

17 32,195

          
42,275

18 78,123           25,613

1,700,766 1,441,736

Rupees in thousand

  Concentration of credit risk

  The Group identies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum 
exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

2019 2018
          

          
Rupees in thousand

  Credit quality of nancial assets

  The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty.

  (i) Long term loans

   Long term loans represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Group in 
accordance with the terms of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor 
vehicles and motor cycles. These loans are secured by keeping title of the underlying assets in 
the name of the Group till nal settlement. Hence, the management believes that no 
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these long term loans.

  (ii) Long term deposits

   Long term deposits represent mainly deposits with Government institutions, hence the 
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these long term 
deposits.

  (iii) Trade debts

   The trade debts as at the statement of nancial position date are classied in Pak Rupees. The 
Group recognises loss allowances based on ECL model as fully explained in note 3.1.5.
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   Fair value sensitivity analysis for xed rate instruments

   The Group does not account for any xed rate nancial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through prot and loss. Therefore, a change in prot / mark-up / interest rates at the reporting 
date would not affect prot and loss account.

   Variable rate nancial instruments

   The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing nancial instruments are 
mentioned in relevant notes to the  nancial statements. The Group's interest / mark-up bearing 
nancial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

                       

                     

                

         

                            

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Financial 

assets 

 Financial 

liabilities 

Non-derivative nancial

Rupees in thousand

instruments

Short term investment -

              
-

               
17,080

          
-

Short term borrowings - secured -

              

1,204,747 - 1,137,989

Long term nancing - secured - 169,991 - 138,263

- 1,374,738 17,080 1,276,252

2019 2018

   Cash ow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

   A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would 
have (decreased) / increased prot before taxation by amounts shown below. The analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant.

Increase of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments

            

Decrease of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments

           

2019 2018

13,747            12,592

(13,747) (12,592)

Rupees in thousand

Prot

   The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on prot / (loss) for 
the year and assets / liabilities of the Group.

 42.1.2 Credit risk

  Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter-
parties failed completely to perform as contracted.  To manage credit risk, the Group maintains 
procedures covering the application of credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits 
and monitoring of exposures against these limits. The management assesses the credit quality of the 
customers, taking into account their nancial position, past experience and other factors. Individual 
credit limits are set based on the credit control procedures implemented by the management.

  Exposure to credit risk

  The carrying amount of nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the statement of nancial position date was as follows:

 

 
Customers

Banking companies and nancial institutions

Others

1,479,490 1,237,001

110,318 67,888

110,958 136,847

1,700,766 1,441,736

Loans and receivables

Long term loans - secured

          

Long term deposits

Loans and advances

Trade debts - unsecured

Trade deposits

Other receivables

Short term investment - secured

Bank balances

2019 2018Note

9 44,628 54,360

10 22,190

          

26,869

14 14,708

          

15,271

13 1,479,490

      

1,237,001

15 26,814

          

38,521

16 2,618

            

1,826

17 32,195

          
42,275

18 78,123           25,613

1,700,766 1,441,736

Rupees in thousand

  Concentration of credit risk

  The Group identies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum 
exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

2019 2018
          

          
Rupees in thousand

  Credit quality of nancial assets

  The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty.

  (i) Long term loans

   Long term loans represent interest free loans provided to the employees of the Group in 
accordance with the terms of their employment, under a scheme for the purchase of motor 
vehicles and motor cycles. These loans are secured by keeping title of the underlying assets in 
the name of the Group till nal settlement. Hence, the management believes that no 
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these long term loans.

  (ii) Long term deposits

   Long term deposits represent mainly deposits with Government institutions, hence the 
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these long term 
deposits.

  (iii) Trade debts

   The trade debts as at the statement of nancial position date are classied in Pak Rupees. The 
Group recognises loss allowances based on ECL model as fully explained in note 3.1.5.
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  (iv) Bank balances

   The Group's exposure to credit risk against balances with various commercial banks is as 
follows:

                      

                              

           

             

             

                    

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 169,991 169,991 80,356 89,635 -

Liabilities against assets 

subject to nance lease - secured 2,099 1,046 1,086

Trade and other payables 1,022,133 1,022,133 1,022,133 - -

39,432 39,432 39,432 - -

Short term borrowings - secured 1,204,747 1,287,804 1,287,804 - -

2,438,402 2,519,360 2,430,771 90,721 -

Rupees in thousand

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

               

             

                    

                  

                            

In current accounts

In deposit accounts

Short term investment

Cash and bank balances

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018

78,123 19,249

- 6,364

32,195

          

42,275

          110,318              67,888 

   The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit 
rating agencies as follows:

Rating

2019 2018Banks Short term Long term Agency

Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 27,478

          
19,048

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 20,416

          

21,670

United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS -

                    

82

Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS 4,350

            

3,249

JS Bank Limited A1+ AA-  PACRA 27,000

          

23,000

Al-Barka Bank Limited A1 A PACRA 711

               

11

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 100 100

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA  PACRA 18,085 714

Standard Chartered Bank A1+ AAA PACRA - 14

Summit Bank Limited A3 BBB-  JCR-VIS 604 -

Bank Islami A1 A+  PACRA 11,574 -

110,318 67,888

Rupees in thousand

Rating

   Due to the Group’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after 
giving due consideration to their strong nancial standing, management does not expect non 
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Group. Accordingly, the credit 
risk is minimal.

   Counterparties without external credit ratings

   These include customers which are counter parties to trade debts. The Group recognises ECL 
for trade debts using the simplied approach as explained in note 3.13. The analysis of ages of 
trade debts and loss allowance using the aforementioned approach  as at 30 June 2019 (on 
adoption of IFRS 9) was determined as follows:

   The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:

        

Rupees in thousand

 

 

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

499,040
 

16,492
         

399,869
         

6,240

321,341 7,015           352,897          7,879

222,617

 
8,448

           
188,502

         
7,312

123,655

Past due 0 - 30 days

Past due 31 - 60 days

Past due 61 - 90 days

Past due 91 - 120 days

Past due 121 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 364 days

Past due over one year

 

      

      

      

       

5,563

           

180,296

         

9,059

242,788 16,065 216,301 16,193

101,435 11,908 134,693 18,785

140,452 140,452 171,575 140,452

1,651,328 205,943 1,644,133 205,920

2019 2018

 42.1.3 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difculty in meeting obligations associated with 
nancial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other nancial asset, or that such obligation will 
have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to Group. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible that it will always have sufcient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under 
both normal and stressed conditions. The Group nances its operations through equity, borrowings 
and working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of nance 
to minimize risk. The management aims to maintain exibility in funding by keeping regular committed 
credit limits.

  The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2019:

 

        

 

  

Trusted Worldwide
BERGER PAINTS Annual Report 2019  |  Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

204 205



  (iv) Bank balances

   The Group's exposure to credit risk against balances with various commercial banks is as 
follows:

                      

                              

           

             

             

                    

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 169,991 169,991 80,356 89,635 -

Liabilities against assets 

subject to nance lease - secured 2,099 1,046 1,086

Trade and other payables 1,022,133 1,022,133 1,022,133 - -

39,432 39,432 39,432 - -

Short term borrowings - secured 1,204,747 1,287,804 1,287,804 - -

2,438,402 2,519,360 2,430,771 90,721 -

Rupees in thousand

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

               

             

                    

                  

                            

In current accounts

In deposit accounts

Short term investment

Cash and bank balances

Rupees in thousand 2019 2018

78,123 19,249

- 6,364

32,195

          

42,275

          110,318              67,888 

   The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit 
rating agencies as follows:

Rating

2019 2018Banks Short term Long term Agency

Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 27,478

          
19,048

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 20,416

          

21,670

United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS -

                    

82

Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA  JCR-VIS 4,350

            

3,249

JS Bank Limited A1+ AA-  PACRA 27,000

          

23,000

Al-Barka Bank Limited A1 A PACRA 711

               

11

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 100 100

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA  PACRA 18,085 714

Standard Chartered Bank A1+ AAA PACRA - 14

Summit Bank Limited A3 BBB-  JCR-VIS 604 -

Bank Islami A1 A+  PACRA 11,574 -

110,318 67,888

Rupees in thousand

Rating

   Due to the Group’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after 
giving due consideration to their strong nancial standing, management does not expect non 
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Group. Accordingly, the credit 
risk is minimal.

   Counterparties without external credit ratings

   These include customers which are counter parties to trade debts. The Group recognises ECL 
for trade debts using the simplied approach as explained in note 3.13. The analysis of ages of 
trade debts and loss allowance using the aforementioned approach  as at 30 June 2019 (on 
adoption of IFRS 9) was determined as follows:

   The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is:

        

Rupees in thousand

 

 

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

Gross 

carrying 

amount

Loss 

Allowance

499,040
 

16,492
         

399,869
         

6,240

321,341 7,015           352,897          7,879

222,617

 
8,448

           
188,502

         
7,312

123,655

Past due 0 - 30 days

Past due 31 - 60 days

Past due 61 - 90 days

Past due 91 - 120 days

Past due 121 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 364 days

Past due over one year

 

      

      

      

       

5,563

           

180,296

         

9,059

242,788 16,065 216,301 16,193

101,435 11,908 134,693 18,785

140,452 140,452 171,575 140,452

1,651,328 205,943 1,644,133 205,920

2019 2018

 42.1.3 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difculty in meeting obligations associated with 
nancial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other nancial asset, or that such obligation will 
have to be settled in a manner unfavorable to Group. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible that it will always have sufcient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under 
both normal and stressed conditions. The Group nances its operations through equity, borrowings 
and working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of nance 
to minimize risk. The management aims to maintain exibility in funding by keeping regular committed 
credit limits.

  The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2019:
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The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2018:

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 138,263 144,101 74,439 69,662 -

Liabilities against assets 

subject to nance lease - secured 3,593 1,627 2,132

Trade and other payables 1,159,317 1,159,317 1,159,317 - -

16,465 16,465 16,465 - -

Short term borrowings - secured 1,137,989 1,221,046 1,221,046 - -

2,455,627 2,540,929 2,472,894 71,794 -

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Rupees in thousand

                                        

                                  

                             

                     

 

 

 

                   

             

  It is not expected that the cash ows on the maturity analysis could occur signicantly earlier, or at 
signicant different amount.

 42.2 Fair value measurement of nancial instruments

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

  Underlying the denition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern and there is 
no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction 
on adverse terms.

  A nancial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted price is readily and regularly 
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and 
that price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

  IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using a fair 
value hierarchy that reects the signicance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair 
value hierarchy has the following levels:

  - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can 
access at measurement date (Level 1)

  - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2)

  -  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable) 
inputs (Level 3)

  Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period 
during which the changes have occurred.

  The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of nancial assets and nancial 
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy;
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The following are the contractual maturities of nancial liabilities as at 30 June 2018:

 Carrying 

amount 

 Contractual 

cash ow 

 Less than one 

year 

 One to ve 

years 

 More than ve 

years 

Non derivative nancial liabilities

Long term nancing - secured 138,263 144,101 74,439 69,662 -

Liabilities against assets 

subject to nance lease - secured 3,593 1,627 2,132

Trade and other payables 1,159,317 1,159,317 1,159,317 - -

16,465 16,465 16,465 - -

Short term borrowings - secured 1,137,989 1,221,046 1,221,046 - -

2,455,627 2,540,929 2,472,894 71,794 -

Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings

Rupees in thousand

                                        

                                  

                             

                     

 

 

 

                   

             

  It is not expected that the cash ows on the maturity analysis could occur signicantly earlier, or at 
signicant different amount.

 42.2 Fair value measurement of nancial instruments

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

  Underlying the denition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern and there is 
no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction 
on adverse terms.

  A nancial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted price is readily and regularly 
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and 
that price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

  IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using a fair 
value hierarchy that reects the signicance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair 
value hierarchy has the following levels:

  - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can 
access at measurement date (Level 1)

  - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2)

  -  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable) 
inputs (Level 3)

  Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period 
during which the changes have occurred.

  The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of nancial assets and nancial 
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy;
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 42.3  Fair value versus carrying amounts

  The Group has not disclosed the fair values of nancial assets and liabilities which are for short term or 
repriced over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

 42.4 Freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and 
machinery have been carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3 
measurement) based on their assessment of the values as disclosed. The valuations are conducted by 
an independent valuation expert appointed by the Group. The valuation expert used a market based 
approach to arrive at the fair value of the Group's land and building. The valuation was determined by 
reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most signicant input into this 
valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present operational 
condition and age of plant and machinery respectively. The effect of changes in the unobservable 
inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a qualitative disclosure 
of sensitivity has not been presented in these consolidated  nancial statements.

43 Capital risk management

 The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide return for shareholders and benets for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic 
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

 The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - calculated as a ratio of total debt to equity.

44 Restriction on title and assets pledged as security

Mortgages and charges

First

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

Mortgage over land and building

Ranking

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

2019 2018

       2,004,000        1,537,000 

          506,000           506,000 

       1,001,334        1,135,000 

Rupees in thousand

Rupees

The debt-to-equity ratios as at 30 June were as follows:

Total debt 

Total 

Debt-to-equity ratio 

2019 2018

       1,414,170        1,292,717 

       3,007,780        2,827,340 

47% 46%

 Neither there were any changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year nor the Group is 
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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 42.3  Fair value versus carrying amounts

  The Group has not disclosed the fair values of nancial assets and liabilities which are for short term or 
repriced over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

 42.4 Freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and 
machinery have been carried at revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3 
measurement) based on their assessment of the values as disclosed. The valuations are conducted by 
an independent valuation expert appointed by the Group. The valuation expert used a market based 
approach to arrive at the fair value of the Group's land and building. The valuation was determined by 
reference to current market value of the similar properties / assets. The most signicant input into this 
valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for buildings and present operational 
condition and age of plant and machinery respectively. The effect of changes in the unobservable 
inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a qualitative disclosure 
of sensitivity has not been presented in these consolidated  nancial statements.

43 Capital risk management

 The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide return for shareholders and benets for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic 
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

 The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - calculated as a ratio of total debt to equity.

44 Restriction on title and assets pledged as security

Mortgages and charges

First

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

Mortgage over land and building

Ranking

Hypothecation of all present and future current assets

2019 2018

       2,004,000        1,537,000 

          506,000           506,000 

       1,001,334        1,135,000 

Rupees in thousand

Rupees

The debt-to-equity ratios as at 30 June were as follows:

Total debt 

Total 

Debt-to-equity ratio 

2019 2018

       1,414,170        1,292,717 

       3,007,780        2,827,340 

47% 46%

 Neither there were any changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year nor the Group is 
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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45 Production capacity

Actual production

Liters in thousand 2019 2018

37,349             41,594 

 The capacity of the plant is indeterminable because it is a multi product plant involving varying processes of 
manufacturing. Actual production includes resin production of 15.11 million liters (2018: 15.33 million liters) 
which is used in the manufacture of the nal product. The reason for shortfall during the year was due to 
decreased demand of the products.

46 Operating segments

 46.1 These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable 
segment.

 46.2 Revenue from sale of paints and allied represents 99.52% (2018: 99.50%) of the total revenue of the 
Group.

 46.3 98.11% (2018: 98.01%) sales of the Group relates to customers in Pakistan.

 46.4 All non-current assets of the Group as at 30 June 2019 are located in Pakistan.

47 Date of authorization for issue

 These  nancial statements were authorized for issue on 19 September 2019 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

48 Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

 The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 19 September 2019 has proposed a nal cash 
dividend of Re. 1 per share, for the year ended 30 June 2019, for approval of the members in the Annual General 
Meeting to be held on 24 October 2019.

49 General

 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupee unless otherwise stated.

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

        

          

         

        

              

              

              

              

        

          

        

              

      

      

      

            

        

       

Form of Proxy

The Secretary 
Berger Paints Pakistan Limited 
36 Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore.

I/We

r/o

being a member of Berger Pakistan Limited and a holder of

(No. of shares)

Ordinary shares as per folio number

hereby appoint

r/o

On my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday October 24, 2019 at 10:00 am at 
28-KM Multan Road, Lahore and at any adjournment thereof. 

Signed this day of 2019.

Notes: 

1. The share transfer book will remain closed from October 08, 2019 to October 14, 2019 (both days inclusive) 

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as 
his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. The completed proxy form must be received at the 
registered ofce of the company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 

3. Any individual benecial owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this meeting must bring his/her original CNIC with 
him/her to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy , a copy of shareholder's attested CNIC must be attached 
with the proxy form. Representatives of Corporate members should also bring the usual documents required 
for such purpose. 

Signature on 
Rs. 5.00
Revenue 
Stamp 
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45 Production capacity

Actual production

Liters in thousand 2019 2018

37,349             41,594 

 The capacity of the plant is indeterminable because it is a multi product plant involving varying processes of 
manufacturing. Actual production includes resin production of 15.11 million liters (2018: 15.33 million liters) 
which is used in the manufacture of the nal product. The reason for shortfall during the year was due to 
decreased demand of the products.

46 Operating segments

 46.1 These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable 
segment.

 46.2 Revenue from sale of paints and allied represents 99.52% (2018: 99.50%) of the total revenue of the 
Group.

 46.3 98.11% (2018: 98.01%) sales of the Group relates to customers in Pakistan.

 46.4 All non-current assets of the Group as at 30 June 2019 are located in Pakistan.

47 Date of authorization for issue

 These  nancial statements were authorized for issue on 19 September 2019 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

48 Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

 The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 19 September 2019 has proposed a nal cash 
dividend of Re. 1 per share, for the year ended 30 June 2019, for approval of the members in the Annual General 
Meeting to be held on 24 October 2019.

49 General

 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupee unless otherwise stated.

Chief Financial Ofcer Chief Executive Director

        

          

         

        

              

              

              

              

        

          

        

              

      

      

      

            

        

       

Form of Proxy

The Secretary 
Berger Paints Pakistan Limited 
36 Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore.

I/We

r/o

being a member of Berger Pakistan Limited and a holder of

(No. of shares)

Ordinary shares as per folio number

hereby appoint

r/o

On my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday October 24, 2019 at 10:00 am at 
28-KM Multan Road, Lahore and at any adjournment thereof. 

Signed this day of 2019.

Notes: 

1. The share transfer book will remain closed from October 08, 2019 to October 14, 2019 (both days inclusive) 

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as 
his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. The completed proxy form must be received at the 
registered ofce of the company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 

3. Any individual benecial owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this meeting must bring his/her original CNIC with 
him/her to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy , a copy of shareholder's attested CNIC must be attached 
with the proxy form. Representatives of Corporate members should also bring the usual documents required 
for such purpose. 

Signature on 
Rs. 5.00
Revenue 
Stamp 
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The Company Secretary 

36 - Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE 

Electronic Dividend Mandate Form

Date: / /

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, dividend payable in cash shall 
only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017, has presently waived this condition 
till October 31, 2017. Any dividend payable after this due date shall be paid in the prescribed manner only. 
Shareholders are requested to send their Electronic Dividend Mandate information duly lled and signed, 
along with attested copy of their CNIC to the Company's Share Registrar, M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings 
Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000. CDC shareholders are requested to 
submit their Dividend Mandate Form and attested copy of CNIC directly to their broker (participant)/CDC.

I/We ______________________________________________________________ hereby authorize Berger Paints 
Pakistan Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the below mentioned bank account:

Name of shareholder: _______________________________________________

Folio Number/CDC Account No.: ________________________of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Contact number of shareholder: _______________________________________________

Title of Account: _______________________________________________

IBAN (*): _______________________________________________

Name of Bank: _______________________________________________

Bank Branch: _______________________________________________

Mailing Address of Branch: _______________________________________________

CNIC No. (Attach attested copy): _______________________________________________

NTN (in case of corporate entity): _______________________________________________

It is stated that to the best of my/our knowledge and belief, the above particulars given by me/us are true and 
correct; and I/we shall keep Berger Paints Pakistan Limited and its Share Registrar informed in case of any 
changes in the said particulars in future.

______________________________    ___________________

Shareholder's Signature    Date

NOTES: *Please provide complete IBAN (International Bank Account Number), after checking with your 
concerned Bank branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

**The shareholders who hold shares in Physical Form are requested to ll the above mentioned E-Dividend 
Bank Mandate Form and send it to the Company's Share Registrar at M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings 
Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000,

Contact +92 42 35916714,

E-mail address: corplink786@gmail.com 
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The Company Secretary 

36 - Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
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Electronic Dividend Mandate Form

Date: / /

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, dividend payable in cash shall 
only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017, has presently waived this condition 
till October 31, 2017. Any dividend payable after this due date shall be paid in the prescribed manner only. 
Shareholders are requested to send their Electronic Dividend Mandate information duly lled and signed, 
along with attested copy of their CNIC to the Company's Share Registrar, M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings 
Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000. CDC shareholders are requested to 
submit their Dividend Mandate Form and attested copy of CNIC directly to their broker (participant)/CDC.

I/We ______________________________________________________________ hereby authorize Berger Paints 
Pakistan Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the below mentioned bank account:

Name of shareholder: _______________________________________________

Folio Number/CDC Account No.: ________________________of Berger Paints Pakistan Limited

Contact number of shareholder: _______________________________________________

Title of Account: _______________________________________________

IBAN (*): _______________________________________________

Name of Bank: _______________________________________________

Bank Branch: _______________________________________________

Mailing Address of Branch: _______________________________________________

CNIC No. (Attach attested copy): _______________________________________________

NTN (in case of corporate entity): _______________________________________________

It is stated that to the best of my/our knowledge and belief, the above particulars given by me/us are true and 
correct; and I/we shall keep Berger Paints Pakistan Limited and its Share Registrar informed in case of any 
changes in the said particulars in future.

______________________________    ___________________

Shareholder's Signature    Date

NOTES: *Please provide complete IBAN (International Bank Account Number), after checking with your 
concerned Bank branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

**The shareholders who hold shares in Physical Form are requested to ll the above mentioned E-Dividend 
Bank Mandate Form and send it to the Company's Share Registrar at M/s Corplink Private Limited, Wings 
Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Block K Model Town, Lahore, Punjab 54000,

Contact +92 42 35916714,

E-mail address: corplink786@gmail.com 
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Berger Paints Pakistan Limited
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BERGER HELPLINE

08000-2000

For Free Color Advisory

111-BERGER(111-237-437) KHI, LHR, ISB.

Faisalabad: 041-8554044, 8724050

Peshawar: 091-5703376

Quetta: 081-2822772

Gujranwala: 055-3250744, 3843450

Multan: 061-4586461, 4580946, 4586337

Hyderabad: 022-2720908

Berger Paints Pakistan Limited 28 Km, Multan Road, Lahore, Pakistan.

www.facebook.com/berger.pak www.twitter.com/BergerPaksitan

www.berger.com.pk
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